Public Document Pack

" monmouthshire
W sir fynwy
County Hall
Rhadyr
Usk
NP15 1GA

Wednesday, 27 October 2021

Notice of meeting

County Council

Thursday, 4th November, 2021 at 2.00 pm,
Council Chamber, County Hall, The Rhadyr, Usk, NP15 1GA

AGENDA

Prayers will be said prior to the Council meeting at 1.55pm. All members are welcome to join the
Chairman for prayers should they wish to do.

Iltem No | ltem Pages
1. Apologies for absence
2. Declarations of interest
3. Public Questions
4. Chairman's announcement and receipt of petitions 1-2
5. Reports for Council:
5.1. SAFEGUARDING EVALUATION REPORT April 2020 - March 2022 3-40
5.2. CLIMATE AND DE-CARBONISATION STRATEGY 41 -74
5.3. DIVERSITY AND DEMOCRACY DECLARATION 75 - 88
5.4. COUNCIL DIARY 89 - 108
5.5. AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS & ISA260 MCC ACCOUNTS 109 - 240
5.6. STATEMENT OF GAMBLING POLICY AND PROPOSALS FOR CASINOS 241 - 308




6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

71.

7.2,

7.3.

7.4.

Notices of Motion
Submitted by County Councillor Kevin Williams

This council welcomes the proposed changes to the Parliamentary
Boundary changes proposed by the Boundary Commission for the
Monmouth constituency. It resolves to write in support of the common-
sense change affecting Monmouthshire to create a new seat that
follows the boundaries of this council.

Submitted by County Councillor D Batrouni

That the Council write a letter to the UK government expressing
disappointment at their decision not to continue to pay the £20
Universal Credit uplift, which should include an explanation of how this
decision will have negative consequences for low-income households in
Monmouthshire.

Submitted by County Councillor A. Watts

Monmouthshire County Council formally acknowledges care sector workers
have gone above and beyond expectations and demands of supporting our
most vulnerable citizens throughout the pandemic. The Authority gives
recognition to their commitment and dedication by implementing an increase
in the minimum hourly rate to £15.00 to all employees in the authority's care
sector.

Members Questions

Urgent question: From County Councillor A Easson to County Councillor
R. John, Leader of the Council

Monmouthshire’s bid for a share of the Levelling up Fund, administered by the
Westminster Government, was not successful. In view of this decision, can
the Leader make a statement regarding the effect on the economy of Caldicot
and Severnside and what plans he will have in respect of the future of Caldicot
Town and the Caldicot Leisure Centre.

From County Councillor A Easson to County Councillor Jane Pratt,
Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Services and Infrastructure

What is the annual budget for maintenance and renewal of
pedestrian crossings; how many crossings have been upgraded; how
many have been removed or replace; and how many new crossings
have been installed in the County between 2019 and today?

From County Councillor A Easson to County Councillor Jane Pratt,
Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Services and Infrastructure

What is the criteria for installing pedestrian crossings; how are those
assessments made prior to considering new crossings and
refurbishments or renewal of others; are changes in the traffic and
pedestrian environment considered on a regular basis?

From County Councillor M. Powell to County Councillor Lisa Dymock,




7.5.

8.1.

8.2.

Cabinet Member for Community Wellbeing and Social Justice

Following the easing of the lockdown rules, how successful were the Summer
Play Schemes, and how well were they attended?

From County Councillor P. Jordan to County Councillor S. Jones,
Cabinet Member for Economy

Can the cabinet member provide an update on what support will be provided
for our town centres to encourage footfall in the run up to the Christmas
period?

To confirm minutes of previous meetings

23rd September 2021

1st October 2021

Next meeting - 16th December 2021

309 - 314

315 - 316

Paul Matthews

Chief Executive / Prif Weithredwr




MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

CYNGOR SIR FYNWY

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS:

County Councillor Peter Clarke
County Councillor Dimitri Batrouni
County Councillor Jeremy Becker

County Councillor Debby Blakebrough

County Councillor Louise Brown
County Councillor Alan Davies

County Councillor Lisa Dymock
County Councillor Tony Easson

County Councillor Christopher Edwards

County Councillor Ruth Edwards
County Councillor David Evans
County Councillor Mat Feakins
County Councillor Peter Fox

County Councillor Robert Greenland
County Councillor Martyn Groucultt

County Councillor Linda Guppy
County Councillor Roger Harris
County Councillor Jim Higginson
County Councillor Giles Howard
County Councillor Simon Howarth
County Councillor Richard John
County Councillor Dave Jones
County Councillor Laura Jones
County Councillor Penny Jones
County Councillor Sara Jones
County Councillor Bryan Jones
County Councillor Paul Jordan
County Councillor Malcolm Lane
County Councillor Phil Murphy
County Councillor Paul Pavia

County Councillor Maureen Powell

County Councillor Jane Pratt
County Councillor Richard Roden
County Councillor Val Smith
County Councillor Brian Strong
County Councillor Frances Taylor
County Councillor Tudor Thomas
County Councillor Jamie Treharne
County Councillor Jo Watkins
County Councillor Armand Watts
County Councillor Ann Webb
County Councillor Kevin Williams

County Councillor Sheila Woodhouse

Public Information

Llangybi Fawr;
St. Christophers;
St. Mary's;
Trellech United;
Shirenewton;
Green Lane;
The Elms;
Dewstow;

St. Kingsmark;
Llantilio Crossenny;
West End;
Drybridge;
Portskewett;
Devauden;
Lansdown;
Rogiet;
Croesonen;
Severn;
Llanfoist Fawr;
Llanelly Hill;
Mitchel Troy;
Crucorney;
Wyesham;
Raglan;
Llanover;
Goytre Fawr;
Cantref;

Mardy;
Caerwent;
Larkfield;
Castle;

Llanelly Hill;
Dixton with Osbaston;
Llanbadoc;
Usk;

Mill;

Priory;
Overmonnow;
Caldicot Castle;
Thornwell;

St Arvans;
Llanwenarth Ultra;
Grofield;

Access to paper copies of agendas and reports
A copy of this agenda and relevant reports can be made available to members of the public attending a
meeting by requesting a copy from Democratic Services on 01633 644219. Please note that we must
receive 24 hours notice prior to the meeting in order to provide you with a hard copy of this agenda.

Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
Liberal Democrats
Independent Group

Welsh Conservative Party
Independent

Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
Liberal Democrats

Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
Welsh Conservative Party
Independent Group

Welsh Conservative Party
Independent Group

Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Conservative Party
Independent Group

Welsh Conservative Party
Independent Group

Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
Welsh Conservative Party
Liberal Democrats

Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
Welsh Conservative Party
Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru
Welsh Conservative Party



Watch this meeting online
This meeting can be viewed online either live or following the meeting by visiting
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk or by visiting our Youtube page by searching MonmouthshireCC.

Welsh Language

Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawu cyfraniadau gan aelodau'r cyhoedd trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg neu’r Saesneg.
Gofynnwn yn barchus i chi roi rhybudd digonol i ni er mwyn darparu ar gyfer eich anghenion

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public through the medium of Welsh or English.
We respectfully ask that you provide us with adequate notice to accommodate your needs.


http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/

Aims and Values of Monmouthshire County Council

Our purpose

Building Sustainable and Resilient Communities
Objectives we are working towards

Giving people the best possible start in life

A thriving and connected county

Maximise the Potential of the natural and built environment
Lifelong well-being

A future focused council

Our Values

Openness. We are open and honest. People have the chance to get involved in decisions that
affect them, tell us what matters and do things for themselves/their communities. If we cannot do
something to help, we’ll say so; if it will take a while to get the answer we’ll explain why; if we can’t
answer immediately we’ll try to connect you to the people who can help — building trust and
engagement is a key foundation.

Fairness. We provide fair chances, to help people and communities thrive. If something does not
seem fair, we will listen and help explain why. We will always try to treat everyone fairly and
consistently. We cannot always make everyone happy, but will commit to listening and explaining
why we did what we did.

Flexibility. We will continue to change and be flexible to enable delivery of the most effective and
efficient services. This means a genuine commitment to working with everyone to embrace new
ways of working.

Teamwork. We will work with you and our partners to support and inspire everyone to get involved
S0 we can achieve great things together. We don’t see ourselves as the ‘fixers’ or problem-solvers,
but we will make the best of the ideas, assets and resources available to make sure we do the
things that most positively impact our people and places.






This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Chairman’s Report
29" September — 26™" October

Wednesday 29" September
12.30 p.m.

Long Service Recognition Event

Sunday 3™ October Abergavenny Civic Service

3 p.m. St Mary’s Priory Church, Abergavenny
Saturday 23™ October Tour of Eco Brewery

1p.m. Bridge Street, Usk

Monday 25" October Opening of new Play Park

1p.m. Chippenham Fields, Monmouth

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5a

" monmouthshire
W sir fynwy

SUBJECT: SAFEGUARDING EVALUATION REPORT April 2020 — March 2021

MEETING: COUNCIL 4" November 2021

DATE: DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

1. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this report is:

e To evaluate the progress of Monmouthshire County Council’s key safeguarding
priorities during 2020 / 2021, highlighting progress, identifying risks and setting
out actions and priorities for 2021 - 2022.

e To inform Members about the effectiveness of safeguarding in Monmouthshire
and the work that is in progress to support the Council’'s aims in protecting
children and adults at risk from harm and abuse.

e To inform Members about the progress made towards meeting the standards
in the Council’'s Corporate Safeguarding Policy approved by Council in July
2017, amended January 2019.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:

2.1 For members to receive and endorse the Annual Safeguarding Evaluation
Report and Activity Plan.

3. KEY ISSUES:

3.1 This safeguarding evaluation (see appendix 2) is based on activity and
information from April 2020 to March 2021. During the majority of this period
COVID restrictions have been in place. This has obviously had an impact on
operational safeguarding activity and where relevant, this is referenced within
the evaluation and informs the current safeguarding risk assessment (appendix
5)

3.2  The report is developed within the context of the approved Monmouthshire
County Council’s Corporate Safeguarding Policy which covers duties for both
children and adults at risk in line with the Social Services and Well Being
(Wales) Act (2014). The analysis within the report reflects progress against

Page 3



priority areas set out within the policy and draws on data and information
concerning both groups.

3.3 The 5 cornerstones of safeguarding within the Corporate Safeguarding Policy
are set out below.

The Cornerstones of safeguarding in Monmouthshire

Safe Services Safe Workforce

Good

Governance

Preventative

Robust Protection Approach

3.4 Embedding and sustaining the highest standards of safeguarding is a
continuous endeavor. This evaluation report forms an integral part of the
continual development of safeguarding practice across the Council and drives
the work of the Whole Authority Safeguarding Group. The evaluation report
seeks to balance qualitative and quantitative data as well as drawing in other
sources of information to support the evaluation. The evaluation report is at
appendix 2.

35 Relevant sources of external information were used to inform this evaluation
including:

- Welsh Audit Office Follow-up review of Corporate Arrangements for
Safeguarding of Children (issued February 2020)

- Estyn Report on Education Services in MCC (issued February 2020)

- CIW Focused Activity Inspection Adult Safeguarding (February 2020)

- CIW Focused Activity Inspection Children Safeguarding (February 2020)

- CIW Assurance Check of Children and Adult Social Services (February
2021)

- Internal Audit Report on Safeguarding Training issued March 2021

Page 4



3.6

The self-assessment score has been agreed by the Whole Authority
Safeguarding Group through critical challenge on the basis of evidence
reviewed to date. It uses the corporate scoring framework (Appendix 1) to
provide an overall judgement of effectiveness between 1 (major weaknesses)
and 6 (excellent / outstanding). The current self-assessment is set out below.

Self-assessment scores as at March 2021

Cornerstone of | April 17 | Oct 17- April 2018 | April 2019 | April 2020
Safeguarding -Sept March 18 — March — March — March
17 2019 2020 2021

Good
Governance 4 5 5 5 5
Safe Workforce

3 4 3 3 4
Preventative
Approach 3 4 4 4 5
Robust
Protection 4 4 4 3 3
Safe Services

2 3 3 3 4

3.5

6.1

Priority improvement actions arising from the evaluation form the basis of the
WASG action plan which is implemented and monitored through the Whole
Authority Safeguarding Group (see appendix 3). The review of the previous
year’s action plan is at appendix 4.

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Not applicable to this report

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Each ‘cornerstone’ section of the report opens with descriptors of ‘what good
looks like’. These descriptors provide the basis of how we measure the
standard over time using both qualitative and quantitative sources.
Safeguarding progress is reported on an annual basis to full Council.

REASONS:

This evaluation report is completed within the context of Monmouthshire County
Council’'s background and history in respect of safeguarding as set out in brief

Page 5



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

below and represents a further opportunity for Members to consider the
distance travelled by the Local Authority in improving safeguarding practice.

Council Members will be aware that in November 2012 the Local Authority was
found to have inadequate safeguarding arrangements in place. Shortcomings
included a lack of safeguarding policy as well as operational weaknesses
particularly within a schools based context.

The Safeguarding and Quality Assurance Unit was established within
Children’s Services in 2012 quickly extending its role to supporting the
Authority’s improvement journey around children’s safeguarding.

In February 2014 an Estyn monitoring visit recognised that the council had
appropriately prioritised safeguarding and ‘set the foundations well for recovery’
particularly at service and practitioner. However, the authority still did not have
‘effective enough management information systems and processes to enable it
to receive appropriate and evaluative management information about
safeguarding’. This criticism was echoed by a subsequent Welsh Audit Office
review of safeguarding in March 2014.

In response to this the council established the Whole Authority Safeguarding
Group (WASG) initially chaired by the Chief Executive with a focus specifically
on children. The inaugural meeting took place in July 2014.

The Local Authority came out of Special Measures in November 2015 when
strong progress in safeguarding was recognised.

A recommendation was subsequently made to Cabinet and endorsed in July
2016 allowing the work of the WASG to incorporate safeguarding for adults at
risk so that good practice and learning could be mutually shared, and marking
the statutory basis of adult safeguarding as a consequence of the Social
Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014.

Members will also be aware that Wales Audit Office issued statutory
recommendations in respect of safeguarding in respect of the Council’s
Kerbcraft service in January 2017. This was followed by a Wales Audit Office
led inspection which took place in January 2018, in partnership with both CIW
and Estyn. The report to this was issued in August 2018 and scrutinised by CYP
Select in October 2018. There were 4 main proposals within the report including
further strengthening of the policy framework; further steps to ensure a safe
workforce and safeguarding within commissioning.

The WAO conducted a follow up ‘light touch’ inspection to this in September
2019. The written outcome was received 5" February 2020 with no further
recommendations made.

Page 6



10.

11.

12.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

There are no resource implications to this report.

WELLBEING OF FUTURE
(INCORPORATING EQUALITIES, SUSTAINABILITY, SAFEGUARDING
AND CORPORATE PARENTING):

GENERATIONS

IMPLICATIONS

This report is critically concerned with the effectiveness of safeguarding in
Monmouthshire County Council.

CONSULTEES:

Whole Authority Safeguarding Group

Julie Boothroyd — Chief Officer

BACKGROUND PAPERS:
Corporate Safeguarding Policy

AUTHOR:

Jane Rodgers, Head of Children’s Services

CONTACT DETAILS:

Jane Rodgers

Janerodgers@monmouthshire.gov.uk

01633 644054

Page 7


mailto:Janerodgers@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Appendix 1

The Corporate Evaluation Framework

Level 6 Excellent or outstanding

Excellent

Level 5 Good Major strengths

Very Good

Level 4 Important strengths with some areas for
improvement

Good

Level 3 Strengths just outweigh weaknesses

Adequate

Level 2 Weak |[Important weaknesses

Level 1|Major weakness

Unsatisfactory

Page 8



APPENDIX 2

The Evaluation

1). Good Governance

In Monmouthshire County Council we ensure that safeguarding for children and adults at risk
is understood as “everyone’s responsibility”. With strong leadership there is a continuous
focus on embedding safeguarding culturally across all parts of the Council at a “hearts and
minds” level. Safeguarding is supported by robust policies and operating procedures which
are embedded within all settings and services. We work effectively with regional safeguarding
boards to sure good alignment and maximise our resources.

The Corporate Safeguarding Policy was reviewed and updated in Jan 2019 to include a
clearer link to Data Protection issues and Whistleblowing.

The safeguarding policy framework within MCC was highlighted as positive within the Estyn
inspection (Feb 2020).

A safeguarding position statement was issued as part of emergency arrangements for
COVID. The risks to safeguarding during the pandemic were highlighted as a risk at corporate
level and mitigating actions were put in place.

The Whole Authority Safeguarding Group was suspended briefly during emergency, but
resumed July 2020.

In Februrary 2021 CIW carried out an Assurance Check with a focus on how well social
services continue to support children and adults with a focus on safety and wellbeing. This
recognised that:

“At the outset of the pandemic, the local authority introduced a revised purpose and eight new
strategic aims to provide clarity and ensure accountability through the period. This includes an
aim to help vulnerable young people and adults who need support. Leaders have maintained
a line of sight on the changing COVID-19 landscape resulting in clear plans to address the
issues presented. This has led to creative and responsive practice.”

The safeguarding ‘self-assessment’ process is commenced every other year on a directorate
basis via the Safeguarding Assessment Framework for Evaluation (SAFE). There was some
disruption to the 2019 — 2021 process because of the pandemic. The next iteration of the
SAFE (2021 — 2023) was launched in April 2021. As we did for the 2019 programme, we will
adopt a similar ‘workshop’ check and challenge approach for directorates to share the
outcomes of their SAFEs. This approach uses real case studies to demonstrate safeguarding
in action and facilitates the sharing of good practice, collective problem solving and the
identification of safeguarding issues / themes.

Page 9




Additional resource has been provided to the Safeguarding Unit to enhance the business
support capacity and positions have now been filled. This should allow for some strengthening
of data and information management within the Unit to inform the function / role of the WASG.

Safeguarding is including within the timetable of Internal Audit, with specific areas of audit

being discussed and agreed with the WASG. The most recent audit concerned safeguarding
training and was undertaken in January — March 2020. The audit was issued in March 2021
and found Considerable Level of Assurance. The action plan arising has been implemented.

The Welsh Safeguarding Procedures came into force in April 2020. There was good
awareness raising across the Council regarding the new procedures with the Safeguarding
Procedures App being pinned to all Council laptops. Training has been made available for
relevant employees. Procedures are being gradually updated through the auspices of the
regional safeguarding boards. A new MARF / Duty to Report form is to be issued shortly and
will need to be disseminated to all partner agencies.

Regional safeguarding boards have continued to operate during the pandemic at an executive
level however, Monmouthshire continues to be represented and maintains good links into
both the Gwent Wide Safeguarding Board and the VAWDASYV board.

There is strong engagement in regional approaches to Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation
meeting (MASE) Child Sex Exploitation (CSE), Violence Against Women Domestic Abuse and
Sexual Violence (VAWDASYV) and Contest (PREVENT anti radicalisation).

The work of the WASG continues to be a major strength, which is reflected in our self-
assessment score as 5.

Key Strengths:

- Policy framework including SAFEs

- Safeguarding response and risk assessment during COVID-19 pandemic

- Positive CIW assurance check

- Considerable level of assurance finding in Internal Audit of safeguarding training.

- Implement 2021 — 2023 SAFE process

- Evaluate learning and outcomes process and ensure this informs future planning

- Development / implementation of core data set for WASG including comparative
data

- Review Corporate Policy to integrate and update in light of COVID

- Ensure new duty to report forms are implemented and embedded across the
council

2). Safe Workforce

Page 10



We ensure that safe recruitment and human resource practices operate effectively and are
embedded across the Council for the whole workforce (paid and unpaid). We ensure that
individuals working with children and adults at risk are suitable for the role they are employed
to do and are focused on outcomes for people. The whole workforce is clear about their duty
to report concerns and to keep children and adults at risk safe.

Safe Recruitment

In response to the pandemic, safe recruitment checks were adapted to reflect WG guidance
regarding digital recruitment. Elements of digital recruitment continue to be utilised across the
whole authority.

Full safeguarding checks are undertaken on every appointment with individuals not being set
up on payroll until these are completed.

Safe recruitment is well established and embedded within the Council.
Volunteers

In regards to volunteers, a Volunteer Kinetic digital management system is in place. This
means we have a live central record of volunteer safe recruitment information and activity.
The system is structured so that, dependent on the role, the correct safe recruitment checks
are carried out and logged on the volunteers’ profiles. Training undertaken is also logged on
the system (for example Safeguarding Level 1).

The GAVO, Volunteering for Wellbeing and MCC partnership continue to support community
groups to develop good governance and safe recruitment.

Safeguarding training is available to all community groups through Be Community

Volunteering activity across the council is continuing to increase as services reopen.

Training

Level 1 training is delivered via a Training for Trainers approach. Over the last 18 months
there has been positive improvement in directorates becoming increasingly self-sufficient in
delivering at this level, with less dependency on the SGU. There is a training forum in place to
ensure that trainers are kept up to date and provided with support and information, as well as
providing a level of Quality Assurance. Forum meetings were held on 29" April 2021 and 4%
May 2021 with good attendance.

There a system in place now which allows for all training records to be centrally recorded and
monitored. However, there is still more work to be done to improve accuracy and automate
the process. As yet we are still not able to answer the more fundamental question - who
needed training against who received it.

Data from corporate training shows that 602 people attended Level 1 safeguarding during
2020-2021.

2020-
Safequarding Level 1 attendance by Directorate 2021

Directorate Number

Page 11




Resources 0

social care & Health 100
mon life 32
cyp inc schools 423
Operations (enterprise) 13
Volunteers 20
Unknown 3
Chief Execs 3
External 8
TOTAL 602

In response to the crisis all direct training courses remain suspended. The council was quick
to respond and launched digital versions of Level 1 safeguarding (via SWAY) the Level 2
renewal programme. The most recent addition to this is the Level 2 initial together with a
range of digital approaches to level 3 and 4 safeguarding courses. Digital training will continue
to be a mainstay of the training strategy, as a positive ‘legacy’ of the pandemic period.

Managing Professional Allegations

During 01/04/20 — 31/03/21 the Unit held Professional Strategy Meetings about 53
professionals, relating to 75 children following professional allegations.

During the same period 40 Professional Strategy Meetings were concluded, of which:
25 x Substantiated

11 x Unsubstantiated

4 x Unfounded

Professional allegation referrals come from a range of referral sources.

There is no data available for numbers of professional allegation processes undertaken in
relation to adult safeguarding, or escalating concerns; however, data capture for this is in the
process of being developed.

Analysis

The increased score from 3 to 4 is based on the strengthening arrangements for delivering
and centrally recording safeguarding training data whilst recognising that this is still a work in
progress. The aspiration remains that an updated HR function will provide monitoring of any
unmet training needs from the point of recruitment.

Safe recruitment under the Corporate Safeguarding Policy continues to be a priority and there
are good processes and systems in place to ensure that safe recruitment practice is followed.
Operationally recruitment practices had to become more digital with the impact of COVID-19.
As digital approaches continue to develop (as part of the legacy of COVID-19) safe
recruitment practice will need to remain at forefront.

Page 12




Key Strengths:

- High priority is given within the council to safe recruitment practices

- The GAVO, Volunteering for Wellbeing and MCC partnership continue to support
community groups to develop good governance and safe recruitment.

- There is a strong level 1 training forum in place allowing directorates to be self-
sufficient in ensuring Level 1 training whilst the SGU provides quality assurance
and support.

- Monmouthshire is fully compliant with the management of Professional Concerns
Guidance within Children and Adult Services and has begun to develop adult data.

Next Steps

- Continue to monitor progress in how the council centrally records mandatory training
data

- Revise the safeguarding training strategy so that it reflects developments in digital
training options

- Further develop directorate sufficiency for the delivery of Level 1 training

- Undertake an audit of the adapted arrangements for digital recruitment to ensure
safeguarding is at the forefront

- Develop data to enable reporting on professional concerns relating to adult
safeguarding

Preventative Approach

We work with partners to identify emerging issues, risks and challenges to our communities.
We demonstrate clear multiagency approaches to developing protocols, processes and
practice in how we respond to these issues therefore reducing risks through early intervention
and preventative approaches.

VAWDASYV and PREVENT

Training plans are in place across the council to ensure the right levels of training are place in
respect of VAWDASYV and PREVENT focusing on early recognition of concerns and referral
on.

There is further work to be done regarding the council’s ability to accurately report on
VAWDASYV training for Groups 1 and 2, for both initial take up and renewal. This is
complicated by the fact that the host site for the training is via ABUHB Learning@Wales
platform meaning that some previous training data is no longer available and the training data
we have is not in a sufficiently detailed format. (This links to the same issues regarding the
need to strengthen arrangements for centrally recording employee data as in section 2.)

Page 13




However, taken from health board data, Monmouthshire’s training rate for Group 1 was just
under 100% against a national average of 68% completion rate.

Practitioners in adult and children’s services continue to work with multi-agency partners
regarding high risk domestic abuse cases through the MARAC process (Multi Agency Risk
Assessment Conferences).

This year 120 MARACSs were held which is an increase from 112 in 2020, and 97 in 2019.
CHILD EXPLOITATION

During 01/04/20 — 31/03/21, 47 children (up from 32 children last year) were subject to Child
Exploitation Meetings.

In addition to this, 2 MCC children were discussed as part of a Complex Strategy Meeting
considering 5 children.

Fortnightly MASE Meetings (Multi Agency Sexual Exploitation meetings) continue between
Police, Social Care and partner agencies to identify any patterns, locations and perpetrator
identification. The terms of reference for this meeting now extends to children who are at risk
of criminal exploitation.

There is good liaison in place between safeguarding, the Safer Monmouthshire Group and the
council’s Public Protection Unit including licensing.

Prior to the COVID pandemic a Monmouthshire Exploitation Group (MEG) with representation
from Safeguarding Unit, Public Protection, Partnerships, Police, Gwent Missing Children’s
Team, Education, Community Based teams was formed. The group initially oversaw the
development of a Monmouthshire Protocol for responding to Modern Day Slavery and
Exploitation. The group was put on hold through the pandemic, however, there are now plans
in place for a re-launch which will provide the opportunity to reconsider the implementation of
the policy particularly around training and awareness raising.

Safequarding in Schools

Monmouthshire has adopted a proactive approach to responding to issues of sexual
harassment in schools and has worked with colleagues in VAWDASYV to promote a Whole
School Approach. Schools will be expected to address this issue within the current SAFE
process. This will help us scope what issues are being raised within the school settings and
use the information to provide targeted support if this is required.

There is an anti-bullying prevention group established in MCC.

Additional resources are being provided to support services within schools to respond to pupil
wellbeing issues in regards to the impact of the pandemic — these included summer holiday
education hubs.

Providing Effective Early Help

The Information/ Advice and Assistance (IAA) facility at the front door of Children’s and Adults
(FISH) services are well embedded. Numbers of referrals received into children and adults
services continue to show an upward trend.

The Early Help Panel (EHP) within Children’s Services has been operating since Jan 18 and
has been recognised nationally as an example of effective early help practice. The early help

Page 14




panels provide streamlined referrals for families who need preventative and early help from a
range of partner agencies and services. During the period April 2020 — March 2021 an
average number of 29 referrals per week were made into the EHP equating to 3.4% of the
child population in MCC.

Multi-agency meetings (MAMS) are in place in each of the secondary schools and there is a
good link between these and the EHP.

Preventative approaches during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Early help and support services continued to provide services via digital solutions.

A parenting advice and support line was put up within 2 days of lockdown and over the course
of the year 445 calls were received. Resources have been secured to ensure that this advice
line remains in place until at least the end of March 2022.

The council turned its resources to supporting the range of community and volunteering
activity that sprang up in response to the crisis.

Housing

Recent changes in the Council’s homeless responsibilities has had an impact on the profile of
our homeless clients with higher and more complex needs, making safeguarding of even
more relevance, including domestic abuse, homeless young people and care leavers, people
with mental health difficulties and applications from high risk offenders. Support to homeless
individuals continues to be a focused activity but equally continues to be a challenge in
respect of the available resources. As of August 2021, there were 147 households in
temporary accommodation, including 73 households in bed and breakfast accommodation. Of
these, 60 were single homeless people with multiple support needs.

In order for us to place more appropriately (for both the applicant and other people) and
manage risk more effectively there continues to be a need for additional numbers and types of
accommodation and support for homeless applicants.

Since last year the Council has established a Homeless Transition Plan but also now needs,
under the Councils Social Justice Strategy, to establish a Housing Support Programme
Strategy by April 2022 and a Rapid Rehousing Protocol by Sept 22, which effectively will
absorb the Transition Plan.

Last year saw the introduction of the Housing Intervention Panel with the aim of preventing
homelessness or the threat of homelessness and the provision of co-ordinated services to
vulnerable individuals and households through a multi-agency forum. This has now been
established as an embedded part of homelessness prevention and housing support.

Communities

A social worker within the Partnerships team provides direct support to community groups
around prevention and early intervention and acts as a first port of call for safeguarding
concerns. Safeguarding training is available to all community groups which raises knowledge
at a community level

Local Safequarding Networks

Local Safeguarding Network (LSN) meetings and Safeguarding Practitioner Forums were
initially put on hold during the pandemic but these have recommenced since November 2020.

Page 15




LSNs are used as a multi-agency mechanism for professional leads to exchange information
regarding safeguarding issues and build knowledge of safeguarding activity and services
across the council. Wider safeguarding practitioner forums have now also recommenced (May
2021) and the council supported to the work of the National Safeguarding Week in November
2020.

Preventative approaches remain a strong area of safeguarding practice within
Monmouthshire, built on solid partnership working developed over time. A quote from CIW
Annual Letter 19/20 illustrates this well.

"A particular strength of Monmouthshire County Council is its commitment to
develop a range of innovative and creative preventative services, and ways of
working with people in finding their own solutions in preventing or delaying
their need for statutory care and support. We saw evidence in our annual
activity of an extensive range of preventative community-based services that
support early intervention and good outcomes for people. "

This was equally reiterated in the outcome letter following the CIW Assurance Checking
February 2021.

The score remaining at 4 in 2020 reflected the impact of the pandemic and the requirement to
massively alter the way that the council connects with vulnerable families and individuals.
That said the council responded quickly and flexibly in finding alternative ways to maintain
services, keep eyes and ears open and provide support where it was needed. The increased
score to 5 is proposed on the basis of how in many ways the response to the pandemic did
not inhibited the growth of preventative safeguarding services and in many ways served to
strengthen them.

Key Strengths:

- Partnership working across the council is recognised as strong

- Consistent drive towards developing preventative approaches across the council are
evident

- Place based approaches (adults) are developing and there is strong links with
communities

- Early help panel (children) is well established

- Proactive approaches are in place to issues that impact on vulnerable individuals and
communities.

- Work to resolve the issues around being able to report and monitor VAWDASYV training
across the council.

- Ensure full roll-out of the Modern Day Slavery protocol across the council

- Further analyse and monitor the impact of COVID-19 on families and communities and
ensure that services are in place to respond to increased risk and vulnerability

- Continue to support the Council’s approach to prevention of homelessness through
strengthening homeless prevention, increasing homeless accommodation and
enhancing specialist service provision for young people and offenders.

Page 16




- Continue to develop the Community Support Network approach with communities.

4). Robust Protection

We operate best practice in protecting children and adults at risk and ensure that all concerns
about possible abuse or neglect are recognised and responded to appropriately. Multi-agency
plans and interventions reduce risks and needs for children and vulnerable adults including
those at risk of significant harm.

Children’s Services

Children’s services remain committed to promoting good practice around children protection
and safeguarding through the current development programme Building Best Practice. Family
support services across all tiers of need and vulnerability have been significantly enhanced
and there is a good level of stability within the workforce and leadership.

Within the service there was a slight reduction in the numbers of children who are looked after
this year, although the overall trend remains upward trend. At year end the number of children
looked after was 213 (from 219).

At year end the number of children on the child protection register was 60 (a significant
reduction from previous year end of 112). The end of year figure reflected a particular point in
time where some larger sibling groups had been de-registered. The number of children on
child protection plans does fluxuate — and already we have seen the Q1 figure increase to 84
children. The critical issue here, is that the right children are registered and remain subject to
child protection core groups and planning for the right length of time. In the year ahead the
areas for improvement include the timeliness of initial core groups (72# / 66.7%) and statutory
visits (1408# / 66.6%).

Adult Safequarding

The introduction of the statutory duty to report under the SSWB Act, as well as the low
threshold for reporting concerns (which can be based on reasonable cause to suspect)
continues to create an upward trend in the number of safeguarding concerns reported via
safeguarding referrals. Over the year, 680 safeguarding reports were made concerning 463
adults.

Page 17




Adult Safeguarding Reports Received

25
20
15

10

0
O

N) N O N ) O O e N
v v v v % v v v Jv A\

~

N
v

A\
< Q&

S
&

o\
)

9 A\ @\ N
\0 b\() Q )
N d

oV
Q Q
()bk Qbk

g N\

I Reports Received s 2(019-20 Weekly Average

The services’ capacity to complete adult protection enquiries within the statutory timeframe of
7 days remains challenging, and was achieved in just over half of cases (51.1%). This will be
an area of focus over the coming year. An adult safeguarding dashboard is in development to
help monitor and analyse adult safeguarding activity.

The Wales Safeguarding Procedures come into force in April 2020 and these are now well-
embedded into the operations of adults and children’s services. Currently, a new safeguarding
referral form is being implemented in line with the new procedures and ensuring this is
embedded across all agencies is a priority area moving forward.

In January 2021 the integrated front-door for safeguarding (the Safeguarding Hub) was
implemented including co-location of a Police decision maker. Positively, this has seen
increased information sharing and multi-agency working. There is a regional process
underway for reviewing and evaluating the safeguarding hub.

A CIW focussed inspection for Safeguarding was undertaken in February 2020 and an
Assurance Check undertaken in February 2021 looking at how people were safeguarded and
their well-being promoted during the pandemic. The findings from both were positive with key
strengths noted including:

- The well-being and voice of the child / adult at risk is central to the safeguarding
process

- Thorough and responsive safeguarding practices

- The local authority is committed to improvement and has a dedicated workforce who
are committed to safeguarding.

- Partner agencies feel confident and able to challenge safeguarding decisions and are
clear of the process to challenge safeguarding decisions.

- Positive working relationships with partner agencies and partnership working as a
major strength.

There were 0 adult practice reviews / child practice reviews or domestic homicide reviews
undertaken within Monmouthshire in 2020 - 2021.

Page 18




Overall ensuring robust protection for people at risk of harm is a strength within the Council
with key strengths in:

- Partnership working

- Commitment to delivering best practice

- Rigorous and transparent approaches to ‘understanding the business’ and responding
to challenges

- Implementation of the safeguarding hub

Never-the-less, the persistent upward trend in numbers of referrals into both children’s
and adults services, and for individuals with housing / homelessness needs, has meant
that health, social care and housing services across the board are under immense
strain. In addition to this, the longer term impact of COVID-19 and extended periods of
lock-down on vulnerable families and individuals cannot be underestimated, and has
led to increasing complexities in all aspects of practice. These pressures have meant
that some additional actions have been taken to ensure that services remain
operational and that those in the highest need of care and support are safeguarded.
For this reason the self-assessed score remains at 3.

- Evaluate the outcomes and impact of the Safeguarding Hub

- Continue to assess and respond to the risks related to the immediate and longer-term
impacts of COVID-19

- Develop data so that adult safeguarding can be accurately monitored and reported on

- Improve performance in the completion of adult safeguarding enquiries within 7 days

Improve performance in child protection core groups and statutory visits

Implement the new safeguarding referral form across the council and partner agencies

5). Safe Services — delivered through commissioning arrangements, grants, partnerships
and volunteering

We use our influence to ensure that services operating in Monmouthshire, including
commissioned and those outside the direct control of the Council, do so in ways which
promote the welfare and safety of children and adults at risk.

The Corporate Safeguarding Policy has been updated to include the agreed Framework for
Minimum Standards for Safeguarding Across Commissioned Services. The current SAFE
process will place an additional focus on safe commissioning.

Commissioning Leads within SCH ensure positive relationships with commissioned providers
are established allowing any emerging concerns to be addressed through good partnership

Page 19



working. This means that within social care there is a robust, risk-based, contract
management and quality assurance process across all providers.

The COVID pandemic has been a particularly challenging period for provider services. During
the COVID-19 pandemic the Local Authority worked collaboratively to provide on-going
support to provider services and commissioned services, including residential and nursing
homes. All providers adopted a risk assessment approach around their operations which were
discussed with the Local Authority.

There are on-going challenges for many of our provider services, particularly within
adult social care, related to the on-going impact of the pandemic on staffing including
severe shortages in direct care.

Similarly the impact of the pandemic continues to have severe consequences for health
services, which in turn has an impact on the Local Authority and creates significant challenges
within the partnership landscape.

There are well developed arrangements in public protection to ensure safeguarding is given
due regard:

e safeguarding training is a requirement for licenced taxi /hackney and private hire
drivers.

e school contracts are additionally required to undertake MCC training every two years

e voluntary safeguarding training is offered to alcohol/ entertainment and late night
refreshment licensees.

During the reporting period our Licensing section ensured full compliance with all licences,
including renewals, issued in the year.

Proactive checks are undertaken throughout the year, both licenced hackney carriage/private
hire vehicles and licensed premises. Drivers, operators and vehicles are subject to on-the-
spot visits, typically annually. Added to this all complaints are actioned. These processes
ensure that no drivers or licensed premises remain unchecked between licence periods.

A report is being presented to the Licensing and Regulatory Committee on 14th September
2021 which if approved with effect from 1st October 2021 DBS checks will be more frequent.
All new drivers will be required to do 6 monthly checks an existing licence holders will be
required to do 6 monthly checks upon renewal. Operators and vehicle owners who are not
drivers will also be required to do annual checks and operators will have to check staff that
they employ, who have access to booking records or dispatch vehicle, have had a DBS
check.

This report was carried out in line with Welsh Government recommendations, which is the first
phase of working towards national standards and the Department of Transport Best Practice
Guide.

Monmouthshire Letting and Hiring process requires evidence of the hirer's Safeguarding
processes as mandatory prior to letting council property.

Volunteering

Page 20




The Corporate Safeguarding Policy and Volunteering Policy sets out clear guidelines and
expectations for volunteers in commissioned services, which are reflected in individual service
contracts.

The Council’s role as an ‘enabler’ and ‘influencer’ of safeguarding standards within volunteer
groups and organisations has developed significantly over the months of the pandemic.

A range of placed based community support network meetings take place across the county,
part of the function is to enable and influence groups to develop good governance, best
working practices and safe recruitment with safeguarding imbedded as a underpinning
principle.

Safeguarding training is available to all community groups which raises knowledge at a
community level

Social Care and Health have clear operating processes in place to ensure a robust approach
for all social care commissioning for children and adults.

Schools, and other parts of the Council working with children / adults at risk, indicate there are
robust arrangements in place for contracted services (including individual school contracts,
transport, leisure services).

There is good evidence of safeguarding being embedded within licensing services and other
areas of PPU.

However, the evaluative score remains at 3 because:

e We are in the process of completing the current SAFE process

e The changing nature of the task (i.e. supporting provider and commissioned services
with their safeguarding arrangements has become considerably more complex since
the outbreak of COVID-19)

e Some of the severe current challenges within the provider landscape for SCH.

Ensure that the next SAFE process supports directorates to review the Minimum Standards
Self-Assessment Matrix, and evaluate outcomes

Page 21




Page 22



Appendix 3
Safequarding CURRENT ACTIVITY PLAN (20201 — 2022)

Action | Responsibility

| Timeframe

GOVERNANCE

Implement next SAFE process (2021 — Safeguarding Unit
2023)

March 2023

Evaluate learning and outcomes process Safeguarding Unit and
and ensure this informs future planning WASG

March 2023

Development / implementation of core data | Safeguarding Unit
set for WASG including comparative data | WASG

Sept 2021

Review Corporate Policy to integrate and Safeguarding Unit
update in light of COVID

March 2022

Ensure new duty to report forms are Safeguarding Unit
implanted and embedded across the | WASG
council

Sept 2021

SAFE WORKKFORCE

Continue to monitor progress in how the People’s Services
council centrally records mandatory
training data

March 2022

Revise the safeguarding training strategy Safeguarding Unit
so that it reflects developments in digital
training options

March 2022

Further develop directorate sufficiency for | Safeguarding Unit
the delivery of Level 1 training

March 2022

Undertake an audit of the adapted People’s Services
arrangements for digital recruitment to
ensure safeguarding is at the forefront

March 2022

Develop data to enable reporting on Safeguarding Unit
professional concerns relating to adult
safeguarding

March 2022

Preventative Approaches

Work to resolve the issues around being Partnership
able to report and monitor VAWDASV People’s Services
training across the council.

March 2022

Ensure full roll-out of the Modern Day MEG / Safeguarding Unit
Slavery protocol across the council

Jan 2022

Further analyse and monitor the impact of | SCH / WASG
COVID-19 on families and communities
and ensure that services are in place to
respond to increased risk and vulnerability

March 2022

Continue to support the Council’s Enterprise
approach to prevention of homelessness
through strengthening homeless
prevention, increasing homeless
accommodation and enhancing specialist
service provision for young people and
offenders.

Page 23

September 2022




Continue to develop the Community
Support Network approach with
communities.

Evaluate the outcomes and impact of the
Safeguarding Hub

Partnerships

Safeguarding Unit

September 2022

Sept 2022

Continue to assess and respond to the
risks related to the immediate and longer-
term impacts of COVID-19

SCH

March 2022

Develop data so that adult safeguarding
can be accurately monitored and reported
on

Safeguarding Unit

March 2022

Improve performance in the completion of
adult safeguarding enquiries within 7 days

Adult Services

March 2022

Improve performance in child protection
core groups and statutory visits

Children’s Services

March 2022

Implement the new safeguarding referral
form across the council and partner
agencies

Safeguarding Unit

December 2021

SAFE SERVICES

Ensure that the next SAFE process
supports directorates to review the
Minimum Standards Self-Assessment
Matrix, and evaluate outcomes

Safeguarding Unit
WASG

March 2023

Page 24




Page 25



9z abed

APPENDIX 4

Review of Previous Action Plan 2020 - 2021 action plan

GREEN - Completed
AMBER - In Progress, continuing
RED - Delayed, not started,

BLUE no longer required / changed

base to support all aspects of
safeguarding as appropriate

Action Responsibility Timeframe RAG Comment
GOVERNANCE

Evaluate summative learning and Chair WASG March 2021 Now implementing SAFE
outcomes from current (2019) process 2021 - 2023

and ensure this informs future planning

Plan and implement next SAFE process | SGU March 2021 In progress

(2021 — 2023)

Ensure that any learning and actions SGU March 2021 Report issues and actions
from the IA report are taken forward completed

Development / implementation of core SGU Sept 2021 Carried forward

data set for WASG including

comparative data

Develop the process for ‘learning in SGU WASG March 2021 S/G star form in place
action’ for the WASG based on case

scenarios / areas of concern to replace

the SBAR approach.

SAFE WORKFORCE

Implement the upgrade of the HR data Head of People Services Dec 2021 Sitting within People’s

Services — no specific
action required —linked to




the central recording of
training

Revise the safeguarding training
strategy so that it reflects developments
in digital training options

Safeguarding Unit

Sept 2021

Carried Forward

Further develop directorate sufficiency
for the delivery of Level 1 training

Safeguarding Unit

Sept 2021

Good progress
Carried forward

Update safeguarding training to reflect
the implementation of the Wales
Safeguarding Procedures

Safeguarding Unit

Sept 2021

Level 1 and 2 updated

Undertake an audit of the adapted
arrangements for digital recruitment

People’s Services

Sept 2021

Underway

Continue to develop the council’s
relationship with community groups to
support safe volunteer workforce
practices

Enterprise

Sept 2021

On-going — no specific
action required

,Z abed

Develop data to enable reporting on
professional concerns relating to adult
safeguarding

SGU

Sept 2021

In progress
Carried Forward

In place

Carried forward

First re-launch meeting has
taken place

Support the further development of SGU March 2021
MASE to include integrated approaches

to all aspects of exploitation

Ensure full roll-out of the Modern Day MEG Sept 2021
Slavery protocol across the council

Re-launch of the MEG SCH Directorate March 2021
Further analyse the impact of COVID-19 | SCH Directorate Sept 2021

on families and communities and ensure
that services are in place to respond to
increased risk and vulnerability

WASG

On-going




Support the Council’s approach to
prevention of homelessness

Enterprise

March 2022

Accommodation for
homeless people has been
increased and services
expanded however, further
challenges remain

gz abed

Ensure that plans are in place to Develop data so that adult | Dec 2021 Plans to WCCIS are
implement the Wales Safeguarding safeguarding can be paused.

Procedures and WCCIS without accurately monitored and Work is in progress to
unnecessary disruption to operational reported on. ensure disruption is

issues / quality assurance processes minimised

Implementation of an integrated front- Safeguarding Unit March 2021 Completed 2021 —

door for safeguarding evaluation in progress
Further analysis of risks related to the SCH Directorate September 2021 Actions in place

impact of COVID-19 On -going

Continue to deliver risk assessment and | SCH Directorate March 2022 On-going

strengths based practice across both No need of further specific
Children’s and Adults Services and at a actions

partnership level

Develop data so that adult safeguarding | Safeguarding Unit September 2022 In progress — carry forward
can be accurately monitored and

reported on.

SAFE SERVICES

Ensure that the next SAFE process Safeguarding Unit September 2023 In progress — carry forward

supports directorates to review the
Minimum Standards Self-Assessment
Matrix, and evaluate outcomes

WASG




6¢ obed

APPENDIX 5
Safeguarding Risk Assessment
3

2021SeptSafeguardin
g Risk Assessment.xls:



This page is intentionally left blank



-
= g
¥  monmouthshire
&\ sir fynwy
Name of the Officer completing the evaluation Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal
Jane Rodgers To provide members with an annual evaluation of safeguarding within
Phone no: the Council
E-mail:janerodgers@monmouthshire.gov.uk
Name of Service area Date Oct 2021
Safeguarding

1. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the
-y evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.
Q

D Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What has been/will be done to

W Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or

k= Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?

Age Effective afeguarding arrangements within the None
council provides protection for children — who by
virtue of their age are vunerable.

Disability Safeguarding applies to children and to all adults | None Saefgaurding training includes responding
who have care and support needs. It is known to safeguarding concerns for people with
that children and adults with disabilities are at disability.
increased risk of abuse and neglect

Ensure people with disability know their
rights and have access to information




Describe any positive impacts your

Describe any negative impacts

What has been/will be done to

take into the account the impact of race and
culture within family situations.

Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Gender None
reassignment
Marriage or civil None
partnership
) regnancy or None
@maternity
®
r@Qace .Safeguarding and protection services should Safeguarding training includes

responding to people from a diverse
range of racial and cultural
backgrounds.

Safeguarding arrangements are in place for
unaccompanied assyum seeking children

Religion or Belief

Responding to safeguarding concerns should
take account of the individual beliefs, values and
religion of people and families. Some of these
may interface with safeguarding issues such as
HBV or radicalization. It is important that
practitioners respect individual beliefs whilst still
being able to address safeguarding issues.

Safeguarding training takes account of
working within diverse cultures and
beliefs.

Safegaruding services are in place to
support families and individuals affected
by HBV and radicalization.




Describe any positive impacts your

Describe any negative impacts

What has been/will be done to

Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Sex none
Sexual Orientation .None

2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice
U The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from socio-
@ economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice.

D

w
w

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic
disadvantage

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has in respect of
people suffering socio economic
disadvantage.

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Socio-economic
Duty and Social
Justice

Effective safeguarding arrangements and
responding to concerns considers family and
individual needs on a holistic basis and plans will
often include tackling aspects of socio economic
disadvantage e.g. within parent / carer
populations

None




Page 34



3. Policy making and the Welsh language.

How does your proposal impact
on the following aspects of the
Council’s Welsh Language
Standards:

Describe the positive impacts of
this proposal

Describe the negative impacts
of this proposal

What has been/will be done
to mitigate any negative
Impacts or better contribute
to positive impacts

co_ah
] O

Use of Welsh language in service
delivery

Promoting use of the language

Policy Making None Safeguarding training within the A welsh medium option for
council is not routinely delivered in | safeguarding should be provided
Effects on the use of the Welsh Welsh
language,
Promoting Welsh language
Treating the Welsh language no
less favourably
0
nOperational None It is desirable to have welsh Have a better understanding of
speakers within the council so that | welsh speakers within the council
»Recruitment & Training of people with safeguarding concerns
workforce can communicate their concerns in
their first language
Service delivery None

4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is not

relevant!




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

A prosperous Wales Neutral
Efficient use of resources, skilled,

educated people, generates wealth,

provides jobs

A resilient Wales Neutral

A healthier Wales
People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health

TTmpacts are understood

Ensuring that vulnerable children and adults are
safeguarded and protected from harm / abuse /
neglect supports people’s health and wellbeing.

D

»ﬁ Wales of cohesive communities
nCommunities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

Good safeguarding is central to cohesive
communities, and helps to ensure that there are
the right processes in place to safeguard and
protect more vulnerable groups and
communities.

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

Ensuring that people live free from harm, abuse
and neglect is recognised regionally and
nationally as a key component to wellbeing.

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

Safeguarding is essential to ensure that any
vulnerable group or individual using leisure
services, or who are engaged in cultural, artistic
or sporting activities are protected from
potential harm or abuse.

A more equal Wales

Safeguarding is a key part of ensuring that people can
fulfil their potential no matter what their background.




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or

circumstances

Equality is at the centre of the services the Authority
provide and commission.

5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

Collaboration

Monmouthshire.

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
Balancing It deals with immediate safeguarding and protection as well has
short term how preventative steps are utilised to ensure safeguarding is
i need with sustainable in the future.
;E long term and
“cg planning for
the future
S’j Long Term
The report details how
Working services work in partnership with agencies from
together with . _ _
M‘ other different sectors, considers involvement and
par.tners to collaboration with communities and details the
deliver
objectives progress made in relation to Safeguarding in




Sustainable Development
Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain
why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Involvement

Involving
those with
an interest
and seeking
their views

The report includes information from all parts of the council and
was a collaborative approach with all the directorates. The SAFEs
take account of the needs of individual service areas.

faYal "\RV\ 1
6c 9vvtd

Prevention

Putting
resources
into
preventing
problems
occurring or
getting
worse

The report details the importance of prevention within
safeguarding and some of the mechanisms and services
that are in place to support prevention and early
intervention.

Integration

Considering
impact on all
wellbeing
goals
together and
on other
bodies

.Good safeguarding and protection supports the wellbeing of
vulnerable citizns, groups and communities within the LA.




6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Corporate

Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has

What will you do/ have you done
to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?

Safeguarding

This report identifies where we can further
improve safeguarding and protection for children
and for adults who are at risk.

.Safeguarding is about ensuring that
everything is in place to promote the well-
being of children and vulnerable adults,
preventing them from being harmed and
protecting those who are at risk of abuse and
neglect

Corporate Parenting

d

Children who are looked after have been
impacted by harm and abuse and have often
experienced many adverse experiences. The
report identifies how the impact of adverse
experiences can be mininmised by ensuring
good quality placements and care.

)

«Q
G
w

What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

Both qualitative and quantitative date is presented within the report.

- Equalities dashboard link. Equality data dashboard for EQIA's 2020.xlsx

8. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?



http://hub/corporatedocs/_layouts/15/WopiFrame.aspx?sourcedoc=/corporatedocs/Equalities/Equality%20data%20dashboard%20for%20EQIA%27s%202020.xlsx&action=default

This section should summarise the key issues arising from the evaluation. This summary must be included in the Committee report template

Having effective safeguarding arranagements in place across the council is critical to meeting the health and wellbeing needs of
children, adults at risk and their wider families and communities. It is equally important in ensuring that safeguarding runs through

all services that are provided to vulnerable people.

9. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if
applicable.

What are you going to do

When are you going to do it? | Who is responsible

Implement the WASG activity plan September 2022 Chief Officer Social Care and
Health
j o)
o))
®
=
o

10.VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally

within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep a record of this
process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever

possible.

Version
No.

Decision making stage

Date considered

Brief description of any amendments made following
consideration

e.g. budget mandate, DMT, SLT, Scrutiny,
Cabinetetc




Agenda Item 5b

" monmouthshire
WO sir fynwy
SUBJECT: CLIMATE AND DECARBONISATION: UPDATED ACTION PLAN
MEETING: COUNTY COUNCIL
DATE: 4 NOVEMBER 2021
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: ALL

11

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

PURPOSE:

To update the plan which sets the actions which the authority will take to deliver the
objectives in the Climate and Decarbonisation Strategy approved by Council in October
2019 and accelerate progress towards the commitment made by Council to reduce our
emissions to net zero by 2030.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That Council endorse the updated action plan attached as Appendix 1.

That revisions are made to the Climate Emergency Strategy to ensure it reflects the latest
data and evidence while maintaining the ten strategic objectives agreed by Council in
2019, with slight amendments to the wording of one of these objectives relating to green
spaces as highlighted in paragraph 3.3 below.

KEY ISSUES:

Climate change is arguably the biggest challenge facing the world in 2021. With Council
meeting against the backdrop of the 26™ United Nations Climate Change Conference
(COP26) there is no better time to re-state our commitment and refresh the authority’s
action plan, setting out what we will do to decarbonise our operations as we work towards
becoming net zero by 2030 while encouraging and supporting residents and businesses to
reduce their own emissions.

On 16" May 2019 Council agreed to declare a Climate Emergency unanimously passing a
motion to that effect. A strategy was subsequently developed and approved by council
with responsibility for the oversight and ongoing development of the accompanying action
plan sitting with a cross-party working group, involving officers and community
representatives and chaired by the Cabinet member.

The objectives within the strategy will remain unchanged with the exception of an
adjustment to the wording of the commitment on green spaces, to better reflect the action
needed to address the nature emergency which we face:
e Energy and Buildings - Reduce the amount of energy that is used for buildings and
street lighting
e Renewable Energy - Speed up the move from fossil fuels to renewable energy
e Nature Recovery and Green Spaces - Absorb carbon, to support biodiversity and
ecosystem resilience, and the ability to adapt (amended — previously just called
Green Spaces)

Page 41



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

¢ What we Buy - Reduce carbon by thinking carefully about when and what we buy
and the whole life costs

e Waste - Reduce waste by encouraging people to reduce, re-use and recycle more

e Active Travel - Encourage and make it easier for people to walk and cycle rather
than drive

e Greener Transport - Reduce the impact of vehicles and encourage the use of
electric and hydrogen vehicles

e Public Transport - Encourage people to use public transport rather than cars

e Education and involvement - Help people understand climate change and what they
can do to make a difference

e Climate Adaptation - Preparing and adapting for the impact of climate change.

An update was presented to Council in June highlighting progress that had been made
including:
e Purchase of electric vehicles for use by different council teams including an electric
minibus and two electric road-sweepers
e Establishing libraries of things, repair cafes and a second re-use shop as part of our
commitment to the circular economy
e Developing active travel routes to reduce the number of private car journeys people
make for short distances
e Continued divestment of fossil fuel intensive industries by the council’s pension
fund

Work is currently underway to improve our understanding of the current level of emissions
from our own services and to plot a path to net zero. This will recognise that each year we
have a diminishing carbon budget that we must operate within necessitating trade-offs and
choices between activities. This will use data produced by the Tyndall centre for Climate
Change and involve collaborative work across the Cardiff Capital Region, where
authorities have committed to measuring and publishing emissions in line with
internationally agreed standards produced by the Climate Disclosure Project.

The revisions to the action plan contained in today’s report are based on our current level
of knowledge. As the above work concludes we will be in a much stronger position to
target our resources at the areas they can make the greatest difference and it is expected
that a further revision of the action plan will be produced mid-2022 displaying a higher
degree of precision. New activity will continue to be examined by the advisory group.

The Climate Emergency Action Plan cannot be delivered by the Council alone. We need
other partners to join us in helping to reduce carbon emissions across the county including
public bodies and anchor institutions sitting on the Public Service Board, citizens,
businesses and voluntary groups.

We must do this while continuing to provide the services which form part of the social
foundations on which our communities are built. We know that this will not be easy, we
need everyone to support this agenda and, as always, we are indebted to the residents of
Monmouthshire for their enthusiasm, energy and expertise.

EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION (INCLUDES SOCIAL
JUSTICE, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING):

The Climate Emergency Action Plan has significant positive contributions to make to the
Wellbeing Goals. In particular it has strong benefits for a Prosperous Wales, by

developing a low carbon economy and thinking carefully about sustainable procurement.
There are also benefits for a Resilient Wales, based on changes to the way we manage

Page 42



4.2

5.1

green spaces. A Healthier Wales will be enhanced by improvements to air quality from
more sustainable travel and more walking and cycling. There is also significant potential
to contribute to Cohesive Communities, by working collaboratively and in partnership with
our communities. There are no negative impacts on the Well-being Goals.

There are no significant positive or negative impacts on the protected characteristics,
safeguarding or corporate parenting. The principles of Long term, Prevention, Integration,
Collaboration and Involvement have been used throughout the development of the Action
Plan.

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Through the motion, passed in 2019 Council committed to producing an action plan and
keeping this up to date, so doing nothing was not an option. However, the content and
extent of the action plan remains subject to a number of options, set out below:

Option

Pros

Cons

Focus the action plan
solely on direct MCC
emissions

Easy to manage and measure
Within the remit of the council

Will miss large emissions from the
wider community

2 | Focus on direct MCC Many actions are easy to Harder to measure county
emissions and some manage and measure emissions
actions which will reduce Will impact on a wider range of | Will require further resources
emissions in the whole emissions
county Potential to involve wider
community and partners
Maximises policy levers that we
do have in place to influence
county emissions e.g. transport,
waste
3 | Broaden the action planto | Could potentially give the most | Hard to measure and manage
address all the emissions comprehensive carbon Policy levers to influence wider
of the whole county reductions county emissions are not in place
Potential to involve wider Emissions are beyond council
community and partners control
Lack of council resources to
address emissions of whole
county

5.2  The decision has been made to continue along the lines of option 2 as a pragmatic
approach which incorporates our own emissions as well as some wider county emissions
where we have the policy levers to do so.

6 EVALUATION CRITERIA

6.1 Updates on progress against each of the actions are presented to the member-led
Advisory Group with the Cabinet member providing periodic updates to full council.

7 REASONS:

7.1  To ensure that the Council updates its action plan in response to the latest data, evidence
and opportunities to deliver its policy commitment and moral obligations to reduce carbon
emissions and to deliver on the Climate Emergency motion that was agreed by Council.

8 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

Page 43



8.1

8.2

10

11

12

Achieving this commitment will not be cost neutral and there are likely to be decisions that
will have to be made in future which will require additional capital and revenue financial
resources to be allocated. Each will carry an opportunity cost.

The costs for all the actions is not yet fully known, for example the cost of future net zero
buildings will depend on a range of factors at the design stage. Actions will be funded in
different ways, some are zero cost or will require officer time alone, some will be grant
funded, some will be funded by prudential borrowing and invest to save schemes. Itis
anticipated that where additional funds are needed these will be subject to subsequent
decision making processes.

CONSULTEES:

Cabinet
Strategic Leadership Team
Community Climate Champions — via engagement event
Actions were also shaped through public consultation including:
¢ Online survey publicised via press release and social media,
¢ Community engagement event at Abergavenny Community Hub,
e Waorkshops with children and young people at the Monmouthshire Games and
Bronze Young Ambassadors conference,

¢ Community engagement events at Usk Show and Monmouth Climate Futures
Festival.

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

Monmouthshire County Council Climate Emergency Strategy
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/climate-emergency/

AUTHORS:

Hazel Clatworthy, Sustainability Policy Officer
Matthew Gatehouse, Head of Policy, Performance and Scrutiny

CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 01633 644397

E-mail: matthewgatehouse @monmouthshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01633 644843

E-mail: hazelclatworthy@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 44


https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/climate-emergency/

Title Climate Emergency Action Plan

This plan outlines the council’s response to the climate emergency

Purpose declared in May 2019

Monmouthshire County Council
Approved by Not yet approved
November 2021

Version Number 2.0

Review Frequency Annual

Next review date November 2022
Community Climate Champions; citizen survey; public consultation

Consultation ; )
events; young people’s consultation.

>
o
L°]
()
>
Q.
X
[

Notes:

Timescale

We have allocated dates that are broadly based on the Welsh Government’s Public Sector

Decarbonisation Routemap Net zero carbon status by 2030: A route map for
decarbonisation across the Welsh public sector (gov.wales)

It should be noted that the dates given are the timescale for completion and not for
starting the work. Many of the actions listed are already underway.

1
Page 45


https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-07/a-route-map-for-decarbonisation-across-the-welsh-public-sector.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2021-07/a-route-map-for-decarbonisation-across-the-welsh-public-sector.pdf

Climate Emergency Action Plan 2021

Reducing energy use
Reducing the amount of energy that is used for buildings and street

lighting
Action to reduce MCC emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Develop a low carbon transition plan to identify and
implement decarbonisation measures across the existing 2021-23 | Energy Manager
council estate
All new and replacement lighting within council owned
- . 2021-23 | E M
buildings will be low energy LED nergy vianager
All remaining street lighting will be converted to LED bulbs and
managed to reduce light pollution and negative impacts on 2021-23 | Street Lighting Manager
biodiversity
Where reasonably practicable all new council buildings will be 2021-23 Head of Property, Fleet
designed to be net zero emissions. & Facilities
Establish a more robust baseline for council carbon emissions
in line with the Carbon Disclosure Project* and develop 2021-23 | Energy Manager
trajectories and pathways to 2030 net zero carbon target
Action to reduce Countywide emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Use planning policy to require net zero carbon standards for
all new developments in the Replacement Local Development 2024-27 | Head of Planning
Plan.
Use and promote low carbon building technologies like green 2024-27 | Head of Planning

walls or roofs

Page2 46




Head of Policy
2021-23 | Performance and
Scrutiny

Work with PSB partners and other organisations to reduce
carbon emissions across all public buildings

Encourage builders and developers to undertake training in Building Control
. 2021-23
low carbon technologies Manager

Identify and develop the skills needed by industries of the
future including green jobs/apprenticeships, working with the 2021-23
Regional Skills Partnership*

Head of Enterprise and
Community Animation

Promote, educate and help residents take actions to Sustainability Policy
, . 2021-23 i
decarbonise their own homes Officer

What can | do to play my part?

Make sure you have got draft proofing, loft and cavity wall insulation in your home — save money and
energy. https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/home-insulation

Simple things like switching off the lights, not leaving things on standby and only boiling the water you
really need in the kettle can really make a difference. https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/home-
energy-efficiency

Understand how your heating controls work and using thermostats properly can save energy.

If you use a dishwasher, make sure you only use it when full.

Make sure your washing machine in full and dry clothes on a line rather than tumble dry if you can.

*In addition to work undertaken by officers of the local authority, Monmouthshire County Council is
part of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal. As part of their Energy Strategy work is being
undertaken with partners in the South Wales Industrial Cluster to begin decarbonising industry
through energy efficiency, fuel switching and the creation of local energy hubs. The Regional Skills
Partnership is tasked with identifying and prioritising the skills to support economic prosperity and
good growth. The CCR is also commissioning support to enable local authorities to undertake
reporting in line with the Carbon Disclosure Project. Some of the work the Council is doing will be
run as Challenge Fund projects through Cardiff Capital Region.

3
Page 47


https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/home-insulation
https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/home-energy-efficiency
https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/home-energy-efficiency
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/the-city-deal/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/news-events/latest-news/shaping-the-plan-to-action-our-energy-vision-and-strategy/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/news-events/latest-news/putting-the-plan-in-place-to-decarbonise-our-industry/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/about-ccr/key-documents/
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/about-ccr/key-documents/
https://www.cdp.net/en/info/about-us
https://www.cardiffcapitalregion.wales/project-hub/challenge-fund/

Using renewable energy
Speed up the move from fossil fuels to renewable energy

Action to reduce MCC emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Generate 8 MW of new renewable energy from the council’s
estate, subject to location of renewable sites allocated in the 2024-27
Replacement Local Development Plan Head of Property, Fleet &
Facilities
Install photovoltaic canopies at council owned car parks to 2024-27
power electric vehicle charge points with renewable energy
Action to reduce Countywide emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Identify areas for renewable generation in the Replacement 5021-23 Head of Planning
Local Development Plan
Work with Welsh Government to develop a Local Area Head of Proberty. Fleet &
Energy Plan in line with wider Cardiff Capital Region Energy 2024-27 e PerYy,
" Facilities
Strategy
Explore potential opportunities for a district heating scheme 2021-23 Rural Programmes

Procurement Officer

What can | do to play my part?

Switch your energy supplier to a renewable energy contract.

https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/cheap-green-energy/

Find out whether you could install solar panels or another renewable energy in your home.

https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/renewable-energy

Consider moving your savings or pensions into ethical and socially responsible funds.

https://www.finder.com/ca/ethical-savings-accounts

Pagé 48



https://www.moneysavingexpert.com/utilities/cheap-green-energy/
https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/renewable-energy
https://www.finder.com/ca/ethical-savings-accounts

Supporting nature recovery and managing green spaces
Absorb carbon, to support biodiversity and ecosystem resilience, and
the ability to adapt

Action to reduce MCC emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Promote and, as opportunities arise, use our county farms as 2021-23 Head of Property, Fleet &
exemplars for sustainable and regenerative agriculture. Facilities
Expand and promote pollinator friendly management work .
. . Commercial and
and reduce grass cutting frequency/extent where appropriate | 2021-23 .
Operations Manager
and safe
Generate renewable energy from grass cuttings through Gl Strategy and Projects
L . 2024-27 .
anaerobic digestion Officer
Work in partnership to plant more trees, increase area of .
. . Environment and Culture
woodland, improve woodland management and retain and 2021-23 Manager
protect existing woodland and trees &
Embed biodiversity throughout decision-making; reduce key
pressures on species and habitats; supporting landscape scale 2021-23 Environment and Culture
nature recovery projects and partnerships to enhance Manager
ecosystem resilience
Action to reduce Countywide emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Promote sustainable land management and regenerative .
. . . . . . Environment and Culture
agricultural practices, including nutrient/soil management 2021-23
Manager
and natural flood management
Work with partners to support and promote actions to Environment and Culture
P PP P 2021-23 | Manager / Head of

improve river water quality

Planning

5
Page 49




Explore and establish a target for an increase in the

Gl Strategy and Projects

percentage of urban and rural tree cover 2021-23 Officer
Provide information to encourage new tree planting Gl Strategy and Projects
. S 2021-23 .
including in private gardens Officer
Work .Wlth Stump Up for Trees afnd oth.er similar local Head of Neighbourhood
organisations to evaluate benefits of biochar for tree plant 2021-23 .
. Services
health and locking up carbon
Protect and enhance green infrastructure through new and Green Infrastructure
- 2024-27

existing development Manager
Promote and support low impact local and community food 2021-23 Rural Programmes
growing Coordinator
Reduce food miles by working with local and regional Rural Programmes

. . 2024-27 .
growers, distributors and retailers to market local food Coordinator
Develop an adopt-a-garden scheme to increase local food 2021-23 Community Well-being

growing and biodiversity

Development Lead

What can | do to play my part?

Leave part of your garden wild, make habitats for wildlife and plant trees to absorb carbon dioxide.

https://www.wildlifetrusts.org/actions

Join a “Friends of” group to get involved in sustainable green space management, or find out about
local groups who are doing community gardening and growing. https://www.farmgarden.org.uk/

Try and reduce your food miles by buying food which is locally grown where possible and in season.

Think about where meat you buy comes from and have a varied diet with plenty of fruit and vegetables

Get involved in community allotments or establish a new allotment and have a go at growing your own
fruit and veg. https://www.theallotmentgarden.co.uk/Easier-grow/

Pagé3 50



https://www.wildlifetrusts.org/actions
https://www.farmgarden.org.uk/
https://www.theallotmentgarden.co.uk/easy-grow/

What we

buy

What we buy

Reducing carbon by thinking carefully about when and what we buy
and whole life costs

fund

Action to reduce MCC emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
inability Poli
Eliminate single use plastics within the council 2024-27 Sus.tal ability Policy
Officer
Incorporate climate and decarbonisation into strategic .
. . Strategic Procurement
procurement collaborations, using robust, easy to understand, 2021-23 Manager
achievable, procurement principles that can be scored against &
Commission detailed analysis to effectively measure emissions .
. . . . . Strategic Procurement
resulting from our spend with third parties and work with 2024-27 Manager
managers to begin moving to lower carbon alternatives g
. . Commercial and
Eliminate the use of peat based compost from our supply chain | 2024-27 .
Operations Manager
Conti to ph t fossil fuel i t ts fi i . )
ontinue to phase out fossil fuel investments from our pension | oo 20 | 1t Officer Resources

What can | do to play my part?

Think about how much you buy and whether you really need it.

When you are buying food think local, in season, reduced and recyclable packaging.

https://www.freecycle.org/

Support your local charity shop and buy second hand, or use schemes such as Freecycle

Reduce the amount of “stuff” you buy by borrowing from your local Library of Things, and getting items
repaired at a Repair Café. https://monmouthshire.benthyg.cymru/

7
Page 51



https://www.freecycle.org/
https://monmouthshire.benthyg.cymru/

Consider buying “experiences” for people as gifts, or charity gifts that support sustainable projects,
rather than buy gifts that aren’t wanted or needed.
https://onlineshop.oxfam.org.uk/unwrapped/category/oxfam-unwrapped

8
Page 52



https://onlineshop.oxfam.org.uk/unwrapped/category/oxfam-unwrapped

yn unig
ly.

Gwydr
Glas

@

Reducing waste
By encouraging people to reduce, re-use and recycle more

Action to reduce MCC emissions Timescale Responsible Officer

Focus on reducing and reusing waste whilst continuing to
increase domestic, business and schools recycling in line with 2021-23
Welsh Government’s Towards Zero Waste strategy

Head of Neighbourhood
Services

Continue to develop the Council’s Reuse Shops at the

H f Neigh h
recycling centres and support the third sector, charity and 2021-23 ead of Neighbourhood

. Services
voluntary projects to reuse waste.
Action to reduce Countywide emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Develop Libraries of Things, Repair Cafes and Community 2021-23 Head of Neighbourhood
Fridge projects to reduce waste Services

Make all of our buildings water refill stations and promote Sustainability Policy
2021-23 i
them Officer

Head of Neighbourhood

Promote the use of home composters and water butts 2021-23 .
Services

What can | do to play my part?

Find out about and use all the different types of recycling that Monmouthshire does.
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/recycling-and-waste/

Get recipes and tips for using food and reducing food waste. https://lovefoodhatewaste.com/

Use refillable water bottles, and reusable containers for your lunch. https://refill.org.uk/

Try and cut down on single use plastics. https://www.sas.org.uk/plastic-free-communities/

9
Page 53


https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/recycling-and-waste/
https://lovefoodhatewaste.com/
https://refill.org.uk/
https://www.sas.org.uk/plastic-free-communities/

Look after your clothes, repair them and don’t buy disposable fashion.
https://www.loveyourclothes.org.uk/

Donate unwanted clothes, bric-a-brac, books, furniture etc. to your local charity shop, or textile
recycling scheme to reduce landfill and help raise money.

10
Page 54



https://www.loveyourclothes.org.uk/

'|'.'A~."- ""»‘; . ¥
N e S LR T o £ e L 3
S R X BTN Pt Y AN A a
Pl WA T oy ) R e et VAN SR NN

Walking and cycling
Encouraging and making it easier for people to walk and cycle rather

than drive

Action to reduce MCC emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Develop schemes that will increase walking and cycling to Youth Sport and Active
school 2021-23 | Travel Manager / Road
Safety Officer
Introduce no idling at problem locations including schools,
and explore feasibility of no parking/dropping off near 2021-23 | Group Engineer, Highways
schools
Reduce business miles travelled by council staff and reduce . .
hief Off Peopl
the amount of commuter journeys made to the office, by 2021-23 Chief Officer People and
- . . Governance
building on changes made during the pandemic
Use place-based working in social care to reduce staff and 5021-23 Chief Officer Social Care,
service user journeys Health and Safeguarding
Action to reduce Countywide emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Improve, expand and maintain safe and convenient cycle 5021-23 Chief Operating Officer,
and footpath networks, to encourage active travel. MonlLife
. . L Youth Sport and Active

D -

evelop e-bike and cycle hire schemes beginning in town 2021-23 | Travel Manager / Rural
centres

Programmes Manager

Ensure the RLDP allocates sites that promote the Twenty Head of Placemakin
Minute Town concept to reduce the number of car 2024-27 &

journeys people have to make

Highways and Flooding

11
Page 55




Work with communities to trial 20 mph speed limits in Head of Property, Fleet &

2021-23

some areas ahead of a national roll-out of this policy Facilities
Develop and promote co-working spaces across the count

_p P &P 4 Head of Property, Fleet &
and with partners to reduce the need for long commutes 2024-27

. Facilities
to offices

What can | do to play my part?

Try and walk for short journeys, and reduce carbon while getting fit at the same time!

Find out about local cycle routes and cycling groups and get on your bike.
https://www.sustrans.org.uk/national-cycle-network/

Try out an electric bike if you live somewhere hilly or could do with a bit of an extra boost!
https://www.which.co.uk/reviews/electric-bikes/article/electric-bikes-everything-you-need-to-know

Team up with parents and your local school to develop a walking bus to walk your little ones to school.

Get involved with local public rights of way volunteering opportunities.
https://volunteer.monmouthshire.gov.uk/

Ask your employer if they can provide showers and lockers so that you can cycle to work.

12
Page 56



https://www.sustrans.org.uk/national-cycle-network/
https://www.which.co.uk/reviews/electric-bikes/article/electric-bikes-everything-you-need-to-know
https://volunteer.monmouthshire.gov.uk/

Greener vehicles

Reducing the impact of vehicle use and encouraging use of electric and

hydrogen vehicles

Action to reduce MCC emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Relocate an operations depot in the south of the county to be
geared up for EV charging and a move to a low carbon fleet, 2024-27 | Head of Property,
subject to the Replacement Local Development Plan Fleet & Facilities
Accelerate the t iti fth il'st t fleet t

ccelerate the transition of the council’s transport fleet to 2028-30 | Transport Manager

hybrid, electric and hydrogen vehicles as these become available

Understand how, when and where staff travel and use the

Council fleet, in order to make best use of existing vehicles 2021-23 | Transport Manager
Learn from the Riversimple hydrogen car pilot in Abergavenny to Transport Manager
. . 2024-27
explore the potential for wider hydrogen use
Review our green travel plan for staff and councillor travel, and 5021.23 Transport Planning &
align it with Changing Spaces work Policy Officer
Develop an Electric Vehicle Strategy, building on good practice Head of Property,
2021-23 e
from elsewhere. Fleet & Facilities
Install EV charging points and e-bike charging at all larger council Head of Property,
. 2021-23 L
buildings Fleet & Facilities
Action to reduce Countywide emissions Timescale Responsible Officer
Encourage the use of electric or hybrid taxis 2024-27 Trar'15port Strategy
Business Manager
Develop proposals for increased public EV charging including on 2021-23 Head of Property,

street and in car parks

Fleet & Facilities

13
Page 57




Develop proposals for EV charging in new housing development 2024-27
Head of Property,

Provide free car parking whilst charging in MCC owned car parks Fleet & Facilities

for up to 3 hours for electric vehicles 2021-23

What can | do to play my part?

Try and car share when you can, to save fuel and money. There are schemes to help.
https://liftshare.com/uk

If you are thinking of replacing your vehicle, think about whether an electric car would work for you.
There are grants which can help. https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/transport/electric-cars-and-
vehicles/electric-vehicles

14
Page 58



https://liftshare.com/uk
https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/transport/electric-cars-and-vehicles/electric-vehicles
https://www.energysavingtrust.org.uk/transport/electric-cars-and-vehicles/electric-vehicles

Public transport

Encouraging people to use public transport rather than cars

Action to reduce MCC emissions Timescale | Responsible Officer
Transition Monmouthshire-owned and operated buses to EV or
. . . 2028-30 | Transport Manager

hydrogen when this becomes feasible for rural journeys
Action to reduce Countywide emissions Timescale | Responsible Officer
Encourage public transport use through the increased investment 2024-27
being made in the South Wales Metro

Transport Planning &
Continue to make the case to national governments for improved Policy Officer
public transport provision, including train frequencies and station 2021-23
provision
Develop an app or website that gives people journey information Head of Policy / Head
for public transport, booking options for demand responsive 2021-23 of Enterprise and
transport and access to the volunteer operated community lift- Community
share scheme Animation

What can | do to play my part?

Find out about public transport options that could work for you. https://www.traveline.cymru/

If you are 16 to 21 you can get bus travel discounts. https://mytravelpass.gov.wales/en/

If you are 16 to 25 you can apply for a young persons railcard. https://www.16-25railcard.co.uk/

Concessionary bus passes are available from Transport for Wales. https://tfw.wales/info-for/over-60s

15
Page 59



https://www.traveline.cymru/
https://mytravelpass.gov.wales/en/
https://www.16-25railcard.co.uk/
https://tfw.wales/info-for/over-60s

Education and involvement
Helping people understand climate change and what they can do to
make a difference

Action to reduce MCC emissions Timescale Responsible Officer

Make energy data available to schools and encourage pupils

to get involved in managing energy consumption 2024-27 Energy Manager

Develop carbon dashboards to help council staff understand

and monitor carbon emissions 2021-23 Energy Manager

Use the One Planet Centre as a focus for climate change Head of Neighbourhood

education for schools, groups and organisations 2021-23 Services

Work with young people to enable them to take positive Youth Sport and Active

action on climate change Travel Manager / Rural
& 2021-23 Programmes Manager

Start schemes for local growing, cooking and food waste Rural Programmes

reduction in schools, linking with local community groups 2024-27 Coordinator

Introduce carbon literacy training for all council staff and

embed climate change throughout corporate training and

development 2021-23 Sustainability Policy Officer

Use the Cardiff Capital Region InFuSe programme to identify

and develop innovative and collaborative solutions to the 2021-23 | Head of Enterprise and

challenge of decarbonisation Community Animation

Action to reduce Countywide emissions Timescale Responsible Officer

Signpost businesses to support, advice and information to 2021-23

help them to reduce their carbon emissions

Business Insight Manager

16
Page 60




Start a communications campaign about simple steps

people can take to reduce their carbon emissions and brand | 2021-23

up other activity as Climate Emergency action Head of Communications
Support schools to utilise the opportunity provided by the

new curriculum to ensure climate change education is 2024-27 | Head of Achievement and
embedded into young people’s learning. Attainment

Deliver carbon literacy training to individuals and

community groups to raise awareness and expertise in 2021-23 | Sustainability Policy Officer
communities

Work with local champions in the community to build local

action on climate and signpost to useful advice and 2021-23

guidance Sustainability Policy Officer
Use Monmouthshire Connect to build a group of people in 2021-23 Community Well-being

communities to assist others to decarbonise

Development Lead

What can | do to play my part?

Get involved with your school’s Eco Committee, or if your school isn’t an Eco School, find out more and
ask them if they would consider it. https://www.keepwalestidy.cymru/pages/category/eco-schools

Does your workplace have recycling or other environmental issues in place? Why not try and start

something.

Get involved with one of the many voluntary groups in Monmouthshire doing great work on climate
change. https://www.transitionchepstow.org.uk/ https://transitionmonmouth.org/

https://www.facebook.com/AbergavennyExtinctionRebellion/

17
Page 61



https://www.keepwalestidy.cymru/pages/category/eco-schools
https://www.transitionchepstow.org.uk/
https://transitionmonmouth.org/
https://www.facebook.com/AbergavennyExtinctionRebellion/

Climate Adaptation
Preparing and adapting for the impact of

climate change

Timescale Responsible Officer
Develop and act on Climate Change Risk Assessments for
council services to fully understand adaptation 2021-23 | Sustainability Policy Officer
requirements
Develop the management of green infrastructure to 5021-23 Environment and Culture
improve climate resilience Manager
Increase urban tree canopy including new street trees and in Green Infrastructure
. pY & 2024-27 | Manager / Gl Strategy and
car parks to provide a cooling effect . )
Project Officer
Continue to promote and support council services with 2021-23 Emergency Planning
business continuity and emergency response strategies Manager
Continue to promote and support business continuity to 2021-23 Emergency Planning
external businesses. Manager
Work with the Business Resilience Forum to signpost
businesses to support and advice on adapting to the impacts | 2021-23 | Business Insight Manager
of climate change.
Work with partners to understand potential for and 5021-23 Project Engineer (Flood
implement natural flood management Risk Management)
Undertake adverse weather planning, including heatwaves Emergency Planning
. . 2021-23
for Social Care and other service area Manager
E bl terials and water st i
nsure permeable materials and water storage is 2024-27 | Head of Planning

incorporated into new development and infrastructure

18
Page 62




Continue to avoid new development on floodplains,
ensuring all new proposals comply with national planning 2024-27 Head of Planning
policy guidance in Technical Advice Note 15 (2021)

What can | do to play my part?

Do you live in an area prone to flooding? Find out what you can do to be prepared.
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/services/planning-for-emergencies/flooding/

Could your community group plant trees to reduce flooding, provide habitat and shade?
https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/plant-trees/schools-and-communities/

Find out how you can make sure your garden is resilient to our future climate.
https://www.rhs.org.uk/science/gardening-in-a-changing-world/climate-change

19
Page 63



https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/services/planning-for-emergencies/flooding/
https://www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/plant-trees/schools-and-communities/
https://www.rhs.org.uk/science/gardening-in-a-changing-world/climate-change

This page is intentionally left blank



> monmouthshire

Qo sir fynwy

Name of the Officer completing the evaluation Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal
Hazel Clatworthy
To update the plan which sets the actions which the authority will take to

Phone no: 0776 8898587 deliver the objectives in the Climate and Decarbonisation Strategy approved by
E-mail: hazelclatworthy@monmouthshire.gov.uk Council in October 2019 and accelerate progress towards the commitment
made by Council to reduce our emissions to net zero by 2030

Name of Service area Date
Policy and Performance 4 November 2021
o

«Q
g Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the
O1 evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What has been/will be done to
Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Age The Climate Emergency Action Plan will have

positive impacts for all age groups. In particular,
tackling the climate emergency will have
particular benefits for young people and future
generations. There may also be specific benefits
for young people for example by increasing
active travel to school.

Disability There will be positive impacts on all protected
characteristics.




Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Gender
reassignment

There will be positive impacts on all protected
characteristics.

Marriage or civil
partnership

There will be positive impacts on all protected
characteristics.

ARL
O

sPregnancy or
Dmaternity

There will be positive impacts on all protected
characteristics.

ace

There will be positive impacts on all protected
characteristics.

Religion or Belief

There will be positive impacts on all protected
characteristics.

Sex

There will be positive impacts on all protected
characteristics.




Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Sexual Orientation

There will be positive impacts on all protected
characteristics.

2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice
The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from socio-
economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice.

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has in respect of
people suffering socio economic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive

Socio-economic
Duty and Social
Justice

the home and improve access to public transport
may well benefit low income households.
However, central government will need to ensure
that low income homes have the financial
incentives in order to help them to reduce carbon
emissions in their homes.

'U . . -
) disadvantage disadvantage. impacts”
&(2

™ There should not be any adverse impacts on low

~ income households. Measures to save energy in




flaYalkal alsaTl]

3. Policy making and the Welsh language.

How does your proposal impact
on the following aspects of the
Council’s Welsh Language
Standards:

Describe the positive impacts of
this proposal

Describe the negative impacts
of this proposal

What has been/will be done
to mitigate any negative
Impacts or better contribute
to positive impacts

Policy Making

Effects on the use of the Welsh
language,

Promoting Welsh language

Treating the Welsh language no
Eess favourably

The Climate Emergency action plan will be
published bilingually on the Council website,
and all climate related press and publicity will
be done bilingually.

D

DOperational

D)

XRecruitment & Training of

workforce

Not applicable

Service delivery

Use of Welsh language in service
delivery

Promoting use of the language

All Climate related materials will be published
bilingually.

4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is not

relevant!




What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?

Well Being Goal Describe the positive and negative impacts.

The action plan directly contributes to the
Prosperous Wales vision of a low carbon society and
action on climate change. There is the potential for
green economy jobs to be developed.

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,
provides jobs

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

The action plan contributes to more sustainable
management of green spaces and includes
measures which will build resilience of
ecosystems.

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health
Umpacts are understood

Transport measures will improve air quality and
increasing walking and cycling will improve
physical and mental health.

>) Many of the actions will involve working closely

D with local communities to produce local
Wales of cohesive communities community benefits. Transport measures

Communities are attractive, viable, should increase connectivity between

safe and well connected communities, particularly for those without a

car.

Reducing carbon emissions in Monmouthshire
will provide a small contribution towards
reducing levels of climate change, which are
having global impacts including flooding,

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental

wellbeing

drought and sea level rise.

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

Welsh language will be used for all Climate
Emergency communications in line with the
Welsh Language measure.




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?

Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A more equal Wales
People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or

circumstances

We are keen to work with the Community Climate
Champions and other partners, of all ages and all
backgrounds, to help us achieve our ambitions.

5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

Collaboration

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
| Balancing The Action Plan sets out how we aim to achieve a target of
SE short term zero carbon by 2030. This is a plan for the long term, but it
«@ need with requires quick and immediate action now, to reduce the
EZ & long term and | devastating impacts of climate change in the longer term.
o planning for
Long Term the future
Working The Climate Emergency Working Group comprises of
together with | Council officers, members and members of the community.
M‘ other Many of the actions in the Action Plan are being delivered
partners to through collaboration, both with community groups,
deliver regionally through Gwent and in south east Wales through
objectives the Cardiff Capital Region.




Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain
why. contribute to positive impacts?
Members of the Community Climate Champions represent
Involving the community on the Climate Emergency Working Group.
those with Those on the group include Transition town
an interest representatives, town and community councils, a

and seeking | community interest company and energy agency. There
their views has been substantial community engagement in the
development of the updated action plan, via an online
Involvement survey, public events and young peoples events.
Putting The whole aim of reducing our carbon emissions is to
resources prevent (or at least reduce the scale of impact) of runaway
into climate change.
J preventing
;E problems
“cg occurring or
1y Prevention  getting
[ worse
.We are in touch with other local authorities across Wales
Considering | and the UK who have declared a Climate Emergency. We
impact on all | have had guidance from Welsh Government on how they
wellbeing want us to measure and report on zero carbon, so are
goals working closely with them, as well as integrating our work
together and | with Cardiff Capital Region activity on decarbonisation. We
on other are also in touch with Town Councils who are
Integration bodies considering/have declared a Climate Emergency to think

about how we can work together in an integrated way.




6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Corporate
Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What will you do/ have you done
proposal has your proposal has to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?
Safeguarding There are no safeguarding implications

Corporate Parenting | There are no corporate parenting implications

7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

=21 "\RV\ ]

Evidence for the urgency to tackle climate change has come from numerous IPCC reports, such as: https://www.ipcc.ch/2018/10/08/summary-for-policymakers-of-ipcc-
Uspecial—report—on—gIobal—warming-of—1—50—approved—by-governments/

gLocaI information about energy and climate change has come from our Wellbeing Assessment, 3rd UK Climate Change Risk Assessment etc.
D
Pata and statistics on energy use, emissions etc has come from the Estates Team and National Statistics data.

N

The action plan has been informed by an officer workshop, plus comprehensive community engagement including: workshop with Community Climate Champions,
community engagement at Usk Show, Monmouth Climate Futures Festival and a community drop in workshop, engagement with young people through Monmouthshire
Games and Bronze Young Ambassadors conference, and via an online survey.

8. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

The Climate Emergency Action Plan has significant positive contributions to make to the Wellbeing Goals. In particular it has strong benefits for a
Prosperous Wales, by developing a low carbon economy and thinking carefully about sustainable procurement. There are also benefits for a Resilient
Wales, based on changes to the way we manage green spaces. A Healthier Wales will be enhanced by improvements to air quality from more sustainable
travel and more walking and cycling. There is also significant potential to contribute to Cohesive Communities, by working collaboratively and in

partnership with our communities. There are no negative impacts on the Well-being Goals.4.2 There are no significant positive or negative impacts on




the protected characteristics, safeguarding or corporate parenting. The principles of Long term, Prevention, Integration, Collaboration and Involvement
have been used throughout the development of the Action Plan.

9. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if
applicable.

What are you going to do

When are you going to do it? | Who is responsible

-

Q

%O.VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally

~ within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep arecord of this
process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever

possible.
Version | Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following
No. consideration
1 Council 4 November 2021




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5c

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
REPORT

SUBJECT: Diversity in Local Democracy
MEETING: Democratic Services Committee
DATE: 4™ November 2021
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: N/A

1.

PURPOSE:

For this Council to agree to sign up to the WLGA Diversity in Local
Democracy programme and agree the actions committed to in the
declaration to improve diversity.

KEY ISSUES:

At its meeting on the 28" September 2018, WLGA Council committed
to advance gender equality and diversity in local democracy ahead of
the 2022 local elections. As such a cross party working group was
formed to explore issues and actions that could be developed to
improve diversity in local democracy.

WLGA Council received and approved the report of this crossparty
working group in early 2021 and identified three areas for action:

e Encouraging Councils to ensure all councillors receive their full
entittement to allowances and salaries and encouraging the
introduction of resettlement grants, so that all members receive
fair remuneration for their work and that the role of member is
not limited to those who can afford it

e An agreement by Council to undertake new or developed work
in this area and visibly commit to this by signing up to becoming
Diverse Councils.

e To discuss positions and making representation to political
parties and acting locally to set quotas and/or voluntary targets
for the election of councillors from underrepresented groups.

Monmouthshire County Council has limited or no control over some
aspects of the recommendations such as the way in which political
parties put forward their candidates for election and the issue of
providing resettlement grants to senior salary post holders who are not
successful in getting re-elected. Further information on these proposals
will be provided at a future meeting of the Democratic Services
Committee should they take effect.

This report focusses solely on the request for all Councils to commit to
being a Diverse Council and the actions needed to demonstrate the
work that is/will be undertaken to support that commitment and also
aligns with the motion agreed by Council on the 24" June 2021 that
aims to achieve a more diverse Council.

Page 75



Attached at appendix A to this report is an example declaration and list
of actions agreed through the Democratic Services Committee that the
Council can commit to ahead of the 2022 elections to try and engage
with candidates from more diverse backgrounds and encourage them
to stand for election.

The report seeks to approve diversity ambassadors from each political
group on the Council to encourage diversity within the groups and
maintain the standards as set out in the Local Government and
Elections (Wales) Act 2021. Ideally, that appointment should be a
member of the Democratic Services Committee to allow for continuous
monitoring and feedback on the arrangements and application of the
declaration. If agreed, group leaders should send the name of the
nominated ambassador for their group to the head of democratic
services following the appointment.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

Limited resource implications. Most of the requirements of the pledge
are already being undertaken or scheduled to take place already.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS:

In signing up to be a Diverse Council, the Council is ensuring
candidates and local representatives from all backgrounds are able to
stand for election and represent the views of their communities. The
more diverse the Council can be, the more diverse and wide ranging
policies and decisions taken by the Council will become and better
reflect the communities those decisions effect.

SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING IMPLICATIONS:
None

BACKGROUND PAPERS
WLGA Report - Diversity in Local Government

AUTHOR:
John Pearson, Local Democracy Manager
Email: johnpearson@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 76


https://www.wlga.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=62&mid=665&fileid=2966

Appendix A — Example Diverse Council Declaration

This Council commits to being a Diverse Council. We agree to:

Commitment

What do we do? Actions needed?

Provide a clear public commitment to
improving diversity in democracy

Action: Democratic Services Committee to make a
recommendation to the next Full Council meeting
requesting the council sign up as a Diverse Council
underpinned by the actions here.

Demonstrate an open and welcoming

culture

to all, promoting the highest

standards of behaviour and conduct

Diversity ambassadors to promote the standards
within their own groups as well group leaders
adhering to the expected levels of behaviour as set
out in the Local Government and Elections (Wales)
Act 2021.

Set out a local Diverse Council Action Plan
ahead of the 2022 local elections including:

Appoint a Diversity Ambassador for
each political group on the Council
to work with each other and local
party associations to encourage
recruitment of candidates from
under represented groups
Encourage and enable people from
underrepresented groups to stand
for office through the provision of
activities such as mentoring and
shadowing programmes and
information and learning events for
people interested in standing and
official candidates

Proactive engagement and
involvement with local community
groups and partner organisations
supporting and representing under
represented groups.

Ensure that all members and
candidates complete the Welsh
Government candidates and

councillors survey distributed at
election time.

Set ambitious targets for candidates
from under-represented groups at
the 2022 local elections.

Action: appoint a Diversity Ambassador from the
Democratic Services Committee membership for
each political group who can feed back updates on
progress for committee to monitor and review?

Shadowing and mentoring to be considered as part
of the induction plan and preparation for the 2022
local elections. Needs political group involvement
and buy in and relies on candidates being re-elected
to follow through on mentoring programme.

At 2012 and 2017 elections, pre-election briefings
held with potential candidates to provide details on
election process and highlight
duties/expectations/commitments needed of a
Councillor. Councillors will be invited to attend
sessions to give personal experience of being a
councillor to potential candidates. Work with other
departments/groups to promote sessions as widely
as possible.

A copy of the survey is given to all candidates who
submit a nomination paper to stand for election and
it can be filled in online. As much as its promoted
and followed up response levels have been low at
both 2012 and 2017 elections. Councillors are also
an exit survey (circulated on 8" October 2021) and
are encouraged to complete this survey to

Targets are difficult to set with limited control over
selection processes but targeted campaigns to
encourage participation and briefing sessions
dedicated for hard to reach groups will be held.

Work towards the standards for member
support and development set out in the
Wales Charter for Member Support and
Development.

Significant work was undertaken in 2019 to evidence
work to apply for charter status with the WLGA but
work was halted due to the general election,
preparations for the 2020 PCC election and the

Page 77




pandemic.

At the time there was only a small number of
additional evidence required to achieve charter
which can be prepared as part of this commitment
however, it may be that a new council will be best
place to submit that proposal for the next term
ensuring it meets their needs.

Demonstrate a commitment to a duty of
care for Councillors by:

Providing access to counselling
services for all councillors

Having regard for the safety and
wellbeing of councillors whenever
they are performing their role as
councillors.

Taking a zero tolerance approach to
bullying and harassment by
members including through social
network.

A dedicated Health and Safety area for members is
included in the member area on the hub here:
Democratic Services - Health and Safety

All members can access the Councils counselling
services already through Democratic Services.

A recent survey of members was undertaken to
identify levels of abuse/harassment members
receive in their role. Thankfully, incidents in
Monmouthshire are currently very low but the Head
of Democratic Services and the Monitoring Officer
can support members in dealing with any issues that
arise.

Provide flexibility in council business by:

Regularly reviewing and staggering
meeting times

Encouraging and supporting remote
attendance at meetings

Agreeing recess periods to support
councillors with caring or work
commitments

The timing of Full Council meetings are reviewed
through the Democratic Services Committee at least
once every term of Council (twice this term).

Committees and Committee Chairs are given the
flexibility to adjust their meeting times as they see fit
in achieving the outcomes they wish to achieve.

The Council Constitution was amended in 2015 to
allow remote attendance at Council meetings
subject to certain conditions. New legislation allows
councillors to attend meetings remotely without the
conditions attached to it and members are provided
with the equipment and skills to participate remotely
where they wish to do so. Recent upgrades to the
Council Chamber will further improve the remote
meeting experience for members attending remotely
as well as in person and will ensure no matter how
members participate in meetings, they will have the
same experience.

The Council diary is already drafted with school
holiday periods defined as a period for not allocating
meetings where possible and coupled with the
conditions above on timings of meetings allow
members/committees to influence the meeting diary
to suit their needs.

Page 78



http://corphub/initiatives/DemServ/SitePages/Health%20and%20Safety.aspx

Ensure that all members take up the
allowances and salaries to which they are
entitled, particularly any reimbursement for
costs of care, so that all members receive
fair remuneration for their work and that the
role of member is not limited to those who
can afford it

All members automatically receive the allowance
they are entitled to, as set out by the Independent
Remuneration Panel for Wales, with exceptions only
made at the request of individual members.

In publishing the details of allowances, a total cost of
care across all members is published rather than
itemised against each councillor to encourage
members to claim the costs they are entitled to.

Ensure that councillors from under-
represented groups are represented
whenever possible in high profile, high
influence roles.

This would be a role the Diversity Ambassador from
each political group would feed into their own groups
to ensure appointments to different roles the group
are entitled to are distributed with this in mind.

Page 79




This page is intentionally left blank



Gl

monmouthshire

Qo sir fynwy

Phone no:

Name of the Officer John Pearson

E-mail:johnpearson@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal

To encourage greater diversity in candidates standing for election and
ultimately representing residents as a County Councillor.

Democratic Services

Name of Service area

Date 4" November 2021

1. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the

-y evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.
Q

D
0 Protected
= Characteristics

TO- 2

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Age / Disability /
Gender
reassignment /
Marriage or civil
partnership /
Pregnancy or
maternity / Race /
Religion or Belief /
Sex / Sexual
Orientation

A more diverse set of Councillors from
wide ranging backgrounds and protected
characteristics will hopefully ensure that
policies and decisions taken by the
Council better reflect society as a whole
and serve the needs of all residents. It
could also lead to higher levels of
engagement in the democratic process
to help shape policies through to the
decisions being made.




2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice
The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from socio-
economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice.

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic
disadvantage

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has in respect of
people suffering socio economic
disadvantage.

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Socio-economic
Duty and Social
Justice

20 "\RV\ 1
¢o vvutqg

Increased diversity amongst Councillors
who make decisions for their ward
should ensure that those decisions
better reflect the diversity of the
residents of that particular area and
Monmouthshire as a whole.




3. Policy making and the Welsh language.

How does your proposal impact
on the following aspects of the
Council’s Welsh Language
Standards:

Describe the positive impacts of
this proposal

Describe the negative impacts
of this proposal

What has been/will be done
to mitigate any negative
Impacts or better contribute
to positive impacts

Policy Making

Effects on the use of the Welsh
language,

Promoting Welsh language

Treating the Welsh language no
less favourably

Welsh speaking Councillors may wish
to use the Welsh language in meetings
and promote that medium through
meetings being live streamed.

j)

«@Operational If more Welsh speaking councillors are
D . .
ORecruitment & Training of electeq Yve will need to consider

w advertising a future vacancy as Welsh

workforce

essential in order that those councillors
can communicate with us through the
medium of Welsh

Service delivery

Use of Welsh language in service
delivery

Promoting use of the language

We comply with the Welsh Language
Standards as applicable to us as a
department.




4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is not

relevant!

Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,
provides jobs

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

O "\RV\ [

QA healthier Wales

gPeopIe’s physical and mental
Pwellbeing is maximized and health
XAmpacts are understood

~A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

A more equal Wales

A more diverse Council can contribute to all the
Well Being Goals by bringing different
experiences and knowledge that the Council
doesn’t currently have. This can then be used to
improve decisions that the Council take that
have an impact on all the residents of
Monmouthshire.




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or
circumstances

5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

faYe "\RV\ [

Involvement

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
Balancing Councillors from different age groups could lead to an increase in
short term candidates standing for election over time and encourage other
need with young people to stand for election.
E long term and
g planning for
the future
PO Long Term
Working A diverse Council can lead to better cohesion between the
together with | County Council and the Community by introducing
M‘ other relationships that may not exist without the wider
partners to representation.
deliver
Collaboration objectives
Involving A diverse Council could encourage more people to engage in
those with local democracy and shape the decisions the council make.
an interest
and seeking
their views




Sustainable Development

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met

Are there any additional actions to be taken to

Principle this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain mitigate any negative impacts or better
why. contribute to positive impacts?
Putting Councillors with more diverse backgounds may highlight
resources issues to the Council at an earlier stage than may have
Into been the case if they were not engaged in the democratic
preventing
process.
problems

occurring or

Prevention getting
worse

faVa "\RV\ 1
90 ovucg

Considering
impact on all
wellbeing
goals
together and
on other

Integration bodies




6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Corporate

Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has

What will you do/ have you done
to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?

Safeguarding

Corporate Parenting

All councillors will be required to
undertake the necessary
Safeguarding and corporate
parenting training as part of their
induction programme to make them
aware of their responsibilities as a
councillor.

7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

] O "\RV\ 1
/.0 9vutg

8. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

A more diverse Council can lead to better and more relevant decisions taken locally that will have a greater impact on residents and the local area.




9. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if
applicable.

What are you going to do

When are you going to do it? | Who is responsible

10.VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally
within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep a record of this
U process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever
Q .
@ possible.
)
Q

ersion
No.

Decision making stage

Date considered

Brief description of any amendments made following
consideration




Agenda Item 5d

" monmouthshire
WO sir fynwy
SUBJECT: DIARY OF MEETINGS FOR 2022/23
MEETING: County Council
DATE: 4 November 2021
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: N/A

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.

PURPOSE:
To approve the diary of meetings for 2022/2023.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
That the diary of meetings for 2022/2023, as attached, be approved.

KEY ISSUES:

The diary includes, for information only, dates of meetings for political groups and outside
bodies that are not agreed by Council and are subject to change by the organising bodies.

As per previous years, as far as is practicable meetings have not been scheduled during
school holidays as requested by Councillors. There is an inevitable need to hold some
meetings during school holidays so that the diary does not become too congested and
avoids clashes with other meetings and priorities but these have been kept to a minimum.

Included within the diary are proposed induction sessions for new councillors following the
election in 2022. Democratic Services Committee have received and reviewed the timetable
for the induction programme. Sessions have been kept to minimum to not congest and
overburden members at the outset, however this needs to be balanced with ensuring
councillors are given the required training to allow the Council to carry out its functions as
soon as possible. Mandatory/essential induction modules will run from May to end of July
alongside the first meetings of some committees. Following the summer recess in August,
further induction sessions will be introduced covering less time critical topics but
nevertheless important to bring all members up to speed with work of the Council.

Induction sessions are included in the diary with a 10:00am start time. These are provisional
and times will be confirmed closer to the time. The opportunity for recording induction
session as well as attending remotely will be increased due to the upgrading of the Council
chamber with full benefits being assessed following completion of the works. The WLGA are
leading on a programme of works for e-learning modules looking to be available before the
2022 elections which can help compliment the induction programme and any members who
are unable to attend a planned induction session.

All candidates standing for election at the May 2022 local elections will be provided with the
council diary and induction timetable at the point of submitting their nomination, as well as

informed through candidate briefing sessions, to highlight the commitment needed to the
role.

REASONS:

Page 89



10.

The Council calendar needs to be approved annually to ensure appropriate governance
arrangements are in place for the year and enables Members and officers to forward plan
effectively.

Early indication of the induction programme will ensure all candidates standing for election
are aware of the commitment they will need to give the role immediately following the
election.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:
None as a direct result of this report.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS:
There are no sustainable development or equality impacts arising from this report.

SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING IMPLICATIONS
There are no safeguarding or corporate parenting implications associated with this report.

CONSULTEES:

Democratic Services Committee
SLT
Monitoring Officer

BACKGROUND PAPERS:
None.

AUTHOR:
John Pearson, Local Democracy Manager

CONTACT DETAILS:
Tel: 01633 644212
E-mail: johnpearson@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 90


mailto:johnpearson@monmouthshire.gov.uk

T6 obed

CALENDAR OF MEETINGS

1 MAY 2022 - 1 SEPTEMBER 2023




MAY, 2022

10.00 am Members Induction -
Online service area
introductions, Members'
Seminars

10.00 am Members Seminar -
Licensing Committee Training,
Members' Seminars

2.00 pm Licensing and
Regulatory Committee

10.00 am Members Induction -
Introduction to Local
Government Finance (e-
learning), Members' Seminars

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
2 3 4 5 6
9 10 11 12 13
10.00 am Members Induction - 10.00 am Members Induction -
Welcome, Introductions and Decision making, ethics and
Orientation, Members' standards of behaviour (e-
—_— Seminars learning), Members' Seminars
g 17 18 19 20
(@) 10.00 am Members Induction - 10.00 am Members Induction -
D Chief Executive session, Chief Executive session,
O Members' Seminars Members' Seminars
N 2.00 pm AGM, County Council 12.30 pm Members Induction -
ICT Drop in session, Members'
Seminars
2.00 pm County Council
23 24 25 26 27

10.00 am Members Induction -
Orientation, Members'
Seminars

30

31

10.00 am Members Induction -
Planning Committee Training,
Members' Seminars




JUNE, 2022

2.00 pm Democratic Services
Committee

10.00 am Licensing and
Regulatory Committee

5.00 pm PROVISIONAL -
RLDP Member Workshop -
Deposit Plan Member
workshop, Members' Seminars

5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
Member Decisions

10.00 am Strong Communities
Select Committee

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2 3
6 7 8 9 10
10.00 am Members Induction - | 10.00 am Members Induction - 10.00 am Members Induction -
Standards Committee Training, | Scrutiny (e-learning), Members' Chairs Training (online),
Members' Seminars Seminars Members' Seminars
2.00 pm Planning Committee 2.00 pm Governance and Audit
Committee
13 14 15 16 17
10.00 am Members [Induction - | 10.00 am Members Induction - | 10.00 am Standing Advisory 10.00 am Children and Young
feguarding, Corporate Equalities, Diversity & Welsh Council on Religious Education | People Select Committee
renting and Personal Safety | Language (E-Learning), (SACRE)
-learning), Members' Members' Seminars 3.00 pm Cabinet
(Meminars
(@)
w
20 21 22 23 24
10.00 am Members Induction - 2.00 pm County Council
Data Management, FOI and
GDPR Regulations (E
Learning), Members' Seminars
27 28 29 30




JULY, 2022

10.00 am Members Induction -
Policy and Future Generations
Act (E-Learning), Members'
Seminars

10.00 am Members Induction -
Planning Committee for Non
planning committee (E
Learning), Members' Seminars

3.00 pm Cabinet

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1
4 5 6 7 8
2.00 pm Wye Valley AONB 2.00 pm Planning Committee 3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Economy and
Joint Advisory Committee Development Select
Committee
11 12 13 14 15
10.00 am Member Induction - 10.00 am Adults Select 10.00 am Strategic Transport 2.00 pm Governance and Audit
cial Services and Wellbeing | Committee Group Committee
gt (E Learning), Members' 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
eminars Member Decisions
@
(0]
) 19 20 21 22
11.00 am Monmouthshire Farm | 10.00 am Licensing and 10.00 am Standing Advisory 2.00 pm County Council
School Endowment Trust Regulatory Committee Council on Religious Education
(SACRE)
25 26 27 28 29




AUGUST, 2022

5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
Member Decisions

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2 3 4 5
10.00 am PROVISIONAL - 2.00 pm Planning Committee 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
Members Induction - Public Member Decisions
Speaking and Social Media
Training (E-Learning),
Members' Seminars
8 9 10 11 12
15 16 17 18 19
T
Q
(O
9]
@ 23 24 25 26
o1
29 30 31




SEPTEMBER, 2022

2.00 pm Democratic Services
Committee

5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
Member Decisions

10.00 am Children and Young
People Select Committee

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2
10.00 am Strong Communities
Select Committee
5 6 7 8 9
10.00 am Member Induction - 2.00 pm Planning Committee 3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am PROVISIONAL -
Climate Change Workshop, Members Induction - Violence
Members' Seminars against Women and Domestic
Violence (E-Learning),
Members' Seminars
2.00 pm Governance and Audit
Committee
& 13 14 15 16
) 10.00 am Licensing and 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 10.00 am Economy and
D Regulatory Committee Member Decisions Development Select
(o) Committee
o
19 20 21 22 23
10.00 am Adults Select 2.00 pm County Council
Committee
26 27 28 29 30




OCTOBER, 2022

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
3 4 5 6 7
2.00 pm Planning Committee 3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Strong Communities
Select Committee
10 11 12 13 14
10.00 am Standards 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 2.00 pm Governance and Audit
Committee Member Decisions Committee
T
Q
@7 18 19 20 21
1..00 am Monmouthshire Farm 10.00 am Strategic Transport 10.00 am Economy and
~Sthool Endowment Trust Group Development Select
Committee
24 25 26 27 28
10.00 am Adults Select 10.00 am Standing Advisory 2.00 pm County Council
Committee Council on Religious Education
(SACRE)
5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
Member Decisions
31




NOVEMBER, 2022

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2 3 4
2.00 pm Planning Committee
7 8 9 10 11
2.00 pm Wye Valley AONB 10.00 am Licensing and 3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Children and Young
Joint Advisory Committee Regulatory Committee People Select Committee
14 15 16 17 18
T 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 10.00 am Strong Communities
Q) Member Decisions Select Committee
(O
@
(€®)
=] 22 23 24 25
2.00 pm Democratic Services 2.00 pm Governance and Audit
Committee Committee
28 29 30

10.00 am Adults Select
Committee

5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
Member Decisions




DECEMBER, 2022

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2
2.00 pm County Council
5 6 7 8 9
2.00 pm Planning Committee 3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Economy and
Development Select
Committee
12 13 14 15 16
10.00 am Licensing and 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 10.00 am Children and Young
o Regulatory Committee Member Decisions People Select Committee
Q
(O
@
(O
()] 20 21 22 23
26 27 28 29 30




JANUARY, 2023

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
2 3 4 5 6
2.00 pm Planning Committee 3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Strong Communities
Select Committee
9 10 11 12 13
10.00 am Adults Select 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 10.00 am Economy and
Committee Member Decisions Development Select
Committee
-
jab}
[an)
6 17 18 19 20
= 10.00 am Strategic Transport 2.00 pm County Council
(@) Group
o
23 24 25 26 27
2.00 pm Democratic Services 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 2.00 pm Governance and Audit
Committee Member Decisions Committee
30 31

11.00 am Monmouthshire Farm
School Endowment Trust

10.00 am Licensing and
Regulatory Committee

10




FEBRUARY, 2023

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2 3
3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Children and Young
People Select Committee
6 7 8 9 10
10.00 am Standards 2.00 pm Planning Committee 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 10.00 am Strong Communities
Committee Member Decisions Select Committee
13 14 15 16 17
10.00 am Adults Select 10.00 am Standing Advisory 2.00 pm Governance and Audit
Committee Council on Religious Education | Committee
U (SACRE)
Q
(O
D
(=
[@1) 21 22 23 24
= 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
Member Decisions
27 28

11




MARCH, 2023

10.00 am Adults Select
Committee

2.00 pm Governance and Audit

Committee

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2 3
3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Economy and
Development Select
Committee
6 7 8 9 10
2.00 pm Wye Valley AONB 2.00 pm Planning Committee 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 2.00 pm County Council
Joint Advisory Committee Member Decisions
13 14 15 16 17
U 10.00 am Licensing and 10.00 am Strategic Transport 10.00 am Children and Young
g Regulatory Committee Group People Select Committee
@
|_\
o
) 21 22 23 24
2.00 pm Democratic Services 5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 10.00 am Strong Communities
Committee Member Decisions Select Committee
27 28 29 30 31

12




APRIL, 2023

10.00 am Licensing and
Regulatory Committee

5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
Member Decisions

10.00 am Children and Young
People Select Committee

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
3 4 5 6 7
2.00 pm Planning Committee 3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Economy and
Development Select
Committee
10 11 12 13 14
5.00 pm Individual Cabinet
Member Decisions
o
job)
(O
@D
=
> 18 19 20 21
w 2.00 pm County Council
24 25 26 27 28

13




MAY, 2023

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2 3 4 5
2.00 pm Planning Committee 3.00 pm Cabinet
8 9 10 11 12
5.00 pm Individual Cabinet 10.00 am Strong Communities
Member Decisions Select Committee
15 16 17 18 19
- 2.00 pm AGM, County Council 2.00 pm County Council
jab}
(O
D
|_\
o
AN
22 23 24 25 26
29 30 31

14




JUNE, 2023

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2
5 6 7 8 9
2.00 pm Democratic Services 10.00 am Adults Select 3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Children and Young
Committee Committee People Select Committee
2.00 pm Planning Committee 2.00 pm Governance and Audit
Committee
12 13 14 15 16
10.00 am Licensing and 10.00 am Economy and
;DU Regulatory Committee Development Select
) Committee
D
H
o
99 20 21 22 23
2.00 pm County Council
26 27 28 29 30

15




JULY, 2023

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
3 4 5 6 7
2.00 pm Planning Committee 3.00 pm Cabinet
10 11 12 13 14
T
QO
(Q
D
|-
[an] 18 19 20 21
@2.00 am Monmouthshire Farm | 10.00 am Adults Select 10.00 am Children and Young
School Endowment Trust Committee People Select Committee
24 25 26 27 28
3.00 pm Cabinet 10.00 am Economy and
Development Select
Committee
2.00 pm County Council
2.00 pm Governance and Audit
Committee
31

16




AUGUST, 2023

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday
1 2 3 4
2.00 pm Planning Committee

7 8 9 10 11

14 15 16 17 18

Y

1 22 23 24 25

D

H

o

\]

28 29 30 31

17




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5e
W |

monmouthshire
COUNTY. COUNCIL

SUBJECT: AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 - MONMOUTHSHIRE
COUNTY COUNCIL

MEETING: Council

DATE: 4™ November 2021

DIVISIONS/WARD AFFECTED: All

1.1

2.1.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

PURPOSE:

The purpose of this report is to provide the audited Statement of annual accounts for the Authority
for 2020/21 for final approval, subsequent to the audit process undertaken by Audit Wales and
review and endorsement by the November Governance & Audit Committee.
RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the final audited Monmouthshire County Council Statement of Accounts for 2020/21
(Appendix 1) are approved by Council.

KEY ISSUES

Draft statement of accounts

Under current legislation the draft statement of accounts, prior to audit, have to be produced
each year by 31 May following the financial year they relate to. During the 2020/21 closure
process the finance section faced considerable disruption as a result of the continuing impact of
the Covid-19 pandemic with staff resources being limited and the primary focus rightly being
directed to ensuring the ongoing financial sustainability of the Council. Consequently, and
utilising the flexibility permitted by Welsh Government regulation, the draft statement of accounts
were not prepared until 21 July and were subsequently reviewed by Governance & Audit
Committee at its meeting on 29" July 2021.

Final audited statement of accounts

Council approval of the final audited accounts should follow the audit process and under current
legislation this has to be completed by 315 July following the financial year they relate to.

Despite the best efforts of the Authority and Audit Wales it was not possible to complete the audit
process to meet the statutory deadline. The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has caused
significant disruption both to the Authority and Audit Wales in being able to complete the
necessary work to satisfy audit requirements to the required deadline.

As a result under Regulation 10(2) of the Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014, the

Authority was required to publish a notice highlighting the delayed conclusion of the audit which
was made on 30" July 2021 and can be viewed at:

1 Page 109



3.5.

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2021/07/Notice-of-delayed-publishing-of-
audited-accounts-2020-21.docx.

The revised timetable is therefore:

3'Y November 2021 Review & endorsement by G&AC
4" November 2021 Approval by Council
5" November 2021 Sign off by Audit Wales

REASONS

To review and endorse the Authority’s final audited Statement of accounts which incorporate all
adjustments for “corrected misstatements” which have been identified by Audit Wales and as noted
in Appendix 3 of their ISA260 Audit of Accounts report.

It is pleasing to note that the auditors intend to provide an unqualified audit opinion on the
Accounts, and management would wish to acknowledge the continuing strength of relationship
between Council and Audit Wales, and the professional and constructive approach in which audit
colleagues have conducted their activities despite the difficult circumstances.

Of significant note, the ISA260 Audit of Accounts report raises the following issues and

recommendations, the council’'s management response to which is included alongside to reassure
Members of the ongoing steps being taken to ensure the quality of the accounts.

Uncorrected misstatements

e Overstatement of year-end creditors (£973,000) - where services were incorrectly accrued
for in the 2020/21 accounts, despite not being delivered to the Council until 2021/22

Management comment: The 2020/21 financial year-end process corresponded with many
unbudgeted grants being notified and received during a short period in March 2021. As a
result, finance teams were managing many conflicting demands on staff resources and
consequently they were required to use greater estimation and judgement in carrying out
many year-end calculations. This included basing their calculations on the information
provided to them by budget holders and external suppliers who in many instances were
under similar pressure given the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic impact. As a result,
assurances received by the finance teams of the timings of goods/services received proved
to be inaccurate upon further investigation.

For future closure periods, where material accruals are being calculated finance teams will
look to obtain additional evidence to support the information put forward by budget holders
and external suppliers.

e Overstatement of 2020/21 income (£191,000). Revenue due relating to prior periods had
been incorrectly recorded as revenue in 2020/21, as opposed to offsetting a debtor that had
been established in a prior accounting period.

Management comment: It is fully accepted that despite staff turnover in the financial
management of this area, that the established systems and procedures in place should have
proved adequate to maintain the robust and accurate recording of income. A review of the
procedures in place for recording of this rental income stream, along with a review of the
sections business continuity arrangements will be carried out fully prior to the next closure
period as to ensure that this remains an isolated error.

Page 110


https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2021/07/Notice-of-delayed-publishing-of-audited-accounts-2020-21.docx
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2021/07/Notice-of-delayed-publishing-of-audited-accounts-2020-21.docx

5.1.

8.1.

9.1.

10.

11.

11.1.

12.

Recommendations

Our cut-off testing identified an item of capital expenditure (£102,000) that was not
accrued for in the 2020/21 accounts, despite the works involved being delivered within the
financial year. We recommend that the Council review it’s close-down procedures and
looks to ensure adequate central finance support for the Children and Young people
service area to identify future capital accruals.

Management comment: Recommendation agreed. Finance resources were severely restricted
during the closure period and in prioritising higher risk areas it is fully accepted that the central
finance support provided to the CYP directorate fell short in this lower risk area. Closure
procedures will be reviewed with a view to ensuring adequate central finance support is planned
for future closure periods.

OPTIONS APPRAISAL

Not applicable.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Not applicable

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

As outlined in the respective Statement of accounts to be found in the Appendices.
EQUALITY AND FUTURE GENERATIONS EVALUATION (INCLUDES SOCIAL JUSTICE,
SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING):

There are no implications directly arising from the recommendations and decisions highlighted in
this report.

CONSULTEES

Strategic Leadership Team

Cabinet Members

Deputy Chief Executive, Chief Officer - Resources

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Appendix 1: Audited Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Audit Wales ISA260 Audit of Accounts report

AUTHORS:

Jonathan Davies

Acting Assistant Head of Finance (Deputy Section 151 officer)
Email: jonathandavies2@monmouthshire.qov.uk

Phone: (01633) 644114

Page 111


mailto:jonathandavies2@monmouthshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Archwilio Cymru
Audit Wales

Audit of Accounts Report —
Monmouthshire County Council

Audit year: 2020-21
Date issued: October 2021
Document reference: 2652A2021-22

Page 113



This document has been prepared as part of work performed in accordance with statutory functions.

In the event of receiving a request for information to which this document may be relevant, attention
is drawn to the Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the Freedom of Information Act 2000.
The section 45 code sets out the practice in the handling of requests that is expected of public
authorities, including consultation with relevant third parties. In relation to this document, the Auditor
General for Wales and the Wales Audit Office are relevant third parties. Any enquiries regarding
disclosure or re-use of this document should be sent to the Wales Audit Office at
infoofficer@audit.wales.

We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh will
not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffon yn Gymraeg a Saesneg. Ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

Page 114


mailto:infoofficer@audit.wales

Contents

We intend to issue an unqualified audit report on your Statement of Accounts. There are

some matters to report to you prior to their approval.

Audit of Accounts Report
Introduction

Impact of COVID-19 on this year’s audit
Proposed audit opinion

Significant issues arising from the audit

Recommendations

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Final Letter of Representation
Appendix 2 — Proposed Audit Report
Appendix 3 — Summary of Corrections Made

Appendix 4 — Recommendations

Page 3 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — Monmouthshire Bﬂg@o]uﬂns

11

16

20



Audit of Accounts Report

Introduction

1

We summarise the main findings from our audit of your 2020-21 Statement of
Accounts in this report.

We have already discussed these issues with the Finance Manager for Central
Accountancy and the Acting Section 151 Officer.

Auditors can never give complete assurance that accounts are correctly stated.
Instead, we work to a level of ‘materiality’. This level of materiality is set to try to
identify and correct misstatements that might otherwise cause a user of the
accounts into being misled.

We set this level at £3.15 million for this year’s audit.

There are some areas of the accounts that may be of more importance to the
reader and we have set a lower materiality level for these, as follows:

° Senior officer remuneration: £1,000

o Related party transactions (for individuals): £5,000

We have now substantially completed this year’s audit, although at the time of
issue of this report some work remained outstanding. We do not expect any
outstanding work to affect the financial statements, but we will provide a further
verbal update to the Governance and Audit Committee when presenting this report.

In our professional view, we have complied with the ethical standards that apply to
our work. We remain independent of yourselves and our objectivity has not been
compromised in any way. There are no relationships between ourselves and
yourselves that we believe could undermine our objectivity and independence.

Impact of COVID-19 on this year’s audit

8

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on all aspects of our society
and continues to do so. You are required by law to prepare accounts and it is of
considerable testament to the commitment of your accounts team that you have
succeeded in doing so this year in the face of the ongoing challenges posed by this
pandemic. We are extremely grateful to the professionalism of the team in
supporting us to complete our audit.

The pandemic continues to affect our audit and we summarise in Exhibit 1 the
main impacts. Other than where we specifically make recommendations, the detalil
in Exhibit 1 is provided for information purposes only to help you understand the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on this year’s audit process.

Page 4 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmouthR&gﬁm]yj:ﬁmcil



Exhibit 1 —impact of COVID-19 on this year’s audit

Timetable Given the continuing impact of COVID-19, the Welsh Government

provided flexibility in terms of both the accounts preparation

deadlines and the audit deadlines:

e The timescale for completing your accounts was revised by
the Welsh Government from 31 May 2021 to 31 August 2021.

e We received the approved draft accounts on 21 July 2021.

e Our deadline for completing our audit was extended by the
Welsh Government from 31 July to 30 November 2021.

e We expect your audit report to be signed on 5 November
2021.

As stated previously, officers should be commended for the timely

completion of the draft financial statements.

Electronic Given ongoing Welsh Government guidance to work from home
signatures where possible, we will continue to use electronic signatures to
certify the final Statement of Accounts. We will liaise with
management to arrange this.

Audit Due to social distancing measures, Audit Wales staff are currently
evidence working remotely from home. As a result, we have not had direct
access to certain systems such as the Council’s financial ledger,
associated systems and shared drives. We normally use this
access to directly review financial records and obtain invoices
where possible.

Consequently, we have had to request all such information and
working papers from Council staff for the 2020-21 audit, although
all information requested has been provided to us.

10  We will continue to review what we have learned for our audit process from the
COVID-19 pandemic and whether there are innovative practices that we might
adopt to enhance that process.

Proposed audit opinion

11  We intend to issue an unqualified audit opinion on this year’s accounts once you
have provided us with a Letter of Representation based on that set out in
Appendix 1.

12 We issue a ‘qualified’ audit opinion where we have material concerns about some
aspects of your accounts; otherwise we issue an unqualified opinion.

Page 5 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — Monmouthshire Bﬂg@o]uﬂnv



13

14

The Letter of Representation contains certain confirmations we are required to
obtain from you under auditing standards along with confirmation of other specific
information you have provided to us during our audit.

Our proposed audit report is set out in Appendix 2.

Significant issues arising from the audit

Uncorrected misstatements

15

We set out below the misstatements we identified in the accounts, which have
been discussed with management but remain uncorrected. We request that these
are corrected. If you decide not to correct these misstatements, we ask that you
provide us with the reasons in writing for not correcting them.

Overstatement of year-end creditors (£973,000)

Our testing of year-end creditors identified 4 out of 25 sampled transactions where
services were incorrectly accrued for in the 2020-21 accounts, despite not being
delivered to the Council until 2021-22. The errors all arose as part of year-end
accounts closedown and related specifically to capital items.

The errors identified in our testing are below our materiality threshold. We have
performed further audit procedures to provide assurance that there is no likely
material misstatement arising in the remaining creditors population and are
satisfied that this is the case.

Given the tight timescale in place to approve the final accounts and the immaterial
value of the amendments required, the Council has informed us that they do not
wish to correct these items. Furthermore, the corrections required for three of the
four transactions would result in reclassification of the balances into other creditor
types, meaning that the total creditor balance would be unaffected by their
correction.

Overstatement of 2020-21 income (£191,000)

During the audit, management notified us that revenue due relating to prior periods
from a tenant of Castlegate Business Park had been incorrectly recorded as
revenue in 2020-21, as opposed to offsetting a debtor that had been established in
a prior accounting period. This had the effect of overstating income and debtors in
the year by £191,000.

Given the tight timescale in place to approve the final accounts and the immaterial
value of the amendments required, the Council has informed us that they do not
wish to correct this item.

Page 6 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmouthR&gﬁml(]:&ncil



Corrected misstatements

16  There were initially misstatements in the accounts that have now been corrected
by management. However, we believe that these should be drawn to your attention
and they are set out with explanations in Appendix 3.

Other significant issues arising from the audit

17  Inthe course of the audit, we consider a number of matters relating to the accounts
and report any significant issues arising to you, such as:

o concerns about the qualitative aspects of accounting practices and financial
reporting;

o any significant difficulties during the audit;

o significant matters discussed and corresponded upon with management
which we need to report to those charged with governance;

o Any other matters significant to the oversight of the financial reporting
process that we need to report;

o Any identified material weaknesses in internal controls; and

o Any other matters specifically required by auditing standards to be

communicated to those charged with governance.

18  There are no such matters to report to you for your consideration from this year’s
audit.

Recommendations

19  One recommendation arising from our audit is set out in Appendix 4. Management
has responded to it and we will follow up progress against it during next year’s
audit. Where any actions are outstanding, we will continue to monitor progress and
report it to you in next year’s report.

Page 7 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — Monmouthshire Bﬂg@o]uﬂng



Appendix 1

Final Letter of Representation

[Audited body’s letterhead]

Auditor General for Wales
Wales Audit Office

24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff

CF119LJ

4 November 2021

Representations regarding the 2020-21 financial statements

This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of
Monmouthshire County Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness and their proper preparation.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we
consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you.

Management representations

Responsibilities
We have fulfilled our responsibilities for:

o The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative
requirements and the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2020-21; in particular, the financial statements give a true and fair
view in accordance therewith.

o The design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to prevent
and detect fraud and error.

Information provided

We have provided you with:
° Full access to:

- all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of
the financial statements such as books of account and supporting
documentation, minutes of meetings and other matters;

Page 8 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmouthR&gﬁm]yzamcil



- additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit; and

- unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to
obtain audit evidence.

o The results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

o Our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects
Monmouthshire County Council and involves:

- management;
- employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
- others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

o Our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators or
others.

o Our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected

non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered
when preparing the financial statements.

o The identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and
transactions of which we are aware.

Financial statement representations

All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records and
are reflected in the financial statements.

The methods, the data and the significant assumptions used in making accounting
estimates, and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition,
measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial
reporting framework.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and
disclosed.

All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or
disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed.

All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered
when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting
framework.

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions. The
effects of uncorrected misstatements identified during the audit are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. A
summary of these items is set out below:

Page 9 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — Monmouthshire Bﬂg@o]uﬁﬂ_



Overstatement of year-end creditors (£973,000)

The 2020-21 financial year end process corresponded with many unbudgeted grants
being notified and received during a short period in March 2021. As a result, finance
teams were managing many conflicting demands on staff resources and consequently
they were required to use greater estimation and judgement in carrying out many year-
end calculations. This included basing their calculations on the information provided to
them by budget holders and external suppliers who in many instances were under similar
pressure given the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic impact. As a result, assurances
received by the finance teams of the timings of goods/services received proved to be
inaccurate upon further investigation.

For future closure periods, where material accruals are being calculated finance teams
will look to obtain additional evidence to support the information put forward by budget
holders and external suppliers.

Overstatement of 2020-21 income (£191,000)

It is fully accepted that despite staff turnover in the financial management of this area,
that the established systems and procedures in place should have proved adequate to
maintain the robust and accurate recording of income.

A review of the procedures in place for recording of this rental income stream, along with
a review of the sections business continuity arrangements will be carried out fully prior to
the next closure period as to ensure that this remains an isolated error.

Representations by Monmouthshire County Council

We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been
discussed with us.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial
statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The financial
statements were approved by Monmouthshire County Council on 4 November 2021.

We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make
ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has been
communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which you are unaware.

Signed by: Signed by:

Paul Matthews ClIr. Richard John

Chief Executive Leader, Monmouthshire County Council
Date: 4 November 2021 Date: 4 November 2021

Page 10 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmoutRage)u]ltza)uncil



Appendix 2

Proposed Audit Report

The independent auditor’s report of the Auditor General for
Wales to the members of Monmouthshire County Council

Opinion on financial statements

| have audited the financial statements of Monmouthshire County Council for the year
ended 31 March 2021 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.

Monmouthshire County Council’s financial statements comprise the Movement in
Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the
Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, and the related notes, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law and international accounting standards as interpreted and adapted by the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020-21.

In my opinion the financial statements:

o give a true and fair view of the financial position of Monmouthshire County Council
as at 31 March 2021 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended;
and

o have been properly prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and

international accounting standards as interpreted and adapted by the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020-21.

Basis of opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing in the UK (ISAs (UK)) and Practice Note 10 ‘Audit of Financial Statements of
Public Sector Entities in the United Kingdom’. My responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of my report. | am independent of the Council in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK
including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, | have concluded that the use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Page 11 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — Monmouthshir%@e(ﬂl@a



Based on the work | have performed, | have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt
on the Council’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the responsible financial officer with respect
to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than
the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The Responsible Financial
Officer is responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. My
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in my report, | do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If | identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, | am required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work | have
performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, | am
required to report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on other requirements

Opinion on other matters

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of my audit:

o the information contained in the Narrative Report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and
the Narrative Report has been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020-21;

o The information given in the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial
statements and the Annual Governance Statement has been prepared in
accordance with guidance.

Matters on which | report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Council and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, | have not identified material misstatements in the
Narrative Report or the Annual Governance Statement.

Page 12 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmoutRage)u]lIZdauncil



I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which | report to you, if, in my
opinion:

o adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for my audit
have not been received from branches not visited by my team;

o the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

o | have not received all the information and explanations | require for my audit.

Responsibilities

Responsibilities of the responsible financial officer for the financial
statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of
Accounts, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation of the
statement of accounts which give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
responsible financial officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
statements of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the statement of accounts, the responsible financial officer is responsible for
assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
deemed inappropriate.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK)
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. |
design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

My procedures included the following:

o Enquiring of management, the Council’s Chief Internal Auditor and those charged
with governance, including obtaining and reviewing supporting documentation
relating to the Council’s policies and procedures concerned with:

Page 13 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmouthshirRﬁ@@C}_@&



- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether
they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;

- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; and

- the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-
compliance with laws and regulations.

Considering as an audit team how and where fraud might occur in the financial
statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

Obtaining an understanding of the Council’s framework of authority as well as other
legal and regulatory frameworks that the Council operates in, focusing on those
laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the financial statements or that had
a fundamental effect on the operations of the Council.

In addition to the above, my procedures to respond to identified risks included the following:

reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting
documentation to assess compliance with relevant laws and regulations discussed
above;

enquiring of management, the Governance and Audit Committee and legal
advisors about actual and potential litigation and claims;

reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and the Council;

in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether
the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential
bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are
unusual or outside the normal course of business; and

| also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to
all audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws
and regulations throughout the audit.

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud,
is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness of the
Council’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures performed.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my auditor’s report.

Page 14 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmoutRage)ulIZﬁluncil


https://www.frc.org.uk/auditors/audit-assurance/auditor-s-responsibilities-for-the-audit-of-the-fi/description-of-the-auditor%e2%80%99s-responsibilities-for

Certificate of completion of audit

| certify that | have completed the audit of the accounts of Monmouthshire County Council
in accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor
General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice.

Adrian Crompton 24 Cathedral Road
Auditor General for Wales Cardiff
5 November 2021 CF119LJ

Page 15 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmouthshirRﬁ@@C}_@J



Appendix 3

Summary of Corrections Made

During our audit we identified the following misstatements that have been corrected by

management, but which we consider should be drawn to your attention due to their
relevance to your responsibilities over the financial reporting process.

There are no corrections which affect the Council’'s General Fund balance. The two

tables below set out:

° corrections to the financial statements which have no effect on the Council’s

General Fund; and

o corrections to disclosure notes or other presentational items in the accounts.

Exhibit 2: financial statement corrections that do not affect the General Fund

Area of correction

Nature of correction

Reason for correction

Balance Sheet:
classification of
cash and debtors

To ensure that cash
and debtor balances
are accurately
presented.

Our audit identified that an adjustment made to correct
for late cash receipts in March 2021 had been
incorrectly entered into the ledger, omitting one bank
account. £572,000 had been received into this account
late in March 2021, meaning that cash needed to be
increased (and debtors decreased) by this amount.

This has now been corrected in the final accounts.

Note 12.1
(Property, Plant
and Equipment):
Valuation of one
land and building
asset and assets
held for sale
(AHFS).

To ensure that asset
revaluations are
correctly recorded in
line with the CIPFA
Code.

Our audit identified that:

e the valuation of one ‘other land and buildings’ asset
had not been completed in time for inclusion in the
draft accounts. The valuation (once complete)
resulted in a reduction in value of £2.2 million.

e the revaluation of new AHFS in the year had been
incorrectly treated in the draft accounts, with the
valuation impact (a net revaluation gain of
£641,000) recorded after transfer within Note 12.6,
as opposed to before transfer within Note 12.1.

These revaluation impacts have now been correctly
recorded within the final accounts.

Note 12.5
(Investment
Properties):

To ensure that assets
are correctly valued

The CIPFA Code requires that investment properties
are revalued annually. During the audit we were
informed that four asset valuations were not completed

Page 16 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmoutRage)ultz&uncil



Overstatement of
asset valuations.

Area of correction

in line with the CIPFA
Code.

Nature of correction

in time for inclusion in the draft accounts. The impact of
these valuations reduces the overall carrying value of
investment properties by £464,000.

These valuations have now been appropriately
recorded within the final accounts.

Exhibit 3: corrections relating to presentational/disclosure matters only

Reason for correction

Note 11.2 (Income
and Expenditure
Analysed by
Nature):
Treatment of
various elements of
grant income.

To ensure that the
note accurately
reflects the nature of
income and
expenditure incurred
by the Council in the
year.

Our audit identified that:

e COVID-19 Hardship Grant funding of £21.3 million
had been incorrectly classified within ‘fees, charges
and other service income’ (FCOSI) rather than
‘external grants and contributions’.

e Bus Services Support Grant funding of £27.3
million (received by the Council but passed on to
other bodies) has been removed from FCOSI
rather than ‘external grants and contributions’.

The above matters have now been corrected, the net

effect of which is to increase FCOSI and reduce

‘external grants and contributions’ by £6.0 million.

Note 12.5
(Investment
Properties):
Inclusion of Cardiff
Capital Region City
Deal (CCRCD)
properties.

To ensure that the
note correctly
includes CCRCD
balances.

Our audit identified that investment properties in this
disclosure note were recorded at £1.8 million below the
total included in the Balance Sheet. The difference
related to CCRCD investment properties which had
been omitted from the disclosure note.

This amount has now been included in the final
disclosure note, correctly classified as ‘Level 3-
Significant Unobservable Inputs’).

Note 12.8 (Capital
Expenditure and

Capital Financing):

Correction to value
of ‘revenue
expenditure funded
from capital under
statute’.

To ensure that
‘revenue expenditure
funded from capital
under statute’ is
consistently
disclosed.

Our audit identified that the various disclosures for
‘revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute’
were inconsistent throughout the accounts. We
confirmed that the correct values should be:

e Note 10.2 and 10.8: £1.5 million;
e Note 11.6: £1.3 million;
e Note 12.8: £2.9 million;
Disclosures in the final accounts are now consistent.

Page 17 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmouthshirR‘ﬁ@@C}uBQ



Note 12.9 (Capital
Commitments):

Understatement of
commitment totals.

To ensure that this
disclosure note is
complete.

Our audit identified that two capital commitments with a
total value of £1.1 million had not been disclosed within
the draft accounts.

These commitments have now been included within the
final accounts disclosure.

Note 12.12 (Leases
— Authority as
Lessee):
Understatement of
commitments.

To ensure that all
commitments are
accurately disclosed.

Our audit identified that an error within the working
paper behind this disclosure note resulted in an
understatement of lease commitments of £308,000.

This has now been corrected within the final accounts
disclosure.

Note 13.1
(Financial
Instruments):
Classification of
long and short-term
borrowings.

To ensure that
borrowings are
correctly classified in
line with the CIPFA
Code.

Our audit identified that £183.5 million of borrowings
was inconsistently classified throughout Notes 13.1 and
13.4, with neither amount agreeing to the carrying
value in the Balance Sheet.

In all above disclosure notes in the final accounts,
amounts have now been corrected to:

e Long-term borrowings: £98.6 million
e Short-term borrowings: £84.9 million
e Total borrowings: £183.5 million

Note 16.4 (Related
Parties):
Corrections to
disclosures.

To ensure that
related party
disclosures are
complete and
accurate.

Our audit identified that:

e the disclosures for Members (the value of interests
and the number of Members involved) were
incorrect; and

o figures for Dragon Waste Ltd. were all entered as
‘TBC’ in the draft accounts, due to delays in
receiving the company’s draft 2020-21 accounts.

These details have now been corrected in the final

disclosure note.

Note 16.7 and 16.8
(Senior Officer
Remuneration and
Emoluments):
Corrections to
disclosures.

To ensure that this
disclosure note is
presented in line with
the requirements of
the Accounts & Audit
Regulations (Wales)
2014.

Our audit identified:

e Within Note 16.7, an offsetting correction of £5,367
between ‘salary’ and ‘pension contributions’ was
required for the Chief Officer for Enterprise.

e Within Note 16.8, one employee was incorrectly
banded within ‘£80,000 - £84,999’, rather than
‘£85,000 - £89,999'.

Page 18 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmoutRage)ultSﬁ)uncil



Note 11.4 (Agency
Income and
Expenditure):
Disclosure of
agency transactions
and balances.

To ensure that
agency transactions
and balances are
disclosed in line with
the CIPFA Code.

Our audit identified that the draft accounts included no
disclosure of agency transactions and balances (i.e.
amounts which the Council received and paid on behalf
of others, with no discretion over the transactions
themselves).

The CIPFA Code requires material agency transactions
and balances to be disclosed, and the Council received
material amounts of funding for COVID-19 related
activity in 2020-21.

A further disclosure note to record this activity has now
been included in the final accounts, and we are
satisfied that the disclosures meet the requirements of
the CIPFA Code.

Various:

Other presentational
changes to
supporting notes.

To ensure that all
disclosures are

accurately presented.

A number of other narrative, presentational and minor
amendments were made to supporting notes
throughout the final accounts.

Page 19 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmouthshirR‘ﬁ@@C}uBal



Appendix 4

Recommendations

We set out all the recommendations arising from our audit with management’s response
to them. We will follow up these next year and include any outstanding issues in next

year’s audit report.

Exhibit 4: matter arising 1

Matter arising 1 — review of capital expenditure

Findings

Our cut-off testing identified an item of capital expenditure (£102,000) that
was not accrued for in the 2020-21 accounts, despite the works involved
being delivered within the financial year.

The Finance Manager for Central Accountancy informs us that while there
is a process in place for identifying year-end capital accruals, the service
area involved in this case (Children and Young People) relies heavily on
support from the central finance team when completing capital year-end
procedures, as the schemes involved are invariably complex in nature. As
a result of the resourcing issues within the central finance team during the
accounts closure period there was a shortage of support provided in this
instance.

The amount involved here is below our trivial threshold, and so has not

been corrected in the final accounts. We have also performed additional
audit procedures to provide assurance that there is no potential material
cut-off error remaining due to similar issues and are satisfied that this is
the case.

Priority

Medium

Recommendation

We recommend that the Council review it's close-down procedures and
looks to ensure adequate central finance support for the Children and
Young people service area to identify future capital accruals.

Benefits of
implementing the
recommendation

This should reduce the risk of future capital accruals not being accounted
for in the correct accounting period.

Accepted in full
by management

Agreed.

Page 20 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — MonmoutRage)u]ltSé’ouncil



Management
response

Finance resources were severely restricted during the closure period and
in prioritising higher risk areas it is fully accepted that the central finance
support provided to the CYP directorate fell short in this lower risk area.
Closure procedures will be reviewed with a view to ensuring adequate
central finance support is planned for future closure periods.

Implementation
date

2021-22 financial year-end.

Page 21 of 22 - Audit of Accounts Report — Monmouthshir%@ec}uﬁa



Archwilio Cymru
Audit Wales

Audit Wales
24 Cathedral Road
Cardiff CF11 9LJ

Tel: 029 2032 0500
Fax: 029 2032 0600
Textphone: 029 2032 0660

E-mail: info@audit.wales

Website: www.audit.wales

We welcome correspondence and
telephone calls in Welsh and English.
Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a

galwadau ffon yn Gymraeg a Saesneg.

Page 134


mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

2020/21

=~ m onmouthshire
sir fynwy

Page 135
1



CONTENTS PAGE

Seoton | page

 Jmodvetion |
1 Narrative Report 3
2 Statement of Responsibilities 10
3 Annual Governance Statement 11
4 Audit Report 29
I e N
5 Movement in Reserves Statement 32
6 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 33
7 Balance Sheet 34
8 Cash Flow Statement 35
o |NowstwotheAccoms: |
10 Movement in Reserves Statement Notes 37
11 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Notes 45
12 Non-Current Assets and Capital Financing Notes 50
13 Financial Instruments, Current Assets & Liabilities Notes 59
14 Post-Employment Benefits Notes 72
15 Cash Flow Statement Notes 77
16 Other Notes to the Accounts 79
17 Accounting Policies 89

Page 136
2



NARRATIVE REPORT

Introduction

Monmouthshire County Council’'s Statement of Accounts provides a record of the Council’s financial position for the year.
This section of the document supplements the financial information contained in the accounts, with the aim of providing
an overview of the more significant financial and accounting issues which affected the Council during the year.

Key facts about Monmouthshire

Monmouthshire is the most South Eastern County in Wales
covering the area from the towns of Abergavenny & Monmouth
in the North to Chepstow & Caldicot in the South. Itis a
predominantly rural County covering an area of 880sq miles and
serving a resident population of around 93,000.

R

N

@;ﬁg

Friory | Hatterrall
1 Hil
A

Brecon

The majority of the Council’'s administrative and political
functions are carried out at County Hall at The Rhadyr, near
Usk, Monmouthshire.

Political and management structure

The Council uses a Leader and Cabinet (Executive) governance
model, with the Cabinet comprised of elected members, who
each have lead responsibility for an area of the Council’s
business, including the Leader. Council determines the
Authority’s policy framework and budget and other constitutional
functions. Below Cabinet and Council level there are a number
of committees and panels that fulfil various scrutiny, statutory
oversight and regulatory functions.

There are 43 locally elected councillors representing 42 wards
who sit on the various committees of the Council, the current
political make-up (at 31st March 2021) of the Council is 25

Lave Net Conservative, 9 Labour, 6 Independent members and 3 Liberal
o Democrat Councillors.

The Cabinet and elected members are supported by the Council’s Strategic Leadership Team which is led by the Chief
Executive. For management purposes the Council’'s operations are organised into Service Areas each of which is
headed by a chief officer reporting to the Chief Executive. The Service Areas with a brief overview of their functions are:

Social Care, Health & Safeguarding
Adult services, Community care, Children's services, Partnerships, Resources & performance management,
Commissioning and Public protection.

Children & Young People
Schools and Early Years provision, Standards and Resources.

Chief Executive’s Unit
Monitoring (Legal & land charges) and Governance, Democracy & Support.

Resources
Finance, Information communication & technology, People, Commercial and corporate & landlord services, Future
Monmouthshire.

Enterprise
Business growth & enterprise, Monlife, Facilities & Fleet, Neighbourhood services, Planning & housing.

Corporate
Corporate management, Non-distributed costs, Precepts & levies and Insurance

Page 137
3



1.2 Financial Performance for the Year
Revenue Budget for 2020/21

The net revenue budget of £170.7m was financed from council tax, government grants, business rates & fees and
supplemented by charges for services. The Council has a good track record of managing within approved budgets and
has carefully managed its services during the year despite the extraordinary ongoing financial pressures. As a result of
significant unbudgeted Welsh Government grants that were communicated to and received by the Authority late in the
financial year and that have offset core budget funding, the Council generated a surplus of £4.119m which was used to
replenish earmarked reserves, and ensure a level of financial resilience to deal with service pressures and the wider
policy commitments that will shape future service delivery.

Soon after setting the 2020/21 budget the Council’s operations, along with the rest of the world, were severely affected
by the Covid-19 pandemic which placed unexpected changes and demands on the services that we deliver. In working
with all parts of the Welsh Public Sector the Welsh Government provided significant one-off support to all areas through
numerous funds, ranging from support to local businesses via the Business Restrictions Fund, the Business Support
Grant provided to local businesses, and recognition through the Local Government Hardship Fund of the additional costs
& loss of income incurred by the Council in dealing with response. These accounts only recognise the one-off resources
provided to the Council to support its services.

Further details on the outturn position are provided in the June 2021 outturn report to Cabinet.

Revised Actual|Variance
Budget

£000 £000 £000
Net Expenditure:

Net cost of services (as per internal management reporting) 163,657 160,488 (3,169)
Attributable costs — Fixed Asset Disposal 65 68 3
Interest and Investment Income (252) (231) 21
Interest Payable and Similar Charges 4,047 3,709 (338)
Charges Required Under Regulation 6,143 6,075 (68)
Borrowing Cost Recoupment (3,375) (3,538) (163)
Capital Expenditure Financing 252 252 0
Earmarked Contributions to/(from) Reserves 169 4,288 4,119
Net Revenue Budget 170,706 171,111 405
Financed by:

General government grants (67,723) (67,723) -
Non-domestic rates (30,037) (30,037) -
Council tax (79,831) (80,238) (407)
Council Tax Benefit Support (included in NCS) 6,885 6,887 2

Net Financing Budget (170,706) (171,111) (405

)
Council Fund (surplus)/deficit - Non-Schools [ o] 0
Council Fund (surplus)/deficit - Schools (3,853)] (4,157)]

Council Fund (surplus)/deficit - Total (3,853)| (4,157)

The net cost of services in the table above of £160.48m is reported on a management accounting basis, i.e. the same
basis as the budget reports to Cabinet during the year. The figure for the net cost of services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure (CIES) in Section 6 of £167.44m is different because it is prepared on a financial accounting
basis, which is specified by accounting guidelines.

Note 11.1 to the accounts shows how the figures reconcile.

Level of general and specific reserves/balances

The following summarises the Council’'s general and earmarked reserves, together with specific service reserves and
trading account balances. Further information on these can be found in Section 10 of the accounts.

2018/19| 2019/20| 2020/21

Reserves & balances 00]0] 00]0]
Council Fund Balance 7,110 8,906 8,906
School Balances (232) (435) 3,418

Page 138
4



Earmarked Reserves 5,550 5,182 9,334
Service Reserves 402 402 407
Trading Accounts

Total Usable Reserves & balances available for Revenue Purposes 13,490 | 14,854 | 22,995

Schools: In a similar manner to the general revenue activities of the Council, Schools also received Welsh
Government support in dealing with the impacts of the Covid pandemic during 2020/21, whilst also
experiencing reduced spending on core service delivery during their periods of closure. The following table
summarises the schools balances position by school type:

School Balances 2018/19] 2019/20| 2020/21
20[0]0] 20[0]0) 20[0]0)

Comprehensives (635) (931) 554
Primaries 242 347 2, 838
Other 161 149

Total

Capital expenditure & financing

In addition to revenue spending the Council also spent £18.7m on its assets which is detailed below along with the
corresponding finance streams:

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

Expenditure

1,427 Schools modernisation programme 393
7,316 Infrastructure 9,482
6,225 Asset management schemes 2,755
659 Other 1,638
908 Inclusion schemes 926
477 ICT schemes 0
5,573 Regeneration schemes 2,509
831 Vehicles 1,003
Financing
(5,910) Capital receipts (1,042)
(8,673) Borrowing and Finance Lease Commitments (5,859)
(8,547) Grants and Contributions (11,553)
(286) Revenue and Reserve Contributions (252)

@3a10|Tota Financing | (13,700

Significant capital receipts

The most significant capital receipts received in 2020/21 were £2.1m for land at Chepstow Road, Raglan, £2.7m for Crick
Road and £1.45m for the share of the former County Hall site, Cwmbran. All other receipts totalled £1.2m. The Council
currently ring fences all capital receipts to support ongoing capital investment priorities in line with its Corporate plan.

Revaluation and disposals of non-current assets

The Council has a policy of revaluing all Land & Building assets every five years on a rolling programme. During 2020/21
the valuations included Community Centres, Hubs & Public Contact Centres, Public Conveniences and Primary Schools.
The programme for subsequent years is as follows:

» 2021/22 — Community Centres, Corporate Facilities, Recreational Spaces and Leisure Centres
+ 2022/23 - Primary Schools, Recreational Spaces and Community Centres

In addition to this rolling asset revaluation programme, an annual review is also undertaken of our assets for any
significant changes in their use. The Investment Property portfolio is assessed annually by the Authority's Estates section
to ensure the value is accurately reflected in the accounts.

Page 139
5



13

During the year the value of our non-current assets has reduced from £399.0m to £389.9m, arising from recognising the
in-year asset enhancing spend of £9.6m; the rolling programme of revaluations decreasing their held value by £(0.5)m;
depreciation of £(12.8)m; book value of disposals of £(2.5)m; transfers to current assets of £(2.3)m & transactions
relating to consolidated arrangements £(0.7)m.

Borrowing arrangements and sources of funds

The Council’s overall borrowing, on a principal valuation basis, totalled £183.46m as at 31st March 2021 (£187.71m as at
31st March 2020), comprising of the following:

89,627 Public Works Loan Board 74,647
13,816 Market Loans & Bank loans 13,812
5,248 Welsh Government 5,062
76,023 Local Government bodies 86,944
3,000 Special Purpose Vehicle 3,000

187,714 |Total borrowing 183,466

Further information on borrowing arrangements is disclosed in notes 13.3 and 13.4 to the accounts. The Council
continues to operate within its limits as set according to the Local Government Act 2003 and the CIPFA Prudential Code.

Collection of Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates

The Council Tax bill for Monmouthshire County Council in 2020/21 (including amounts raised for Police and Community
Councils) was £1,717.44 (£1,629.72 in 2019/20) for properties in valuation Band D. We collected 96.6% in year of the
total due (97.7% 2019/20). Our collection rate for Non-Domestic Rates was 92.8% in 2020/21 (97.7% in 2019/20). During
the year £54,000 Council Tax and £27,000 Non-Domestic Rates’ debts were written off (£168,000 and £200,000 in
2019/20).

Pension Liabilities

We are required to state the cost of paying retirement pensions when we become committed to the costs, not when we
actually pay them. An Actuary is used to estimate the figure for Monmouthshire and 2020/21 shows a net liability of
£306,876,000 (£230,526,000 in 2019/20).

There is a increase in the combined net liability of the Greater Gwent pension funds of £76,350,000 from 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021. This has resulted from a increase in the value of scheme liabilities of £177m offset by a increase in the
value of scheme assets. The increase in liabilities is due to changes in financial assumptions (e.g. increased inflation,
decreased discount rate, increased longevity/age presumptions).

The date of the latest actuarial valuation was 31 March 2019 and this updated the employers’ contribution rates from
April 2020 until 31 March 2023. Further details are given in section 14 of the notes to the Accounts.

The Financial Outlook

2021/22: In setting its 2021/22 revenue budget the Council was required to make difficult choices regarding service
delivery and Council Tax levels. As part of the process the Council approved an annual Council Tax increase of 3.89%,
which increased the annual band D charge by £53.71 to £1,434.47 (excluding amounts raised for Police and Community
Councils). It also approved £4.7m of savings measures to ensure that the approved budget is delivered.

In respect of the Council’s forward capital programme this has been constructed to principally support the Schools
modernisation programme, Disabled Facilities Grants, Asset management and Infrastructure, with some £73.5m
(including contributions to the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal initiative) forecast to be spent from 2021/22 to 2024/25.

The Medium Term: The medium term prognosis is still of concern with the current MTFP indicating a funding gap of
£15m over the next three years if settlement from Welsh Government remains static. There are currently no indicative
settlement figures published which significantly impedes and impacts on forward planning of budgets over the medium
term. Demand led cost pressures continue to increase in areas such as Children's services, Adult Social Care, Children's
additional learning needs and Transport.

Page 140
6



There is still a need to think differently about the even greater challenges of the medium term and this work and
engagement will continue in the coming months, and notably with other local authorities, Welsh Government and the
Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) and where funding distribution and projections are concerned.

2020/21 saw a continuation of the emergency response enabled in March 2020 which necessitated the Council to
change how it delivers its services:

* Much of the administrative business undertaken continued with officers working remotely.

» Immediate business critical services were maintained i.e. waste collection, school hubs, social care, benefits etc.
Staff within other services that have either been closed or the service reduced were redeployed as appropriate.

» The Council provided representation to the Gwent Strategic Coordinating Group and sub groups for strategic and
operational decision making. The Council also established an Emergency Response Team which, alongside the
Council’'s Cabinet and Strategic Leadership Team, oversaw the response/delivery.

The financial challenges facing the Council and resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic were hugely significant during
2020/21 and will continue to be over the medium term as the economy recovers and demands on local services
transform in line with the social changes that the pandemic has brought about.

The Council continues to incur significant costs in its response effort and this will continue as it transitions towards
recovery. Furthermore and resulting from the restrictions that UK Government and Welsh Government have had to put
in place to contain the spread of the virus we are suffering significant shortfalls in our income levels. Some of these will
return more quickly than others as services are able to be safely turned back on.

In working with all parts of the Welsh Public Sector the Welsh Government provided significant one-off support to all
areas through numerous funds which have been administered by the Council during the year. This has ranged from
support to local businesses via Business Support Grants, payments made to care workers and specific Freelancer and
Start up grants:

Business Support Grants 25,417
Business Support Grants 13,621
Care Workers £500 Payments 1,193
Covid-19 Freelancer Grant 440
Self Isolation Payments 145
Covid-19 Start Up Grant 143
SSP Enhancement 127

It is inevitable that the Council will face significant financial challenges as we move into the recovery phase of the
pandemic as demands on services change in light of a severely altered socio-economic landscape. Alongside this there
will continue to be risks associated with Welsh Government support funding being reduced or stopped. It is therefore
important that the Council looks to replenish earmarked reserves to strengthen ongoing financial resilience.

In considering the above and in apportioning the outturn position the future financial stability of the Council was
considered, alongside the potential additional unknown costs that could occur in dealing with post Covid-19 recovery,
whilst also giving financial resilience to service areas to deal with service pressures and the wider policy commitments
that will shape future service delivery.

Page 141
7



The Council continues to be an active member of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal initiative. This Council will make a
6.1% contribution to the £120 million with the percentage being based on its proportion of the regional population, and
fund the annual costs of this investment. The development and management of this £120 million is the responsibility of
the CCRCD Regional Cabinet. The capital contribution in 2020/21 of £122,862 (£0 in 2019/20) was less than anticipated
due to projects not being completed as planned.

The Authority has included its share of income, expenditure, assets, liabilities, reserves and cash flows relating to the
arrangement within the single entity accounting statements and disclosures. Further details of the arrangement are
outlined in note 16.6.

The Authority’s accounts for the year are set out in sections 5 to 17. They consist of:

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable
reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or
(Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic cost of providing the authority’s services, more details
of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. This is different from the statutory
amounts required to be charged to the Council Fund Balance for council tax setting. The Net Increase/Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked Reserves line shows the statutory Council Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or
from earmarked reserves undertaken by the council.

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted
accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure
in accordance with regulations. This may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the
authority. The net assets of the authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the authority.
Reserves are reported in two categories:

. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the authority may use to provide
services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use
(for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).

. The second category of reserves is those that the authority is not able to use to provide services. This category
of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve),
where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold
timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis
and funding basis under regulations’.

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the authority during the reporting period.
The statement shows how the authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as
operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key
indicator of the extent to which the operations of the authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the
recipients of services provided by the authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have
been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising
from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the
authority.

Page 142

8



The core financial statements outlined above are supported by notes to further assist the reader in interpreting the
Authority's financial position for the year ended 31st March 2021. The notes are sectioned to aid the user of the
accounts to navigate the extensive supporting notes.

4th November 2021

Peter Davies Date
Deputy Chief Executive (S151 Officer)

Page 143
9



2.1

2.2

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Authority’s Responsibilities
The Authority is required to:
+ make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has

the responsibility for the administration of those affairs, in line with statute this is the Section 151 Officer;

* manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets; and

» approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Section 151 Officer’s Responsibilities

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority's Statement of Accounts in accordance
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Section 151 Officer has:

» selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
* made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
» complied with the Local Authority Code.

The Section 151 Officer has also:

»  kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and
+ taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

APPROVAL OF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

| certify that the accounts set out within sections 5 to 17 gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as
at the 31st March 2021 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31st March 2021.

4th November 2021

Peter Davies Date
Deputy Chief Executive (S151 Officer)

Page 144

10



Monmouthshire CC
Annual Governance Statement 2020/21

October 2021

Executive Summary

The Statement itself demonstrates that Monmouthshire has appropriate governance arrangements in place
to meet the challenges of the governance principles and that a review has been undertaken to assess the
effectiveness of those arrangements. We have demonstrated that in the majority of areas we have effective
governance arrangements in place which are continually improving, but also recognise that there is always
further work to do.

Despite the pandemic the Council has managed to maintain the majority of its governance arrangements this
year and has demonstrated it has sound and effective arrangements in place in the services it delivers and
the crisis it had to deal with. The majorty of improvements noted in the 2018/20 Action Plan have been
addressed during the year such that there is no need for formal Action Plan for 2020V21. The Code of
Corporate Governance was presented to the Council's Audit Committee duning the year and will be presented
to Cabinet for formal approval during 2021/22.

Audit Wales's review of Good Governance concluded that the Council has a clear strategic approach for
significant changes, although, better information would help Members when deciding the future shape of the
Council.

Page 145

11



1  This Statement has been prepared in accordance with guidance produced by the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (C.|.P.F_A) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and
Senior Managers (S.0.LA.C.E.), the 'Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework
2018" and Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Guidance Motes for Welsh Authorities
2018". It embraces the elements of internal financial control required by the ‘Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdon'.

2  The Statement itself demonstrates that Monmouthshire has governance arrangements in place to meet
the challenges of the governance principles and that a review has been undertaken to assess the
effectiveness of those arrangements. We have demonstrated that in most areas we have effective
governance arrangements in place which are continually improving, but also recognise that there is
further work to do. Progress against the 2019/20 action plan is shown at Appendix 1.

Scope of Respensibility

3 Monmouthshire County Council (the Council) (MCC) is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty
under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to strategic effectiveness,
service quality, service availability, fairness, sustainability, efficiency and innovation.

4 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions and which
includes arrangements for the management of risk.

& The Council's financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the
‘CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010)'.

8 The Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the pnnciples of the CIP.FA. /
5.0.LA.CE. Framework ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government’, was initially approved by
Council in July 2011; the Code was revised and updated again in June 2020, A copy of the Code is
available from the Chief Internal Auditor. This statement explains how the Council has complied with the
revised Framework and Guidance {20186} and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit
(Wales) Regulations 2014. The revised Code sets out what governance arrangements are in place
within Monmouthshire CC for each of the Governance Principles.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

7  The govemnance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which
the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and
leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its population cutcomes,
priorities and objectives and to consider whether those objectives have met the outcomes and led to the
delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.

8 The system of internal contral is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to
a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can
therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the rnisks to the achievement
of the Council’'s policies, outcomes and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those rnisks being realised
and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

9 The governance framework has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up
to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.

The Governance Framework

Page 146

12



10 The Council's Corporate Governance is in line with the following principles:

11

Cwerarching requirements for acting in the public interest:

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting
the rule of law

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
In addition achieving good governance in the Council requires effective arrangements for:

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, environmental and cultural
benefits

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes

E. Developing the entity's capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals
within it

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial
management

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability

Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Monmouthshire has to demonstrate it is complaint with the Well-being of Future Generations
(WFG)(Wales) Act 2015 and this compliments the way it functions in line with the above principles of
good governance; the core behaviours being:

. behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and
respecting the rule of law; and

. ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

This needs to be applied to the five ways of working outlined in the 2015 Act. These five ways of working
have to permeate all segments of delivering outcomes which, in turn, should ensure effective use of
resources as the Council maximises its contribution to the economic, social, environmental and cultural
well-being of Monmouthshire and Wales.

Long Term
Prevention
Integration
Collaboration
Involvement

Page 147

13



“The best possible start
In life

“Ufelong well-being

“Maximise the
Potential of the
matural and bullt

environment
Thrriving and well-
connected county

Monmouthshire

Prosperous More equal Globalky
] ity goal
CauncH priarity ! Wales Wales coheshve responsible
[Well-being
1 communities Wales
Objectives)

Future-focused
Council

12

13

14

15

16

The key elements of the Council’s governance arrangements are set out in its Corporate Plan 2017 -
2022, “A Monmouthshire that works for everyone” which was approved by Council in February 2018, A
mid-term refresh was presented to Council in March 2020

As part of the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 the Public Service
Board (PSB) is focused on improving social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing, in
accordance with the sustainable development principle. Public Service Boards have a planning
respansibility to prepare and publish an assessment of local well-being, produce a local well-being plan
and report annually on its progress.

The Public Service Board has approved four well-being objectives that underpin a clear purpose of
“building sustainable and resilient communities™.

An update on the emerging actions being developed to deliver the objectives contained in
Monmouthshire's Well-being Plan was signed off by the PSE in April 2018, The Public Services Board
Committee was renamed the Public Services Committee in March 2020 in order to scrutinise wider
public service provision and where powers allow, to provide greater accountability of services delivered
in collaboration or by external partners.

The PSB presented its annual report 201920, in July 2020 to the Public Services Committee.

Coronavirus (Covid-19) Pandemic

17

18

19

The Coronavirus pandemic (WEF March 2020) had initially caused significant organisational disruption
including new emergency responsibilities, increased staff absence and a requirement for staff to work
from home (where possible) while continuing to ensure statutory services were maintained as expected.
This statement assesses the governance in place during 2020V21 with the majority of key operations
being affected by Coronavirus throughout the year.

In accordance with the Council's Corporate Emergency Management Plan (revised March 2019} an
Emergency Response Team (ERT) was established along with a regional multi-agency Strategic Co-
ordination Group (SCG) to deal with this pandemic. These groups started to meet on a daily basis during
March 2020 and continued throughout 2020/21.

Once enacted, the Corporate Emergency Management Plan allowed for an emergency management
structure and delegation of emergency powers to the ERT Gold Duty Officer in consultation with the
Leader of the Council.

Page 148

14



20

21

22

23

25

26

27

28

The pandemic has impacted on the Council’s delivery of services as some staff were diverted to front
line duties to ensure that critical services were prioritised. There have also been new areas of activity
as part of the national response to Coronavirus for example providing emergency assistance io
businesses in Monmouthshire.

There has been funding and logistical consequences of delivering the local government response. To
ensure appropriate governance and accountability, these costs have been identified by staff and
appropriately coded on the Council’s Main Accounting System and reclaimed from Welsh Government.

In line with public health measures to mitigate the spread of Coronavirus and to enable the Council to
focus on the delivery of critical services, all public meetings were initially suspended. This included
Council meetings, meetings of full Cabinet and all committee and sub-committee meetings, including
Select, Planning and Licensing. The Council felt it was important to re-instate public meetings as soon
as it was safe to do so. Using appropriate technology, key meetings were held remotely which could be
viewed by the public through live streaming or through You Tube channels later. MCC was the first
Council in Wales to get its meetings back up and running {Investment Committee 24 Aprl 20). Cabinet
held a virtual and remote meeting on the 6% IMay 2020, Council was run virtually on 4* June 2020, Audit
Committee June 2020, with other public meetings following.

Urgent decisions initially were made in accordance with the officer and Members’ schemes of delegation
as detailed in the Council's Constitution and urgent decision-making procedures.

As the use of technology came into operation, minimal Council meetings were cancelled, they were held
remotely through live video links.

“The Council has risen to the challenge by establishing new ways of delivering services that support
residents and businesses, assisting community activity and supporting staff well-being. The pace of
change over the past seven months has been unrelenting, with hundreds of staff re-deployed, new
sernvices created almost overnight, and millions of pounds re-directed towards preserving life and helping
local businesses remain viable” An evaluation of the Council’'s progress against its Coronavirus
Strategic Aims was taken through Cabinet in November 2020,

As much as possible, the systems of internal control have continued to operate during the pandemic.
The Council's implementation of Office385 (Teams) has allowed the majority of employees fo
successfully work from home without major disruption.

In the Chief Internal Auditor’'s opinion, adeguate assurance was obtained over the course of 2020/21 to
result in an overall ‘Reasonable’ audit opinion to be issued for the Council's activities, although this was
based on the limited work undertaken by the team. Internal Audit coverage was adversely affected
during 2020/21 as it was significantly involved with fraud prevention activities following the Welsh
Government business grants support and then supported the Track Trace and Prevent (TTP) operation
led by the Council’'s Public Health Team. Reliance on previous year's audit work has also been taken
into consideration in arriving at this year's opinion in that there have been no significant systems or staff
changes. 57% of the approved revised audit plan was completed against the target of 82%; 9 audit
opinions were issued;, no Limifed Assurance audit opinions were issued. Further detail regarding the
Internal Audit team’s performance is included within the Internal Audit Annual Report 2020/21.

In conclusion, during 2020/21 the Coronavirus pandemic did not lead to significant internal control or
governance issues which impacted on the overall review of effectiveness. This will be monitored during
2021/22 and reviewed as part of future Annual Governance Statements in future.

Review of Effectiveness

29

30

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its
governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed
by the work of the Strategic Leadership Team within the Authorty which has responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Chief Internal Auditor's annual
report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and
inspectorates.

The govermnance arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the
governance framework.

Page 149

15



31 The processes that have been applied to maintain, review and improve the effectiveness of the
governance framework include:

1)

vii)

viii)

)

x)

xi)

xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

Xviii)

The Monitoring Officer presented the revised and updated Council Constitution to the
Democratic Services Committee in January 2021 and to full Council in March 2021,
Periodic reviews of the financial controls including the financial procedure rules by the
Chief Finance Officer (Head of Finance), financial procedure rules were approved by
Council in September 2014, Contract Procedure Rules were reviewed and updated
during 2020/21 and approved by full Council within the Constitution in March 2021,
Whole Authority Strategic Risk Management Assessment and amendments to the
Policy were approved by Cabinet in March 2020 & April 2021,

Formal risk management and ongoing review of the processes involved reported
through Audit Committee July 2020 & March 2021

The Audit Committee undertook a self-evaluation exercise towards the end of 2019/20;
summary reported to Audit Committee June 2020;

Annual Audit Committee report to Audit Committee July 2020 and Council September
2020;

the Internal Audit function, whose work takes account of identified risks through regular
audits of the major systems, establishments and major projects in accordance with the
annual intermal audit plan, and which includes follow-up’ work to ensure that agreed
recommendations are implemented; reported through Audit Commitiee

the work of the Council's Select and other Committees, including its Audit and
Standards committees;

the opinions and recommendations of the Council’'s external auditors, following both
financial audit work and per the Local Government Measure in regard to matters,
including governance issues, which are considered for action and implementation and
reported to Council, Cabinet and Audit Committee, as appropriate;

The opinions and recommendations of other inspection, regulation and review
agencies which are reported to Council, Cabinet, Select Committees and Audit
Committee as appropriate. Audit Committee receives a regular report on the progress
made with recommendations and proposals issued by Audit Wales.

regular monitoring of performance against the Corporate Plan and service plans and
of key targets, and reporting of this to senior management and members;,

Corporate Plan update 2019/20 — Council October 2020,

Through the coronavirus pandemic establishing a series of interim strategies to
provide clarity in direction and ensure accountability — ‘Plan on a Page’ to Cabinet May
2020, July 2020 & December 2020

Whole Autharity Safeguarding Position Statement during Covid — 19 — Cabinet May
2020: Annual Safeguarding Evaluation Report and Activity Plan — Council January
2021;

Estyn's report into Local Government Education Services in Monmouthshire County
Council — Cabinet May 2020;

Annual appraisal of the effectiveness of the authority’s performance management
arrangements reported annually to Audit Committee.

Chief Officer for Children and Young People's Annual Report presented to Council
May 2019; Chief Officer for Social Care, Safeguarding & Health's Annual Report
presented to Council June 2020; Corporate Parenting Annual Report to Council
October 2019; Annual Statutory Report on Performance 2019/20 from the Director of
Social Care, Safeguarding and Health — Council December 2020;

Updated polices and strategies reported through Cabinet and Council

32 The following paragraphs review the effectiveness of the governance arrangements in Monmouthshire
under the 7 principles.

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law

Page 150

16



33

35

36

a7

38

39

40

41

42

43

The Code of Conduct for Members and a protocol on Member / Officer relations are set out in the
Constitution, updated March 2021. The Council also has a local protocol for the self-regulation of
member conduct.

The Standards Committee, which includes a majority of independent representatives, advises on and
monitors the Members’ Code of Conduct, the Protocol for Member/Officer Relations, and any other
Codes relating to the conduct of Members. Due to Covid -19 restrictions, The Standards Commitiee
met once during 2020/21.

Public Service Ombudsman Wales Annual Report (2019/20) was presented to Cabinet in November
2020.

Conduct Complaints about MCC Members received by the Public Services Ombudsman:

2017-18 201819 | 2019/20
Mot upheld 3 1 2
Referred to Standards Committee 0 0 0
Referred to Adjudication Panel 1 0 0
TDTALCDMF’LAINTS CLOSED 4 1 2

Agreed arrangements enable the Council to comply with statutory reguirements in respect of child
protection and the protection of vulnerable adults. Recruitment procedures help ensure that Council
employees and Members working with children or vulnerable adults are checked for their suitability to
do so through independent DBES checks.

In accordance with its statutory responsibilities, the Council has in place a Health and Safety Policy and
related procedures.

There were no successful “callHin® challenges to decisions on procedural grounds; 3 judicial reviews
were commenced or dealt with at the pre-action stage in the period. There were no judicial reviews in
the previous year.

Policy and decision-making is facilitated through (i) Council and Cabinet, the meetings of which are open
to the public and live steamed online except where exempt or confidential matters are being discussed,
and (ii) a scheme of delegation to committees and officers as set out in the Constitution: Five select
committees (including the statutory Public Services Select Committee) and a separate Audit Commitiee
review, scrutinise and hold to account the perfformance of the Cabinet, decision-making committees and
officers. A Scrutiny “Call-In" process for decisions which have been made but not yet implemented is
incorporated in the Constitution in order to consider their appropriateness.

A Scrutiny and Executive Protocol is in place which is aligned to the updated constitution of March 2021
and provides parameters for effective executive and scrutiny relationships.

The Constitution is updated periodically by the Monitoring Officer; the latest update approved by Council
was in March 2021. It can be found on the Council’'s website.

To ensure agreed procedures and all applicable statutes are complied with, the Monitoring Officer
attends full Council meetings, Cabinet and SLT. To ensure sound financial management is a key factor
in decisions, the Chief Officer Resources (Interim Head of Finance) attends SLT, Cabinet and Council
meetings.

The ethical governance framework includes:

. codes of conduct for officers and Members
. a protocol governing Member/Officer relations
. a whistle-blowing policy widely communicated within the Council

Page 151

17



45

46

47

48

49

50

. registers of personal and business interests for Members

. declarations of interests for Chief Officers

. an agreed policy and associated corporate procedures for ensuring that complaints
about services can be properly made and investigated, and for ensuring that any
lessons can be applied

. equalities awareness training.

In accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act, 1988, the Monitoring Officer ensures
compliance with established palicies, procedures, laws and regulations. After appropriate consultation,
this officer will report to the full Council in respect of any proposals, decisions or omissions which could
be unlawful or which have been subject of an Ombudsman Investigation resulting in a finding of
maladministration. The Monitoring Officer has not issued a Section 5 report in 2020/21 or in the previous
year, 2019/20.

All exemptions of the Contract Procedure Rules are reported through Audit Committee periodically. The
Internal Audit team continues to deliver awareness raising sessions on the importance of compliance
with these Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules.

The Audit Committee has the opportunity to call in senior managers during the year and challenge them
on why a procurement process went outside the Council’s normal tendering processes. Following 2
consecutive Limited Assurance audit opinions, the Head of Strategic Projects was called into Audit
Committee (March 2020) to justify the lack of improvement in internal controls re Fuel Cards. The Chief
Officer Resources reported on progress regarding Anti Bribery, Fraud and Corruption (October 2020).
An update on the use of Agency Workers audit was presented to Audit Committee (November 2020).
Following previous Limited Assurance audit opinions, Heads of Service for Food Procurement and
Caldicot Castle provided a progress report to Audit Committee (January 2021).

As a result of Covid-192 the Internal Audit Team was repurposed during most of the year to undertake
extensive counter fraud activities on Welsh Government business grants and support TTFP; a report was
taken to Audit Committee explaining the situation, January 2021. 9 Internal Audit opinions were issued
in 2020/21; no audit jobs resulted in Limited assurance.

The overall opinion on the adequacy of the internal control environment for 2020/21 was
REASONABLE. WManagement agreed to implement the recommendations made in audit reports in
order to address the weaknesses identified. The Internal Audit opinions issued in 2020/21 were as
follows:

201819 | 2018-20 | 2020-21
Substantial Assurance 2 2 2
(Very Good)
Considerable Assurance 11 11 g
(Good)
Reasonable Assurance 13 7 1
Limited Assurance G 9 0
(Unsatisfactory)
Total 32 29 9

Reasons why the outcome of the audit reviews which were deemed to provide Limited assurance have
been, or will be, presented in a separate report to Audit Committee; assurances have been sought from
respective operational managers that action will be taken to make the necessary improvements in
control.

The Intemmal Audit team did not have a full complement of staff for the full year for the reasons explained
above. 57% of the 2020/21revised audit plan was achieved, which was lower than the previous year
(77%). The Chief Internal Auditor's overall audit opinion is based on the number of audits undertaken
and their individual opinions; he was able to give an overall opinion on the adequacy of the control
environment but this was based on a very limited number of apinions issued. The 2020/21 audit opinion
was supported by the knowledge that there were appropriate governance, risk management and internal
control assurances in place in the previous year, 2019/20, with no significant changes. The Assistant
Head of Finance left MCC in January 2020 but the post was covered by the Central Accountancy
Finance Manager and Chief Officer Resources.

Page 152

18



51

52

53

The Internal Audit team continued to ensure its compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS). This was validated through a peer review process at the end of 2017/18; the
outcome of which was that the team are generally compliant.

An Improvement Framework is in place to ensure the economic, effective and efficient use of resources
and for securing continuous improvement. This is supporied by a range of mechanisms including
collaborative working initiatives and reviews undertaken both internally and by the external auditors and
inspectors. This framework works in conjunction with the Local Government Wales Measure 2009 &
2011. Performance and Improvement Objectives reported to Council in October 2020 through the
Corporate Plan Annual Update 201920 Work is underway to amend the Council's improvement
framework to reflect new performance arrangements and duty established by the Local Government
and Elections (Wales) Act 2021

The strategies which support this Framework include the Asset Management Plan, People Strategy,
Local Development Plan, Financial Plan, Digital Strategy, Economy & Enterprise Strategy which are
delivered through service business plans and employee aims & objectives, evaluated and risk assessed.

Chief Officers and Heads of Service are accountable for ensuring that the Council Priorities are delivered
and performance against key targets is regularly monitored via the performance management
framework and is regularly reported to members via Select Committees.

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

The agendas are published in advance of all meetings on the Council’s website; comresponding minutes
are published post meeting.

The scrutiny /select reports on recommendations/outcomes from scrutiny activity are presented to
Cabinet quarterly. The scrutiny function has a ‘Scrutiny Service Business Plan'. The plan is built info
the Council's improvement framework At Monmouthshire, scrutiny is undertaken by 5 select
committees.

- Children and Young People’s Select Committee
- Adults Select Committee

- Economy and Development Select Committee

- Strong Communities Select Committee

- Public Service Select Committee

The Scheme of Delegation sets out responsibilities for decision making. The Council's website includes
the Cabinet and Cabinet Member decisions / Member profiles. The Scrutiny Handbook and a Scrutiny
and Executive Protocol have been developed to support Members to carry out their responsibilities
effectively provides a guide for Members, officers and the public an the role and value of scrutiny and
the website displays the Scrutiny Forward Work Programme and invites public submissions.
Development of Customer Insight to better understand our communities. Dissemination of Area
Committee meeting minutes to all Members.

Social media, Twitter, Facebook and You Tube for example, is used to engage local people and
communicate the corporate message. Scrutiny has a Twitter account to help engage more effectively
with the public on democracy. Chief Officers, Members and the Communications team are very
proactive in engaging with the public.

Public engagement events and You Tube continued to be used in 2020/21 for the budget proposals.
The Council has encouraged the community within Monmouthshire to actively contribute to making
stepped changes to improve the way in which services are provided. This links back to the principles
of the Well-being of Future Generations Act which sets out five ways of working including involvement.

In addition to regular internal communications, throughout the pandemic the Chief Executive has
extensively engaged with the public providing updates on essential Covid-19 related statistics and
Council service provision.

In May 2018, Monmouthshire Public Services Board, adopted their Well-being Plan in line with the
requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act. The plan was informed by the
Monmouthshire Well-being Assessment which sought the views of Monmouthshire residents and draws

Page 153

19



62

63

65

66

67

68

together findings from data, academic research and policy papers and the views of local people. This
Plan is challenged publicly through Public Services Select Committee, July 2020

The “Our Monmouthshire” approach, which was essential to the Well-being Assessment is about all of
us addressing the needs of the future as well as current generations. People in Monmouthshire were
asked “what's good about your communify and what would make it better, now and in the future”. The
well-being assessment was also used as evidence to inform the Council’s Corporate Plan, making sure
it addresses some of the really big challenges that Monmouthshire faces in coming years.

Transparency and openness is important to Monmouthshire; the Annual Statement of Accounts was
taken through the Audit Committee process befare being endorsed by Council.  All Council decisions,
reports and questions asked by Members are available on the website. Financial information, Corporate
Plan progress, Council activities, achievements, developments, updates and events were included on
the Council’s intranet and website, with all Council, Cabinet, Audit Committee and Select Committees
live streamed. All public meetings of the Council are live streamed and are available to view on the
Council's YouTube channel at any time after the meeting, which provides greater transparency of the
Council's business.

Individual Cabinet Members can make decisions under the scheme of delegation; agendas and
decisions for all Cabinet Members are published on the Council's website.

The Council's website contains links to the following areas of open data in the interests of openness.

Data published by Monmouthshire County Council:

. List of expenditure over £500

. Cwur spend data as a useful dashboard
. Food Hygiene ratings

. Business property data set

. List of Primary Schools

. List of Secondary Schools

The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) supports the vision for Monmouthshire and extensive public
engagement continued in 2020/21 for the 2021/22 budget and Medium Termm Financial Plan which
engaged with the public in their own community; this included website, social media, drop in sessions,
Cabinet Member YouTube video (January 2021) and open meetings. These were key to providing
people with the opportunity to become informed; Cabinet October 2020, January 2021.

Public engagement and consultation is key to the WFG Act; one of the five ways of working is
Involvement. This along with the other ways of working is now considered in all relevant decision making
reports for Cabinet and Council through a Future Generations Evaluation which includes Equalities and
Sustainability Impact Assessments. The progress of implementing the WFG Act was reported through
the PSB in 2020/21, July 2020.

Implementing Open Government standards which enable us to effectively engage with our citizens and
open up our data for anyone who needs to use it. Making the most of digitisation and digital inclusion
to enable us to engage with people across our County.

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, environmental and
cultural benefits

69

The Council's five priority goals, which are also the Council’s well-being objectives, are set out in its
Caorporate Plan 2017-2022, “A Monmaouthshire that works for everyone”™ which was approved by Council
in February 2018. A mid-term refresh was presented to Council in March 2020. The 201%20 Corporate
Plan annual report was presented to Council in October 2020. Building sustainable and resilient
communities is the unifying purpose of the diverse range of services the Council delivers. This is shared
with our partners on the PSB, which is responsible for setting well-being objectives for the County.

Page 154

20



70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

Monmouthshire County Council is a member of the Monmouthshire PSB, where we work with other
public services and the voluntary sector on the delivery of the local well-being plan. This includes
countywide well-being objectives that are a focus for public services that are part of the PSB. Combining
the ingenuity and initiative of all partners is key to finding new solutions to pressing, social, economic
and environmental problems. This sense of ‘power of the collective’ is central to its core purpose,
reflected in its values and embodied in its culture.

The Well-being Plan sets out the vision of the PSB. The four identified objectives are to:

+  Provide children and young people with the best possible start in life

+ Respond to the challenges associated with demographic change

+ Protect and enhance the resilience of our natural environment whilst mitigating and adapting
to the impact of climate change

+ Develop opportunities for communities and business to be part of an economically thriving
and well connected county.

Under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 The Council has a responsibility to:

Set and publish well-being chjectives

Take all reasonable steps to meet those objectives

Publish a statement about well-being objectives

Detail arrangements to publish an annual report of progress

In March 2018 Council approved the Council's Corporate Plan 2017-2022, which incorporated the
Council's well-being objectives, and endorsed the Area Plan. The well-being objectives bring together
the latest evidence from the well-being assessment, policy and legislation and show how the Council
will strive to deliver a public service that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability
of future generations to meet their own needs. The Well-being Objectives are now incorporated within
the Corporate Plan: the 20159/20 update was presented to Council October 2020

The Corporate Plan Objectives for 2017 to 2022 are supported by service business plans to
cperationally deliver these objectives. Service plans are made available on the Council's Hub intranet
site. These are quality assessed as part of the service planning process. All service plans were
developed to align the delivery of the Council’s Corparate Plan. Through the pandemic in 2020/21 the
Council's established performance framework has been adjusted and prioritised in its application, where
necessary, to reflect the Council’s response. Through the coronavirus pandemic a series of interim
strategies to provide clarity in direction and ensure accountability have been established— Cabinet May
2020, July 2020 & December 2020. To support this, structures and mechanisms were put in place to
track and evaluate progress.

Audit Wales presented its Certificate of Compliance for the audit of Monmouthshire's 2020/21
Improvement Plan to the Audit Commities in June 2020. It has camied out work with all councils on
improvement assessment, the WFG Act, the service user perspective and scrutiny as well as some local
work. It concluded that the Council meets its statutory requirements for continuous improvement and
there are no formal recommendations.

Reports were taken through the scrutiny process during the year which included links to the Council’s
policies, priorities and objectives. The agendas and minutes of which became public documents are
available through the Council’'s website.

WFG Act continued to be a key theme and foundation through the reporting processes in 2020/21.

The Council is embracing the benefits of digital communications including social media use, for example
“Ny Monmouthshire™, which enables people to interact and transact with the Council using mobile
devices. The Council's website includes more transactional functions. In 2018-19 the Council also
launched a “chatbot” to further broaden the channels people can use to interact with their local authority.
During 2020/21 there was extensive use of Twitter, Facebook and You Tube to raise awareness of
forthcoming events, to provide live streaming of Cabinet, Council, scrutiny and other political meetings,
to promote the activities and services provided and to show support and encouragement for community
groups.

Enhancing the digital services with economic (effective and efficient processes aiding business
interaction), environmental (less travel and print consumables) and social (digital customer centric

Page 155

21



80

81

82

83

85

86

87

services) continued to be a key aspect of improving services throughout 2020/21. Outcomes are
measured via the Digital Programme Office Service plan and performance planning process.

To ensure the best use is made of resources and that taxpayers and service users receive excellent
value for money, there are a number of mechanisms within the Council to support this. The Option
appraisals now form part of the Cabinet report template. All IT investments are considered through SLT
and then Cabinet before decisions are taken as required via Cabinet or Council.

Regular budget / outturn reports for revenue and capital were presented to and approved by Cabinet
during the year, June 2020, July 2020, October 2020, January 2021 & March 2021. The budget
management actions of Cabinet and senior officers are scrutinized by 4 of the Select Committees
quarterly. The budget monitoring reporting cycle periodically contains some output measures and unit
cost data, so that economic comparison of costs with other Councils can be made. Previously the
Council has compared very favourably to others.

The MTFP process for 2021/22 to 2024/25 was reviewed and approved by Cabinet in October 2020.
The Draft Capital Budget Proposals 2021/22 to 2024/25 were taken to Cabinet in January 2021. Draft
Revenue Budget Proposals 2021/22 also went to Cabinet in January 2021. Final Proposals went to
Cabinet before being approved by Council in March 2021. Ongoing scrutiny of the Council's budget
position in line with the MTFP has provided Members with a greater understanding of the budget setting
process and the pressures within individual directorates.

An authority-wide performance measurement system for the Council, the “data hub”, hosted on the
Council's intranet site continues to be updated. This enables Members and officers to track and monitor
data in key strategic plans through “dashboards”. This also allows performance to be compared against
other council areas, where applicable. The “data hub” has been reviewed and streamlined to ensure
information is up to date and focussed on the most pertinent perfformance data.

Audit Wales presented the Audit Wales Certificate of Compliance for the audit Monmouthshire County
Council's assessment of perfformance for 2019/20 to Audit Committee in November 2020. This was an
update on the current effectiveness of the Authority’s performance management arrangements. Audit
Wales concluded that the Council has discharged its duties under sections 15(2), (3), (8) and (9) of the
Measure and has acted in accordance with Welsh Government guidance sufficiently to discharge its
duties.

The Equality Impact Assessment and Sustainable Development checklists were revised and combined
to align with the Future Generations Act. The "Future Generations Evaluation” ensures the decisions
the Council makes are carefully considered to take equality and sustainable development into account,
this includes legislation that Monmouthshire County Council is subject to the Equality Act 2010, WFG
Act and Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011. A range of these were undertaken during 2020/21
which have been published on the website accompanying decision making reports. The integrated
checklist has been updated to ensure that new policy decisions are considered against the socio-
economic duty which came into effect on 31 March 2021.

The Council has a long-standing commitment to equality and diversity and under the Equality Act 2010,
has to produce a Strategic Equality Plan. The Council's third Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 sets the
Council's objectives to ensure it delivers better outcomes for people with protected characteristics. An
annual monitoring report for 2019/20 has been produced and scrutinised by Strong Communities Select
Committee in March 2021.

The Council has a Welsh Language Strategy for 2017 — 2022, which sets out a vision of how Welsh
language will look in Monmouthshire in 5 years, and is accompanied by targets to help achieve that
vision. Also the Welsh Language Monitoring Report 201920 was presented to Strong Communities
Select in September 2020 to note compliance and progress made with the Welsh Language Standards
allocated to Monmouthshire County Council.

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes

88

The Local Authority is a partner in the South East Wales Consortium Schools Causing Concemn protocal.
This Policy forms a part of, and is aligned with, the National Model for School Improvement in relation
to the informal support and challenge provided by the Local Authority (LA) to a school prior to any issuing

Page 156

22



89

80

91

of a warning notice or invocation of formal powers of intervention based on the six grounds for
intervention. It also aligns with the Welsh Government (WG) Guidance on Schools Causing Concern
(March 2016).

Contract Procedure Rules exemptions are normally reported to the Audit Committee every six months;
a report will be taken to Governance and Audit Committee during 2021/22 outlining the previous 18
months of exemptions requested. Managers are challenged in year to justify their procurement outside
the Council agreed procedures.

Reqular reporting into Cabinet, Scrutiny and Audit Committee enables the achievement of the Council's
objectives to be challenged and appropriate actions put in place to address any identified issues so that
the intended outcomes can be achieved. The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed by Audit Committee
in July 2020. The Whole Authority Strategic Risk Assessment 2020/21 was also reported to Audit
Committee (March 2021) and signed off by Cabinet April 2021.

Dealing with customer complaints helps Monmouthshire to identify and deal with failures in service
delivery. The Council’s complaint / compliment procedure is available on the web site. Out of 214
complaints received in 2012/20, 207 were resolved informally with 13 being formally investigated, 5 of
which were referred the Ombudsman, with only 1 under investigation. 169 comments were received
along with 240 compliments; {(Audit Committee February 2021).

Principle E: Developing the entity’'s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it

82

83

85

86

a7

88

The Council’'s recruitment procedures provide equality of employment opportunities. The equality-
assessed pay structure meets the requirements of the Single Status Agreement of 1997, The Single
Status Collective Agreement was approved by Cabinet in September 2010, This is complemented by
the People Strategy. The Pay Policy is approved annually by Council and is available on the MCC
website.

Developing the digital capabilities of people and systems to enable effectiveness, efficiency and
enhanced customer services is important within Monmouthshire and is measured via the Digital
Programme Service Business Plan. To further enhance service delivery and better deal with cyber
security / information risks the Digital Programme Office has been split into the Information Security and
Technology Team and the Digital Design and Innovation Team.

There is continued support for Members’ development through briefing sessions and other leaming
opportunities. A comprehensive training programme was developed for the intake of new Members
following Council elections in May 2017

There is also ongoing training and development which meets the needs of officers and Members through
the corporate programme. Coaching and leadership skills training will be rolled out to all managers in
due course. Check in, Check Out provides a value-based performance assessment approach between
staff and line managers and aims to ensure employees have clear and effective understanding of their
contribution to the objectives of their teams and subsequently the Council.

A Scruting Member Development Training Programme is in place which provides ongoing specific skills
based training for Members and includes scrutiny induction; this is agreed by the Scrutiny Chairs’ Group.
The training programme forms part of the Scrutiny Service Plan.

Appropriate and relevant job descriptions were in place for the Chief Executive, Strategic Leadership
Team (SLT), Monitoring Officer and Head of Finance.

Partnerships/collaboration working

There is Council policy on information sharing along with numerous information sharing protocols with
our partners; this is included within the Data Protection Policy. Information sharing is key to joined-up
service delivery. The Wales Accord on the Sharing of Personal Information (WASPI) was developed as
a practical approach to multi agency sharing for the public sector in Wales. The Authority is required to
meet statutory obligations regarding the handling and sharing of data, in accordance with the General
Data Protection Regulation 2018, The Information Sharing protocol has been developed to ensure
information is only shared appropriately, safely and compliantly.

Page 157
23



88

100

101

The Council ensures that it has appropriate governance arrangements around its collabarations with
other public agencies and other third parties. These can take a range of forms, from informal
arrangements to those where governance arrangements are determined through legislation. The
governance arrangements form a key part of the decision making processes that the Cabinet or Council
follow when deciding to enter a collaborative arrangement, transparent local accountability is a key area
of focus.

As a key example of our commitment to effective governance, arrangements have been developed for
the PSE Select Committee, now the Public Services Committee from March 2020

The Community & Partnership Development Team was developed in order to help build sustainable and
resilient communities that support the wellbeing of cumrent and future generations in Monmouthshire
which is a shared purpose with the public service board partners. The Team work with communities
and partners to help bring about social change and improve the quality of life in the county. The team
act as enablers, unlocking potential and supporting sustainability through collective impact;, providing
a resource and tangible link between local communities and a wide range of partners, enabling the
delivery of measureable and sustainable programme of activities that will constantly look to the future.
The team will ensure MCCs statutory duties are fulfilled across the partnerships landscape.

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management

102

103

104

105

106

107

There are robust arrangements for effective intemal financial control through the Council's accounting
procedures and financial regulations. These include established budget planning procedures, which
are subject to rnisk assessment, and regular reports to Members comparing actual revenue and capital
expenditure to annual budgets. The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the proper administration
of the Council's financial affairs, as required by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972
Procedures for tendering and contract letting are included in the Contract Procedure Rules and Financial
Procedure Rules. The Council's Treasury Management arrangements follow professional practice, are
subject to regular review and are contained in the Treasury Management Strategy approved by Council
each year.

In July 2017 Audit Wales reported to Audit Committee that the “Council has a clear strategic approach
for significant service changes, although better information would help Members when deciding the
future shape of the Council” (Good Governance when Determining Significant Service Changes report,
March 2017

Audit Wales presented its Certificate of Compliance for the audit of Monmouthshire's 2020/21
Improvement Plan to the Audit Committee in June 2020 and concluded that the Council is meeting its
statutory requirements.

The Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Strategy was revised and updated during 201718, It was
approved by Cabinet July 2017 and provides a deterrent, promotes detection, identifies a clear pathway
for investigation and encourages prevention. An Annual risk assessment on fraud and corruption is
presented to Audit Committee. The Council's Council Tax Reduction Anti-Fraud Policy was approved
by Cabinet in June 2015. A training package has been developed and presented to Audit Commities
(January 2020).

The Audit Committee considers the effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements for securing continuous
improvement including risk management arrangements. The Audit Committee also considers corporate
governance, monitors the work of auditors and inspectors, and monitors the relationships between
auditors and staff and the responses to audit and inspection recommendations. It also has responsibility
for reviewing the Annual Statement of Accounts and its associated reports (which include this statement)
before approval by Council. The Audit Committee has an independent, non-political, Chairman who
prepares an annual report of the work of the Audit Committee, July 2021.

Internal Audit operate to the standards set out in the ‘Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards’ which
have been developed from the Institute of Internal Auditors (llA) International Internal Auditing
Standards which came into effect in April 2013, The team’s role and status is set out in the Council's
Internal Audit Charter. The Chief Internal Auditor reports a summary of audit findings to the Audit
Committee each quarter; he also reports annually an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness
of the Council's internal control environment.

Page 158

24



108 The Chief Internal Auditor continues to ensure Internal Audit complies with the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards. A self-assessment was undertaken during 2017/18 to assess compliance with the
Standards which was validated in March 2018 by an external assessor, the Chief Internal Auditor of
Neath Port Talbot Council.

109 The Council has an objective and professional relationship with its external auditors and statutory
inspectors. It manages its information resource through strategies and policies to enable effective
decision making which is managed via the Information Strateqgy and action plan.

Risk management

110 The Council's Strategic Risk Management Folicy was updated and approved by Cabinet in March 2019,
progress was reported into Audit Committee in July 2020 & March 2021. The policy requires the
proactive participation of all those responsible for planning and delivering services in identifying,
evaluating and managing high level strategic risks to the Council’'s priorities, services and major
projects. The risk controls necessary to manage them are identified and monitored to ensure risk
mitigation.

111 Within the Council the purpose of risk management is to:

preserve and protect the Council's assets, reputation and staff

aid good management of nsk and support whole authority governance

aid delivery of its population outcomes internally and when working with partners
improve business performance and anticipated nisks in delivering improvements
avoid unnecessary liabilities, costs and failures

shape procedures and responsibilities for implementation.

The strategic risk assessment ensures that:

+« Strategic risks are identified and monitored by the Authority

+ Risk controls are appropriate and proportionate

+« Senior managers and elected members systematically review the strategic risks facing the
Authority .

The risk assessment is prepared by drawing on a wide range of evidence including service plans,
performance measures, regulatory reports, progress on the previous risk assessment and the views
of select and audit committees. In order to mitigate the nsks, proposed actions are recorded and also
aligned back into the respective service business plan. The risk assessment is a living document
and is updated over the course of the year as new information comes to light.

112 The Council's Strategic Risk Assessment for 2020/21 contains 18 risks. These were reviewed
throughout the year with the latest version was presented to Audit Committee in March 2021. The
majority were rated initially as medium risks. Following mitigation there were 4 low risks, 9 medium risks
and 5 high risks.

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability

113 The South East Wales Education Achievement Service (EAS) Business Plan 2021/22 was presented to
Cabinet in March 2021. The plan sets out the priorities, programmes and outcomes to be achieved by
the EAS on behalf of the South East Wales Consortium.

114 The updated People Strategy was endorsed by Cabinet in July 2018; this is the overarching framework
for Peaple and Organisational Development which supports its role in ensuring the organisation is
equipped with the collective capacity, capability and mindset to meet financial and improvement
challenges and rezspond to opportunities that present

115 The Council's first Commercial Strategy was endorsed by Cabinet in July 2018, the purpose of this
report was to present for approval the Council's first Commercial Strategy and accompanying action
plan. The strategy builds upon aspects of the Procurement, Digital and Asset Management Strategies
and is a key means through which the Council can play a role in the self-determination of its future
viability and sustainability.

Page 159

25



116
117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

In September 2019, the updated Digital Infrastructure Action Plan was approved by Cabinet.

There have been significant developments in technology in the last 4 years, and the experience, data
and evidence we have collected from our customers about the way they wish to engage and transact
with us has informed this new strategy. Qur workforce needs to have the digital knowledge and skills to
build in end to-end automated customer services and business processes. We need to reduce demand
through self-service facilities and provision of accurate, relevant data and information that people can
use with confidence to make decisions.

Continued improvements have been made to cyber security arrangements since the onset of Covid-19
which has increased digital working methods.

In July 2018, the Council's latest iteration of its Procurement Strategy was approved by Cabinet. The
Strategy builds upon workshop sessions undertaken with the Economy and Development Select
Committee and the aims, aspirations and priorities for procurement, identified throughout the
participative process.

Transparency and openness is important to Monmouthshire; the Annual Statement of Accounts was
taken through the Audit Committee process before being endorsed by Council.  All public meetings of
the Council, including Council, Cabinet, Select, Audit Committee, Planning Committee are live streamed
on YouTube and are available to view on the Council’s YouTube channel at any time after the mesting,
which provides greater transparency of the Council’s business.

The Council's enabling strategies have been revised to align to the delivery of the corporate plan, these
include the Digital Strategy, People Strategy and Asset Management Strategy as well as linking in with
MCC’s Service Business Flans.

The Audit Committee continues to support the Internal Audit team and endorses its annual report and
plan. The plan details the worlk and service areas the team will cover based on a risk assessment in
order to provide assurance on the adequacy of the internal controls, governance arrangements and risk
management process. The Audit Committee presents its Annual report to Council.

The Whole Authority Report complaints, comments and compliments 2019/20 was presented to Audit
Committee in February 2021 which identified the number and types of feedback received and dealt with
from 1 April 2019 until 31 March 2020.

Information Governance

Monmouthshire County Council (MCC) has restructured its Information Security and Governance
offering from June 2021 in response to an increase in digital working and to maintain cyber resilience to
protect our information. MCC continues to ensure training and awareness of governance issues is
focussed on high risk service departments as well as through continuous updates and Information
Security training events. This is to ensure compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation 25
May 2018- specifically following the "12 Steps to Compliance” as recommended by the Information
Commissioner's Office (ICO). A structured approach to information security and governance is operated
internally via the Information Governance Group chaired by Senior Information Risk Officer (SIR0O) as
well as through collaboration with the wider SRS partners providing our technology infrastructure. GDPR
Operational Leads have been established, along with Digital Champions linking in with teams,
individuals and volunteers to ensure compliance and messages are communicated.

MCC have a dedicated intranet site for general advice as well as assistance with GDPR legislative
requirements, including templates for privacy notices, records of processing activities (ROPA’s) and
Data Processing Impact Assessments (DPIA's).

To keep the public informed, MCC has now published its online privacy notices for relevant service
areas. 3Significant work i1s underway through 2021/2 to consolidate and update all privacy notices to
make them more transparent and sustainable to maintain. A comprehensive list of all data systems is
maintained centrally along with information audits for every service area, linking into the ROFPA’s.

The Corporate GDPR Policy is on the public website for clarity. Related policies will be updated
accordingly by relevant lead officers, so that they satisfy GDPR requirement. Links are in place to work
with the South East Wales Information Forum (SWIF) and WARP (Waming Advice and Security Paint)

Page 160

26



on a regular basis to share best practice. Good housekeeping is encouraged as is continuous
improvement to mitigating against the nsk of harm to individuals, although it is recognised further work
is required to back date data cleansing tasks which reqguire considerable capacity.

Main areas for Improvement

128 The Council will continue to monitor and review its governance arrangements and identify any gaps.
These will be addressed during the year to further strengthen governance in Monmouthshire County
Coouncil:

+ Deliver awareness raising training sessions on the importance of compliance with new and
revised Contract Procedure Rules and Financial Procedure Rules;
+ Code of Corporate Governance to be formally approved by Cabinet

Action Plan 2019/20

129 Appendix 1 shows how the 2019/20 Action plan areas for improvement have been addressed during
2020721,

Monitoring & Evaluation

130 We propose over the coming year to continually review our governance amrangements to ensure they
remain effective and appropriate. Steps will be taken, where appropriate, to further enhance our
governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address any need for improvements e
identified in the review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of
our next annual review.

Signed: e 4™ November 2021
Councillor Richard John Leader

Signed: i 4™ November 2021
Paul Matthews Chief Executive

Page 161

27



Progress against the Action Plan 2018/20

Governance Principle | Area for Improvement Progress

Principle A: Continue to deliver training | Internal Audit have
sessions on the importance | continued to deliver training

Behaving with of compliance with the new | sessions within schools and

integrity, and revised Contract | on the manager's induction

demonstrating strong | Procedure Rules and | programme.

commitment to
ethical values, and
respecting the rule of
law

Financial Procedure Rules;

Internal Audit will work with
the new procurement
partnership to ensure the
revised and updated CPRs
are rolled out across MCC.

Frinciple A:

Behaving with
integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to
ethical values, and
respecting the rule of
law

The Code of Corporate
Governance was last
approved by Council in July
2011.

This will need to be updated
and approved in line with
Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government
Framework 2016’

Outstanding.
The ©Code of Corporate
Governance has been

updated and was presented
to Audit Committee in June
2020.

This now needs formal
Cabinet approval.

Principle F:

Managing risks and
performance through
robust internal
control and strong
public financial
management

The Council will work through
the Audit Wales proposals for
improvement in the following
areas

=  Scruting: Fit for the
Future?

= Review of Asset
Management

= [nformation
Management

=  Whole Authority review
of children’s

safeguarding

A corporate plan has been
developed that sets out a
clear direction for the
Council up to 2022

The role and purpose of
service planning has been
reviewed and a revised
process established aligned
to the corporate plan.

Council’'s enabling strategies
have been revised to align to
the delivery of the corporate

plan, these include the
Digital Strategy, People
Strategy and Asset

Management Strategy

The Council's Strategic Risk
Management Policy was
updated

Appendix 1

Page 162

28



The independent auditor’'s report of the Auditor General for Wales to the members of
Monmouthshire County Council

Opinion on financial statements

| have audited the financial statements of Monmouthshire County Council for the year ended 31 March 2021 under the
Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004.

Monmouthshire County Council's financial statements comprise the Movement in

Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement, and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and international
accounting standards as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2020-21.

In my opinion the financial statements:

. give a frue and fair view of the financial position of Monmouthshire County Council as at 31 March 2021 and of
its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

. have been properly prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and international accounting
standards as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2020-21.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on

Auditing in the UK {I5SAs (UK)) and Practice Mote 10 “Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Entities in the
United Kingdom’. My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's respensibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of my report. | am independent of the Council in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the UK including the Financial
Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, | have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work | have performed, | have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or cellectively, may cast significant doubt on the Council's ability to continue to adopt the going
concemn basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the responsible financial officer with respect to going concem are
described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and
my auditor's report thereon. The Responsible Financial Officer is responsible for the other information contained within
the annual report. My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in my report, | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. My
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If | identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, | am required to

Page 163

29



determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the
work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, | am required to
report that fact.

| have nothing to report in this regard.

Report on other requirements

Opinion on other matters

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of my audit:

. the information contained in the Marrative Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the Narrative Report has been prepared in accordance
with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020-21;

. The information given in the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the Annual Governance Statement has
been prepared in accordance with guidance.

Matters on which | report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Council and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
| have not identified material misstatements in the Narrative Report or the Annual Governance Statement.

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which | report to you, if, in my opinion:

. adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for my audit have not been received from
branches not visited by my team;

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. | have not received all the information and explanations | require for my audit.

Responsibilities

Responsibilities of the responsible financial officer for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the responsible financial
officer is responsible for the preparation of the statement of accounts which give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the responsible financial officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of statements of
accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the statement of accounts, the responsible financial officer is responsible for assessing the Council's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless deemed inappropriate.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whele are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
I1SAs (UK) will ahways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. | design procedures in line
with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.

My procedures included the following:

Page 164

30



. Enquiring of management, the Council’s Chief Internal Auditor and those charged with governance, including
obtaining and reviewing supporting documentation relating to the Council’s policies and procedures concerned
with:

- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any
instances of non-compliance;

- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alleged fraud; and

- the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or noncompliance with laws and
regulations.

. Considering as an audit team how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any potential
indicators of fraud.

. Obtaining an understanding of the Council’s framework of authority as well as other legal and regulatory
frameworks that the Council operates in, focusing on those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the
financial statements or that had a fundamental effect on the operations of the Council.

In addition to the above, my procedures to respond to identified risks included the following:

. reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with relevant laws and regulations discussed above;

. enguiring of management, the Governance and Audit Committee and legal advisors about actual and potential
litigation and claims;

. reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and the Council;

. in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal

entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are
indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant fransactions that are
unusual or outside the normal course of business; and
| also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all audit team and remained
alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.
The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is affected by the inherent
difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness of the Council’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the
audit procedures performed.
A further description of the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website www _frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my auditor’s report.

Certificate of completion of audit

| certify that | have completed the audit of the accounts of Monmouthshire County Council in accordance with the
requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the Auditor

General for Wales® Code of Audit Practice.

Adrian Crompton 24 Cathedral Road
Auditor General for Wales Cardiff
5November 2021 CF119LJ

Page 165

31



Movement In Reserves Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2021

Earmarked i Total i Total

Reserves i Usable Reserves| Arrangement Reserves
Reserves

etz | | eorr| o] ase| wmore| o] 2] @om

Movement in reserves during 2019/20

e C ]
Total Comprenensive ncome ana Bxpeniure || Gaap| - | - | Gamn| o] 2| waw]

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations 10.2 24,700 (1,374) 23,327 (23,327)

Net Increase/(Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves - 1,363 _ (1,374) (20) 37,228 37,360

Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves 10.4 230 (230)

O | ]
noesmeeeresgnzomze [ | awa| G| awe] 0| wem| | waw|
baare s ststaren 2020 orwars | | aan| ows| s

Movement in reserves during 2020/21

O |
ot comprenensive ncome ana Bxpeniure || el - | | o] Gasm] 3| G

Adjuginents between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations 10.2 15,122 - 6,373 21,495 (21,495)

Net Increase/(Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves - 8,142 _ 6,373 (85,943) (71,395)

Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves 10.4 (4,289) 4,289 -

I~
--—
>~ I

Prior period adjustment: CCRCD

Balance at 31st March 2021 carried forward - 32,576 | (106,358) 2,698 (71,083)

32



Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2021

2019720 I B 2020721

D o 0 0

= = = =

° ° S Es)
25 o 25 o
o = 8 < e 8 <
O Z W (G| Zz W
£000 0[0[0} £000 £000
73,298 (13,317) 59,981 Children & Young People 77,070 (17,822) 59,248
71,689 (17,367) 54,322 Social Care & Health 79,142 (24,684) 54,459
63,253 (28,015) 35,238 Enterprise 66,811 (34,438) 32,373
6,649 (865) 5,784 Chief Executives Unit 8,357 (1,418) 6,940
40,854 (22,658) 18,196 Resources 41,831 (24,341) 17,490
3,591 (2,748) 843 Corporate 2,350 (3,023) (673)

(308) (158) Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD) 16.6 2 (448) (159)

150 88

Other operating expenditure:
Precepts & Levies:

11,779 0 11,779  Gwent Police Authority 12,647 0 12,647
4,383 0 4,383  South Wales Fire & Rescue Authority 4,584 0 4,584
2,699 0 2,699 Community and Town Councils 2,952 0 2,952

106 0 106 National Parks 106 0 106
94 0 94 Internal Drainage Boards 94 0 94
300 (229) 71 Gains/losses on the disposal of non-current assets 2,184 (2,188) 4
_— 19,131|Total Other operating expenditure --- 20,378
17,189 (9,850) 7,340 Financing and investment income and expenditure 11.3 18,156  (13,127) 5,029
Interest & Investment income: CCRCD @) @)
Change in Fair Value of Investment Properties: CCRCD 464 464

Taxation & non-specific grant income:
0 (75,628) (75,628) Council Tax 11.5 228 (80,466) (80,238)
0 (30,682) (30,682) Non-domestic rates redistribution 11.5 0 (30,037) (30,037)
0 (71,205) (71,205) General government grants 11.6 0 (77,988) (77,988)
0 Recognised Capital Grants & Contributions: CCRCD (275) (275)

33 Tax Expenses: CCRCD (57) (57)

33
_— 23,195|(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services --- 6,946

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure:

(Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant and

(Gtiek) Equipment assets

12.1 201

(Surplus) or deficit from investments in equity
401 instruments designated at fair value through other (327)
comprehensive income

(56,816) (Gains)/losses on remeasurement of pension assets / 14.3 64.575
27 Jiabilities ' ’

Expenditure
_— (37,360)| Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure --- 71,395

Page 167

33



Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021

31st March 2020 Note 31st March 2021
0[0[0 £000s

241,222 Other land and buildings 12.1 229,194
10,470 Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment 12.1 10,373
71,151 Infrastructure 12.1 73,613

4,459 Community assets 12.1 4,459
2,844 Assets under construction 12.1 2,016
0 Surplus assets not held for sale 12.1 10
4,792 Heritage Assets 12.7 4,792
63,427 Investment Property 12.5 65,304
220 Intangible Assets 141
91 Long-Term Investments 13.1 1,362
2,993 Long Term Debtors 13.5 2,867
e e
5,658 Short Term Investments 23,444
482 Inventories 442
28,511 Short Term Debtors 13.5 33,047
22,377 Cash and Cash Equivalents 15.3 19,158
2,060 Assets Held for Sale 12.6 2,569

0 CCRCD: Deferred Tax asset

(1,475) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15.3 (621)
(95,123) Short Term Borrowing 13.1 (98,595)
(24,768) Short Term Creditors 13.6 (36,405)

(4,534) Provisions 13.7 (4,757)

| @sewlourentliabiliies | — | (40a7)
(230,526) Liability related to defined benefit pension scheme 10.9 (306,876)

(502) Provisions 13.7 (448)

(92,591) Long Term Borrowing 13.1 (84,871)

(2,734) Long Term Creditors: CCRCD (2,760)

(2,352) Other Long Term Liabilities 13.1 (2,377)

(3,852) Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 11.6 (4,214)

(2,018) Revenue Grants Receipts in Advance (2,037)

@stoltong Tem Liabiies [ | uoaey
s | | mm

8,471 Council Fund Balance 10.3 12,324
6,383 Earmarked Reserves 10.4 10,671
3,207 Capital Receipts Reserve 10.6 9,581

392 Usable Reserves: CCRCD

18,453|Usable Reserves - 32,758

41,523 Revaluation Reserve 10.7 38,407
(230,526) Pensions Reserve 10.9 (306,876)
167,534 Capital Adjustment Account 10.8 164,073
5,479 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 10.11 2,692
(517) Financial Instrument Adjustment Account (517)
(355) Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve (28)
(3,553) Accumulating Absence Adjustment Account 10.10 (4,110)
2,243 Unusable Reserves: CCRCD 2,517

(18,171)|Unusable Reserves - (103,842)

Page 168

34



Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2021

31st March 2020 31st March 2021
£000 Note £000

23,195 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 15.1 6,946

(35,955) Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements 15.1 (41,657)

14,723 Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are investing and financing activities 15.1 22,126

21,405 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets 12,235

11,607 Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 15,421

0 Other payments for investing activities 0

(4,537) Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets (7,415)

(19,310) Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments 236

(10,487) Other receipts from investing activities (9,811)

g (Lsz|netCosh (nfow)Outlow rom vesting Actviies | | ___1oesq
8 Financing Activities

D 546 Repayments of short and long-term borrowing 15,504

lO_; 31 Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases and on-balance sheet PFI contracts 34

(o] (8,863) Cash receipts of short and long-term borrowing (11,255)

0 Other receipts from financing activities

(8,285)|Net Cash (Inflow)/Outflow from Financing Activities - 4,283
(7,643)|Net (increase) / decrease in cash and cash equivalents - 2,363

13,259 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 20,902

20,902|Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 18,539

35



Notes to the Accounts
for the Year Ended
31st March 2021

Page 170

36



10 MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT NOTES

10.1 Movement in Reserves

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the authority, analysed into ‘usable
reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other 'unusable’ reserves. A
summary of the movement in reserves during the financial year is illustrated below. More detailed information to
support the Movement in Reserves Statement follows this note.

Balance at
31st March

0[0]0)
Usable Reserves:

Council Fund balance: Authority 10.3 7,110 1,796 8,906 0 8,906
Council Fund balance: LMS School Balances 10.5 (232) (203) (435) 3,853 3,418
Earmarked reserves 10.4 6,613 (230) 6,383 4,288 10,671
Capital Receipts Reserve 10.6 4,581 (2,373) 3,207 6,374 9,581

Usable Reserves: CCRCD 2 (211) 1

50 142 392 81
Total Usable Reserves [ | 3z 18,453 14,304 32,758

Unusable Reserves:

Revaluation Reserve 10.7 38,948 2,575 41,523 (3,116) 38,407
Capital Adjustment Account 10.8 166,977 557 167,534 (3,461) 164,073
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account (631) 114 (517) 0 (517)
Pension Reserve 10.9 (268,213) 37,687  (230,526) (76,350) (306,876)
Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 10.11 8,168 (2,689) 5,479 (2,787) 2,692
Financial Instrument Revaluation Reserve 46 (401) (355) 327 (28)
Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account 10.10 (2,939) (614) (3,553) (557) (4,110)
Unusable Reserves: CCRCD 16.6 2,243 0 2,243 273 2,517

Total Unusable Reserves | | 5400 37,228 (s171)| (es5671)] (103842)
Total Authority Reserves -

71,000

10.2 Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations

This note summarises the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised
by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by
statutory provisions as being available to the Authority to meet future capital and revenue expenditure. A more detailed
overview is provided in the individual notes that follows for each reserve:

Movements in 2020/21:

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment assets 17,719 0 (17,719)

Charges for impairment of Heritage Assets 1 0 1)

Revaluation movements on Heritage Assets 0 0 0

Revaluation movements on Property Plant and Equipment (charged to SDPS) 2,503 0 (2,503)

Revaluation movements on Assets Held for Sale (charged to SDPS) 0 0 0

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties (2,412) 0 2,412
Page 171

37



Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
Capital grants and contributions applied

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the CIES

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (MRP)

Capital expenditure charged against the Council Fund

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure
Adjustments involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account:

Amount by which finance costs charged to the CIES are different from finance costs
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the CIES
Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year

Adjustment involving the Accumulated Absences Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES on an accruals basis is
different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements

Adjustment between the Capital Adjustment Account and the Revaluation Reserve:

Depreciation of non-current asset revaluation gains

Total adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations

Movements in 2019/20:

79
(10,265)
1,529

4,593

(6,075)
(252)

(4,628)
0

25,801

(14,026)

557

0

7,415
(1,042)

0

(79)
10,265
(1,529)

(4,593)

6,075
252

(2,786)
1,042

(25,801)

14,026

(557)

0

Adjustments primarily involving the Capital Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment assets
Charges for impairment of Heritage Assets

Revaluation movements on Heritage Assets

Revaluation movements on Property Plant and Equipment (charged to SDPS)
Revaluation movements on Assets Held for Sale (charged to SDPS)

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets

Capital grants and contributions applied

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

Amounts of non current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on
disposal to the CIES

Page 172

38

14,523
189

518

560
186
(8,658)
4,161

1,290

(14,523)
(189)

0

(518)

0

(560)
(186)
8,658
(4,161)

(1,290)



Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (MRP) (5,564) 0 5,564
Capital expenditure charged against the Council Fund (286) - 286
Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve:

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES (1,847) 4,537 (2,689)
Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 0 (5,910) 5,910

Adjustments involving the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account:

Amount by which finance costs charged to the CIES are different from finance costs

chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements () ) 113
Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the CIES 32,284 - (32,284)
Employer’'s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year (13,155) - 13,155

Adjustment involving the Accumulated Absences Account:

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the CIES on an accruals basis is
different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory 614 - (614)
requirements

Adjustment between the Capital Adjustment Account and the Revaluation Reserve:

Depreciation of non-current asset revaluation gains - - -

Total adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations 24,700 (2,374) (23,327)

10.3 Usable Reserves available for Revenue Purposes
The in-year movements in the Authority's usable Reserves that are available to be applied for revenue purposes are
summarised below:

Each of the Authority’s Schools is directly governed by a Board of Governors, which is responsible for managing the
school’s finances. the balance on the Council Fund includes £3,418,000 in respect of underspent (or overspent)
budgets which have been delegated to schools. These balances are at the disposal of the respective schools and
represent an earmarked reserve which is not available for the Authority to use generally.

At 1st April In Year At 31st In Year| At 31st March
Movement| March 2020
£000 £000

Amount of Council Fund Balance held by Schools under Local (203) (435) 3,853 3.418
Management Schemes

Amount of Council Fund Balance generally available for new
expenditure 7 110 1,796 8,906 O 8,906

Total Council Fund Balance 6,877 1,594 8,471 3,853 12,324
Earmarked Revenue Reserves 6,613 (230) 6,383 4,288 10,671
Total Usable Reserves available for Revenue Purposes 13,490 1,364 14,854 8,142 22,995

10.4 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
This note sets out the amounts set aside from the Council Fund into earmarked reserves to provide financing for future
expenditure plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet Council Fund expenditure.

Earmarked reserves have been set up where there has been a need to set aside resources for a specific future
purpose. The purpose of each earmarked reserve is detailed below. Utilisation of these reserves is under the control
of the Cabinet and has been approved by it.

The transfers to and from Earmarked Reserves in 2020/21 can be summarised as follows:

Page 173

39



Transfer At 31st| Transfer to Transfer| At 31st March
to March 2020 REEES
Reserves

£000 £000

Invest to Redesign (194)

Priority Investment 405 1,500 1,905
Insurance and risk management 1,019 (83) 935
IT Transformation 479 (225) 600 854
Treasury equalisation 990 (400) 590
Capital Investment 643 (26) 627
Redundancy and Pensions 333 (88) 700 (88) 857
Capital Receipt Generation 279 (98) 181 300 (65) 416
Other reserves

Elections 83 35 118 174 292
Museums acquisition 53 53 53
Solar Farm Maintenance & Community

Fund 41 23 64 23 87
Castlegate 80 80 233 312
Newport Leisure Park 62 62 126 188
Sustainability - PV Invertor Replacement

Reserve 0 0 15 15
Covid19 Hardship Fund Equalisation

Reserve 0 0 819 819
Service Reserves:

Local Resilience Forum 115 84 2) 198 198
Grass Routes Buses 151 5 156 5 161
Schools sickness & maternity cover 136 (88) 48 48
Trading Accounts:

Youth Offending Team 150 150 150
Outdoor education centres 0 0 0
Building Control 14 (23) 1 1
Rural Development Plan 413 116 530 92 621
Highways Plant & Equipment Replacement 34 75 (39) 69 75 (44) 100

Homeless Prevention

T I, N I N I T

Invest to Redesign Reserve - To fund service redesign to either improve the service, generate income
or reduce costs.

[.T. Transformation Reserve - To invest in information technology in support of the organisations
outcomes and generation of improved service efficiency, income generation or cost savings.

Capital Investment Reserve - To finance future capital expenditure.

Priority Investment Reserve - To fund additional one off investment in the Authority's agreed priorities.

Redundancy and Pensions Reserve - To meet redundancy costs and commuted payments for early
retirements over a maximum of 5 years.

Page 174

40



Insurance and Risk Management Reserve - To meet excesses and administration costs on claims
against the Council, to provide cover on self insured risks and contribute to risk management activities.

Treasury Equalisation Reserve - Originally created from rescheduling discounts and premia, intended
for use under the concept of prudence to permit a long term view to be taken of treasury decisions.

Capital Receipt Generation Reserve - Securing capital receipts is a vital element of the Authority's
capital investment strategy. Improving the final disposal value by investment, either in the fabric of the
asset or by proper disposal expertise ensures the Council obtains the best possible value for surplus
assets.

Current accounting regulations are such that investing in disposal must be taken against the revenue
account and these costs cannot be fully offset against the ultimate capital receipt. The reserve has been
established to finance such expenditure.

Other Reserves - These include a number of other reserves where separate classification is not deemed
necessary in the accounts due to the level of the reserve balance or its nature.

Service Reserves - Created from surpluses and deficits on the Authority's external and
internal trading account activities, and maintained to support and develop these services.

Trading Reserves - Trading reserves at the year-end now represent balances created as a result of
external trade or where the Authority assumes lead authority status for administering funds on behalf of
other partner organisations.

10.5 School Balances

The balance on the Council Fund includes £3,418,120 in respect of underspent (or overspent) budgets which have
been delegated to schools. These balances are at the disposal of the respective schools and represent an earmarked
reserve which is not available for the Authority to use generally. Details of the movements of these reserves are shown
below:

At 31st In Year At 31st
April 2019] Movement| March 2020] Movement| March 2021

£ £
Comprehensives

Caldicot (65,012) (114,680)  (179,693) 409,100 229,408
Chepstow 50,662 (114,232)  (63,570)  (23,231) (86,801)
King Henry VIII (82,798) (142,902) (225,700) 423,196 197,496
Monmouth (538,325) 75,795  (462,530) 676,722 214,192

Sub Total Comprehensives (635,473) | (296,019) | (931,493) | 1,485,787 554,294

Primaries

Archbishop R Williams 73,405 10,311 83,716 122,680 206,397
Cantref 88,391 16,802 105,193 94,604 199,797
Castle Park (23,773) 25,926 2,153 119,700 121,853
Cross Ash 54,151 10,007 64,157 18,313 82,470
Deri View 80,001 (6,044) 73,956 74,153 148,109
Dewstow 108,642 27,813 136,455 101,356 237,811
Durand 29,087 (16,396) 12,691 65,193 77,884
Gilwern 55,251 9,298 64,549 102,302 166,852
Goytre Fawr 2,738 32,156 34,893 56,646 91,540
Kymin View 5,607 32,348 37,955 97,350 135,305
Llandogo (83,516)  (93,019) (176,535) 89,705 (86,830)

Page 175

41



Llanfair Kilgeddin CV 0 0 0 0 0
Llanfoist 14,341 10,530 24,871 68,562 93,433
Llantilio Pertholey (9,643) (11,373) (21,016) 88,231 67,215
Llanvihangel Crucorney 34,342 15,343 49,684 54,986 104,670
Magor Vol Aided (54,651) 35,866 (18,785) 135,987 117,202
New Pembroke Primary (13,239) 14,444 1,205 124,302 125,507
Osbaston Church in Wales 6 (11,256) (11,250) 51,859 40,609
Our Lady's & St Michael's Catholic Primary (14,170) 30,030 15,859 38,534 54,393
Overmonnow (18,473) (15,456) (33,928) 75,032 41,104
Raglan (108,452) 75,340 (33,112) 141,989 108,878
Rogiet 20,014 (24,418) (4,404) 82,499 78,095
Shirenewton 132,093 (3,203) 128,890 47,356 176,246
St Mary's (Chepstow) (63,592) 17,074 (46,518) 67,378 20,860
The Dell 16,389 (13,357) 3,032 45,378 48,410
Thornwell (563,722) 6,572 (47,150) 112,037 64,887
Trellech 71,983 (21,035) 50,948 64,743 115,691
Undy (129,534) (16,391)  (145,925) 152,295 6,370
Usk CV 9,910 36,032 45,942 97,113 143,055
Ysgol Gymraeg Y Fenni 51,306 (55,714) (4,408) 38,775 34,367
Ysgol Gymraeg Ffin (32,980) (12,903) (45,883) 61,521 15,638
Other

Mounton House 141,505 30,555 172,060 (172,060) (0)
Pupil Referral Unit 19,653 (42,584) (22,931) 48,943 26,012

Sub Total Other 161,158 (12,029) 149,129 | (123,117) 26,011

10.6 Capital Receipts Reserve

Amounts in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The balance of receipts is required to be credited to
the usable Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside to reduce the
Council’s borrowing requirement. Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the Council Fund via the Statement in
Movements Statement.

2019/20 2020/21
E(0]0]0] E(0]0]0]

4,581 Balance as at 1st April 3,207
Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income

e and Expenditure Statement 4,628
2,689 Transfer from Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 2,787
(5,910) Less: use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure (1,042)

3,207|Balance as at 31st March 9,581

10.7 Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve contains the net gains made by the Authority arising from increases in the value of its
Property, Plant and Equipment, Heritage Assets and Intangible Assets. The balance is reduced when assets are:

Revalued downwards or impaired;

Page 176

42



Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation; or
Disposed of and the gains are realised.

The Reserve contains gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated
gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

38,948 Balance at 1 April 41,523
5,411 Upward revaluation of assets 1,818
Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the
(1,272) - ) (2,019)
Provision of Services
(1,564) Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost depreciation (2,336)
0 Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped (579)

41,523 [Balance at 31 March 38,407

10.8 Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting
for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those
assets under statutory provisions. The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to a historical cost
basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Authority as finance for the costs of acquisition,
construction and enhancement.

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties that have yet to be consumed by the
Authority. The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April
2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

This note provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from those involving the
Revaluation Reserve.

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
166,977 Balance at 1 April 167,534

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement:

(14,523) Charges for depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment assets (17,719)
0 Revaluation movements on heritage assets 0

(189) Charges for impairment of heritage assets (1)
(518) Revaluation movements on Property, Plant and Equipment (2,503)

0 Revaluation movements on Assets Held for Sale 0

(186) Amortisation & impairment of intangible assets (79)
(4,161) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (1,529)

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the

(2 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (e
1,564 Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve 2,336
5,910 Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 1,042
8,658 Capital grants qnd contriputiops crgdited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that 10,265

have been applied to capital financing
5,564 Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the Council Fund 6,075
286 Capital expenditure charged against the Council Fund 252
(560) Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or credited to the Comprehensive 2412

Income and Expenditure Statement

Page 177

43



167,534 |Balance at 31 March 164,073

10.9 Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post
employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Authority accounts for post
employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and
investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits
earned to be financed as the Authority makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any
pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Authority has set aside to meet
them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be
paid.

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

(268,213) Balance at 1 April (230,526)

56,816 Remeasurement gains or (losses) on pension assets and liabilities (64,575)

(32,284) Reve_r;al of items_ rela_ting to retirement bgnefits debited or creditgd to the Surplus or Deficit on the (25.801)
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

13,155 Employer’s pensions contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year 14,026

(230,526) |Balance at 31 March (306,876)

10.10 Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the Council Fund Balance
from accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, for example, annual leave entitlement
carried forward at 31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the Council Fund Balance is neutralised
by transfers to or from the Account. Further information on the calculations of benefits can be found in notes 13.7(c)
and 17.6 to the accounts.

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

(2,939) Balance at 1 April (3,553)
2,939 Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of the preceding year 3,553
(3,553) Amounts accrued at the end of the current year (4,110)

10.11 Deferred Capital Receipts

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of Land but for which full cash
settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the authority does not treat these gains as usable for
financing new capital expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement eventually
takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The balance at the 31st March 2021 is primarily due to the Old Abergavenny cattle market site disposed of under a
finance lease.

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
8,168 Balance at 1 April 5,479

Transfer of deferred sale proceeds credited as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement Y
(2,689) Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash (2,787)
5,479|Balance at 31 March 2,692

Page 178

44



11 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT NOTES

11.1 Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax payers how the funding available
to the authority (i.e. government grants, council tax and business rates) for the year has been used in providing services
in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices. The Expenditure and Funding Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making
purposes between the council’s directorates. Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted
accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES).

2019/20 2020/21
= =
8 o

() = %) 5 () = [%) =

= ® @0 o = ® 0 o

S o Sy S S S o oyl S

&= 2 n = = = Rg) n =

T o c €20 o Toc| E20o o

S22 D= S 22| ©35 S 5
o 8 — Ec e o o 8 — Ec & S
< Q c = 5 5 < < O c = 35 5 < W
w25 2L o w b2l SI3 o
S T2 g 5 3| T8 3 o
Z0 o <E < z Z0o| << Z =

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

51,883 8,098 59,981 Children & Young People 56,093 3,155 59,248
50,087 4,234 54,322 Social Care & Health 51,327 3,132 54,459
24,376 10,862 35,238 Enterprise 21,688 10,685 32,373
4,735 1,049 5,784 Chief Executives Unit 4,524 2,416 6,940
7,191 11,005 18,196 Resources 6,454 11,036 17,490
16,412 (15,569) 843 Corporate 20,403 (21,076) (673)
0 (158) (158) Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD) 0 (159) (159)

(156,481) 5,470 (151,011)(Other Income & Expenditure ,489) (2,243)| (162,732)
(1,796) 24,991 23,195|Surplus or Deficit 6,946 6,946

(7,111) Opening General Fund Balance (8,906)
(1,796) Surplus or Deficit on General Fund (0)

(8,906) Closing General Fund Balance

justments from the General Fund to arrive at the CIES Amounts:

2 022 > @ @ 0 22 > @
TS 20 G 8 5 5 20§ © S
E= g2E : £ £ g2k 5 =
EXS og g gs 5 El c23l B3 El
28 287% 5% 2 2 2872 5% 2
£000 gooo|  £000 £000

6,623 2,284 (809) 8,098 Children & Young People 8174 1117  (6.136) 3,155
1,317 3,739 (821) 4,234 Social Care & Health 1,049 2239 (156) 3,132
6,662 4,205 (5) 10,862 Enterprise 7746 2,548 392 10,685
398 592 59 1,049 Chief Executives Unit 2,130 390 (104) 2,416
2,061 1,001 7,043 11,005 Resources 2,864 549 7623 11,036
2,768 723 (19,060) (15,569) Corporate 0 (609) (20,467)  (21,076)

0 0 (158)  (158) %ggfég;‘p'ta' Region City Deal 0 0 (159) (159)

(14,302) 6,586 13,186 Other Income & Expenditure (16,649) 5,542 8,865 (2,243)

Adjust ts bet th
5 19,129 334| 24,9972 C1USIMENIS DELWEEN the 5314  11,775| (10,142) 6,946
Funding & Accounting Basis

Page 179

45



11.2 Expenditure & Income analysed by nature
The authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2019/20 2020/21
£000
132,489 Employee benefits expenses 131,994
117,623 Other services expenses 132,394
21,459 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 24,198
19,070 Precepts & levies 20,382
4,088 Interest payments 3,703
1,337 Gain/loss on disposal of non-current assets 4,593
Total Expenditure
(51,115) Fees, charges & other service income (48,320)
(440) Interest and investment income (239)
(106,310) Income from council tax & NNDR (110,560)
(113,158) External grants and contributions (146,570)
(1,848) Gain/loss on disposal of non-current assets (4,628)

(272,871)|Total Income (310,317)

23,195|Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

6,946

11.3 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

A summary level breakdown of Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure reported on the face of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year is shown below. Further information is contained within
the respective notes to the accounts.

31st March 2020 31st March 2021

(0]
=
=
=
©
c
(7]
el
I3
L

@
z
£000 £0

Gross
Expenditure

Gross

8 Expenditure

th
o
o
o

4,088 - 4,088 Interest payable and similar charges 13.2 3,703 - 3,703

Pensions interest cost and expected return

6,586 - 6,586 on pensions assets 14.3 5,542 - 5,542
= (473) (473) Interest receivable and similar income 13.2 = (206) (206)
Interest receivable and similar income:
: ) (7) ccrep share ) @) @)
Income and expenditure in relation to
4,149 (7,025) (2,876) investment properties and changes in their 6,200 (10,315) (4,115)
fair value
(Surpluses)/deficits on trading undertakings
et e ee not included in the Net Cost of Services 2711 (Pt 2y
= (33) (33) Other investment income - (25) (25)

Total Financing and Investment Income
17,189 (9,850) 7,340 inancing ¥ 18,156 (13,134) 5,022
and Expenditure

Page 180

46



11.4 Agency Income & expenditure

The Council acted as an agent on behalf of the following in the provision of goods and services:

Covid-19 Grants

Due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the need for additional services, support for individuals and businesses
there have been a large number of new grants and financial support made available by Welsh Government. Local
Authorities have been requested to administer on the Welsh Government’s behalf because they have the local knowledge
and ability to put in place systems quickly to make payments.

The below table details each scheme:

Scheme Purpose Amount
Received
2020/21
(£000's)

Business Support Grants Grants to support businesses during lockdown closures. 25,417
Business Support Grants Relief given to retail, leisure and hospitality. 13,621
Care Workers £500 Payments Bonus payment for individual care workers. 1,193
Covid-19 Freelancer Grant Payment available for freelancers in the culture sector of up to £2.5k 440
Self Isolation Payments £500 for eligible individuals who have to self isolate. 145

. Financial assistance for newly created businesses facing operational and
Covid-19 Start Up Grant financial challenges as a result of the Covid-19 outbreak. 143

To top up to full salary where employees only receive statutory sick pay when off
SSP Enhancement sick with Covid-19 or having to self isolate as an infection control measure. 127

11.5 Council Tax & National Non-Domestic Rates
Council Tax

Council tax derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties. Each dwelling has been
classified into one of nine valuation bands according to its capital value at 1 April 2003 for this specific purpose. Charges
are calculated by taking the amount of income required for the Authority, Office of Police and Crime Commissioner for
Gwent and Town and Community Councils for the forthcoming year and dividing this amount by the Council Tax Base.
The Council Tax Base is the total number of properties in each valuation band adjusted by a proportion to convert the
number to a Band D equivalent, totalled across all bands and adjusted for discounts. The tax base was £46,331.92 for
2020/21 (£46,096.27 for 2019/20).

This average basic amount for a Band D property, £1,717.44 (£1,629.72 in 2019/20), is multiplied by the proportion
specified for the particular band to give the individual amount due.

Council tax bills were based on the following multipliers for bands A to I.

_“-“-----—

Multiplier 11/9 13/9 15/9 18/9 21/9

Chargeable Dwellings 515 3,350 7,080 9,101 7,225 7,762 5,409 1,759 668

Valuation (£000) up to 44 44-65 65-91 91-123 123-162  162-223 223-324  324-424 424+
The analysis of the net proceeds from council tax are as follows:
2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
(75,619) Council tax collectable (80,466)

(10) Provision for non-payment of council tax 228

(75,628)| Total Council Tax proceeds (80,238)

Page 181

47



National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR)

NNDR is organised on a national basis. The Welsh Government specifies an amount for the rate, 0.535p per £ in
2020/21 (0.526p per £ in 2019/20) and, subject to the effects of transitory arrangements, local businesses pay rates
calculated by multiplying their rateable value by that amount. The NNDR income after relief and provisions of
£25,952,192 (£25,064,453 for 2019/20) was based on an average rateable value of £62,197,106 (£61,980,991 for
2019/20).

The Authority acts as the Welsh Government’s agent and collects rates due from ratepayers in its area and then pays the
proceeds into the NNDR pool administered by the Welsh Assembly Government. The Welsh Government redistributes
the sums payable to the local authorities on the basis of a fixed amount per head of population. The total amount
redistributed from the National Pool to the Council in 2020/21 was £30.04m (£30.7m in 2019/20).

A net debtor of £1,042,517 at 31st March 2021 (£1,341,174 debtor as at 31st March 2020) is included in the balance
sheet which represents the amount by which the cash paid over to Welsh Government exceeds the amount collected
from ratepayers.

11.6 Grant Income
Capital Grants and Contributions

The Authority has credited the following capital grants & contributions to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in 2020/21.:

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

2,275 WG General Capital Grant 2,423
952 Section 106 Developer Contributions 507
6,321 WG Grants 8,623
11 Other Contributions 0

Credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

(901) Grants and contributions applied towards Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute (1,288)

(8,658) Capital grants and contributions applied and credited to Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income (10,265)

sl | s
Capital Grants and Contributions Received in Advance

The Authority has also received a number of capital grants and contributions that have yet to be recognised as income as
they have conditions attached to them that will require the monies or property to be returned to the provider. The balances
at the year-end are as follows:

2019/20 2020/21

£000 £000
Developer Contributions held in Advance:

3,852 S106 Developer contributions 4,214

Revenue Grants and Contributions

The Authority credited the following revenue grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000
Revenue Grants credited to services

Central Government:

17,996 Housing Benefit Subsidy 17,553
Welsh Government:
0 Welsh Government Covid-19 Hardship fund - Expenditure Support 9,103

Page 182

48



42,186|Total Revenue Grants credited to services 60,965

93,229 Total Non-Specific Grant Income 97,760

Page 183

49



12 NON-CURRENT ASSET & CAPITAL FINANCING NOTES

12.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

The following tables summarise the movements in the Authority’s property, plant and equipment portfolio by asset type for
the years ending 31st March 2021 and 31st March 2020.

Movements in 2020/21:

perty, Plant

Total Property,
8 and Equipment*

th Plant and

o

Vehicles, Plant,
th Furniture &

o

Included in

th Pro
o

PFI Assets

8
[}
173
»
<
=
=
S
IS
€
(@}
O
00

t Other Land and
8 Buildings

8 Equipment

th Infrastructure
8 Surplus Assets
t Assets Under
8 Construction
8 Equipment

£0

th
o

Cost or Valuation:

At 1st April 2020 251,758 21,829 95,742 4,459 0 2,844 ; 1,259

w
= |~
el NS

N |
L la|lw®
L |w|N

Additions 3,604 2,906 6,820 3) - 1,425 ) -
Revaluation movements taken to

Revaluation Reserve (el @) ) 0 ) ) (18)
Revaluation movements taken to

Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services e i ) ) ) i (2949 )
Impairment movements taken to

Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services &1 (@) 95) E L ) B8 )
Reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale (2,269) (733) - (1) 10 - (2,993 =
Disposals (2,255) 0) - (2,256

Other transfers 2,254 (2,254) ©

CCRCD Assets (2,169) - (2,169 -

Accumulated Depreciation:
At 1st April 2020 (10,535) (11,359) (24,592) 0 0 0] (46,486 0
Depreciation charge (8,243) (2,163) (2,279) - - 8 (12,684 (53)

Depreciation written out on revaluation to

Revaluation Reserve LA v : : o :

N

a1

o

S
1

Depreciation written out on revaluation to

Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services U ) : : v :

(=]

53

Depreciation written out on impairment to
Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services

N

N

ol
— | O1 | W

Reclassified to/(from) Held for Sale - 683 = = =
Disposals 2,255

wseio] uze| e o o o Gums| o
73,

Movements in 2019/20

Total Property,
5 Plant and
8 Equipment
perty, Plant
8 and Equipment*

Included in

8 Community Assets
PFI Assets

©
=
@
o
=
@
|
o
[}
=
-
O
£

8 Buildings

t Furniture &

8 Equipment

th Infrastructure
8 Surplus Assets
o Assets Under
8 Construction

tb Pro

o
th
o




Cost or Valuation: -

At 1st April 2019 250,654 20,632 91,831 4,319 110 3,019 Y {oN-{:Y! 1,378
Additions 6,493 2,885 7,308 143 - 2,009 18,839 -
Revaluation movements taken to

Revaluation Reserve (E2) ) i 0 ) i (292) (119)
Revaluation movements taken to

Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services ) i i i ) i (4.796) i
Impairment movements taken to

Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services (i) (€] () (3) L i (G122 i
Reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 0 (1,259) - - (110) - (1,369) -
Disposals - - (3,174) 0) - = (3,174)

Other reclassifications (99) - - - 0 - (99) -
CCRCD Assets 2,169 - - (2,183) (14) -

ACaisiMarcn 2020 | asurso) ovssol seriZl aassl o 2se] soeas] 12w
Accumulated Depreciation: -

At 1st April 2019 (12,046) (10,229) (25,746) - - 8l (48,021) (44)
Depreciation charge (7,158) (2,319) (2,021) - - o (11,498) (53)

Depreciation written out on revaluation to

Revaluation Reserve S 2 ) ) o :

Depreciation written out on revaluation to

Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services T i i g )

Depreciation written out on impairment to
Surplus/Deficit on Provision of Services

Reclassified to/(from) Held for Sale - 1,137 = = - -
Disposals o = 3,174 - - -

Other reclassifications 11 - - 1

- - 0 -
wsol woo| @swa| | | | @w|

12.2 Revaluations of Property, Plant & Equipment
The Authority carries out a rolling programme that ensures that all Property, Plant and Equipment required to be
measured at fair value is revalued at least every five years. All valuations were carried out by the Authority's Estates
Section under the supervision of the Head Of Commercial and Integrated Landlord Services (MRICS). Valuations of land
and buildings were carried out in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional
standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

The following statement summarises the progress of the Authority's rolling programme for the revaluation of fixed assets:

. The 2020/21 revaluations were carried out or approved by qualified valuers within the Authority's Estates section or
external qualified valuers. The basis for valuation is set out in the accounting policies within section 17 of the notes
to the accounts.

. All assets requiring valuations have been revalued in the 5 year period ending 31st March 2021. The valuations
carried out during 2020/21 primarily include Community Centres, Hubs & Contact Centres, Public Conveniences &
Primary Schools.

Page 185

51



Vehicles, Plant,
Furniture &
Equipment
Infrastructure
Assets
Community
Assets Under
Construction
Total Property,
Equipment

=
=
©
o)
=
@
|
P
)
i
=]
O
£

8 Surplus Assets

8 Buildings

o
th
o
(=]
(=]
th
o
(=]
(=]
th
o

Carried at historical cost 53 10,373 73,613 4,458 10

Valued at current value as at:

31st March 2021 19,091 - - = -
31st March 2020 37,742 - = - -
31st March 2019 78,832 - - - -
31st March 2018 53,701 - = - -
31st March 2017 39,775

Tora Costorvaauon | 220,03 d073] 7213 aasel o] 2015 auweea

12.3 Schools Non-Current Assets
The Authority currently owns and runs four comprehensive schools, twenty four primary schools and one special school.
In addition to the twenty four primary schools, there are two voluntary controlled schools and four voluntary aided schools.

The Authority runs the voluntary controlled schools on behalf of 3rd party organisations such as charities and religious
organisations who own the underlying assets. The Authority does not record these school assets on its balance sheet
other than Raglan Primary (£3,913,125 as at 31st March 2021) as the transfer of legal ownership to the third party is still
ongoing.

With regards to voluntary aided schools within Monmouthshire, and similar to voluntary controlled schools, the assets are
owned by 3rd party organisations and are not recorded on the Authority's balance sheet other than Osbaston Primary
(£1,646,450 as at 31st March 2021) as the transfer of legal ownership to the third party is still ongoing.

The net book value of school non-current assets as at 31st March 2021, shown in the Authority's balance sheet, is
£163,484,094 (£170,725,078 as at 31st March 2020).

12.4 Private Finance Initiatives

Monmouth Health & Social Care Facility (Monnow Vale)

The Authority has entered into a pooled budget arrangement with the Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board. Under the
arrangements funds are pooled under Section 33 of the NHS (Wales) Act 2006 to provide health and social care in the
form of inpatient, outpatient, clinic and day care facilities to individuals who have medical, social, community or
rehabilitation needs. This agreement came into effect from the 1st June 2006.

The Facility is a unique project that replaced a number of out dated or separate facilities scattered throughout the County
with a new building that has been financed by a private finance partner over a period of 30 years.

The Authority accounts for its 28% share of the PFI assets, comprising buildings and equipment, with a corresponding
liability amounting to its long term obligation for financing these assets.

The life of the building had originally been established for valuation purposes as being 40 years and the equipment as
being 15 years. As the life of the building is 10 years beyond that of the PFI agreement, it is anticipated that the facility will
be used by the parties beyond the 30 year PFI agreement. At the end of the agreement, the buildings revert to the Health
Board at nil consideration. There have been no changes in the arrangements during the year.

The Authority's share in the assets used to provide services at the facility are recognised on the Authority’s Balance Sheet.
Movements in their value over the year are detailed in the analysis of the movement on the Property, Plant and Equipment
balance in Note 12.1, their total net book value at 31st March 2021 being £1,240,744.

Page 186

52



12.5 Investment Properties

Investment Properties are those that are used solely to earn income and/or for capital appreciation. Investment Properties
are not used in any way to deliver a service and are not held for sale. The Authority's current portfolio of investment
properties consists of long held assets such as County Farms and District Shops and also a Solar Farm, Newport Leisure
Park and Castlegate Business Park constructed/acquired more recently. The resultant impact on the Authority's net
income is shown below.

The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

£000 £000
(4,983) Rental income from investment property (4,845)
2,401 Direct operating expenses arising from investment property 1,725

(2,582)|Net (gain)/loss (3,120)

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year.

Three asset valuations due to be carried out by the 31st March 2021 have not yet been completed and as a result are not
reflected in these draft statements. These relate to Castlegate Business park, Newport Leisure park and Oak Grove Solar
farm. The valuations will be completed during July 2021 and will be reflected in the final statement of accounts.

£000 £000

64,682 Balance at start of the year 63,427
235 Additions 141
(1,018) Disposals (2,458)

Net gains/(losses) from fair value adjustments recognised in Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure

88 Transfers (to)/from Property, Plant and Equipment 1,781

63,427|Balance at end of the year 65,304

Capital receipts totalling £5,102,490 were credited to the Capital receipts reserve during 2020/21 in relation to investment
properties (£4,206,058 in 2019/20).

(560) 2,412

Fair Value Hierarchy
Details of the Authority's investment properties and information about the fair value hierarchy:
2019/20 2020/21

I Type of Property

90 95 9

active markets
for identical
Observable
Significant
Unobservable
active markets
for identical
Observable
Significant
Unobservable

£
n
@
.2
S
o
o
Q
)
]
=1
o

Freehold Reversions

29,531 ziel sl Agricultural Properties 29,692 29,692

1,126 (L1205 Retail Units 1,236 1,236

1,709 1k 740¢) Industrial Properties 1,940 1,940
4,642 2547 Solar Farm 5,098 5,098
Share of CCRCD
Asset 1,781 1,781
Page 187

53



Properties acquired

26,330 BZEReEl o ool income 25,463 25,463

| o[ 20531 33806 63428) | 0] 29692] 35612 65304

There have been no transfers between levels during the year.

Level 2 Other Observable inputs: The fair value for the Agricultural Portfolio (at market rents) has been based on the
market approach using current market conditions and recent sales prices and other relevant information for similar assets
locally. Market conditions are such that similar properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable
inputs are significant, leading to the properties being categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Level 3 Significant Unobservable Inputs: The Freehold Reversions, Retail Properties, Industrial Properties & Solar
Farm located in the local authority area & properties acquired in 2018/19 for rental income are measured using the income
approach, by means of a term and reversion method. The approach has been developed using the authority’s own data
requiring it to factor in assumptions such as the duration, rent growth, occupancy levels, bad debt levels, maintenance
costs, etc. These property types are therefore categorised as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as the measurement
technique uses significant unobservable inputs to determine the fair value measurements (and there is no reasonably
available information that indicates that market participants would use different assumptions).

Highest and Best Use: In estimating the fair value of the authority’s investment properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use.

Valuation Techniques: There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment
properties.

Level 3 Investment Properties

A summary of the movement in the fair value of level 3 investment properties over the year:

2019/20
£000

2020/21
£000

38,331 Balance at start of the year 33,896
48 Transfers (to)/from Level 3 1,781
(19) Additions 8

0 Disposals 0
(4,464) gz:v ??(ier;s/(losses) from fair value adjustments included in Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of (73)

33,896|Balance at end of the year 35,612

Fair Value Measurement

The valuers arrive at a Fair Value for level 3 Investment Properties by applying a yield to the income stream. The yield
reflects the risk and is derived from factors such as the use made of the property, the quality of the tenant, the length and
security of the income and also in the case of retail, the location. These impact on rent growth, occupancy levels, bad debt
levels and maintenance costs. The yield is arrived at from the valuers knowledge of the market, from contacts and
published information alongside knowledge of the individual asset.

Valuation
Technique used Unobservable o
T f Pr r . Range Sensitivit
ypeo operty to measure Fair Inputs 9 y
Value
Freehold Reversions Yield 4%
Retail Units Yield 7% - 10%

Income approach,

by means of a term Yield 12% The Fair Value of the

Property will increase

Industrial Properties

. - o
Solar Farm andmrst\;]eorglon Yield 6% as the yield reduces.
Investment Assets Yield 6%
Investment Assets Yield 7%

Page 188

54



12.6 Assets Held for Sale

Assets held for sale comprise those assets that are available for inmediate sale and where the sale is highly probable and
will be actively marketed at its market value. The in-year movement and balance of assets held for sale as at 31st March
2021 are shown below:

£000 £000

2,100 Balance outstanding at start of year 2,060
0 Additions 0
232 Assets newly classified as held for sale: From Plant, Property & Equipment 2,320
0 Assets declassified as held for sale: To Plant, Property & Equipment (20)

0 Revaluation gains 334

0 Revaluation losses 0

0 Impairment losses 0
(272) Assets sold (2,135)

2,060|Balance outstanding at year-end 2,569

12.7 Heritage Assets

The Code requires that heritage assets are measured at valuation in the financial statements, together with comparative
year information. The Code however permits some relaxations in the valuation requirements of heritage assets, meaning
that the authority could potentially recognise more of the museums collections in the Balance Sheet. However, whereas
the Authority recognises some heritage collections in financial statements, it is of the view that obtaining valuations for the
vast majority of these collections would involve a disproportionate cost of obtaining the information in comparison to the
benefits to the users of the Authority’s financial statements. Whilst this exemption is permitted by the Code, the position
will be subject to ongoing review.

The Authority would not typically consider disposing of any heritage assets even though previously offers have been
received.

The following table summarises the movement in the carrying value of Heritage assets:

Civic
Regalia,

Museum|Artwork &
Exhibits| Collect'n

Cost or Valuation:
1st April 2019 100 4,464 180

Additions 237 0 -
Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the SDPS 0 = =
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the SDPS (189) - -

Reclassified from property, plant and equipment -

i a0 P

Cost or Valuation:

Additions 1 - -
Revaluation increases/ (decreases) recognised in the SDPS 0 = =
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the SDPS 1) - -

Reclassified from property, plant and equipment

T N7 N N

> N N h
BN ~ ~ o
© - © N o
N — = N — ~N | D o

Page 189

55



Property Heritage Assets

The Authority owns six property assets which meet the criteria for inclusion as heritage assets. These comprise the
following assets:

+ Caldicot Castle

* Angidy Ironworks, Tintern

* The Slaughterhouse - Arches, Monmouth
« Clydach Ironworks, Clydach

* War Memorial, Frogmore St, Abergavenny
* Tintern Station, Tintern

These assets were last valued on an existing use value (EUV) basis and were carried out internally by the Authority's
Estates Section under the supervision of the Head Of Commercial and Integrated Landlord Services (MRICS).

Further to this Abergavenny Museum and Castle is leased by the Authority.

Museum Exhibits

Monmouthshire operates four museums, namely Monmouth, (The Nelson Museum), Abergavenny, Caldicot (Castle) and
Chepstow. Each individual museum maintains an inventory of exhibits and the Authority last commissioned a valuation of
material items in August 2012.

The most significant museum exhibit is the Nelson collection which is included on the balance sheet at a valuation of
£4.3m and was last valued by external valuers in August 2012. The valuation was limited to selected items with market
prices in excess of £1,000.

Civic Regalia, Artwork & Collections

Five other assets are classified as Heritage assets under this classification where cost information was readily available.
These comprise the following assets:

* Henry Tapestry

+ Chairman's Chain of Office

* Vice Chairman's Chain & Insignia

+ Lady Chairman's Chain & Insignia

* Vice Lady Chairman's Chain & Insignia

These assets are currently valued at their most recent insurance valuation. The Authority currently has insurance cover in
place for the majority of the exhibits. This was agreed through negotiation with the insurance underwriters.

12.8 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below (including the value of assets
acquired under finance leases and PFI contracts), together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where
capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Authority, the
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure
incurred historically by the Authority that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second part of this note.

31st March

186,342 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 189,451
Capital investment:

Enhancing value:

14,802 Property, plant and equipment 9,569
(19) Investment properties 8
55 Intangible assets 0

49 Heritage assets 0

Not enhancing value:

Page 190

56



3,025 Property, plant and equipment 5,035

253 Investment properties 133
0 Intangible assets 0

0 Assets held for sale 0

189 Heritage assets 1
5,062 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 2,816
0 Loans & advances treated as capital expenditure 1,147

Sources of finance:

(5,910) Capital receipts (1,042)
(2,275) General Capital Grant (2,423)
(5,320) Capital Grants and Contributions (8,623)
(952) S106 Contributions (507)
(286) Direct revenue contributions (252)
Other:

(5,564) Minimum revenue provision (6,075)
0 Capital receipt set aside 0

189,451|Closing Capital Financing Requirement 189,236

Explanation of movements in year:

2,403 Increase in underlying need to borrowing - supported by Government financial assistance 2,417
6,270 Increase in underlying need to borrowing - unsupported by Government financial assistance 3,442
(5,564) Less: Minimum revenue provision (6,075)

3,109|Increase / (decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (216)

12.9 Capital Commitments

At 31st March 2021, the Authority had entered into 2 major contracts (i.e. those individually above £200,000) for the
construction of Property, Plant and Equipment in 2021/22 and later years, budgeted to cost a total of £1,090,595 (£0 at
31st March 2020).

12.10 Minimum Revenue Provision

The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is
required to make an annual minimum revenue provision (MRP) from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its
overall borrowing requirement.

Provision is made in accordance with the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (Wales) (Amendment)
Regulations 2014 and adjoining MRP guidance which places a simple duty for an authority each year to make an amount
of MRP which it considers to be “prudent”.

The Authority also makes additional voluntary revenue contributions in respect of finance leased assets.
The amount of revenue provision made by the Authority in 2020/21 was £6,075,366 (£5,564,000 in 2019/20).

12.11 Leases - Authority as Lessor
Operating Leases

The Authority has entered into operating lease arrangements to lease property assets to various individuals and
organisations. These primarily consist of Industrial units, County Farms, Land parcels and Recreation halls.

Page 191

57



The minimum lease payments receivable includes rents that are contingent on events taking place after the lease was
entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews. During the financial year £2,819,107 of minimum lease
payments were receivable by the Authority (£2,223,357 in 2019/20).

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

2,137 Not later than one year 2,660
6,716 Later than one year and not later than five years 6,285
12,793 Later than five years 10,849

el

Finance Leases
In 2016/17, the Authority entered into a Finance lease arrangement for land at the Old Cattle market in Abergavenny.

The gross carrying amount and present value of the minimum lease payments receivable under this finance lease is
detailed below.

2019/20 2020/21
E 2. Sog e 22 | Sog
> 0 o £ n = 0 6 o £ n
E gt ETSQ > E pEc =2 9
£ 2 < 8 E E Q5 < g2
=4 2 22 € S5 EC 29 e
5 B °c3¢o ¢ &2 38
O o = Ol
£000
156 160 Not later than one year 156 160
592 640 Later than one year and not later than five years 592 640
2,004 2,720 Later than five years 1,906 2,560

e ae] g |

The present value of the minimum lease payments has reduced during 2020/21 by the £160,000 receivable in year, offset
by finance lease interest receivable.

12.12 Leases - Authority as Lessee
Operating Leases
The Authority has acquired property, vehicles, plant and equipment by entering into operating leases.

The expenditure charged to the services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in
relation to these leases was £354,511 (£326,411 in 2019/20).

The future minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable leases in future years are:

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

281 Not later than one year 297
582 Later than one year and not later than five years 652
155 Later than five years 181

I

Page 192

58



13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, CURRENT ASSETS & LIABILITIES NOTES

13.1 Categories of Financial Instruments

A financial Instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as those relating to taxes, benefits and government grants,
do not give rise to financial instruments.

The Council adopted the IFRS 9 Financial Instruments accounting standard with effect from 1st April 2018. The main
changes include the reclassification and remeasurement of financial assets and the earlier recognition of the impairment of
financial assets.

Under the new Accounting Standard IFRS 9, financial instruments may be held at amortised cost or at fair value either
through other Comprehensive income or Profit & Loss.

Financial assets are held as amortised cost where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the
Council’'s business model is to collect those cash flows. This is the majority of our treasury investments such as term
deposits, certificate of deposits, call accounts, trade debtors for goods and services provided contractually and also lease
receivables. This excludes council tax debtors and grants receivable as they are non-exchange transactions.

Financial assets held at amortised cost and some assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income are
shown net of a loss allowance reflecting the statistical likelihood that the borrower or debtor will be unable to meet their
contractual commitments to the Council. For most assets, this is 12 month expected credit losses until the risk increases
significantly, then it is lifetime expected losses. For trade debtors expected lifetime losses are always used. Due to the high
credit rating of counterparties used for treasury investments 12 month expected credit losses are minimal.

Financial assets are held at fair value through other comprehensive income where cashflows are solely payments of
principal and interest and it is the Council's business model to collect these cashflows and sell the instruments before
maturity. The authority does not hold any such investments. The standard also allows the authority to elect to account for
equity investments through other comprehensive income if they are being held for strategic investment purposes, see table
below.

All other financial assets are held at fair value through Profit & Loss. This includes an existing unquoted equity investment;
a principal of £40,000 representing an equal share with Torfaen County Borough Council in SRS Business Solutions
Limited. This investment comprised seed funding for the company and is revalued at £60,000 representing the most likely
cash inflows resulting from this asset in the future. Further information is provided in note 16.6.

The following categories of financial assets are carried in the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021:

Long-Term| Short-Term Long-Term| Short-Term
31st March| 31st March 31st March| 31st March
£000 £000

Investments at amortised Cost:
32 3,000 Principal invested 13.4 1,179 20,458
Accrued Interest

Investments at fair value through other comprehensive income:

2,658 Equity Investments elected FVOCI 2,986
Investments at fair value through profit & loss:
Unquoted equity investments

_ 5,658 |Total Investments _ 1,362 23,444

Cash & Cash Equivalents at amortised cost:
22,363 Principal 15.3 19,158
14 Accrued Interest

n 22,377 |Total Cash & Cash Equivalents _n 19,158

At amortised cost:

Page 193

59



70 11,857 Trade Receivables 9,879

(611) Loss allowance (597)
2,710 98 Lease Receivables 2,557 100
214 (9) Loans made for service purposes

2,993 Included in Debtors _ 9,383

2,542 Current assets which are not Financial Instruments 3,098
17,175 Debtors which are not Financial Instruments 23,665

3,084 59,088 |Total Financial Assets _ 4,228 78,748

Long-Term| Short-Term Note| Long-Term| Short-Term

31st March| 31st March 31st March| 31st March

All of the Council’s financial liabilities are held at amortised cost including short and long term loans, bank overdraft, lease
payables, PFI contracts and trade payables for goods and services.

The following categories of financial liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021:

Loans at amortised Cost:

(92,563) (94,325) Principal sum borrowed (84,843) (97,911)
(797) Accrued Interest 0 (683)
(28) (1) EIR adjustments (28) (1)

©2,591) | (95,123) [Total Borrowings | 134] (s4871)| (98505

Loans at amortised Cost:
(1,475) Cash & cash equivalents (621)

n (1,475) | Total Cash & Cash Equivalents _- (621)

Liabilities at amortised Cost:

(708) PFI and finance lease liabilities (674)
(1,644) Other Long Term Liabilities (1,703)

(2,352) Total Other Long Term Liabilities _ (2,376) n

Liabilities at amortised Cost:
(7,034) (2,014) Trade Payables (1,134)

(7,034) (2,014) [Included in Short Term Creditors | 13s] o i3
(101,977) | (98,612) |Total Financial Liabilities _ (87,247) | (100,349)

(22,754) Short term creditors which are not Financial Instruments (35,271)

Other Current & long term liabilities which are not Financial
(232,599) (4,534) Instruments: (316,335) (4,758)

334,577) |  (125,899) [Total Balance Sheet Liabilities | | @o3s82)| (140378)
Equity instruments elected to fair value through OCI

31st March| 31st March|31st March 31st March| 31st March| 31st March

1,295 (254) 66 Kames Capital diversified monthly income fund 1,539 243
Page 194

60



914 (92) 37 Investec Asset Management Ltd diversified income fund 1,001 88 37

(56) 15 CCLA LAMIT Property Fund

2,658 (401) Total Balance Sheet Asset 2,986 _—

The Council has elected to account for the investments in pooled funds above which are equity instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income because they are long-term strategic holdings and changes in their fair value are not
considered to be part of the Council’s annual financial performance.

Financial Instruments - Income, Expense, Gains and Losses
The Income, expense, gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation
to financial instruments are made up as follows:

31st March 31st March
2020
£000
. . Fair value
Fair value | Fair value through Amortised
Financial Liabilities measured at: though through ug
OCI - cost
P&L OcCl
elected
18 Interest expense - finance lease /private finance initiative debtors 0 0 0 15
0 Losses on de-recognition 0 0 0 0
0 Losses from changes in fair value 0 0 0 0
1 Impairment losses 0 0 0 0
4,068 Other Interest expense 0 0 0 3,688

4,088|Total Interest payable and similar charges 3,703

Fair value
through | Amortised

Fair value | Fair value
Financial assets measured at: though through

P&L ocl OCl - cost

elected

(64) Interest income relating to finance lease debtors
(151) Interest from deferred receipts
(119) Dividend income (elected equity instruments)
0 Gains on derecogntion
0 Gains from changes in fair value
0 Impairment loss reversals

O O © o o o o
O O © o o o o

(139) Other Interest income

(43)
@afswos | o o am o

(473)| Total Interest & Investment income (231)

3,614 |Net impact on surplus/deficit on provision of services 3,472

: . Fair value
Fair value | Fair value th h | Amortised
(Restated) Impact on other comprehensive income: though through roug
OCI - cost
P&L OClI
elected
0 Gains on revaluation 0 0 330
(401) Losses on revaluation 0 0 (3)

0 Amounts recycled to surplus/deficit on provision of services

(01 -!-!__!

(401)[Impact on other comprehensive income _
3,213|Net (gain)/loss for the year 3,799

Page 195

61



13.3 Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments, except those classified at amortised cost, are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For most
assets, including pooled funds, the fair value is taken from the market price. The fair values of other instruments have
been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at 31st March 2021, using the
following methods and assumptions

. Shares in SRS Business Solutions Limited have been valued by discounting the expected future cashflows at
a rate reflecting the risk to the cashflows.

The value of financial instruments held at amortised cost have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the
remaining contractual cash flows at 31st March 2021, using the following methods and assumptions:

. Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over the whole life
of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for local authority loans.

. Discount rates for “Lender’s Option Borrower’s Option” (LOBO) loans have been reduced to reflect the value
of the embedded options. The size of the reduction has been calculated using proprietary software.

. The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at the market rates for similar
instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on 31st March 2021.

. The fair values of finance lease assets and liabilities and of PFI scheme liabilities have been calculated by
discounting the contractual cash flows (excluding service charge elements) at an appropriate rate.

. The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables, is assumed to approximate
to the carrying amount given the low and stable interest rate environment.

Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy:

. Level 1 — fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, e.g.
bond prices
. Level 2 — fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or

liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar instruments

. Level 3 — fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash flow forecasts
or estimated creditworthiness

Financial liabilities

Balance| Fair Value Balance sheet Fair Value Balance| Fair Value
Sheet position Level Sheet

31st March| 31st March 31st March| 31st March
2020 2021
£000 £000

Financial liabilities held at amortised cost:
(187,714) (210,863) Borrowings Borrowing (ST & LT) 2 (183,466)  (204,695)
(708) (678) PFI and finance lease liabilities Other LT Borrowing (674) (695)

ooz @rnsn 54140 05390

Financial liabilities held at amortised costs for which fair value
is not disclosed:

(1,475) Cash & Cash equivalent C&CE (1,293)
(2,014) Trade payables Short term creditors (1,134)
(1,644) Net agency creditor and lease deposits Other LT Borrowing (1,703)

(193556)]  |Total financial liabilities (188169)) |

Page 196

62



The fair value of financial liabilities held at amortised cost is more than the carrying amount because the authority’s
portfolio of loans includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the current rates
available for similar loans at the balance sheet date. This commitment to pay interest above current market rates increases
the amount that the authority would have to pay if the lender requested or agreed to early repayment of the loans.

Financial Assets

Balance| Fair Value Balance| Fair Value
Sheet Sheet

31st March| 31st March Fair Value | 31st March| 31st March

2020 Level 2021

£000 £000
Financial assets held at fair value:

2,658 2,658 Equity investments elected FV through OCI ST Investments 2 2,986 2,986

Unquoted equity investments held at
e =0 FVP&L

Financial assets held at amortised cost:
2,753 2,662 Lease receivables LT debtors 3 2,657 2,799
2,630 2,573 Trade receivables - deferred receipt LT debtors

Financial assets held at amortised cost for which fair value is
not disclosed:

LT Investments 183 183

22,377 Cash & Cash equivalent C&CE 19,158

5,658 Short term investments ST Investments 23,444

11,857 Trade Receivables Short term debtors 9,879
Loans made for service purposes Long term debtors

48,206 _ Total financial assets 58,517 _

There is a small difference between the fair value and carrying value of long term lease receivables and long term trade
receivables.

Nature and Extent of Risks arising from Financial Instruments

The Council complies with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management and Prudential Code for Capital Finance in
Local Authorities, both revised in December 2017.

In line with the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury Management Strategy before the
commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets out the parameters for the management of risks associated with
financial instruments. The Authority’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fund services. Risk management is
carried out by a central treasury team in conjunction with appointed treasury advisors.

The Treasury Management Strategy includes an Investment Strategy in compliance with the Welsh Government Guidance
on Local Government Investments. This Guidance emphasises that priority is to be given to security and liquidity, rather
than yield. The Council’'s Treasury Management Strategy and its management practices seek to achieve a suitable
balance between risk and return or cost.

Page 197

63



Whilst the majority of Investments used continue to be with institutions which are given a high credit rating by external
rating agencies and which continue to show other measures of credit worthiness, the authority's investment portfolio now
includes £3m in strategic pooled funds which achieve higher returns. The risk is controlled by following the advice of the
Authority's treasury management advisors, by the use of experienced fund managers and diversification within the funds
purchased.

The Authority's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

. Credit risk — the possibility that the counterparty to any of the Authority's financial assets will fail to meet its
contractual obligations to pay the amounts due, causing a loss to the Council.

. Liquidity risk — the possibility that the Authority might not have cash available to make contracted payments on
time

. Market risk — the possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise because of changes in market

variables such as interest rates or equity prices.

The revised Borrowing Strategy continues to take into account the fact that it is cheaper to borrow for shorter periods than
for long periods as previously was the case. It also took into account that there was a net benefit to be gained from
internal borrowing, where surplus cash is utilised to fund capital expenditure, compared to borrowing externally. This
approach reduces surplus cash balances but produces a net benefit as the cost of borrowing is higher than the returns
from investing the additional surplus cash.

a) Credit Risk
Treasury Investments

The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that treasury investments are only placed with organisations of high credit
quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. These include commercial entities with a minimum long-term
credit rating of A-, the UK government, other local authorities, and organisations without credit ratings upon which the
Council has received independent investment advice. Recognising that credit ratings are imperfect predictors of default,
the Council has regard to other measures including credit default swap and equity prices when selecting commercial
entities for investment.

A limit of £2m is placed on the amount of money that can be invested in unsecured investments with a single counterparty
(other than the UK government) for the majority of the Authority's activities (for more details see the Treasury Strategy).

The table below summarises the credit risk exposures of the Council’s treasury investment portfolio by credit rating and
remaining time to maturity:

Balance Balance Balance Balance
Long-term | Short-term Long-term | Short-term
31st March| 31st March|Counterparty Group | Investment Vehicle | Average Country 31st March| 31st March

£'000 £'000 ratin £'000 £'000
| £000 ] £o0 | | Jorang | | £000 | 000

Term Deposit with

0 3,000 UK Government DMADE AA+ United Kingdom 0 20,000
0 Local Authority Term Deposit AA+ United Kingdom 0 0
Bank Term Deposit United Kingdom 16,015

I T I O S B I

Credit risk Not applicable *
0 2,658 Pooled funds United Kingdom 0 2,986
91 0 Unquoted Equity United Kingdom 1,239 274

* Credit risk is not applicable to shareholdings and pooled funds where the Council has no contractual right to receive any sum of money.

Page 198

64



Loss allowances on treasury investments have been calculated by reference to historic default data published by credit
rating agencies, multiplied by 131% (2020: 365%) to adjust for current and forecast economic conditions. A two-year delay
in cash flows is assumed to arise in the event of default. Investments are determined to have suffered a significant
increase in credit risk where they have been downgraded by three or more credit rating notches or equivalent since initial
recognition, unless they retain an investment grade credit rating. They are determined to be credit-impaired when awarded
a “D” credit rating or equivalent. At 31st March 2021, £nil of loss allowances related to treasury investments.

Trade & Lease receivables and Contract assets

Credit risk also arises from the Authority’s customers and other contractual debtors. Customers for goods and services are
assessed taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors such as the current economic
climate. Risk of default and uncollectability is assessed based on the nature of the underlying debt and historic collection
rates. Receivables as at the year-end are illustrated in note 13.5 to the accounts, together with any associated impairment

age.

Trade receivables are normally written off to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services when over due, but steps
are still taken to collect sums owing until all economic avenues have been explored. The amount provided for but still
subject collection processes and its age profile is provided in note 13.5.

The Council has one finance lease receivable as a result of a lease disposal of a piece of land, which is held on the
balance sheet at amortised cost. The Council’s credit risk on lease receivables is mitigated by its legal ownership of the
asset leased, which can be repossessed if the debtor defaults on the lease contract, so no loss allowance has been
applied. At the 31st March 2021 the carrying value was £2,657,000. The fair value was £2,799,000 reflecting the
difference in interest rates used for the two estimates.

Loans, Financial Guarantees and Loan Commitments
The Council has not made any material Loans, Financial Guarantees and Loan Commitments.

b) Liquidity Risk

The Authority has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed.
If unexpected movements occur, the authority has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works
Loans Board, other local authorities. There is no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its
commitments. It is however exposed to the risk that it will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its borrowings at
a time of unfavourably high interest rates. This risk is managed by maintaining a spread of fixed rate loans and ensuring
net short term borrowing is no more than 50% of the Council’s net total borrowing.

The maturity analysis of financial instruments is as follows:

31st March 2020 31st March 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

S

The Loans Mature as follows:-

0 (2,718) (2,718) No defined maturity 0 (3,626) (3,626)
95,201 (3,000) 92,201 Less than one year 98,595 (20,000) 78,595
7,921 0 7,921 Between one and two years 3,013 0 3,013
13,207 0 13,207 Between two and five years 13,448 0 13,448
13,739 (32) 13,708 Between five and ten years 11,510 (1,179) 10,331
12,717 0 12,717 Between ten and twenty years 12,924 0 12,924
44,928 44,928 More than twenty years 43,976 43,976

The Counterparty analysis of Borrowing is shown below:

31st March 31st March
2020
£000
89,627 Public Works Loan Board 74,647
13,816 Market Loans & Bank loans 13,812
5,248 Welsh Government 5,062
Page 199

65



76,023 Local Government bodies 86,944
3,000 Special Purpose Vehicle 3,000

The financial liabilities due to Welsh Government at the 31st March 2021 are the outstanding balances from interest free
loans provided to fund energy saving Street Lighting capital schemes and a loan which funded the Oak Grove solar farm
construction. Accounting requirements require financial liabilities in the form of loans to be carried at amortised cost.
However, some of these interest free loans have not been carried at amortised cost on the grounds that the figures quoted
are not materially different.

Market loans are considered long term loans based on the remaining time to maturity, but it should be noted that they are
currently within their call period. If a lender should exercise a call option on one of these loans, Monmouthshire County
Council has the right to repay the loan immediately.

i) Interest rate risk

The Authority is exposed to significant risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and
investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates
would have the following effects:

. Borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement will rise

. Borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the borrowing liabilities will fall

. Investments at variable rates — the interest income credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement will rise

. Investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall

Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on
fixed rate borrowings would not impact the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. However, changes in
interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services and affect the Council Fund Balance. Movements in the fair value of fixed rate investments
measured at fair value will be reflected in Other Comprehensive Income or the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services as appropriate.

The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. The current 2020/21 treasury strategy includes a
limit on the Authority's exposure to interest rate risk. This limit of 50% applies to the percentage of net variable rate debt to
total net debt, where net debt is debt net of investments.

The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure that feeds into the setting of
the annual budget. In-year analysis allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise
whether new borrowing taken out is fixed or variable.

The interest payable and interest receivable during 2021/22, on borrowings and investments held at the 31st March 2021,
with all other variables held constant, would increase / (decrease), if interest rates were 1% higher. The most significant
impact would relate to variable rate and short term loans & investments, with long term instruments not being affected:

650 Increase in interest payable on borrowings 829
(29) Increase in interest receivable on investments (190)

0 Decrease in fair value of investments held at FVP&L 0
(13,459) Decrease in fair value of fixed rate borrowing * (12,630)

Page 200

66



* No impact on Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

The impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with the movements being reversed.

ii) Price risk

The market prices of the bond component in the Council’s multi asset pooled funds are governed by prevailing interest
rates and the price risk associated with these instruments is managed alongside interest rate risk. It is carrying a £60,000
investment in shares of SRS Limited, a company set up with and jointly owned by Torfaen Borough Council & Gwent
Police Authority. The property element of the Council’s multi asset pooled funds is subject to the risk of falling commercial
property prices. The equity element of the Council’'s multi asset pooled funds is subject to the risk of falling share prices.
These risks were limited by the Council’s maximum exposure to strategic pooled funds of £6m. A 5% fall in the value of
the property component or equity component held within these funds could result in a charge to Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure. The due diligence carried out before these investments purchased would indicate that any such
loss is expected to be either temporary or compensated for by the dividend income. One advantage of a multi asset
pooled funds is that property, equity and bonds prices are not fully correlated with each other reducing the risk of losses.

iii) Foreign exchange risk
The Authority has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus has no exposure to loss
arising from movements in exchange rates.

13.5 Debtors

The nature and value of payments due to the Council for the year but not received as at 31st March 2021, repayable in the
short term (within 12 months of the balance sheet date) and long term (after 12 months of the balance sheet date), is
summarised below:

T s e N I R R R
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Central Government Bodies:

0 3,671 0 3,671 Welsh Government 9,444 9,444

0 1,274 0 1,274 HM Customs & Excise 1,083 1,083

0 1,238 0 1,238 NNDR Debtor 2,306 2,306

0 708 0 708 gSEQELTax and Housing Benefit 406 406

0 0 0 0 Other 0
Other entities and individuals:

0 4,871 (22) 4,849 Other Local Authorities 4,956 4) 4,952

0 2,655 0 2,655 Deferred Capital receipts 0

2,710 195 0 2,905 Finance Lease 2,557 100 2,657

0 6,657 (55) 6,602 Revenue debtors 7,542 (55) 7,487

0 2,671 (1,667) 1,004 Council tax arrears 3,925 (1,895) 2,031

0 842 (154) 688 Corporate sundry debtors 1,323 (235) 1,088

0 1,540 (664) 876 Housing benefit overpayments 1,284 (649) 635

0 2,729 ) 2,727 NHS Bodies 1,756 1,756

0 901 (168) 733 Social Services debtors 784 (154) 630

0 256 (172) 84 Rent arrears 275 (204) 71

0 752 0 752 Capital debtors 16 16

204 0 0 204 Housing Advances 201 201

534 Other 109 1,043 1,152
67

79 455 0
2,993 31,416 2,904)| 31,505\ Total Debtors 36,244 (3,196) 35,914

Page 201

67



The aged analysis of short term debtors outstanding as at 31st March 2021 is as follows:

Over 24 Total
Months

£000 £000

Central Government Bodies:

Welsh Government 9,035 409 0 0 0 9,444
HM Customs & Excise 1,083 1,083
NNDR Debtor 1,025 969 300 12 2,306
Council Tax and Housing Benefit Subsidy 406 406
Other 0

Other entities and individuals:

Other Local Authorities 1,893 2,545 210 307 0 4,956
Deferred Capital receipts 0
Finance Leases 100 100
Revenue debtors 7,447 34 27 34 7,542
Council tax arrears 0 2,333 700 892 3,925
Corporate sundry debtors 67 673 369 123 92 1,323
Housing benefit overpayments 333 296 655 1,284
NHS Bodies 9 1,492 245 10 0 1,756
Social Services sundry debtors 64 170 247 123 181 784
Capital debtors 16 16
Rent arrears 33 21 43 33 145 275
Housing Advances 0

Other 883 883

The associated impairment for potential default and uncollectability for debtors outstanding as at 31st March 2021 is as
follows:

3 Months - Over 24
12 Months Months

£000
Other Local Authorities

NHS Bodies 0 0 4 0
Revenue debtors 0 0 17 14
Council Tax Arrears 0 0 516 487
Social Services sundry debtors 48 24 33 B
Corporate sundry debtors 0 0 89 79
Rent arrears 0 4 23 58
Housing benefit overpayments 0 0 66 64

13.6 Creditors

It is the Authority’s policy to pay creditors promptly, without undue delay and within mutually agreed terms. 97.88% of
payments were paid within a 30 day target settlement date (93.44% in 2019/20).

The nature and value of payments due to be made by the Council in the year but not actually made as at 31st March 2021
is summarised below:

Page 202

68



31st March 31st March
2020
£000
2,852 Central Government Bodies 10,222
3,383 Other Local Authorities 2,874
409 NHS Bodies 411
2,307 Capital Creditors 4,922
15,817 Other entities & individuals 17,975

24,768 |Total 36,405

13.7 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
The value of provisions as at 31st March 2021, together with their movement for the year, is summarised below:

As at 1st| Additional Unused As at 31st
April 2020 Provisions Amounts
Reversed
£000 p0[0]0)
Insurance Claims 13.7a 794 851 (794) 0 851
Insurance Claims - MMI 13.7b 32 0 0 0 32
Accumulating Compensated Absences 13.7c 3,553 557 0 0 4,109
Shared Resource Service (Public) Debt 13.7d 86 0 0 0 86
School Redundancies 482 0 (482) 0 0
CCRCD Consolidation 0

() N N Y Y N M

The analysis of provisions between those that are short-term and long-term where it is expected that the provision will be
settled within 12 months or greater than 12 months of the balance sheet date respectively, are summarised below:

Current| Long Term
31st March| 31st March

2020
£000
397 397 Insurance Claims 546 305
16 16 Insurance Claims - MMI 16 16
3,553 0 Accumulating Compensated Absences 4,109
86 0 Shared Resource Service (Public) Debt 86
482 0 School Redundancies 0 0

89 CCRCD Consolidation

The Authority maintains insurance policies to cover itself against claims made. The effect of these policies is to limit the
Council’s costs in relation to successful claims made against it. Annual insurance premiums have been recharged to
services during the financial year along with costs of claims incurred.

To satisfy IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, a full actuarial assessment of open insurance
claims was carried out at 30th September 2015 by the Authority's insurance brokers. The Authority has used this data to
project future potential liabilities on the basis of current claims received, policy excesses and stop losses (the capped loss
we can incur in any policy year). This assessment has allowed the Authority to reflect the estimated cost of liabilities at 31
March 2021. Provision has only been made where the Authority's insurers indicate a settlement is likely. The result is that
the total provision is at the most likely level to be paid out in the future. Any movement in provisions has been charged
against the services to which the claims relate.

Page 203

69



The Authority maintains the insurance and risk management reserve to assist in the control of the Authority’s insurance
risks. The balance in the reserve is reviewed annually as part of the assessment on the adequacy of reserves by the
Section 151 Officer. The reserve is required to cover potential claims not yet reported as well as recorded claims, which
do not merit a provision, referred to above. It therefore represents additional cover, over and above the provision, to cover
all foreseeable claims as at the balance sheet date.

The provision in place at 31st March 2021 was £851,000 (£794,000 at 31st March 2020) and the balance on the insurance
and risk management reserve as at 31st March 2021 was £846,000 (£846,000 as at 31st March 2020). These balances
are deemed to provide sufficient cover for the Authority's claims exposure.

A breakdown of the provision made across policy types is provided below:

31st March
2020

31st March

£000
622 Public Liability

172 Employer's Liability

b) Municipal Mutual Insurance (MMI

For the policy years before 1992/93, the local authority is exposed to an insurance liability relating to the closure of the
MMI Fund on 30th September 1992. MMI had insufficient funds to meet existing and future claims and its liquidators
exercised the option of recovering an initial levy from each scheme member of 15% via a levy notice on 1st January 2014.
The levy was increased to 25% by way of a second notice on the 1st April 2016.

In addition to the levy paid for settled claims, a percentage payment is also applied to outstanding claims which are
subsequently settled against the Authority. As at the 31st March 2021, a provision of £31,137 has been made for
outstanding claims of this nature, unchanged from 2019/20.

Short-term accumulating compensated absences comprise employee benefits in the form of holiday entitlements (or any
form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry
forward into the next financial year and are due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end.

A provision is made as a result of the earned benefit not taken before year-end being established on a sample basis of
employees, extrapolated to establish the estimated total accrued benefit. The provision is made at the wage and salary
rates applicable in the following accounting year, being the period in which the employee takes the benefit.

The provision is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in
Reserves Statement as required by regulations in place, so that holiday benefits are charged to revenue in the financial
year in which the holiday absence occurs.

The value of the provision made in respect of such employee benefits at the 31st March 2021 was £4,109,744 (£3,552,832
at 31st March 2020).

d) Shared Resource Service (SRS) Public Debt

Financial administration of the Shared Resource Service (Public) transferred to Torfaen CBC on 1st April 2019. As part of
the winding up of the administration it is possible that Monmouthshire CC may incur a write off for unrecoverable debt
relating to bills raised by SRS Public up to and including the 31st March 2019. The probability and timing of these write offs
still remains uncertain at the balance sheet date and therefore an FRS12 provision of £86,254 has been maintained as at
31st March 2021.

e) Asbestos Indemnity (Contingent Liabilit
As part of the process of transferring the Authority's council housing stock in 2007/08, Council approved changes to the
Stock Transfer Agreement to include an asbestos indemnity.

Page 204

70



It was a standard requirement of stock transfers that the local authority provides an indemnity to the funders and new
landlord, in this case Monmouthshire Housing Association, with respect to the presence of asbestos in the property
transferring. The indemnity does not apply in respect of the first £2.55million of costs incurred in relation to such works, as
updated annually by RPI.

The resultant indemnity is one where the authority has negotiated an initial limited contingent liability of £6.003million, to be
updated annually by RPI, for a period of 15 years from the date of transfer of 20th January 2008. 2 years remain of this
period.

There are no immediate financial implications and professional advice suggests a low risk of future liability arising. Low
risk does not however equate to “no risk” and the potential future liability, after updating for RPI is £6.679 million (£6.582
million as at 31st March 2020) , in the event the asbestos indemnity is called upon.

The latest available information indicates spend to date by Monmouthshire Housing Association (for the period 21st
January 2008 to 31st March 2021) is £124,456 (previously £124,456 for the period 21st January 2008 to 31st March
2020).

Page 205

71



14 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT NOTES

14.1 Participation in Pension Schemes
The council is required to account for its pension costs in accordance with IAS19 - employee benefits.

The Council makes contributions towards the cost of post employment benefits. Although these benefits will not actually be
payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time
that employees earn their future entitlement. The Council participates in two separate pension schemes; the Greater Gwent
Pension Fund (Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)) and the Teachers’ Pensions Scheme (TPS), both of which
provide defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions) earned as employees worked for the Council.

Whilst this is an unfunded multi-employer defined benefit scheme it is required to be accounted for as if it were a defined
contribution scheme, because the arrangements are such that the liabilities cannot ordinarily be identified specifically to the
Council. A notional fund is used as the basis for calculating the employer’s contribution rate paid by local authorities and
valuations of the notional fund are undertaken every four years. This scheme is administered by the Teachers’ Pensions
Agency (TPA). No liability for future payments of these benefits is recognised in the Council’s Balance Sheet.

The Authority's payments to the scheme relating to 2020/21 totalled £5,991,000 (£4,992,000 in 2019/20) in respect of
teachers’ retirement benefits.

Under this scheme there are separate arrangements for the award of discretionary post employment benefits upon early
retirement — these are unfunded defined benefit arrangements, under which liabilities are recognised when awards are
made.

There were £495,227 of contributions remaining payable to the scheme at the year end (£479,000 at 31st March 2020). The
Council is not responsible for any other employers’ obligations under this pension plan.

The Authority participates in two pension schemes administered by Torfaen County Borough Council:

. The Local Government Pension Scheme - This is a funded defined benefit scheme, meaning that the Authority
and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with
investment assets in the long term. Pension benefits accrued up until March 2014 are based on pensions being
a percentage of final salary. Benefits since that time have accrued on an average salary basis.

. Unfunded Teachers Discretionary Benefits - the Authority is responsible for the costs of any additional benefits
awarded upon early retirement outside of the terms of the teachers' scheme above. This is unfunded, meaning
that there are no investment assets built up to meet pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet
actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.

The following sections of the notes provide further supporting information covering the Authority's interest in the Greater
Gwent Pension Fund.

14.2 Pension Fund Stakeholders

14.3 Entries in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement
14.4 Expected future pension contributions

14.5 Actuarial Assumptions

14.6 Sensitivity analysis

14.7 Investments held by the pension fund

Page 206

72



14.8 The movement in the authority's share of the assets and liabilities within the Fund
14.9 A summary explanation of the movement in assets and liabilities

14.2 Pension Fund Stakeholders

The total defined benefit obligation for the Authority's share of the Greater Gwent Pension fund (excluding unfunded
liabilities) as at the 31st March 2021 is split as follows, along with the weighted average duration of each group:

2019/20 2020/21 Average Age 31st Mar
£000's - £000's 2021 in Years

242,171 44% Active 367,088 51% 51
101,334 19% Deferred 138,897 19% 51
202,078 37% Pensioners 216,972 30%

A breakdown of the investments held by the Greater Gwent pension fund, quoted and unquoted is given in 14.7 giving an
indication of the level of diversification and therefore risk within the Investment Portfolio.

14.3 Entries in the comprehensive income and expenditure statement

The Authority recognises retirement benefits in the net cost of services, as they are earned by employees not when the
benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the
cash payable to the pension fund in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/ retirement benefits is reversed out of the
Council Fund via the Movement in Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement and the Council Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year.

An allowance was made for the McCloud judgement in last year’s results Schedule and no further adjustment has been
made within this year’s result Schedule. The previous allowance within the balance sheet will simply be rolled forward and
therefore included within the closing position at the accounting Date. No explicit additional adjustment for McCloud has been
added to the current service cost for 2020/21 (or the projected service cost for 2021/22).

Finance is only required to be raised to cover teachers unfunded discretionary benefits when the pensions are actually paid.

Teachers'
Unfunded
Discretionary
Government
Teachers'
Unfunded
Discretionary
Benefits

=
c
(5]
g
c
S
(5]
>
o
O

2020/21 2020/21
£000's £000's

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
Net Cost of Services:
24,341 0 current service cost 20,168 0
1,357 0 past service cost/ (gain) including curtailments 91
0 settlement gain

25,698 n Total Net Cost of Services 20,259 n

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure:

14,982 109 interest cost on pension liabilities 12,905 (86)
(8,505) 0 interest income on plan assets (7,449) 0
0 0 Impact of asset ceiling on net interest 0 0

Total Post Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the
32,175 109| 2% " ploy 9 P 25,715 (86)
Provision of Services

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure:

Page 207

73



(56, 332) (484) (Gains) and losses on remeasurement 64,244 331

0 Effect of business combinations and disposals

(56,332) Total Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure _

(24.157) (375) Total qut Employment Benefit Charged to the Comprehensive Income and 89,959 245
Expenditure Statement

Movement in Reserves Statement
reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit for the Provision of Services

(EaAe)) (109) for post-employment benefits () =i
Actual amount charged against the Council Fund for pensions in the year:
12,724 431 employers' contributions payable to scheme 13,617 409

14.4 Expected future pension contributions

The total contributions expected to be made to the Local Government Pension Scheme by the Authority in the year to 31
March 2021 is £12,905,000. Expected contributions for Teachers Unfunded Discretionary Benefits scheme in the year to 31
March 2021 are £418,000.

Statutory arrangements are in place to ensure that the financial position of the fund remains healthy. In the 31 March 2016
Actuarial Valuation, a shortfall of 28% of the fund's liabilities was identified. The Fund's 'funding target' is to achieve and
maintain a funding level of 100% of liabilities. The maximum deficit recovery period has been set at 25 years. At each
Actuarial Valuation, a contribution rate is set to meet the funding target over the deficit recovery period.

14.5 Actuarial Assumptions

A draft report of the results of the latest full actuarial valuation of the Greater Gwent (Torfaen) Pension Scheme, based on
the position of the fund at 31st March 2019, was released in December 2019. In between formal valuations which occur
every three years the actuary assesses the extent of the employers pension assets and liabilities. The Actuaries report for
31st March 2020 including the projections for 20/21 is therefore based on this 31st March 2019 full valuation.

Both the Teachers unfunded discretionary benefits and the County Council fund liabilities have been assessed by Hymans
Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries. The actuary has used the projected unit credit method to arrive at their
valuation. This is dependent on the underlying assumptions which have been made about mortality rates, salary levels,
discount rates etc. Any differences which arise between these assumptions and actual trends will cause an associated
change in the net pension liability arising.

The principal assumptions used by the actuary in their calculations have been:

Financial Assumptions Local Government Pension Scheme
& Teachers Unfunded Discretionary
Benefits
2021 2020 2019
Rate of increase in salaries 3.2% 2.2% 2.9%
Rate of increase in pensions (inline with CPI) 2.9% 1.9% 2.5%
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 2.0% 2.3% 2.4%
Life Expectancy:

Current male pensioner aged 65 (years) 20.7 20.6 215
Current female pensioner aged 65 (years) 23.4 22.9 23.9
Future male pensioner aged 65 in 20 years' time (years) 22.1 21.6 23.6
Future female pensioner aged 65 in 20 years' time (years) 25.4 24.6 26.1

The discount rate used to value fund liabilities is based on market yields on high quality corporate bonds over appropriate
terms. To facilitate this, Hymans Robertson produce a corporate bond yield curve based on the constituents of the iBoxx AA
corporate bond index.

Page 208

74



14.6 Sensitivity Analysis
As noted above, changes to the financial assumptions disclosed in 14.5 will result in movements in the key pension related
financial outcomes. An estimation of the results of such movements are given below.

Change in assumption at 31st March 2021 Approxim |Approxim
ate % ate
increase |monetary
to amount
Employer |(£000)

0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate 10% 75,080

0.5% increase in the Salary Increase Rate 1% 7,381

0.5% increase in the Pension Increase Rate 9% 66,132

In addition the actuary estimates that a one year increase in life expectancy would approximately increase the Employers
Defined Benefit Obligation by around 3-5%. In practice this is dependent on the age groups predominantly affected.

14.7 Investments held by the pension fund
Teachers unfunded discretionary payments have no assets to cover its liabilities. The Local Government Pension Scheme's
assets are valued at fair value, and consist of the following categories, by proportion of the total assets held:

31st March 2020 Category i 31st March 2021

% %

47,772 14.8% Equities Yes 62,764 14.8%
Investment funds & Unit Trusts

186,585 57.8% Equities No 245,139 57.8%

54,190 16.8% Bonds No 71,196 16.8%

23,466 7.3% Other No 30,830 7.3%

8,129 2.5% Property No 10,680 2.5%

2,838 0.9% Cash accounts No 3,729 0.9%

0.0% Alternatives 0.0%

The movement in the authority's share of the assets and liabilities within the fund

The Movement in Fund Assets

c
i
»
c
)
o

Teachers

y Benefits
overnment
Teachers
Unfunded
Discretionar
y Benefits

=
c
(5]
S
c
P
[}
>
o
O

Discretionar

N

N
th
o 2
SN
S P

353,171 n As at 1st April 322,980 -

0 Settlement costs

8,505 0 Interest on plan assets 7,449
12,724 431 Employers contributions 13,617 409
3,352 0 Contributions by scheme participants 3,539 0
(39,633) 0 Gains / (losses) on remeasurement of assets 91,626 0
0 0 Administration expenses of plan assets 0 0
(15,139) (431) Benefits paid (14,873) (409)
Page 209

75



The Movement in Fund Liability
G165 ) )

(24, 341) 0 Current service cost (20, 168)
(1,357) 0 Past service (cost) / gain (including curtailments) (91) 0
0 0 Settlement gains 0 0
0 0 Curtailment costs 0 0
(14,982) (109) Interest on pension liabilities (12,733) (86)
(3,352) 0 Contributions by scheme participants (3,539) 0
95,965 484 Gains / (losses) on remeasurement of liabs (155,870) (331)
15,139 431 Benefits paid 14,873 409

0 Effect of business combinations & disposals

) I sz 0| sy

There were £1,124,000 of contributions remaining payable at the year end for the Local Government Pension Scheme (at 31
March 2020 £1,119,000 was payable) and £2,000 was owed to the Authority for the Teachers unfunded discretionary
benefits scheme (£2,000 at 31 March 2020).

Within the £727,091,000 of pension liabilities for the Local Government Pension Scheme at 31 March 2021 (£549,563,000
31 March 2020), there are £3,957,000 of unfunded liabilities (£3,993,000 as at 31st March 2020). £328,000 of employer
contributions were made in respect of these liabilities during the year.

14.9 Summary of the movement in assets and liabilities

Over the five years ending the 31 March 2021, the fund's actuaries have estimated that the Authority had the following
assets and liabilities:

I 7 7 S i
F0[0]0) F0[0]0) 1 20[0]0) 1 20[0]0) 1 20[0]0)

Local Government Pension Scheme

Present value of scheme liabilities (531,153) (544,485) (616,635) (549,563) (727,091)

Fair value of scheme assets 319,333 331,910 353,171 322,980 424,338

Teachers Unfunded Discretionary Benefits

Present value of scheme liabilities 5, 417) (5, 070) (4, 749) 3, 943) 3, 951)
Fair value of scheme assets

Total
Present value of scheme liabilities (536,569) (549,555) (621,384) (553,506) (731,042)
Fair value of scheme assets 319,333 331,910 353,171 322,980 424,338

Surplus / (deficit) in the scheme
Year on year increase in net liability (or deficit) - (409)| (50,568)| 37,687 (76,178)

There is a increase in the combined net liability of the Greater Gwent pension funds of £76,178,000 from 1 April 2020 to 31
March 2021. This has resulted from a increase in the value of scheme liabilities of £177m offset by a increase in the value of
scheme assets. The increase in liabilities is due to changes in financial assumptions (e.g. increased inflation, decreased
discount rate, increased longevity/age presumptions).

Page 210

76



15 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Account to Net Cash Flows
from Operating Activities

2019/20 2020/21
20[0]0) 0[0]0)

23,195 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 6,946

Non-cash transactions:

(11,498) Depreciation of non-current assets (12,684)
(3,732) Impairment and downward valuations (7,539)
(186) Amortisation of intangible non-current assets (79)
229 Increase/decrease in impairment for provision for bad debts (409)
52 Increase/(decrease) in inventories (40)
(1,309) Increase/(decrease) in debtors 4,417
2,267 (Increase)/decrease in creditors (11,438)
(850) (Increase)/decrease in provisions (132)
(19,129) Pension liability (11,775)
51 CCRCD: Capital & Revenue Grants recognised 201
(1,290) (C):raéreyriggozwizlézt of non-current assets, assets held for sale and investment properties which are sold (4,593)
(560) Movement in the value of investment properties 2,412
Items classified in another classification in the cash flow statement
(2,085) Other payments for investing activities 2,909
10,487 Other receipts from investing activities 9,811
(31) Other payments for financing activities (34)
(921) Other receipts for financing activities (753)
7,274 Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets 10,193

1,963|Net cash flows from Operating Activities (12,585)
15.2 Returns on Investments and Servicing of Finance

Returns on Investments received and Servicing of Finance paid during the year are made up of the following
elements:

e | "y

£000 £000
Returns on Investments received:

(448) Interest received (219)

(33) Other interest and investment income (25)

Servicing of Finance paid:
4,301 Interest paid 3,801
18 Interest element of finance lease rental payments 15

I e N Y7

Page 211

77



15.3 (Increase)/decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

At 31st
March 2020] Movement| March 2021

£000

Current Assets

Cash held by the Authority 424 (251) 172
Bank current accounts 0 0 0
Short-term call account deposits 21,953 (2,967) 18,986

Current Liabilities

Bank current account overdrafts (1,475) 854 (621)

Page 212

78



16 OTHER NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

16.1 Members Allowances
Information on members' allowances is available on request from the Payroll Manager, Payroll Section, Monmouthshire
County Council, @Innovation House, Wales 1, Magor, NP26 3DG.

The Authority paid the following amounts to Councillors and co-optee members of the council during the year:
B I =
£000 £000
595 Basic allowance 608
202 Special responsibility allowance 208
26 Travel allowance
0 Subsistence allowance
6 ICT Costs

4

16.2 Audit Costs
The Authority has incurred the following costs during 2020/21 in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts,
certification of grant claims, statutory inspections and to non-audit services provided by the Authority’s external auditors:

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

176 Fees payable to the appointed auditor with regard to external audit services - financial audit 176
103 Fees payable to the appointed auditor with regard to external audit services - Local Government Measure 103
55 Fees payable to the appointed auditor for certification of grant claims & returns 40

16.3 S31 and S33 Pooled Budget Arrangements

Section 31 of the Health Act 1999 and Section 33 of the NHS (Wales) Act 2006 enables the establishment of joint working
arrangements between NHS bodies and local authorities. Pooled funds enable bodies to work collaboratively to address
specific local health issues. A key feature of the pool is that the use of resources contributed to the pool should be dictated
by the need of clients who meet the criteria established for the pool, rather than the respective contributions by the
partners. Thus, it is to be expected that health service resources could be used to deliver local authority services and vice
versa.

Pooled funds are not legal entities. The partners in the pool will nominate one partner to be the host to the pool. That host
has responsibility for the administration of the pool.

a) Mardy Park Rehabilitation Scheme

The Authority had previously entered into a pooled budget arrangement with the Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board for the
provision of a Rehabilitation Scheme at Mardy Park which came into effect from the 1st April 2004, with the Authority being
host for the partnership.

The Purpose of the scheme was to reduce the time spent in hospital for rehabilitation patients who have no need for in-
patient care, undertaken through the assessment of individuals needs and on how community based schemes could adapt
to manage the risk of non-residential care effectively.

The income and expenditure for the pooled fund arrangements for the financial year ended 31st March 2021 was:

2019/20 2020/21
£000 £000

Funding
(257) Monmouthshire County Council (262)
(194) Monmouthshire Local Health Board (197)

Page 213

79



Expenditure

326 Employee related 326
72 Premises related 78
3 Transport related 1
30 Supplies & Services 35

40 Agency & Contracted

39
Total Expenditure 479
Net (Under)/over spend

The Authority has entered into a pooled budget arrangement with the Aneurin Bevan Local Health Board and four other
local authorities in the Gwent area, namely Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Newport and Torfaen. Under the arrangement
funds are pooled under Section 33 of the NHS (Wales) Act 2006. This agreement came into effect on 1st October 2008.

The Purpose of the scheme is to provide an efficient and effective integrated equipment store to service users who are
resident in the partnering localities.

Torfaen County Borough Council is the host for the Partnership, who recorded gross expenditure of £4,106,000
(£3,398,000 for 2019/20) and gross income of £4,106,000 (£3,398,000 for 2019/20) for the financial year ended 31st
March 2021. Monmouthshire County Council's contribution for the year was £382,000 (£323,000 for 2019/20).

The Authority has entered into a pooled budget arrangement with the Aneurin Bevan University Health Board. Under the
arrangements funds are pooled under Section 33 of the NHS (Wales) Act 2006 to provide health and social care in the
form of inpatient, outpatient, clinic and day care facilities to individuals who have medical, social, community or
rehabilitation needs. This agreement came into effect from the 1st June 2006.

The Facility is a unique project that replaced a number of out dated or separate facilities scattered throughout the County
with a new building that has been financed by a private finance partner over a period of 30 years. Further information is
contained in note 12.4 to the accounts.

Aneurin Bevan University Health Board is the host for the Partnership, who recorded gross expenditure of £3,768,000
(£3,687,000 for 2019/20) and gross income of £3,612,000 (£3,489,000 for 2019/20) for the financial year ended 31st
March 2021. Monmouthshire County Council's total contribution for the year was £1,171,000 (£1,166,000 for 2019/20).

d) Gwent Frailty Programme

A Section 33 Partnership Agreement exists between five Local Authorities in the former Gwent area and Aneurin Bevan
Local Health Board for the provision of Frailty services to service users who are resident within each of the Partner
Localities. This service became operational from the 4th April 2011 and the agreement came into effect from this date.

The Gwent Frailty programme has created a Community based integrated model of care through the establishment of
Community Resource Teams (CRT's) delivering a range of services to avoid hospital admissions, facilitate early discharge
and help individuals remain 'happily independent’ . The CRT's provide integrated Urgent Response, Reablement, Falls
Services within each Locality in line with agreed Locality Commissioning Plans (LCPs).

The programme has attracted Welsh government Invest to Save funding totalling £7.3m which is being used to pump
prime the establishment of CRTs and to fund the IT infrastructure. Partners have also committed recurring budgets to the
programme totalling £8.9m per annum and have agreed savings targets to ensure on-going financial stability.

Caerphilly County Borough Council is the host for the Partnership, who recorded gross expenditure of £16,623,000
(£16,458,000 for 2019/20) and gross income of £16,637,000 (£16,571,000 for 2019/20) for the financial year ended 31st
March 2021. Monmouthshire County Council's total contribution for the year was £1,411,000 (£1,361,000 for 2019/20).

Under section 169 and Part 9 Statutory Guidance of the Social Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) 2014, Welsh
Government has directed the forming of a pooled arrangement across Wales for Care Home Accommodation Functions
for Older People.

Page 214
80



The Gwent Regional Partnership Board decided to establish a pooled fund and service, by establishing a '‘Gwent' section
33 agreement from the 6 organisations being 5 Local Authorities comprising of Monmouthshire, Newport, Torfaen,
Blaenau Gwent and Caerphilly, along with Aneurin Bevan University Health Board.

Torfaen County Borough Council is the host for the Partnership, who recorded gross expenditure of £95,841,580
(£104,976,167 for 2019/20) and funding of £95,841,580 (£104,976,167 for 2019/20) for the financial year ended 31st
March 2021. Monmouthshire County Council's total contribution for the year was £8,870,266 (£9,737,712 for 2019/20).

16.4 Related Party Transactions

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or individuals that have the potential
to control or influence the Authority or to be controlled or influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transactions
allow readers to assess the extent to which the Authority might have been constrained in its ability to operate
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another party's ability to bargain freely with the Authority.

Central & Welsh Government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority - it is responsible for
providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of
core and specific grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the Authority has with other parties (e.g.
housing benefits). Details of grant income received from Central & Welsh Government and other government
departments are set out in note 11.6 to the Accounts and balances owing to/from these parties is outlined in notes 13.5 &
13.6.

Members of the council have direct control over the council’s financial and operating policies. The total of members’
allowances paid in 2020/21 is shown in Note 16.1. During 2020/21, works and services to the value of £17,892m
(£19.118m in 2019/20) were commissioned from other public bodies and companies in which nine members had an
interest. Contracts were entered into in full compliance with the council’s standing orders. In addition, grants totalling
£96,809 (£117,743 in 2019/20) were made to voluntary organisations in which three members had positions on the
governing body. No grants were made to organisations whose senior management included close members of the families
of members. In all instances, the grants were made with proper consideration of declarations of interest. The relevant
members did not take part in any discussion or decision relating to the grants. Details of all these transactions are
recorded in the register of members’ interest, open to public inspection at the Council headquarters during office hours at
its offices at County Hall, Usk, Monmouthshire, NP15 1GA.

The Authority has interests in companies and joint ventures and relevant transactions are disclosed in note 16.6 to the
Accounts about such interests.

Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires officers to declare any pecuniary interests that they may have
regarding any transactions being entered into by the Authority in which they have a direct or indirect involvement.

The Monitoring Officer for the Authority, Chief Officer for Children & Young People, Chief Officer Social Care Safeguarding
& Health and the Head of Policy and Governance have no pecuniary interests.

The Chief Executive was the Acting Returning Officer and Electoral Registration Officer for Monmouthshire during 2020/21
and held the following position during the year:

. Member of the Cardiff Capital Region Investment Committee
. Shared Resource Services - Board Member
. Innovation Point Wales - Non-Executive Director

The Head of Operations held the following position during the year:
. Non-Executive Director to Dragon Waste Limited
The Chief Officer for Enterprise held the following position during the year:
. Shared Resource Services - Business Solutions - Director

Page 215

81



The Deputy Chief Executive (Chief Officer for Resources) has an indirect involvement with:

. Cardiff Capital Region - City Deal

. Science and Innovation Advisory Council
. UKRI’s Research England Board
. Prince's Trust - Wales

Any transactions and balances held with these parties are shown within note 16.6 to the accounts.

16.5 Trust Funds

The Council acts as sole or custodian trustee for a number of trust funds. The funds do not represent assets of the Council
and they have not been included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The below balances are based upon unaudited
figures for the year ended 31st March 2021:

_
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(209) 5,143 (178) Welsh Church Act Fund (604) 5,542 (230)

The primary objective of the Charity is to assist groups and individuals for educational, social, recreational and other charitable
purposes. The Trust owns tangible fixed assets comprising eight parcels of land. Five of these are agricultural, two are grazing and
one is forestry.

Llanelly Hill Social Welfare

0 0 114 (114) oo

3) 3 129 (61)

The primary objective of the fund is the provision of a Social welfare centre to the residents of Llanelly hill. The Trust's fixed assets
comprise the social welfare centre premises and land upon which it is situated.

(5) 0 6 (1) Chairman's Charity (0) 0 7 0
The Chairman's Charity supports and raises funds for the Chairman's nominated Charity of the year.

Funds for which
Monmouthshire County
Council acts as custodian

trustee:
Monmouthshire Farm School
(27) 54 636 @ Endowment (42) 16 656 2
(1,094) 930 833 (669) Appointeeship - Personal Monies  (1,332) 1,119 1,045 0
16.6 Related Businesses and Operations

The Council has a number of interests in other entities which fall within the group boundary of the Council on the grounds
of control and significant influence in line with the Code.

In respect of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD), the Authority has included its share of income, expenditure,
assets, liabilities, reserves and cash flows relating to the arrangement within the single entity accounting statements and
disclosures. Further details of the arrangement are outlined below.

The Council's remaining interests in other entities, in aggregate, are not sufficiently material to warrant producing
consolidated financial statements when reviewing both quantitative and qualitative information. For this reason, group
accounts are not deemed necessary for these entities within these statements. In order to ensure compliance with the
Code, a range of narrative disclosures have been made as follows:

Dragon Waste Limited

The Company was formed to carry out the Council’'s waste disposal function. The Council holds a 19% share holding in
the company. The Company’s latest available trading results are the accounts for the year ending 31st March 2020.

Page 216

82



31st March 31st March 2021

168 Net Assets/(Liabilities) Not available
183 Profit/(Loss) before Taxation Not available
183 Profit/(Loss) after Taxation Not available

0 Dividends Not available

No assets or liabilities of the Company are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The remaining 81% of the
Company is owned by Viridor Waste Exeter Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Viridor Waste Limited. The
ultimate parent company

Net payments of £1,597,524 were made to Dragon Waste Limited during 2020/21 (£2,166,743 during 2019/20).

The Authority owed £281,345 to Dragon Waste Limited at the 31st March 2021 (£177,005 owed to Dragon Waste as at
31st March 2020) in respect of Waste Management contract income.

Once published, further information can be found in the Dragon Waste Limited Financial Statements for the year ended 31
March 2021 which will available from the Company Secretary, Pennon Group Plc, Peninsula House, Rydon Lane, Exeter,
Devon, England, EX2 7HR.

SRS Public

The Authority entered into a public sector collaborative arrangement, known as the Shared Resource Service, with Torfaen
County Borough Council (TCBC) and Gwent Police Authority in May 2011, Newport City Council and Blaenau Gwent
Borough Council have joined the partnership subsequently. The arrangement has resulted in a Shared Resources Centre
(SRC) being set up for the purpose of providing IT services to each member authority. A memorandum of understanding
is in place to provide robust governance arrangements. The arrangement is not a separate legal entity and ownership of
the SRS premises resides with TCBC. The arrangement is funded by core contributions from partners, income from desk
licences and rack rentals from schools and external income. Monmouthshire’s core contribution during 2020/21 included
in the Council’s Accounts totalled £2.133m (£2.169m in 2019/20).

The Authority owed £3,541 to SRS Public at the 31st March 2021 (£2,933 owed as at 31st March 2020).

Financial administration of the Shared Resource Service (Public) was transferred to Torfaen CBC on 1st April 2019. As
part of the winding up of the administration it is possible that Monmouthshire CC may incur a write off for unrecoverable
debt relating to bills raised by SRS Public up to and including the 31st March 2019. The probability and timing of these
write offs remains uncertain at the balance sheet date and therefore an FRS12 provision of £86,254 has been maintained
as outlined in note 13.7.

SRS Business Solutions Limited

SRS Business Solutions Limited, a company limited by shares, was incorporated on 11th June 2011. The company was
set up with £40,000 share capital from the Authority and TCBC, in order to facilitate trading in ICT related services with the
private and third sector.

The Company'’s latest available trading results are the draft estimates for the year ending 31st March 2021.

31st March 31st March
2020
£000
Final

139 Net Assets/(Liabilities) 133
(139) Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (3)
(139) Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 3)

0 Dividends 0

There were no transactions between Monmouthshire County Council and SRS (BS) during 2020/21 (nil in 2019/20).
Financial administration of SRS (BS) transferred to Torfaen Borough Council on the 19th October 2019.

Page 217

83



Melin Homes & Y Prentis

Y Prentis is a business set up by Monmouthshire County Council and Melin Homes with a 50/50 share to actively promote
the provision of technical and vocational secondary education.

The Company’s latest available trading results are the financial statements for the period ending 31st May 2021.

The company is exempt from audit under section 477 of the companies act 2006 for the financial year ending May 2021.

313 Total Assets/(Liabilities) 308
12 Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 8
12 Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 8
0 Dividends 0

There were no transactions between Monmouthshire County Council and Y Prentis during 2020/21 (nil in 2019/20). A
capital receipt of £2.7m was received by Monmouthshire County Council during the year from Melin Homes as part of the
sale of land relating to Crick Rd development.

Education Achievement Service (EAS)

The five local Councils of Monmouthshire, Caerphilly, Blaenau Gwent, Torfaen and Newport have formed an Education
Achievement Service (EAS). The integrated service has been designed to raise education standards in South East Wales.

The EAS became operational in September 2012. It is a joint company, limited by guarantee and wholly owned and
completely controlled by the five local Councils, but operating at arm's length. It is not a profit making company, and it is a
separate legal entity. There is no lead Council with each being represented equally with a 20% interest and having equal
voting rights. The company has a Board consisting of the Lead Director and elected member representatives from the
partner Councils. The collaboration Agreement commits the Council to participating in the EAS company for a minimum
period of four years.

The Company’s latest available trading results are the draft estimates for the period ending 31st March 2021.

31st March 31st March
2020
£000
Final

280 Total Assets/(Liabilities) 244

27 Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 2

27 Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 2

0 Dividends 0

Payments of £43,000 were made to the EAS during 2020/21 (£1,049,000 during 2019/20). There were no balances owing
to/from the EAS at 31st March 2021 (nil at 31st March 2020).

Gwent Archives

The five local Councils of Monmouthshire, Caerphilly, Blaenau Gwent, Torfaen and Newport are included in the Gwent
Archives Service. The integrated service collects, preserves, and makes accessible to the public, documents relating to
the area it serves.

The Company'’s latest available trading results are the draft estimates for the period ending 31st March 2020.

31st March 31st March
2020

0]0]0]
Final

Page 218



307 Total Assets/(Liabilities) 305

39 Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 2
39 Profit/(Loss) after Taxation )
0 Dividends 0

Payments of £182,244 were made to Gwent Archives during 2020/21 (£182,244 during 2019/20). There were no balances
owing to/from Gwent Archives at 31st March 2021 (nil at 31st March 2020).

Gwent Crematorium

The five local Councils of Monmouthshire, Caerphilly, Blaenau Gwent, Torfaen and Newport are included in the Gwent
Crematorium Service. The integrated service provides crematorium services to the public relating to the area it serves.

The Company'’s latest available trading results are the draft estimates for the period ending 31st March 2021.

31st March 31st March
2020
£000
Final

2,247 Total Assets/(Liabilities) 2,363
138 Profit/(Loss) before Taxation 63
138 Profit/(Loss) after Taxation 63

0 Dividends 0

A payment of £210,382 was received from Gwent Crematorium during the 2020/21 financial year (£140,255 during
2019/20). There were no balances owing to/from Gwent Crematorium at 31st March 2021 (nil at 31st March 2020).

Project Gwyrdd

The five local Councils of Monmouthshire, Caerphilly, Newport, Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan are included within the
Project Gwyrdd. The integrated service collects, processes, and disposes of household waste that is suitable for recycling.

The Company’s latest available trading results are the draft estimates for the period ending 31st March 2020.

31st March 31st March
2020
£000
Final

322 Total Assets/(Liabilities) 308
(8) Profit/(Loss) before Taxation (12)
(8) Profit/(Loss) after Taxation (12)
0 Dividends 0

Payments of £27,000 were made to Project Gwyrdd during 2020/21 (£27,000 during 2019/20). There was £27,000 owing
to Project Gwyrdd at 31st March 2021 (nil at 31st March 2020).

Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD)

A Joint Working Agreement formally established the Cardiff Capital Region Joint Committee (the Regional Cabinet) as a
Joint Committee, with delegated functions, from 1st March 2017. Itis a partnership between the 10 councils in South East
Wales and its aim is to oversee the Region’s economic growth and to deliver the commitments set out in the CCR City
Deal, specifically in relation to the Wider Investment Fund, which amounts to £495 million, with £120 million being
contributed by the 10 councils on a pro rata population basis.

In accordance with the Code requirements, the Authority has included its share of income, expenditure, assets, liabilities,
reserves and cash flows relating to the arrangement within the single entity accounting statements and disclosures.

Page 219

85



In terms of capital spending a contribution of £122k was made in 2020/21 (Nil contribution in 2019/20). There were no
balances owing to/from the joint committee at 31st March 2021 (nil at 31st March 2020).

CSC Foundry

During 2020/21 MCC had 'Significant Influence' over CSC Foundry Ltd which is a subsidiary of CCRCD. As at 31st March
2021 CSC Foundry had £3.0m invested with the Authority which is classified within Short term borrowing in the Balance
sheet (£3.0m in 2019/20).

16.7 Senior Officer Remuneration
The remuneration paid to the Authority’s senior employees, where annualised salary is equal to or more than £60,000 per
year, is as follows:

Year ended 31st March 2021

Compensation for loss
Pension Contributions
(Based on Common

v Rate from Actuary)

Salary including fees
w» Of employment

t» and allowances
Total Remuneration
including Pension

Total Remuneration
w contributions

excluding Pension
th contributions

w» Expense Allowances

Post Holder

Chief Executive Officer 119,955 0 0 119,955 27,710 147,665
Chief Officer - Children and Young People 88,095 0 0 88,095 20,350 108,445
Chief Officer - Enterprise 86,871 0 0 86,871 20,067 106,938
Chief Officer - Social Care, Safeguarding 88,095 0 0 88,095 20,350 108,445
Chief Officer - Resources & Acting Section 151 Officer 88,095 0 0 88,095 20,350 108,445
Head of Law & Monitoring Officer 75,859 0 0 75,859 17,523 93,382
Head of Policy & Governance 70,353 0 0 70,353 16,252 86,605

a L] o o] ovam| o] msesm

Year ended 31st March 2020

@ & 2
g ~ gl <. 254 s
R = o = > o c
>, = gl B8 S E8 g 2
S8 55| E| 25| E&E| 2.
S ¢ = £ = Sac SO < S <=
- S © < o O c o
ez P p E o5 S € E o
=0 = = o €S S c o L c S
&5 £ § gl =22 23| w22
&5 S g 2358 fag 258
Post Holder £ £ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive Officer 116,744 0 0 116,744 26,968 143,712
Chief Officer - Children and Young People 85,737 0 0 85,737 19,805 105,542
Chief Officer - Enterprise 83,355 0 0 83,355 19,255 102,610
Chief Officer - Social Care, Safeguarding 84,546 0 0 84,546 19,530 104,076
Chief Officer - Resources & Acting Section 151 Officer 81,959 0 0 81,959 18,851 100,810
Head of Law & Monitoring Officer 72,638 0 0 72,638 16,779 89,417
Head of Policy & Governance 66,089 0 0 66,089 15,267 81,356

a o] 0| 0| ssioee| 1] raren]

Senior Officers are defined for the purposes of this disclosure as the Chief Executive, together with those senior officers
that the Chief Executive is either directly responsible for or senior officers who are directly accountable to the Chief
Executive. If they meet this definition any time during the year, their annual salary has been reported.

Page 220

86



Senior staff can act in an ancillary capacity as Returning Officers overseeing the administration of periodic referenda and
elections. Commonly the fee for such work is nationally set. For the avoidance of any doubt, any such costs are not
included in this analysis.

Employers' pension contributions were paid at a rate of 23.1% of pensionable pay for staff within the Local Government
Pension Scheme (23.1% for 2019/20). Expense allowances are defined as those additional costs that are chargeable to
income tax and no such costs are reported in respect of 2020/21 (Nil in 2019/20).

In satisfying the requirement to report the Chief Executive's remuneration as a proportion of the full time equivalent median
salary of Monmouthshire County Council employees. In 2020/21, the median employee position has been calculated as
£24,012, equating to spinal point 16 and resulting in a median ratio when compared with the Chief Executive Officer salary
of 5:1

In 2019/20, the median employee position was calculated as £22,911, equating to spinal point 15 and resulting in a median
ratio when compared with the Chief Executive Officer salary of 5.10:1

For the purposes of reporting remuneration, voluntary aided schools' employees have been included in the remuneration
notes 16.7 to 16.9, where appropriate, as if they were employees of the council even though their contract of employment
is with their respective governing body.

16.8 Officers’ Emoluments

The number of employees whose remuneration was £60,000 or more in bands of £5,000, during the year ended 31st
March 2021, was:

2019/20 Remuneration Band 2020/21

Number of| (Of which Number of

I EES employees

0
0
0
1
2
0
0
0
1
2
5
2
8

0 £130,000 - £134,999
0 £125,000 - £129,999
0 £120,000 - £124,999
0 £115,000 - £119,999
1 £110,000 - £114,999
0 £105,000 - £109,999
0 £100,000 - £104,999
0 £95,000 - £99,999
1 £90,000 - £94,999
1 £85,000 - £89,999
2 £80,000 - £84,999
0 £75,000 - £79,999
3 £70,000 - £74,999
8 £65,000 - £69,999
9 £60,000 - £64,999

I T R N

Remuneration is defined as gross salary and expenses and the effect of any severance costs e.g. redundancy, termination
and compromise agreements. Remuneration also excludes pension contributions.

[EEY

o © o0 B B O O O N O O
N N O B P P O O O O O O

[y
N

[
S
[EEN
N
[
[

Bandings above include the effect of senior officers shown in note 16.7.

Employers' pension contributions were paid at a rate of 23.1% of pensionable pay for staff within the Local Government
Pension Scheme (23.1% for 2019/20) and 23.68% of pensionable pay for staff within the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(20.7% in 2019/20).

Page 221

87



16.9 Termination Benefits

The Code does not set out a precise definition of exit packages and authorities need to consider the relevant departure
costs that have been recognised in the financial statements in accordance with the Code’s requirements on termination
benefits.

Termination benefits are defined as amounts payable as a result of either an employer’s decision to terminate an
employee’s employment before the normal retirement date, or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of benefits in
exchange for the termination of employment. The Code sets out that the form of the employee benefit does not determine
whether it is provided in exchange for service or in exchange for termination of the employee’s employment.

Total Cost of Exit packages reflects redundancy payments, settlement agreements to terminate employment, and any
strain costs associated with the agreed enhancement of post-employment pension benefits.

2019/20 Exit package Cost band 2020/21
B2y o 2 =S 3 o 2 =k
s5c8| £23|d3 = 2% 58
Z S c o o — c o o w— @
£ c = 0 0 c = n 0
o > o £ o o S o & o
° Z s O o ) Z 5 O o
03 ] = 5] o ]
@ & ® < @ & T <
o o 3 o ° &
o = a
£000's
47 8 388 £0 - £20,000 29 8 203
14 1 409 £20,001 - £40,000 1 0 27
0 0 0 £40,001 - £60,000 1 3 193
2 0 129 £60,001 - £80,000 2 1 194
1 1 170 £80,001 - £100,000 0 2 169
2 0 268 £100,001 - £150,000 0 0 0
2 0 314 £150,001 - £200,000 0 0

m--——

16.10 Events after the Balance Sheet date

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date
when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. There are two types:

e Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the Statement of Accounts
are adjusted to reflect such events.

e Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period - the Statement of Accounts are not
adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the
notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

No such unadjusting events have been identified subsequent to the balance sheet date.

Page 222

88



17
17.1

17.2

17.3

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial year and its
position at the year-end of 31st March 2021.

The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (Wales)
Regulations 2014 (as amended), which those Regulations require to be prepared in accordance with
proper accounting practices.

These practices, under Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2003, primarily comprise the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, supported by International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by
the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. They are prepared on
a going concern basis, under the assumption that the Council will continue in existence for the foreseeable
future.

Unless otherwise stated the convention used in this document is to round to amounts the nearest thousand
pounds. All totals are the rounded totals of unrounded figures and, therefore, may not be the strict sums of
the figures presented in the text or tables. Throughout the Statements all credit balances are shown with
parentheses e.g. (£1,234).

Accounting Standards issued not yet adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) requires the
disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an accounting change that will be required by a
new standard which has been issued but is yet to be adopted by the 2020/21 Code.

 Definition of a Business: Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations
¢ Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

* Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16

These changes are not expected to have a material impact on the Councils financial statements.

« IFRS 16 — Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on their balance
sheets as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease liabilities (there is recognition for low-value and
short-term leases). CIPFA/LASAAC have deferred implementation of IFRS16 for local government to 1
April 2022. The adoption of IFRS 16 will likely have a material impact to the accounts but the exact impact
is not yet known.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place rather than when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:

* Revenue from the sale of goods or services is recognised in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the contract.

» Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the
date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance
Sheet.

Page 223

89



17.4

17.5

17.6

+ Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

* Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for on the basis of the
effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.

*  Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be
settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might
not be collected.

» Adiscretionary deminimus level of £1,000 is applied to accruals of both income and expenditure with
the exception of automatically system generated accruals or those required where it is necessary to
ensure accuracy for grant claims or agency work.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penalty on
the next banking day. Cash equivalents are investments that are readily convertible on the next banking
day to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost
of holding fixed assets during the year:

+ Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.

* Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off.

* Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or
amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction
in its overall borrowing requirement equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis determined by
the authority in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and
amortisations are therefore replaced by the contribution in the Council Fund Balance with a Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP), by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in this note, the Authority has had to make certain judgements
about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The critical judgements
made in the Statement of Accounts are:

The Council is deemed to control the services provided under its PFI arrangements and also to control the
residual value of the assets at the end of the contract. The accounting policy for PFls and similar contracts
has been applied to these arrangements and the assets are recognised as Property, Plant and Equipment
in the Council’s Balance Sheet.

Page 224
90



17.7

Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) — a number of points are considered relevant in

determining to present this item of expenditure as gross in the Cost of Services segment

of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement rather than netting it off Council

Tax income in the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income segment. The most persuasive

and significant of these being that, as there is no specific reference to the proper

accounting treatment of CTRS in the CIPFA Accounting Code of Practice or Guidance

Notes, reliance has been placed on IPSAS 23 - Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (taxes and
transfers). This standard is relevant to public sector bodies, and states that taxation revenue shall be
determined at a gross amount; it shall not be reduced for expenses paid through the tax system.

Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the
Authority about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical
experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined
with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31st March 2021 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Item

Uncertainties

Consequences if actual
results differ from
assumption

Revaluation of
Property, plant &
equipment and
Investment Property

The valuations carried out for the Council by its
valuers this year recognises that the Covid-19
pandemic and the measures & restrictions
implemented to tackle it continue to impact
economies and real estate markets globally.
Nevertheless, as at the valuation date property
markets are mostly functioning again, with
transaction volumes and other relevant evidence at
levels where an adequate quantum of market
evidence exists upon which to base opinions of
value. Accordingly, and for the avoidance of doubt,
the valuations are not reported as being subject to
‘material valuation uncertainty’ as they were last
year. It is recognised however that there is potential
for market conditions to move rapidly in response to
changes in the control or future spread of Covid-19
and the valuers therefore simply highlight the
importance of the valuation date.

If the actual results differ from
the assumptions the value of
PPE and Investment Property
will be over or understated.
This would be adjusted when
the assets were next revalued.

Revaluation of
Property, plant &
equipment

Property, plant and equipment (with the exception
of infrastructure, community assets, assets under
construction and vehicles, plant and equipment)
are revalued on a periodic basis and tested
annually for indicators of impairment. Judgements
are required to make an assessment as to whether
there is an indication of impairment. The
impairment tests include examination of capital
expenditure incurred in the financial year to
ascertain whether it has resulted in an increase in
value or an impairment of an asset.

Page 225

91

If the actual results differ from
the assumptions the value of
PPE will be over or
understated. This would be
adjusted when the assets
were next revalued.




17.8

Property, Plant and
Equipment

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are
dependent on assumptions about the level of
repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in
relation to individual assets. The current economic
climate makes it uncertain that the Authority will be
able to sustain its current spending on repairs and
maintenance, bringing into doubt the useful lives
assigned to assets.

If the useful life of assets is
reduced, depreciation
increases and the carrying
amount of the assets falls.

Pensions Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions
depends on a number of complex judgements
relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase, changes in
retirement ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting
actuaries is engaged to provide the Authority with
expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

The assumptions interact in
complex ways. Further
information is provided in note
14 concerning the risks and
sensitivity of changes in the
pension assets and liabilities.

Provisions The Council has included provisions for known The Authority maintains the
insurance claims as at 31st March 2021. The value [insurance and risk
of these claims is based on information provided by |management reserve to assist
our Insurance brokers on the number of claims in the control of the Authority’s
outstanding at the end of the financial year, the insurance risks. The
average settlement amount for each type of claim [provisions in place and the
and the likelihood of each type of claim being balance on the insurance and
settled. However the outcome of these cases is still [risk management reserve at
uncertain as outstanding legal cases and 31st March 2021 are deemed
negotiations remain on going. to provide sufficient cover for
the Authority's claims
exposure. Notes 13.7(a) &
13.7(b) provide further
information on the types of
claims the Authority is
exposed to.
Arrears At 31st March 2021, the Authority had an If collection rates were to

outstanding balance of short term debtors totalling
£36.2m. Against this debtors balance, there is an
impairment allowance of £3.2m. It is not certain that
this impairment allowance would be sufficient as the
Authority cannot assess with certainty which debts
will be collected or not.

deteriorate, there would be a
consequential increase in the
impairment of doubtful debts.

Employee Benefits

Page 226

92




Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They include
such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave for current employees and are
recognised as an expense for services in the year in which employees render service to the Authority. A
provision is made for the cost of holiday entitlements (or any form of leave, e.g. time off in lieu) earned by
employees but not taken before the year-end which employees can carry forward into the next financial
year. The provision is made at the wage and salary rates applicable in the following accounting year, being
the period in which the employee takes the benefit. The provision is charged to Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services, but then reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday
benefits are charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Authority to terminate an officer’s
employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and
are charged on an accruals basis to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when the
Authority is demonstrably committed to the termination of the employment of an officer or group of officers
or making an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the Council
Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or pensioner in
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in
Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional
debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash
paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Employees of the Authority are members of two separate pension schemes:

* The Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered by Capita Teachers' Pensions on behalf of the
Department for Education (DfE).

* The Local Government Pensions Scheme, administered by Torfaen County Borough Council

Both schemes provided defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as
employees when they worked for the Authority and related to final salary and length of service.

However, the arrangements for the teachers' scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits cannot be
identified to the Authority. The scheme is therefore accounted for as if it were a defined contributions
scheme and no liability for future payment of benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet. The Children’s
and Education Services line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the
employer’s contributions payable to Teachers’ Pensions in the year.

All other staff, subject to certain qualifying criteria, are entitled to become members of the Local
Government Pension Scheme which is administered by Torfaen County Borough Council. The pension
costs charged to the Authority’s accounts in respect of this group of employees is determined by the fund
administrators and represents a fixed proportion of employees’ contributions to this funded pension
scheme.

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme:

» The Liabilities of the pension fund attributable to the Authority are included in the balance sheet on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be
made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions such as
mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc., and projections of earning for current employees.

Page 227
93



17.9

+ Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a single discount rate which is derived
from the spot rates on a selection of AA rated corporate bonds of various durations which match the
liabilities within the Authority’s pension fund. This is known as the yield curve approach.

* The assets of the Greater Gwent (Torfaen) Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in
the balance sheet at their fair value as determined by the Fund's actuary.

* The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

- Current service cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year —
allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the
employees worked

- Past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect
relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-
Distributed Costs.

- Interest cost — the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they move
one year closer to being paid — debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

- Interest on plan assets — this is the interest on assets held at the start of the period and cashflows
occurring during the period, calculated using the discount rate at the start of the year.

- Gains or losses on settlements and curtailments — the result of actions to relieve the Authority of
liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or accrual of benefits of employees —
debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-Distributed Costs.

- Gains or losses on remeasurement — changes in the net pensions liability (Liabilities less assets)
that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation
or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions — charged to the Pensions Reserve.

Contributions paid to the pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to the pension fund
in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the Council Fund balance to be charged with
the amount payable by the Authority to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves
Statement, this means that there are appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the
pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative
balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the Council Fund
of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are
earned by employees.

Further details are given in section 14 of the notes to the Financial Statements.

The Authority also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of
early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff
(including teachers) are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the
same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Page 228

94



17.10

17.11

17.12

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for
issue. Two types of events can be identified:

+ Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period —
the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

» Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of
Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material
effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement
of Accounts.

Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately, either
on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts,
depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Authority’s financial performance.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument. They are classified based on the business model for
holding the instruments and their expected cashflow characteristics.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. For
the Council’s borrowing this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding
principal repayable (plus accrued interest).

Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument.

Financial assets are held as amortised cost where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
and the Council’s business model is to collect those cash flows. This is the majority of our treasury
investments such as term deposits, certificate's of deposit and call accounts and also trade debtors for
goods and services provided contractually and also lease receivables. This excludes council tax debtors
and grants receivable as they are non-exchange transactions.

Financial assets held at amortised cost are shown net of a loss allowance reflecting the statistical likelihood
that the borrower or debtor will be unable to meet their contractual commitments to the Council. For most
assets, this is 12 month expected credit losses until the risk increases significantly, then it is lifetime
expected losses. For trade debtors expected lifetime losses are always used.

Financial assets are held at fair value through other comprehensive income where cashflows are solely
payments of principal and interest and it is the Council's business model to collect these cashflows and sell
the instruments before maturity. The authority does not hold any such investments. The standard also
allows the authority to elect to account for equity investments through other comprehensive income if they
are being held for strategic investment purposes.

All other financial assets are held at fair value through Profit & Loss.

Government Grants and Contributions

Page 229

95



17.13

17.14

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party contributions and
donations are recognised as due to the Authority when there is reasonable assurance that:

*  The Authority will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
* The grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Authority are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions
are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset
acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or future
economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried in
the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the
relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant
Income (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are
reversed out of the Council Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the grant has
yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied reserve. Where it
has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied
reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital
expenditure.

Heritage Assets

Heritage assets are assets that are held by the authority principally for their contribution to knowledge or
culture.

Heritage assets were previously shown in community assets but are now recorded in a separate category
on the balance sheet as a non-current asset class. The Authority does not classify any operational assets
as heritage assets.

Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and losses) in
accordance with the Authority’s accounting policies on property, plant and equipment. However, some of
the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets and as a result the Authority has chosen
not to value heritage assets if the cost is deemed to be excessive.

A further condition for expenditure to be capitalised is that it exceeds the relevant de minimus limit in place.
A de-minimus limit has been put in place of £10,000 for heritage assets.

The Authority considers that the heritage assets held by the Authority will have indeterminate lives and a
high residual value, hence the Authority does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation for the
assets.

The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment, for example
where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its authenticity.
Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the Authority’s general policies on
impairment. The trustees of the Authority's Museum will occasionally dispose of heritage assets which
have a doubtful provenance or are unsuitable for public display. The proceeds of such items are accounted
for in accordance with the Authority’s general provisions relating to the disposal of property, plant and
equipment. Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and are
accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure and
capital receipts.

Intangible Assets

Page 230

96



17.15

17.16

17.17

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the
Authority as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future
economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Authority for more than one
financial year.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically feasible
and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the Authority will be able to
generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset.
Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and is restricted to
that incurred during the development phase (research expenditure cannot be capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily intended
to promote or advertise the Authority’s goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of the
assets held by the Authority can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no intangible
asset held by the Authority meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The
depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service line(s) in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact on the
General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and, for any sale
proceeds greater than £10,000, the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Inventories and Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the latest price paid, with an allowance made for
obsolescent and slow moving items. This is a departure from the requirements of the Code which require
inventories to be shown at the lower of actual cost and net realisable value. However, the amounts
concerned are not considered material.

Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year.

Investment Property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value. Investment properties
are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end.

Revaluation gains and losses are recognised in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line
within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. However, regulations do not permit
unrealised gains and losses to impact the General Fund balance. Therefore, gains and losses are reversed
via the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Net rental income together with any revaluation gains and losses or impairments are recognised in the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Fair value measurement

Page 231

97



17.18

17.19

The Council measures its assets held for sale, surplus assets, investment properties and
available-for-sale financial instrument at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Measurement will be at
highest and best use from the perspective of a market participant. The fair value of an
investment property held under a lease is the lease interest.

It is assumed that any fair value measurement of an asset or liability uses the same
assumptions that market participants acting in their economic best interest would use and that
the transaction takes place in the principal market or failing that in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability.

Appropriate valuation techniques are used for which sufficient data is available. Inputs to the

techniques are categorised within the fair value hierarchy that consists of three levels as

follows:

* Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that are accessible by the Council at the measurement date

* Level 2 inputs are quoted prices other than quoted prices within Level 1 that are
observable either directly or indirectly
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

The use of relevant observable inputs is maximised and the use of unobservable inputs is
minimised.

Any transfers between valuation levels will take place at the valuation date at the end of the
reporting period.

Interests in companies and other entities

The Council has a number of interests in other entities which fall within the group boundary of the Council
on the grounds of control and significant influence in line with the Code.

In respect of the Cardiff Capital Region City Deal (CCRCD), the Authority has included its share of income,
expenditure, assets, liabilities, reserves and cash flows relating to the arrangement within the single entity
accounting statements and disclosures.

However the Council's remaining interests in other entities, in aggregate, are not sufficiently material to
warrant producing consolidated financial statements when reviewing both quantitative and qualitative
information. For this reason, group accounts are not deemed necessary for these entities within these
statements. In order to ensure compliance with the Code, a range of narrative disclosures have been made
in other sections of the accounts (See note 16.6 for further information).

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered separately
for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for
payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of specific assets.

Page 232

98



Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception (or the present value of the
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay
the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums
paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. Assets of less than £10,000 Current value, the
deminimus for capitalisation of Fixed assets, will not be treated as Finance leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

» A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment — applied to write down
the lease liability, and

+ Afinance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

* Arevenue provision (MRP) equal to the principal repayments made, taken to the Capital Adjustment
Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies applied
generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is shorter than
the asset’s estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does not transfer to the authority at the end
of the lease period).

The Authority is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment losses
arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual contribution is made from revenue funds towards the
deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and revaluation and
impairment losses are therefore substituted by a revenue contribution in the Council Fund Balance, by way
of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement
for the difference between the two.

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or equipment.
Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern
of payments (e.g. there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

Where the Authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the relevant
asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease, the carrying
amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale)
is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Again, representing the Authority’s net investment in the
lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part
of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal),
matched by a lease (long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

» A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the
lease debtor (together with any premiums received), and

* Finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Page 233

99



17.20

17.21

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not permitted
by statute to increase the Council Fund Balance and is required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a
premium has been received, this is posted out of the Council Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is
to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the Council Fund
Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the
future rentals are received, the element for the capital receipt for the disposal of the asset is used to write
down the lease debtor. At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts
Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated to the
Capital Adjustment Account from the Council Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Where the Authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset
is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life
of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the
commencement of the lease). Where material, initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging the
lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income.

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are no longer charged to those that benefit from the supply or
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Code of Practice. The Statement of
Accounts are now presented in the same way as the management reporting structure of the Council, so
overheads are now reported in the budget areas where they are managed.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during more than one
financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on
an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the item will flow to the Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or
service potential (i.e. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

It is not a requirement for expenditure outside of the capital programme to be capitalised if it does not
exceed the de minimus limit of £10,000 for all asset categories.

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:
* The purchase price.

* Any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.

* The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction.

Page 234

100



Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made conditionally. Until conditions are
satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the Council Fund Balance to the Capital
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
» Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated historical cost.

» All other operational assets — Current value based on existing use value (EUV) for operational assets
where there is an active market, or if there is no market-based evidence of current value because of
the specialist nature of the asset and/or the asset is rarely sold (i.e. EUV cannot be determined),
depreciated replacement cost (DRC) using the ‘instant build’ approach.

* Non-operational assets — Fair value based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Adopted roads built by developers are in many respects seen as donated assets. Whilst donated assets
are required to be measured at fair value at recognition, infrastructure assets are measured initially at
historical cost and subsequently at depreciated historical cost rather than fair value. The authority have
taken the view that the historical cost of such adopted roads is zero.

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values (or both), depreciated historical cost
basis is used as a proxy for current value. Vehicles, plant and equipment are categories of asset treated in
this manner.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that their
carrying amount is not materially different from their current value at the year-end, but as a minimum every
five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise
unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.

Where decreases in value are identified, they are accounted for by:

*  Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

* Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss

is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

*  Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the accumulated gains)

Page 235

101



* Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line(s)
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted
for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of
their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable
finite useful life including freehold land and Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for
use (assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

* Dwellings and other buildings — straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as
estimated by the valuer

* Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment — straight-line allocation over the life of the asset as
advised by a suitable qualified officer

* Infrastructure:
Carriageways — Straight Line over 27 years
Street Lighting — Straight Line over 20 years
Principal Rights of Way — Straight Line over 15 years
Green Infrastructure — Straight Line over 20 years
Bridges & Major Retaining Walls — Straight Line over 30 years
Abergavenny & Caldicot Town Centre — Straight Line over 20 years
Flood Alleviation & Land Slip — Assessed on a case by case basis.

Useful lives of Infrastructure assets are reviewed annually.
No depreciation is charged in the year of acquisition with a full year charge applied in the disposal year.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their
historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

An asset may consist of several different and significant physical components. If an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises two or more significant components with substantially different useful lives, then
each component is treated separately for depreciation purposes and depreciated over its individual useful

life.

When a component is replaced or restored, the old component is written off to avoid double

counting and the new component capitalised. Where a component does not have its own carrying amount
because it has not previously been accounted for separately the cost of the new component is used as an
indication of the cost of the replaced part. A component is derecognised where no future economic
benefits are expected from its use.

The Authority has established thresholds for the separation of significant components. As a result
components of an item of property, plant or equipment that make up a significant part of the cost of the
item would only need to be separated where the item itself is material individually or when aggregated with
like items.

Page 236

102



17.22

17.23

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.

Assets held for Sale Assets are assets where the:

* asset is immediately available for sale

* sale is highly probable

+ asset is actively marketed

* sale is expected to be completed within 12 months

The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss
is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously losses recognised in
the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to
non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before they were classified as held for
sale, adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not
been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value
of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. The balance of
receipts is required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new
capital investment or set aside to reduce the Authority’s underlying need to borrow (the capital financing
requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the Council Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Account from the Council Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material
error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years
affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change
provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions
on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied
retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the
prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and Similar Contracts

Page 237

103



17.24

PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available
the property, plant and equipment needed to provide the services passes to the PFI contractor. As the
Authority is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes, and as ownership of
the property, plant and equipment will pass to the Authority at the end of the contracts for no additional
charge, the Authority carries the assets used under the contracts on its Balance Sheet as part of Property,
Plant and Equipment.

The original recognition of these assets at fair value (based on the cost to purchase the property, plant and
equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for
the capital investment.

Non-current assets recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the same way as
property, plant and equipment owned by the Authority.

The amounts payable to the PFI operators each year are analysed into five elements:

+ Fair value of the services received during the year — debited to the relevant service in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

* Finance cost — an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

+ Contingent rent — increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract,
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement

» Payment towards liability — applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability towards the PFI operator
(the profile of write-downs is calculated using the same principles as for a finance lease)

+ Lifecycle replacement costs — proportion of the amounts payable is posted to the Balance Sheet as a
prepayment and then recognised as additions to Property, Plant and Equipment when the relevant
works are eventually carried out.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or constructive
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Authority may be involved
in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year that the authority becomes aware of the obligation, and are measured at
the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes less than
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is
made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from another
party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the authority settles the obligation.

Page 238

104



17.25

17.26

17.27

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible obligation
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the authority. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would
otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the amount
of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the authority.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it
is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Reserves

The Authority sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies.
Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the Council Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the
appropriate service in that year to score against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back into the
Council Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against
council tax for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments, retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Authority —
these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Legislation requires defined items of revenue expenditure charged to services within the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to be treated as capital expenditure. All such expenditure is transferred
from the General Fund balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

VAT

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account excludes amounts relating to VAT and will be
included as an expense only if it is not recoverable from Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT
receivable is excluded from income within the Council's Income and Expenditure account.

Page 239

105



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5f

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
REPORT

SUBJECT: Statement of Gambling Policy and Proposals for Casinos

DIRECTORATE: Social Care, Safeguarding and Health
MEETING: Full Council

Date to be considered: 4" November 2021
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: All Wards

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PURPOSE:

To consider the Council’s existing resolution to not permit casinos within the County of
Monmouthshire.

To agree the Council’s ‘Statement of Gambling Policy 2022’
RECOMMENDATION(S):

To refuse any casino applications made under the Gambling Act 2005, and stated
within the Authority’s Gambling Policy.

To adopt the ‘Statement of Gambling Policy 2022’ for Monmouthshire County Council,
provided in Appendix A (changes highlighted in red).

KEY ISSUES

Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 requires that before each successive period of
three years, the Council, in its role as the Licensing Authority, prepares and publishes a
policy statement that it proposes to apply in exercising its functions under the Act during
that period. The current Gambling policy covers the three-year period that began on 31
January 2019. A review must therefore be undertaken and the next Gambling policy
published before 31 January 2022.

The Council will need to consider firstly if they wish to continue with the resolution not to
have a casino within the County. The decision on this will then be inserted into the
revised Gambling Policy that will be published on 31 January 2022.

Central Government upon the advice of the Casino Advisory Panel permitted 8 large and
8 small casinos along with those who had grandfather rights when the Act came into
force, which have all been duly issued. There is currently no further provision for more
casinos to be allocated. However, the Council still need to consider the course of action
they wish to take with casinos and place this within the Gambling Policy should the
availability of casinos change.

Before any licence for a Casino is granted, the Casino Advisory Panel will advise Central
Government that the area is in need of regeneration and Monmouthshire would have to
satisfy them that this is the case along with the type of area, social impact, community
benefits and unique characteristics. In addition, before a decision is made to go against
the current stance not to have casinos within the County, Members should be aware of
Chief Medical Officer for Wales Report concerning health and gambling referred to in
Future Generation report attached as Appendix B.

Page 241




3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

With regards to the Policy and how the Council will discharge their functions. The Policy
must contain objectives regarding the following;

e Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with
crime or disorder or being used to support crime,

¢ Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and

¢ Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by
gambling.

The Council will also need to have regard to any relevant code of practice issued by the
Secretary of State, guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, how they exercise
their functions consistent with the objectives and in accordance with the policy itself.

The Policy must be approved by Full Council and can last for a period of three years, in
accordance with Section 154(2) of the Gambling Act 2005. It further states within
Section 349 the prior to approval consultation must take place with:-

e The Chief Officer of police for the Authority’s area;

e One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the interests of
persons carrying on gambling businesses in the Authority’s area, and

e One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the interests of
persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the Authority’s functions
under the Act.

The revised policy must be published and in place for commencement on 315t January
2022. Licensing Officers within Monmouthshire, Torfaen, Caerphilly, Blaenau Gwent
and Newport has worked collaboratively with the aim of all five Authorities adopting this
Policy, subject to changes pertinent to each Authorities area and character.

At the Licensing and Regulatory Committee on 28" June 2021, Members agreed in
principle to retain the current resolution not to issue casino licences within the County of
Monmouthshire prior to consideration at Full Council. They further agreed at this meeting
to review the ‘Statement of Gambling Policy 2022, following the consultation period of
this document, which ended on 315t August 2021. No responses were received on this
consultation. Members reviewed the Policy at the Licensing and Regulation again on
14" September 2021 prior to submission at Full Council.

At these meetings, Members were made aware that since its publication in January 2019,
the current Gambling policy has proved effective in guiding Officers, Members, the
holders of licences and other authorisations granted under the Gambling Act 2005, plus
members of the public, in understanding how the Authority will apply its’ discretion and
use its powers under the Act. It is therefore not considered necessary to greatly change
the information contained in the current Gambling policy.

Additionally, it was noted that the Government is currently undertaking a review of the
Gambling Act 2005 with a view to ensuring that the regulatory framework is fit for
purpose, within the digital age, and can continue to meet its aims and objectives referred
to in 3.5 above. The Government’s review of the Act are to:

e Examine whether changes are needed to the system of gambling regulation in
Great Britain to reflect changes to the gambling landscape since 2005, particularly
due to technological advances.

Page 242



e Ensure there is an appropriate balance between consumer freedoms and choice
on the other hand, and prevention of harm to vulnerable groups and wider
communities on the other.

e Make sure customers are suitably protected whenever and wherever they are
gambling, and that there is an equitable approach to the regulation of the online
and land based industries.

3.11 A White Paper is expected later this year which may result in legislative changes that will

4.

» AR A
N O wNhe

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

require a further more comprehensive review of the Gambling policy in the near future.
This will not avoid the statutory requirement to now review and publish the policy for the
next three year period, that will commence on 31 January 2022.

REASONS:

The policy is necessary to guide consistent decisions and takes account of guidance.
There is a need to take account of collaborative approaches

To ensure that applications with no relevant information to consider can be dealt with
without unnecessary delay.

To enforce the provisions of the Gambling Act 2005 effectively.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:
Any additional costs will be absorbed within our existing licensing budget.
WELLBEING AND FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS

The ‘Future Generations’ template is attached as Appendix B. In summary, currently the
Authority has a resolution not to permit casinos within the County. If this resolution is
lifted it may promote excessive gambling within casinos. This may in turn impact on
those who are vulnerable or addicted to gambling.

If the resolution not to permit casinos is maintained, this protects children and so
contributes positively to the wellbeing of existing and future generations.

It is a statutory requirement to compile a Gambling Policy, as outlined in Section 3.
Although not a ‘proposal’ (therefore not requiring full assessment) it does contribute
positively to protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling.

CONSULTEES:
o SLT
Cabinet Members
Chairs of Select Committee
Head of Legal Services
Relevant bodies as outlines in 3.6 and 3.7 above
The Licensing and Regulatory Committee (28™ June 2021 and 14" September
2021)

BACKGROUND PAPERS:

1. Monmouthshire County Council’s Statement of Gambling Policy 2019

Page 243



https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/licensing/gambling-lottery-licence/the-gambling-act/

2. Gambling Act 2005

3. The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement) (England and Wales)
Requlations 2006
4. Gambling Commission Guidance to Local Authorities

AUTHOR:

Linda O’Gorman

Principal Licensing Officer

CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 01633 644214

Email: lindaogorman@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 244


https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/19/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/636/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2006/636/made
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/GLA/Guidance-to-licensing-authorities.aspx
mailto:lindaogorman@monmouthshire.gov.uk

monmouthshire
sir fynwy

Gambling Act 2005
Statement of Licensing Policy 2022

January 2022

Further information can be obtained from:
Licensing Section

Monmouthshire County Council

Abergavenny Community Education Centre

Old Hereford Road

Abergavenny

NP7 6EL

Tel: 01873 735420

Email: licensing@monmouthshire.gov.uk
Website: www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/licensing

Page 245


mailto:licensing@monmouthshire.gov.uk
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/licensing

Contents

1. Statement of Licensing POlICY ... 3
1.1 INEFOAUCTION ... 3
1.2 Profile of MONMOULNSNIre..........coooiiiii e, 4
1.3 OB JECHIVES ...t 4
1.4 The Licensing Authority FUNCLIONS..............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiccee e, 5
1.5 (@] o 15701 7= 1o o 1S PRSP 6
1.6 Responsible AUtNOMEIES ... 6
1.7 INterested Parties .......ooooveeeieeeeeeeee 7
1.8 Exchange Of INformation ............coovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee 7
1.9 ENfOrCEMENT ... 8
1.10 Fundamental RIghtS ...........ccooiiiiiiiiic e 9
1.11 Integrating Strategies and Avoiding Duplication ...............ccccccuveeennns 9
1.12  Sustainable Development Community Strategy .............cccccuvveunnnnnns 9

P o =T TSI I T =T oY o 10
2.1 General PriNCIPIES ........oovviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 10
2.2 Appropriate Licence Environment.............cccoooeeeeei 12
2.3 Premises “ready for gambling”...........ccccooviiiiiiiiiiii e, 13
2.4 Other ConSIAEIratiONS.......ccceiiiiieeiiiiee e 13
2.5 Duplication with other Regulatory Regimes: ........ccccccvvvvviviiieeennnn. 14
2.6 Licensing ODJECHIVES: .........uuiiiie e 15
2.7 Bet-WaALCh: ... 17
2.8 (@] o 111107 0 =3 17
2.9 DOOI SUPEIVISOIS: ... cceiieieitie e e e e ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e 19
2.10  Adult Gaming CeNIIES .........uuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeaaaees 19
2.11  (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres ............ccccccuvvrmminnnnnnnnnns 19
/2 O T [ [ 1 20
2.13  BiINQO PreMISES .....uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii bbb 20
2.14  BettiNg PremMISES ........uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 21
2.15 THACKS et 22
2.16  Gaming Machines:..........ooi i 22
2.17  Betting MacChines: ............uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 23
2.18  Applications and plans:...........oiveeiiiiiii i 23
2.19  Travelling FairS ... 23
2.20  Provisional StatementS..........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 24

3. Permits/Temporary And Occasional Use Notices ............ccevvvieeernnnnn. 25

3.1 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits...25

Page 246



3.2 (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits................. 26

3.3 Prize Gaming PermitS.........ccoooeiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 27
3.4 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits...........ccccooeeeeiivviiiiinnnnnn. 28
3.5 Temporary USe NOUCES ........cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 29
3.6 Occasional USe NOLICES ........uuuuuuuumiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiinaneaeiennaees 30
4. Small SOCIELY LOTIEIIES ..uvuuiiii e 30
5. DECISION MaKING .. .uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii b 32
5.1 Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions................... 32
5.2 APPEAIS PrOCEAUIE ... e 32
5.3 Giving Reasons for DECISIONS..........uuuuiiiieeeeiiiiiiiiiene e 32
5.4 Implementing the Determination of The Magistrates’ Court........... 33
5.5 Complaints against Licensed Premises.........cccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeevinnnnnnn. 33
5.6 REVIBWS ...ttt e et e e e e e e e e s 33
6. Licensing Conditions and Codes of Practice 2015 (LCCP) ............... 34
7. Further INfTOrmation ............eeeeeueeiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 44
Appendix A ACCESS t0 PremiSes ......cooviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 46
Appendix B Schedule of Delegation of Licensing Functions and
[T o 1= 0 1SRRI 47
Appendix C  DefinitioNS ... 50
Appendix D Summary of Machine Provisions by Premises.................. 51

Page 247



Statement of Licensing Policy

1.1 Introduction

The Gambling Act 2005 requires the Council to prepare and publish a
“Statement of Licensing Policy” that sets out the principles the Council proposes
to apply in exercising its licensing functions when dealing with applications for
Premises Licences, as required by the Act.

This Policy Statement takes effect on 31t January 2022. This Licensing
Authority will update and publish a new Licensing Policy whenever necessary
but in any case within 3 years of the date of this Policy, and will fully consult
with partners, trade associations and residents groups as appropriate at that
time, any representations received will be considered at that time.

However where updates are required due to changes in national legislation,
statutory guidance or contact details the council reserves the right to amend
this policy without consultation where it is necessary to ensure the policy
reflects national legislation or statutory guidance.

In producing the final Policy Statement the Council declares that it has had
regard to the licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the Guidance to
Licensing Authorities issued by the Gambling Commission, any codes of
practice and any responses from those consulted on the Policy Statement.

The Council has a legal obligation to comply with all legislation that promotes
equality it has a policy in place to promote equality to all. The Neighbourhoods
Planning and Public Protection Service Area has its own equalities framework
which is available for inspection on our website. Licensing of persons and
premises under the Gambling Act 2005 will actively promote equality of service
and enforcement to all members of the community.

The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human
Rights and makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is
incompatible with such aright.  The council will have regard to the Human
Rights Act when considering any licensing issues, and particularly in respect of
the way in which applications are considered and enforcement activities are
carried out.

The council acknowledges that it may need to depart from this Policy and from
the guidance issued under the Act in individual and exceptional circumstances,
and where the case merits such a decision in the interests of the promotion of
the licensing objectives. Any such decision will be taken in consultation with the
appropriate legal advisors for the Licensing Authority, and the reasons for any
such departure will be fully recorded.

Page 248



1.2 Profile of Monmouthshire

The County of Monmouthshire is mainly rural in character. The County has
five main towns namely Monmouth, Abergavenny, Caldicot, Chepstow and
Usk, which are surrounded by numerous villages, each with their own individual
character.

The area has a population of approximately 94,150. Monmouthshire is not
densely populated, there is approximately 1 person per hectare, although there
are concentrations of housing in some areas.

Figure 1 Figure 2

Monmouthshire
County Council

Monmouthshire in Wales UK

1.3 Objectives

In exercising most of its functions under the Gambling Act 2005 the Council, as
the Licensing Authority, must have regard to the following licensing objectives:

e Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder,
being associated with crime or disorder or being used to support
crime;

e Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way;

e Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being
harmed or exploited by gambling.

It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: “The requirement

in relation to children is explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited
by gambling”.

Page 249



The Council is aware that, as per Section 153, in making decisions about
premises licences and temporary use notices it should aim to permit the use of
premises for gambling insofar as it thinks it:

e In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the
Gambling Commission;

e In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission;

e Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives;

¢ In accordance with the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.

1.4 The Licensing Authority Functions
The Council is required under the Act to:

e Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities
are to take place by issuing Premises Licences;

e Issue Provisional Statements;

e Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish to
undertake certain gaming activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits
and/or Club Machine Permits;

e Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs;

e Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at
unlicensed family entertainment centres;

e Receive notification from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing
Act 2003) of the use of two or fewer gaming machines;

e |Issue Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises

licensed to sell/supply alcohol for consumption on the licensed premises,

under the Licensing Act 2003, where there are more than two machines;

Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds;

Issue Prize Gaming Permits;

Receive and endorse Temporary Use Notices;

Receive Occasional Use Notices;

Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of

licences issued (see section below on information exchange);

e Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under
these functions.

It should be noted that local licensing authorities are not involved in licensing
remote gambling at all, which is regulated by the Gambling Commission via
Operator Licences.

The Council recognises that the licensing function is only one means of
promoting delivery of the three objectives and should not therefore be seen as
a means for solving all problems within the community. The Council will
therefore continue to work in partnership with neighbouring authorities, Heddlu
Gwent Police, the Community Safety Partnership, Public Health, local
businesses, local people and those involved in child protection to promote the

Page 250



licensing objectives as outlined. In addition, the Council recognises its duty
under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, with regard to the
prevention of crime and disorder.

15 Consultation

The Council has consulted widely upon this Statement before finalising and
publishing. A list of those persons consulted is provided below, in line with the
Act and the Gambling Commission’s Guidance. Further details, together with
a list of comments made and the consideration by the Council of those
comments is available on request.

e The Chief Officer of Police;

e The Fire Authority;

¢ Representatives of the holders of various licences for premises within
the County who will be affected by this Policy;

e Bodies representing businesses and residents in the County;

Departments (including Responsible Authorities) within the Council with

an interest in the licensing of gambling;

Local Safeguarding Children Board,;

County Councillors

Community and Town Councils;

Other organisations as appear to be affected by licensing matters

covered by this Statement;

e H.M. Revenue and Customs.

e Local Health Board

Consultation took place between 15t June 2021 and 315t August 2021 and, as
far as practicable, the Council followed the Consultation Principles issued by
the government which IS available at
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/consultation-principles-guidance

This policy was approved at a meeting of the Full Council on XXXXX 2021 and
was published on 3™ January 2022, as well as being available at
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk

1.6 Responsible Authorities

In exercising the Council’s powers under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate,
in writing, a body that is competent to advise the Council about the protection
of children from harm, the following principles have been applied:

e The need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole
of the Council’s area;

e The need for the body to include senior and responsible representatives
of appropriate public bodies in the county borough area, who have as a
principal duty, responsibility for the protection of children from harm

Page 251


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/consultation-principles-guidance

In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance this Council
designates the Social Care, Safeguarding and Health Department for this
purpose. Details of the bodies identified under the Act that are to be treated as
Responsible Authorities are available via the Council’s website.

1.7 Interested Parties

Interested Parties can make representations about licence applications, or
apply for a review of an existing licence based on the three licensing objectives
as detailed in paragraph 1.3 of this Policy Statement.

An Interested Party is someone who:-

(@) Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the
authorised activities;

(b) Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised
activities; or

(c) Represents persons in either of the two groups above.

The principles the Council will apply to determine whether a person is an
Interested Party are:

Each case will be decided upon its merits. This Council will not apply a rigid
rule to its decision-making. It will consider the examples of considerations
provided in the Gambling Commissions’ Guidance for local authorities. It will
also consider the Gambling Commission’s Guidance that “business interests”
should be given the widest possible interpretation and include partnerships,
charities, faith groups and medical practices and Local Health Board.

Interested Parties can be persons who are democratically elected, such as
Councillors and MP’s. No specific evidence of being asked to represent an
interested person will be required as long as the Councillor/MP represents the
ward likely to be affected. Likewise, Town and Community Councils likely to be
affected will be considered as interested parties. Other than these, however,
this Council will generally require written evidence that a person, body (e.g. an
advocate/relative) ‘represents’ someone who either lives sufficiently close to
the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities and/or
business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities.
Correspondence from one of these persons, requesting the representation is
sufficient.

If individuals wish to approach Councillors to ask them to represent their views,
then care should be taken that the Councillors are not part of the Licensing and
Regulatory Sub-Committee dealing with the licence application or in any other
way have a personal interest that would preclude them from participating in a
hearing. If there are any doubts then please contact the Licensing Section.

1.8 Exchange Of Information

Page 252



The principle that the Council will apply in respect of the exchange of
information between it and the Gambling Commission and those bodies listed
in Schedule 6 of the Act is that it will act in accordance with the provisions of
the Gambling Act 2005 which includes the provision that the data protection
legislation, as defined in section 3 of the Data Protection Act 2018, will not be
contravened. The Council will also have regard to any guidance issued by the
Gambling Commission to Local Authorities on this matter, as well as any
relevant regulations issued by the Secretary of State under the powers provided
in the Gambling Act 2005.

1.9 Enforcement

The Council’s principles are that it will be guided by the Gambling Commission’s
Guidance to local authorities, the Regulators Code and the council’s
enforcement policy. It will endeavour to be:

e Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary,
remedies should be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified
and minimised;

e Accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject
to public scrutiny;

e Consistent: rules and standards must be joined up and implemented
fairly;

e Transparent:. regulators should be open, keep regulations simple and
user friendly; and

e Targeted: regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise
side effects.

As per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities, the
Council will endeavour to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far
as possible.

The Council has adopted and implemented a risk-based inspection
programme, based on:

The licensing objectives;

Relevant codes of practice;

Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission

The principles set out in this Statement of Licensing Policy.
The council’s enforcement policy.

The main enforcement and compliance role for this Council in terms of the
Gambling Act 2005 is to ensure compliance with the Premises Licences and
other permissions, which it authorises. The Gambling Commission is the
enforcement body for the Operator and Personal Licences. Concerns about
manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines are dealt with by the Council
but should be notified to the Gambling Commission.

Page 253



The council will take account of the Gambling Commissions guidance
document ‘Approach to Test Purchasing’ when considering making test
purchases at gambling premises. The council will also follow its own policies
and procedures regarding the use of underage test purchasers.

The Council also keeps itself informed of developments as regards the work of
the Better Regulation Delivery Office in its consideration of the regulatory
functions of local authorities.

1.10 Fundamental Rights

Under the terms of the Act any individual/company may apply for a variety of
permissions and have their applications considered on their individual merits.
Equally, any Interested Party or Responsible Authority has a right to make
relevant representations on an application or to seek a review of a licence or
certificate where provision has been made for them to do so in the Act.

Applicants and those making relevant representations in respect of applications
to the Council have a right of appeal to the Magistrates Court against the
decisions of the Council.

1.11 Integrating Strategies and Avoiding Duplication

By consulting widely prior to this Policy Statement being published, the Council
will take full account of local policies covering crime prevention, culture,
transport, planning and tourism as part of an integrated strategy for the Council,
Police and other agencies. Many of these strategies may not be directly related
to the promotion of the three licensing objectives, but may indirectly impact
upon them.

When considering any application, the Council will avoid duplication with other
regulatory regimes so far as possible. Therefore, the Council will not attach
conditions to a licence unless they are considered necessary, reasonable and
proportionate to the use of premises for gambling consistent with the licensing
objectives.

1.12 Sustainable Development Community Strategy

The Local Government Act 2000 requires all local authorities to produce a
community strategy within the framework of the UK Sustainable Development
Strategy — “A better Quality of Life” and relevant regional strategies. The
Wellbeing and Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires all Welsh local
authorities to think about the long-term impact of their decisions, to work better
with people, communities and each other, and to prevent persistent problems
such as poverty, health inequalities and climate change.

Community strategies provide a focal point for the identification of local issues

and aspirations on social inclusion, environmental protection, employment and
economic development.

Page 254



Local strategic partnerships, typically involving the police, local authorities, local
health boards, and representatives from education, business and the voluntary
sector organisations, are responsible for the achievement of locally set
objectives.

Under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 local authorities must have regard to
the likely effect of the exercise of their functions on, and do all they can to
prevent crime and disorder in the area. The Council will have particular regard
to the likely impact of licensing on related crime and disorder in the County,
particularly when considering the location, impact, operation and management
of all proposed licence/permit applications, renewals and variations of
conditions.

2. Premises Licences

2.1 General Principles

Premises Licences authorise the provision of gambling facilities on the
following:-

Casino Premises;

Bingo Premises;

Betting Premises (including race tracks used by betting intermediaries);
Adult Gaming Centres (AGCs);

Family Entertainment Centres (FECSs).

Except in the case of Tracks (where the occupier may not be the person offering
gambling), Premises Licences will only be granted to those issued with an
Operating Licence by the Gambling Commission.

Premises Licences are subject to the requirements set out in the Gambling Act
2005 and regulations, as well as specific mandatory and default conditions,
which are detailed in regulations issued by the Secretary of State. Licensing
authorities are able to exclude default conditions and also attach others, where
it is believed to be appropriate.

The Council is aware that in making decisions about Premises Licences it
should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling insofar as it thinks it:-

¢ In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling
Commission;

e In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling
Commission;

e Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and

e In accordance with this Policy Statement.

Page 255



This Council may also consider measures to meet the licensing objectives when
making such decisions, for example:

e Proof of age schemes

e CCTV

e Supervision of entrances/machine areas

e Physical separation of areas

Location of entry

Notices/signage

Specific opening hours

Self-exclusion schemes

Provision of information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such

as GamcCare,;

e Measures/training for staff on how to deal with children on the premises,
for example, suspected truancy from school.

This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example
measures.

It is appreciated that as per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local
authorities “moral objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject
applications for Premises Licences” and also that unmet demand is not a
criterion for a licensing authority.

The Licence Conditions and Code of Practice (LCCP) issued by the Gambling
Commission places the onus on licence holders to complete a risk assessment.
The council will have regard to this when considering applications. This is
covered in detail in Section 6 of this statement.

Definition of “Premises”:

Premises is defined in the Act as “any place”.  Section 152 therefore prevents
more than one premises licence applying to any place. But a single building
could be subject to more than one premises licence, provided they are for
different parts of the building and the different parts of the building can be
reasonably regarded as being different premises. This approach has been
taken to allow large, multiple unit premises such as a pleasure park, pier, track
or shopping mall to obtain discrete premises licences, where appropriate
safeguards are in place. However, licensing authorities should pay particular
attention if there are issues about sub-divisions of a single building or plot and
should ensure that mandatory conditions relating to access between premises
are observed.

The Gambling Commission states in its Guidance to Licensing Authorities that:
“In most cases the expectation is that a single building/plot will be the subject
of an application for a licence. But, that does not mean that a single building
plot cannot be the subject of separate premises licence, e.g. the basement and
ground floor, if they are configured acceptably. Whether different parts of a
building can properly be regarded as being separate premises will depend on

Page 256



the circumstances. The location of the premises will clearly be an important
consideration and the suitability of the division is likely to be a matter for
discussion between the operator and the licensing officer.

However, the Commission does not consider that areas of a building that are
artificially or temporarily separated, for example, by ropes or moveable
partitions, can properly be regarded as different premises.”

The Council takes particular note of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for
local authorities which states that licensing authorities should take particular
care in considering applications for multiple licences for a building and those
relating to a discrete part of a building used for other (non-gambling) purposes.
In particular, they should be aware of the following —

e The third licensing objective seeks to protect children from being harmed
by gambling. In practice that means not only preventing them from
taking part in gambling, but also preventing them from being in close
proximity to gambling. Therefore, premises should be configured so that
children are not invited to participate in, have accidental access to or
closely observe gambling where they are prohibited from participating;

e Entrances to and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more
premises licences should be separate and identifiable so that the
separation of different premises is not compromised and people do not
“drift” into a gambling area. In this context it should normally be possible
to access the premises without going through another licensing
premises or premises with a permit;

e Customers should be able to participate in the activity named on the
premises licence.

The Guidance also gives a list of factors, which the licensing authority should
be aware of, which may include:

e Do the premises have a separate registration for business rates?

e |s the Premises’ neighbouring premises owned by the same person or
someone else?

e Can each of the premises be accessed from the street or a public
passageway?

e Can the premises only be accessed from any other gambling premises?

2.2 Appropriate Licence Environment

The Guidance to Local Authorities and the Licence Conditions and Codes of
Practice (LCCP), set out additional matters that the council should take into
account when considering licence applications for premises licences.

The Guidance prescribe restrictions on gambling activities on premises,

previously known as primary gambling activity. The council will consider any
application based on the provisions in these codes and guidance.

Page 257



Where gambling facilities are provided at premises as a supplementary activity
to the main purpose of the premises; e.g. motorway service areas and shopping
malls, the council will expect the gambling area to be clearly defined to ensure
that customers are fully aware that they are making a choice to enter into the
gambling premises, and that the premises is adequately supervised at all times.

The Council will consider these and any other relevant factors in making its
decision, depending on all the circumstances of the case.

The Gambling Commission’s Guidance for relevant access provisions for each
premises type is reproduced in Appendix A:

2.3 Premises “ready for gambling”

The Guidance states that a licence to use premises for gambling should only
be issued in relation to premises that the licensing authority can be satisfied are
going to be ready to be used for gambling in the reasonably near future,
consistent with the scale of building or alterations required before the premises
are brought into use.

If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration,
or if the applicant does not yet have a right to occupy them, then an application
for a provisional statement should be made instead.

In deciding whether a premises licence can be granted where there are
outstanding construction or alteration works at a premises, the Council will
determine applications on their merits, applying a two stage consideration
process:

e First, whether the premises ought to be permitted to be used for
gambling;

e Second, whether appropriate conditions can be put in place to cater for
the situation that the premises are not yet in the state in which they ought
to be before gambling takes place.

Applicants should note that this authority is entitled to decide that it is
appropriate to grant a licence subject to conditions, but it is not obliged to grant
such a licence.

More detailed examples of the circumstances in which such a licence may be
granted can be found in the Guidance.

2.4 Other Considerations

Location:

Page 258



The Council is aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to
the location of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing
objectives are relevant to its decision making. As per the Gambling
Commission’s Guidance for local authorities, the Council will pay particular
attention to the protection of children and vulnerable persons from being
harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and disorder.
Should any specific policy be decided upon as regards areas where gambling
premises should not be located, this Statement will be updated. It should be
noted that any such policy does not preclude any application being made and
each application will be decided on its merits, with the onus upon the applicant
showing how potential concerns can be overcome.

Planning
The Gambling Commission Guidance to Licensing Authorities states:

e In determining applications the licensing authority has a duty to take into
consideration all relevant matters and not to take into consideration any
irrelevant matters, i.e. those not related to gambling and the licensing
objectives. One example of an irrelevant matter would be the likelihood
of the applicant obtaining planning permission or building regulations
approval for their proposal.

The Council will not take into account irrelevant matters as per the above
guidance. In addition, the Council notes the following excerpt from the
Guidance:

e When dealing with a premises licence application for finished buildings,
the licensing authority should not take into account whether those
buildings have or comply with the necessary planning or building
consents. Those matters should be dealt with under relevant planning
control and building regulation powers, and not form part of the
consideration for the premises licence. Section 210 of the 2005 Act
prevents licensing authorities taking into account the likelihood of the
proposal by the applicant obtaining planning or building consent when
considering a premises licence application. Equally the grant of a
gambling premises licence does not prejudice or prevent any action that
may be appropriate under the law relating to planning or building.

2.5 Duplication with other Regulatory Regimes:

The Council seeks to avoid any duplication with other statutory/regulatory
systems where possible, including planning. The Council will not consider
whether a licence application is likely to be awarded planning permission or
building regulations approval in its consideration of it. It will though listen to,
and consider carefully, any concerns about conditions, which are not able to be
met by licensees due to planning restrictions, should such a situation arise.

When dealing with a premises licence application for finished buildings, the
Council will not take into account whether those buildings have to comply with

Page 259



the necessary planning or building consents. Fire or health and safety risks will
not be taken into account, as these matters are dealt with under relevant
planning control, buildings and other regulations and must not form part of the
consideration for the premises licence.

2.6 Licensing Objectives:

Premises licences granted must be reasonably consistent with the licensing
objectives. With regard to these objectives, the Council has considered the
Gambling Commission’s Guidance to licensing authorities and some comments
are made below.

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime:

The Council is aware that the Gambling Commission takes a leading role in
preventing gambling from being a source of crime. The Gambling
Commission’s Guidance does, however, envisage that licensing authorities
should pay attention to the proposed location of gambling premises in terms of
this licensing objective. Thus, where an area has known high levels of
organised crime, the Council will consider carefully whether gambling premises
are suitable to be located there and whether conditions may be suitable such
as the provision of door supervisors. The Council is aware of the distinction
between disorder and nuisance and will consider factors such as whether police
assistance was required and how threatening the behaviour was to those who
could see it, so as to make that distinction. Issues of nuisance cannot be
addressed via the Gambling Act provisions.

Ensure that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way:

The Council has noted that the Gambling Commission states that it does not
expect licensing authorities to become concerned with ensuring that gambling
is conducted in a fair and open way, as this will be addressed via operating and
personal licences. There is, however, more of a role with regard to tracks,
which is explained in more detail in the “tracks” section.

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or
exploited by gambling:

The Council has noted the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local
authorities states that this objective means preventing children from taking part
in gambling (as well as restriction of advertising so that gambling products are
not aimed at or are, particularly attractive to children). The Council will,
therefore, consider, as suggested in this Guidance, whether specific measures
are required at particular premises, with regard to this licensing objective.
Appropriate measures may include supervision of entrances/machines,
segregation of areas, etc.

Page 260



The Council is also aware of the Codes of Practice, which the Gambling
Commission issues as regards this licensing objective, in relation to specific
premises.

As regards the term “vulnerable persons” it is noted that the Gambling
Commission does not seek to offer a definition but states that “it will for
regulatory purposes assume that this group includes people who gamble more
than they want to; people who gamble beyond their means; and people who
may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due
to a mental impairment, alcohol or drugs”. The Council will consider this
licensing objective on a case by case basis.

The Gambling Commission Guidance to Local Authorities sets out
considerations that an operator must make in order to protect children and
young people from accessing gambling premises.

The Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP) prescribe how
operators must prevent children from using age restricted gaming or gambling
activities, particularly where gaming machines are licensed.

In particular operators must ensure that;
e all staff are trained,
e that all customers are supervised when on gambling premises
e must have procedures for identifying customers who are at risk of
gambling related harm and also where to signpost people for support
(training is available from a number of sources including Citizens Advice
Bureau (CAB) and GambleAware).

The council will expect all operators to have policies and procedures in place
as required by the LCCP codes on social responsibility to cover all aspects of
the code, in particular staff training records and self-exclusion records

Further provisions with regard to self-exclusion and marketing are included in
the social responsibility code. The council will take all conditions and codes
into account when considering applications or performing enforcement
activities.

See section 6 of this policy statement for further details and on the council’s
requirements in relation to the LCCP.

The Council will have regard to the Chief Medical Officer for Wales report to
support the licensing objective in order to protect children and other vulnerable
persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

The Council would expect applicants and licence holders to carry out the
necessary checks on all relevant members of staff to ensure their suitability for
employment, particularly in respect of premises where children and vulnerable
people have access.

Page 261



2.7 Bet-Watch:

The council encourage and will support local operators to create and maintain
an information sharing network to discuss issues of problem gamblers that are
identified. This will also be an opportunity for operators to discuss issues with
the licensing officers.

2.8 Conditions:
Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be:

o Relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a
gambling facility;

. Directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for;

. Fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and

. Reasonable in all other respects.

Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis,
although there will be a number of measures the Council will consider utilising
should there be a perceived need, such as the use of supervisors, appropriate
signage for adult only areas, etc. Specific regard will be against the local risk
assessment for each premise, when making such decisions. There are specific
comments made in this regard under some of the licence types below. The
Council will also expect the licence applicant to offer his/her own suggestions
as to ways in which the licensing objectives can be met effectively, in
conjunction with mandatory conditions specified in the Gambling Act 2005
(Mandatory and Default Conditions) (England and Wales) Regulations 2007.

Conditions the Council may impose on a licence could include;

Security conditions
e A minimum of two members of staff after 10pm;
e The premises will have an intruder alarm and panic button;
e A monitor shall be placed inside the premises above the front door
showing CCTV images of customers entering the premises.

Anti-social behaviour conditions

e The licensee shall develop and agree a protocol with the police
as to incident reporting, including the type and level of incident
and mode of communication, so as to enable the police to monitor
any issues arising at or in relation to the premises;

e The licensee shall place and maintain a sign at the entrance
which states that ‘only drinks purchased on the premises may be
consumed on the premises’;

e The licensee shall implement a policy of banning any customers
who engage in crime or disorder within or outside the premises.

Underage controls

Page 262



e Customers under 21 will have to provide ID;

e No machines in the Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre to
be sited within one metre of the Adult Gaming Centre entrance;

e Staff training records or certified copies should be available at
the premises for inspection.

Player protection controls

e There shall be no cash point or ATM facilities on the premises;

e The licensee shall train staff on specific issues related to the local
area and shall conduct periodic refresher training. Participation in
the training shall be formally recorded and the records produced
to the police or licensing authority upon request;

e Prominent GamCare documentation will be displayed at the
premises.

This list is not exhaustive and merely gives an example of the type of conditions
which may be imposed depending on the circumstances at each premises.

The Council will also consider specific measures, which may be required for
buildings, which are subject to multiple premises licences. Such measures may
include the supervision of entrances; segregation of gambling from non-
gambling areas frequented by children; and the supervision of gaming
machines in non-adult gambling specific premises in order to pursue the
licensing objectives. These matters are in accordance with the Gambling
Commission’s Guidance and Codes of Practice(s).

The Council will also ensure that where category C or above machines are on
offer in premises to which children are admitted:

e All such machines are located in an area of the premises which is
separated from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier which
is effective to prevent access other than through a designated entrance;

e Only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located,;

e Access to the area where the machines are located is supervised;

e The area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can
be observed by the staff or the licence holder; and

e At the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently
displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to
persons under 18.

These considerations will apply to premises, including buildings where multiple
premises licences are applicable.

The Council is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than one
premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.
As per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, this Council will consider the
impact upon the third licensing objective and the need to ensure that entrances
to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded from
gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter.

Page 263



It is noted that there are conditions, which the Council cannot attach to premises
licences, which are:

e Any condition on the premises licence which makes it impossible to
comply with an operating licence condition;

e Conditions relating to gaming machine categories, humbers, or method
of operation;

e Conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required
(the Gambling Act 2005 specifically removes the membership
requirement for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it
being reinstated); and

e Conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes.

2.9 Door Supervisors:

The Gambling Commission advises in its Guidance to licensing authorities that
if it is concerned that a premises may attract disorder, or be subject to attempts
at unauthorised access (e.g. by children and young persons) then it may require
that the entrances to the premises are controlled by a door supervisor, and is
entitled to impose a premises licence to this effect.

Where it is decided that supervision of entrances/machines is appropriate for
particular cases, a consideration of whether these need to be SIA licensed or
not will be necessary. It will not be automatically assumed that they need to be
licensed as the statutory requirements for different types of premises vary.

2.10 Adult Gaming Centres

The Council will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect
the applicant to satisfy the Council that there will be sufficient measures to, for
example, ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the premises.

Where gambling facilities are provided at premises as a supplementary activity
to the main purpose of the premises; e.g. motorway service areas and shopping
malls, the council will expect the gambling area to be clearly defined to ensure
that customers are fully aware that they are making a choice to enter into the
gambling premises and that the premises is adequately supervised at all times.

2.11 (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres

The Council will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect
the applicant to satisfy the Council, for example, that there will be sufficient
measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult
only gaming machine areas. The applicant for a Family Entertainment Centre
provide evidence that a suitable criminal record check with the Disclosure and
Barring Service (DBS) has been conducted on all staff in his/her employment.

Page 364



Children and young persons are permitted entry to licensed FECs but are not
permitted to play Category C machines. The Council expects the applicant to
ensure that there will be sufficient measures in place to prevent under 18 year
olds having access to the adult only gaming machine areas. The Council will
expect applicants to meet the licensing objectives and comply with all
mandatory conditions and Codes of Practice issued by the Gambling
Commission.

There is a requirement that there must be clear segregation between the types
of machine in order that children do not have access to Category C machines.
All Category C machines must be located in an area of the premises which is
separate from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier, which will
prevent access other than through a designated entrance. The Council will
seek to ensure that:

e only adults are admitted to the area where the machines are located,;

e access to the area where the machines are located is supervised,;

e the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be
observed by staff of the operator or the licence holder; and

e at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently
displayed notices indicating that access to the area is prohibited to
persons under 18

2.12 Casinos

There are currently no casinos operating within the County. Following
considerable debate at full Council on 25" October 2018 a resolution was
passed not to issue casino licences within the County of Monmouthshire as
provided for in section 166 Gambling Act 2005. This resolution may be
reviewed as necessary, and at least every three years in line with the adoption
of the Statement of Gambling Policy. There is no right of appeal against this
resolution. Potential licence applicants should note that as a ‘no-casino’
resolution has been passed by this Council no applications for casino premises
licence will be considered. Any applications received will be returned with a
notification that a ‘no casino’ resolution is in place.

2.13 Bingo Premises

Licensing Authorities will need to satisfy themselves that bingo can be played
in any bingo premises for which they issue a premises licence. This will be a
relevant consideration where the operator of an existing bingo premises applies
to vary their licence to exclude an area of the existing premises from its ambit
and then applies for a new premises licence, or multiple licences, for that or
those excluded areas.

A holder of bingo premises licences may make available for use of a number of

category B gaming machines, not exceeding 20% of the total number of gaming
machines, which are available for use on the premises

Page 265



Children and young people are allowed into bingo premises; however, they are
not permitted to participate in the bingo and if category B or C machines are
made available for use, these must be separated from areas where children
and young people are allowed.

Where Category C or above machines are available in the bingo premises to
which children are admitted, the Council will seek to ensure that;

e all such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from
the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier to prevent access
other than through a designated entrance;

e only adults are admitted to the area where the machines are located,;

e access to the area where the machines are located is supervised,;

e the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be
observed by staff or the licence holder; and

e at the entrance to, and inside any such area, notices are prominently
displayed indicating that access to the area is prohibited to persons
under 18.

Where bingo is permitted in alcohol-licensed premises, this must be low
turnover bingo only and applicants are expected to comply with any Codes of
Practice and advice issued by the Gambling Commission. High turnover bingo
will require a Bingo Operating Licence.

2.14 Betting Premises
Betting machines:
Self Service Betting Terminals (SSBTSs):

The Act provides that a machine is not a gaming machine if it is designed or
adapted for use to bet on future real events. Betting premises may make
available machines that accept bets on live events, such as horseracing, as a
substitute for placing a bet over the counter. These “betting machines” are not
gaming machines: they merely automate the process, which can be conducted
in person and, therefore, do not require regulation as a gaming machine.

However, where a machine is made available to take bets on virtual races (that
is, results and/or images generated by computer to resemble races or other
events) that machine is a gaming machine and counts towards the maximum
permitted number of gaming machines, and must meet the relevant category
limitations for the premises.

The Council will, as per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, take into
account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions available for
person-to-person transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the
machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to
bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the

Page 266



number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer.
The premises should also display notices with contact for help organisations
e.g. GamCare.

The Authority recognises that certain bookmakers have a number of premises
within its area. In order to ensure that any compliance issues are recognised
and resolved at the earliest stage, operators are requested to give the authority
a single named point of contact who should be a senior individual and to whom
the Authority will contact first should any compliance queries or issues arise.

2.15 Tracks

The Council is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than one
premises licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.
As per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, the Council will especially
consider the impact upon the third licensing objective (i.e. protection of children
and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling) and the
need to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that
children are excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to
enter.

The Council will therefore expect the premises licence applicant to demonstrate
suitable measures to ensure that children do not have access to adult only
gaming facilities. It is noted that children and young persons will be permitted
to enter track areas where facilities for betting are provided on days when dog
racing and/or horse racing takes place, but that they are still prevented from
entering areas where gaming machines (other than category D machines) are
provided.

2.16 Gaming Machines:

There are many categories of gaming machine permitted at licensed and other
premises and the number of such machines that may be permitted in each type
of gambling premises are set out in the Act. The Council does not have the
power to set different limits or further expand or restrict the categories of
machine that are permitted. The exception to this is alcohol-licensed premises
that hold gaming machine permits, where licensing authorities have discretion
to specify the number of permitted gaming machines. In addition, limits are set
separately in the Act for certain types of permit issued by licensing authorities.
A table setting out gaming machine entitlement at each type of premises is
attached at Appendix C.

There is a minimum age of 18 for all players for all category A, B and C
machines, including category B3A gaming machines offering lottery style
games. However there is no minimum age for players of category D machines.
The holder of any permit or premises licence must comply with the codes of
practice issued by the Commission on the location of and access to gaming
machines by children and young persons, and the separation from category C
and B machines where those are also located on the same premises.

Page 267



Where the applicant holds a pool betting operating licence and is going to use
the entitlement to four gaming machines, machines (other than Category D
machines) should be in areas from which children are excluded.

2.17 Betting Machines:

The Council will, as per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, take into
account the size of the premises and the ability of staff to monitor the use of
machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to
bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer.

2.18 Applications and plans:

The Gambling Act and Regulations requires applicants to submit plans of the
premises with their application, in order to ensure that the Council has the
necessary information to make an informed judgement about whether the
premises are fit for gambling. They will also be used for the Council to plan
future premises inspection activity.

Plans for tracks should be drawn to scale sufficiently detailed to include the
information required by regulations.

Some tracks may be situated on agricultural land where the perimeter is not
defined by virtue of an outer wall or fence, such as point-to-point racetracks. In
such instances, where an entry fee is levied, track premises licence holders
may erect temporary structures to restrict access to premises.

In the rare cases where the outer perimeter cannot be defined, it is likely that
the track in question will not be specifically designed for the frequent holding of
sporting events or races. In such cases betting facilities may be better provided
through occasional use notices where the boundary premises do not need to
be defined.

The Council appreciates that it is sometimes difficult to define the precise
location of betting areas on tracks. The precise location of where betting
facilities are provided is not required to be shown on track plans, both by virtue
of the fact that betting is permitted anywhere on the premises and because of
the difficulties associated with pinpointing exact locations for some types of
track. Applicants should provide sufficient information that this Council can
satisfy itself that the plan indicates the main areas where betting might take
place. For racecourses in particular, any betting area subject to the “five times
rule” (commonly known as betting rings) must be indicated on the plan.

2.19 Travelling Fairs

This Council is responsible for deciding whether, where category D machines
and/or equal chance prize gaming without a permit is to be made available for

Page 7268



use at travelling fairs, the statutory requirement that the facilities for gambling
amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair is met.

The Council will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory
definition of a travelling fair contained in Section 286 of the Gambling Act 2005.

The 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair, is per calendar
year, and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held,
regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling fairs occupying the
land. The Council will work with its neighbouring authorities to ensure that land,
which crosses our boundaries, is monitored so that the statutory limits are not
exceeded.

2.20 Provisional Statements

Developers may wish to apply to this Council for provisional statements before
entering into a contract to buy or lease property or land to judge whether a
development is worth taking forward in light of the need to obtain a premises
licence. There is no need for the applicant to hold an operating licence in order
to apply for a provisional statement.

Section 204 of the Gambling Act provides for a person to make an application
to the Council for a provisional statement in respect of premises that he or she:

e expects to be constructed;
e expects to be altered; or
e expects to acquire a right to occupy.

The process for considering an application for a provisional statement is the
same as that for a premises licence application. The applicant is obliged to
give notice of the application in the same way as applying for a premises
licence. Responsible authorities and interested parties may make
representations and there are rights of appeal.

In contrast to the premises licence application, the applicant does not have to
hold or have applied for an operating licence from the Gambling Commission
(except in the case of a track) and they do not have to have a right to occupy
the premises in respect of which their provisional application is made.

The holder of a provisional statement may then apply for a premises licence
once the premises are constructed, altered or acquired. The Council will be
constrained in the matters it can consider when determining the premises
licence application, and in terms of representations about premises licence
applications that follow the grant of a provisional statement, no further
representations from relevant authorities or interested parties can be taken into
account unless:

e they concern matters which could not have been addressed at the

provisional statement stage; or
e they reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances.

Page 269



In addition, the Council may refuse the premises licence (or grant it on terms
different to those attached to the provisional statement) only by reference to
matters:

e which could not have been raised by objectors at the provisional
statement stage;

e which in the Council’'s opinion reflect a change in the operator's
circumstances; or

e where the premises have not been constructed in accordance with the
plan submitted with the application. This must be a substantial change
to the plan and this Council notes that it can discuss any concerns it has
with the applicant before making a decision.

3. Permits/Temporary And Occasional Use Notices
These forms of authorisations are as follows;

Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres (UFEC) Permits
Prize Gaming Permits

Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits

Club Gaming Permits

Club Gaming Machine Permits

Temporary Use Notices (TUNS)

Occasional Use Notices (OUNSs)

A table setting out gaming machine entitlement is attached at Appendix D.
3.1 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits

Only premises that are wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines
available may hold an Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre. As a result, it
is generally not permissible for such premises to correspond to an entire
shopping centre, airport, motorway service station or similar. Typically, the
machines will be in a designated enclosed area and clearly defined when
making an application to the Council.

Where a premise does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to provide
category D gaming machines, it may apply to the Council for this permit.

It should be noted that the applicant must show that the premises will be wholly
or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use and would,
therefore, exclude any premises primarily used for any other purposes, e.g.
canteens, fast food takeaways, leisure centres, garages and petrol filling
stations, taxi offices.

Page270



An application for a permit may be granted only if the Council is satisfied that
the premises will be used as an unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre and
the Chief Officer of Police has been consulted on the application.

The Council will expect the applicant to show that there are policies and
procedures in place to protect children from harm. Harm in this context is not
limited to harm from gambling but includes wider child protection
considerations. The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be
considered on their merits.  However, they may include appropriate
measures/training for staff as regards suspected truant school children on the
premises, measures/training covering how staff would deal with unsupervised
very young children being on the premises, or children causing perceived
problems on/around the premises.

This Council will also expect, as per Gambling Commission Guidance, that
applicants demonstrate:-

e A full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling
that is permissible in unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres;

e That the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that are set out in
Schedule 7 of the Act);

e That staff are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum
stakes and prizes.

It should be noted that the Council cannot attach conditions to this type of
permit.

3.2 (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits

There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for
consumption on the premises, to automatically have 2 gaming machines, of
categories C and/or D. The premises merely need to notify the licensing
authority. The Council can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of
any particular premises if:

e Provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of
the licensing objectives;

e Gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of
Section 282 of the Gambling Act (i.e. that written notice has been provided
to the licensing authority, that a fee has been provided and that any
relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the
location and operation of the machine has been complied with);

e The premises are mainly used for gaming; or

e An offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises.

If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then an application for a
permit must be submitted and the Council must consider that application based
upon the licensing objectives, any guidance and codes of practice issued by
the Gambling Commission and “such matters as the Council think relevant.”
The Council considers that “such matters” will be decided on a case by case

Page 271



basis but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect
the applicant to satisfy the Council that there will be sufficient measures to
ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only gaming
machines. Measures which will satisfy the Council that there will be no access
may include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in the sight of staff
who will monitor that the machines are not being used by those under 18.
Notices and signage may also be of help. As regards the protection of
vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of
information leaflets/helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare.

It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises
licence for their non-alcohol licensed areas. Any such application would most
likely need to be applied for, and dealt with as an Adult Gaming Centre premises
licence.

It should be noted that the Council can decide to grant the application with a
smaller number of machines and/or a different category of machines than that
applied for. Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached.

It should also be noted that the holder of a permit must comply with any Code
of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and
operation of the machine.

3.3 Prize Gaming Permits

The Council has the right in accordance with this ‘Statement of Principles’ to
specify matters that this authority propose to consider in determining the
suitability of the applicant for a permit.

It also specifies that the applicant should set out the types of gaming that he or
she is intending to offer and that the applicant should be able to demonstrate:-

e That they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in
Regulations;

e And that the gaming offered is within the law;

e Clear policies that outline the steps to be taken to protect children from
harm.

In making its decision on an application for this permit the licensing authority
does not need to have regard to the licensing objectives but must have regard
to any Gambling Commission guidance.

It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005 by which
the permit holder must comply, but that the licensing authority cannot attach
conditions. The conditions in the Act are:-

e The limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be
complied with;

Page272



e All chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the
premises on which the gaming is taking place and on one day; the game
must be played and completed on the day the chances are allocated;
and the result of the game must be made public in the premises on the
day that it is played,;

e The prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set
out in regulations (if a money prize), or the prescribed value (if non-
monetary prize); and

e Participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any
other gambling.

3.4 Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits

Members Clubs and Miners’ Welfare Institutes (but not Commercial Clubs) may
apply for a Club Gaming Permit or a Club Gaming Machines Permit. The Club
Gaming Permit will enable the premises to provide gaming machines (3
machines of categories B, C or D), equal chance gaming and games of chance.
Members Clubs and Miners’ Institutes and also Commercial Clubs may apply
for a Club Machine Permit. A Club Gaming Machine Permit will enable the
premises to provide gaming machines (3 machines of categories B, C or D).
Commercial Clubs may not site category B3A gaming machines offering lottery
games in their club.

The Council has to satisfy itself that the club meets the requirements of the Act
to obtain a club gaming permit. In doing so it will take into account a number
of matters as outlined in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance. These include
the constitution of the club, the frequency of gaming, and ensuring that there
are more than 25 members.

The club must be conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming,
unless the gaming is permitted by separate regulations. The Secretary of State
has made regulations and these cover bridge and whist clubs.

The Council may only refuse an application on the grounds that:

(@) The applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or
commercial club or miners’ welfare institute and therefore is not entitled
to receive the type of permit for which it has applied;

(b) The applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or
young persons;

(c) An offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed
by the applicant while providing gaming facilities;

(d) A permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten
years; or

(e) An objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police.

There is also a ‘fast-track’ procedure available under the Act for premises which

hold a Club Premises Certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 (Schedule 12
paragraph 10). Commercial clubs cannot hold Club Premises Certificates

Page 273



under the Licensing Act 2003 and so cannot use the fast track procedure. As
the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities states: "Under the
fast-track procedure there is no opportunity for objections to be made by the
Commission or the police, and the grounds upon which an authority can refuse
a permit are reduced.”" and "The grounds on which an application under the
process may be refused are:

(@) That the club is established primarily for gaming, other than gaming
prescribed under schedule 12;

(b) That in addition to the prescribed gaming, the applicant provides
facilities for other gaming; or

(c) That a club gaming permit or club machine permit issued to the
applicant in the last ten years has been cancelled.”

There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child uses a
category B or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any
relevant provision of a code of practice about the location and operation of
gaming machines.

3.5 Temporary Use Notices

Temporary Use Notices allow the use of premises for gambling where there is
no premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises
temporarily for providing facilities for gambling. Premises that might be suitable
for a Temporary Use Notice, according to the Gambling Commission, would
include hotels, conference centres and sporting venues.

The Council can only grant a Temporary Use Notice to a person or company
holding a relevant operating licence, i.e. a non-remote casino operating licence.

The Secretary of State has the power to determine what form of gambling can
be authorised by Temporary Use Notices. The Gambling Act 2005 (Temporary
Use Notices) Regulations 2007) state that Temporary Use Notices can only be
used to permit the provision of facilities or equal chance gaming, where the
gaming is intended to produce a single winner, which in practice means poker
tournaments.

There are a number of statutory limits as regards temporary use notices. The
meaning of "premises” in part 8 of the Act is discussed in the Gambling
Commission Guidance. As with "premises”, the definition of "a set of premises”
will be a question of fact in the particular circumstances of each notice that is
given. Inthe Act "premises"” is defined as including "any place". In considering
whether a place falls within the definition of "a set of premises"”, the Council
needs to look at, amongst other things, the ownership/occupation and control
of the premises.

This Council expects to object to notices where it appears that their effect would
be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of
premises; as recommended by the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to
licensing authorities.

Page®/4



3.6 Occasional Use Notices

Where there is betting on a track on 8 days or fewer in a calendar year, betting
may be permitted by an occasional use notice (OUN)without the need for a full
premises licence. The intention behind OUNs is to permit licensed betting
operators with appropriate permission from the Commission, to use tracks for
short periods for conducting betting, where the event upon which the betting is
to take place is of a temporary, infrequent nature (the OUN dispenses with the
need for a betting premises licence for the track in these circumstances).

Non-commercial, fundraising race nights can be run as betting events at
sporting venues under the authority of an OUN, whether or not the sporting
event on which the bets are taken is held at that venue. The sporting event on
which the bets are or will be taken also need not be taking place at the same
time as the betting under the OUN.

The Council has very little discretion as regards these notices aside from
ensuring that the statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded.
The Council will though consider the definition of a ‘track’ and whether the
applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the notice.

Small Society Lotteries

The Gambling Act 2005 sets out a definition of a lottery, detailed below, and
provides that promoting or facilitating a lottery is illegal, unless it falls into one
of two categories of permitted lottery, namely:

« licensed lotteries — these are large society lotteries and lotteries run for
the benefit of local authorities that are regulated by the Commission and
require operating licences;

o exempt lotteries — there are four types of exempt lottery that are
expressly permitted under Schedule 11 of the Act, including the small
society lottery.

A lottery is any arrangement that satisfies all of the criteria contained within the
statutory description of either a simple lottery or a complex lottery, in
accordance with section 14 of the Act.

A ‘society’ is the society, or any separate branch of such a society, on whose
behalf a lottery is to be promoted, and has been established as a non-
commercial organisation. Section 19 of the Act defines a society as such if it is
established and conducted:

« for charitable purposes, as defined in section 2 of the Charities Act 2006;

o for the purpose of enabling participation in, or of supporting, sport,
athletics or a cultural activity;

Page 275



« for any other non-commercial purpose other than that of private gain.

The society must have been established for one of the permitted purposes as
set out in section 19 of the Act, and that the proceeds of any lottery must be
devoted to those purposes. It is not permissible to establish a society whose
sole purpose is to facilitate lotteries.

Local authorities are entitled to operate their own lotteries, but may only do so
if licensed by the Gambling Commission. Local authorities must commit a
minimum of 20% of the proceeds from such lotteries for a purpose for which
they have power to incur expenditure, and must also adhere to the other
relevant provisions in the Act. They may also need to hold a remote gambling
operating licence, in the event that they wish to sell lottery tickets via electronic
or other remote technological methods such as over the telephone, email or via
the internet.

Applications for small society lottery registrations must be in the form prescribed
by the Secretary of State and must be accompanied by a registration fee and a
copy of the terms and conditions and the constitution to prove that they are a
non-commercial society. Paragraphs 47 and 48 of Schedule 11 of the Act set
out the grounds for licensing authorities to refuse a small society lottery
registration application.

The Council will adopt a risk based approach towards its enforcement
responsibilities for small society lotteries. The Council considers that the
following list, although not exclusive, could affect the risk status of the operator:

e submission of late returns (returns must be submitted no later than three
months after the date on which the lottery draw was held)

e submission of incomplete or incorrect returns

e breaches of the limits for small society lotteries

Non-commercial gaming is permitted if it takes place at a non-commercial
event, either as an incidental or principal activity at the event. Events are non-
commercial if no part of the proceeds is for private profit or gain. The proceeds
of such events may benefit one or more individuals if the activity is organised:

e by, or on behalf of, a charity or for charitable purposes
e to enable participation in, or support of, sporting, athletic or cultural
activities.

Charities and community groups should contact the Council via e-mail to
licensing@monmouthshire.gov.uk or by letter at Licensing Section,
Monmouthshire County Council, Abergavenny Community Education Centre,
Old Hereford Road, Abergavenny NP7 6EL to register the lottery and to provide
proof the collection is for charitable purposes, to support sporting, athletic or
cultural activities.

Page#7/76


mailto:licensing@monmouthshire.gov.uk

5.

Decision Making

5.1 Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions

The powers and duties of the Council under the Act may be carried out by the
Licensing Committee, by a Sub-Committee or by one or more officers acting
under delegated authority.

It is considered that many of the functions will be largely administrative in nature
with no perceived areas of contention. In the interests of efficiency and cost
effectiveness these will, for the most part, be carried out by officers.

The following schedule sets out the recommended delegation of functions and
decisions by guidance. The Council may, nevertheless, refer any matter to the
Licensing Committee or Sub-Committee.

The schedule of delegation of licensing functions is attached at Appendix B.

5.2 Appeals Procedure

Entitlements to appeal for parties aggrieved by decisions of the Council are set
out in Sections 206 to 209 of the 2005 Act. Appeals must be made to the
Magistrates Court for the area in which the licensing authority, which has
considered the application, is situated.

An appeal has to be commenced by giving notice of the appeal by the appellant
to; The Clerk to the Justices, Gwent Magistrates Court, The Law Courts,
Faulkner Road, Newport, NP20 4PR, within a period of 21 days, beginning with
the day on which the appellant was notified by the Council of the decision to be
appealed against.

On determining an appeal, the Court may:

e Dismiss the appeal;

e Substitute the decision appealed against with any other decision that
could have been made by the licensing authority;

e Remit the case to the licensing authority to dispose of the appeal in
accordance with the direction of the Court.

e Make an order about costs.

5.3 Giving Reasons for Decisions

In anticipation of such appeals, the Council will give comprehensive reasons
for its decisions. The Council will address the extent to which decisions have
been made with regard to any relevant codes of practice and guidance issued
by the Gambling Commission, reasonably consistent with the licensing
objectives and in accordance with this Policy Statement.

Page 277



5.4 Implementing the Determination of The Magistrates’ Court

As soon as the decision of the Magistrates’ Court has been notified to all parties,
the Council will not delay its implementation and necessary action will be taken
forthwith unless ordered by a higher court to suspend such action (for example,
as a result of an ongoing judicial review). The Act provides for no other appeal
against the determination of the Magistrates’ Court.

5.5 Complaints against Licensed Premises

The Council will investigate complaints against licensed premises in relation to
matters relating to the licensing objectives for which it has responsibility. In the
first instance, complainants are encouraged to raise the complaint directly with
the licence holder or business concerned to seek a local resolution.

Where an interested party has made either a valid representation about
licensed premises or a valid application for a licence to be reviewed, the Council
may initially arrange a conciliation meeting to address and clarify the issues of
concern.

This process will not override the right of any interested party to ask that the
Licensing and Gambling Sub-Committee consider their valid objections, or for
any licence holder to decline to participate in a conciliation meeting.

Due consideration will be given to all relevant representations unless they fit
the exceptions in 5.6 below.

5.6 Reviews

Requests for a review can be made by Interested Parties or Responsible
Authorities. However, it is for the Council to decide whether the review is to be
carried out based upon any relevant codes of practice and guidance issued by
the Gambling Commission, reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives
and in accordance with this Policy Statement.

The request for the review will also be subject to the consideration by the
Council as to whether it is frivolous, vexatious, or whether it will not cause this
Council to alter/revoke/suspend the licence, or whether it is substantially the
same as previous representations or requests for review.

The Council can also initiate a review of a particular premises licence, or a
particular class of premises licence on the basis of any reason, which it thinks
is appropriate.

Once a valid application for a review has been received by the Councll,

representations can be made by responsible authorities and interested parties
during a 28 day period. This period begins 7 days after the application was

Page$2/8



received by the Council, who will publish notice of the application within 7 days
of receipt.

The Council must carry out the review as soon as possible after the 28 day
period for making representations has passed.

The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the Council should take
any action in relation to the licence. If action is justified, the options open to the
Council are:-

e add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the Council;

e exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (e.g.
opening hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion;

e  suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months;
and

e revoke the premises licence.

In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the
Council must have regard to the principles set out in Section 153 of the Act, as
well as any relevant representations.

In particular, the Council may also initiate a review of a premises licence on the
grounds that a premises licence holder has not provided facilities for gambling
at the premises. This is to prevent people from applying for licences in a
speculative manner without intending to use them.

Once the review has been completed, the Council must, as soon as possible,
notify its decision to:

the licence holder;

the applicant for review (if any);

the Commission;

any person who made representations;

the chief officer of police or chief constable; and

Her Majesty’s Commissioners for Revenue and Customs.

Licensing Conditions and Codes of Practice 2020
(LCCP)

The Gambling Act 2005 requires the Gambling Commission to issue one or
more codes of practice about the manner in which facilities for gambling are
provided. The codes may be directed at the holders of operating or personal
licences, or any other person involved in providing facilities for gambling.

The Act also requires licensing authorities to take into account when exercising

their functions, any relevant code of practice issued by the Commission under
section 24, in this case:-

Page 279



e The Commission’s Licence conditions and codes of practice (LCCP),
which apply to holders of Gambling Commission operating or personal
licences;

e Other codes - these are the Commission’s code of practice for equal
chance gaming and its code of practice for gaming machines in clubs
and premises with an alcohol licence

The LCCP contains two types of code provision:
Social responsibility code provisions

These are provisions describing arrangements which should be made by
persons providing facilities for gambling for the purpose of:-

(a) ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way;

(b) protecting children and other vulnerable persons form being harmed
or exploited by gambling; and

(c) making assistance available to persons who are or may be affected
by problems related to gambling.

Compliance with these is a condition of operator licences; therefore any breach
of them by a licensed operator may lead the Commission to review the
operator’s licence with a view to suspension, revocation or the imposition of a
financial penalty and would also expose the operator to the risk of prosecution;
these provisions are in shaded boxes in the remainder of this document.

Ordinary code provisions

These do not have the status of licence conditions in the case of licensed
operators, but set out good practice; these code provisions are in the unshaded
boxes in this document.

Codes of practice are admissible in evidence in criminal or civil proceedings
and must be taken into account in any case in which the court or tribunal think
them relevant, and by the Commission in the exercise of its functions; any
departure from code provisions by an operator may be taken into account by
the Commission, for example on a licence review (but could not lead to
imposition of a financial penalty).

However, the Commission has made it clear that licensed operators may adopt
alternative approaches to those set out if they have actively taken account of
the provision and can demonstrate that an alternative approach is reasonable
in the particular circumstances; or that to take an alternative approach would
be acting in a similarly effective manner.

Risk Assessments - Premises
The LCCP requires all existing licensees that provide gambling at their

premises to assess the local risks to the licensing objectives and have policies,
procedures and control measures to reduce those risks. Licensees must take

Page 280



into account any relevant matters identified in the licensing authorities
(gambling) Statement of Policy when making their risk assessments.

A local risk assessment should also be undertaken or updated by a licensee,
when applying for:-

e A new premises licence;
e When applying for a variation of an existing premises licence;
e To take into account any local significant changes in the local area;

e When there are significant changes within their premises that may affect
the existing local risk assessment.

Operators are required to make the risk assessment available to licensing
authorities when an application is submitted and a copy should be kept at the
premises or otherwise on request, and this will form part of the Council’s
inspection regime or investigating complaints.

The code requires the Council to set out matters they expect the operator to
take account of in the risk assessment in its statement of policy and this council
expects the following matters to be considered by operators when making their
risk assessment.

e Information held by the licensee regarding self-exclusions and
incidences of underage gambling,

e Gaming trends that may reflect benefit payments

e Arrangement for localised exchange of information regarding self-
exclusions and gaming trends.

e Urban setting such as proximity to schools, commercial environment,
factors affecting footfall,

e Range of facilities in proximity to the licensed premises such as other
gambling outlets, banks, post offices, refreshment and entertainment
type facilities

e Known problems in the area such as problems arising from street
drinkers, youths participating in anti-social behaviour, drug dealing
activities, etc.

Betting Track Premises — The Gambling Commission states within it's LCCP
code that Operators are required to make a risk assessment. However, Betting
Track Premises are not required to seek an Operators Licence with the
Gambling Commission and as such are not required to conduct a risk
assessment. However, in the interest of the objectives of the Gambling Act
2003, namely i) preventing gambling being a source of crime or disorder, being
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime; ii) ensuring
that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; iii) protecting children and
other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, this
Council would expect a Betting Track Premises to conduct a risk assessment
for their premises.

Page 281



The council expects the following matters to be considered by operators when
making their risk assessment.

Matters relating to children and young persons, including;

Institutions, places or areas where presence of children and young
persons should be expected such as schools, youth clubs, parks,
playgrounds and entertainment venues such as bowling allies, cinemas
etc.;

Any premises where children congregate including bus stops, café’s,
shops, and any other place where children are attracted,;

Areas that are prone to issues of youths participating in anti social
behaviour, including such activities as graffititagging, underage
drinking, etc.;

Recorded incidents of attempted underage gambling.

Matters relating to vulnerable adults, including;

Information held by the licensee regarding self-exclusions and incidences
of underage gambling;

Gaming trends that may mirror days for financial payments such as pay
days or benefit payments;

Arrangement for localised exchange of information regarding self-
exclusions and gaming trends;

Proximity of premises which may be frequented by vulnerable people
such as hospitals, residential care homes, medical facilities, doctor’s
surgeries, council housing offices, addiction clinics or help centres,
places where alcohol or drug dependant people may congregate, etc.
The consideration of the location of alcohol licensed premises will also
be a key consideration for gambling licence applications.

Other issues that may be considered could include;

Matters of faith, including all religious or faith denominations including
proximity to churches, mosques, temples or any other place of worship.
the economic make-up of an area,

the surrounding night-time economy;

children’s homes and care facilities;

the area footfall eg. residential or commercial areas;

banks and ATM nearby;

known anti-social behaviour issues;

housing facilities;

job centres;

hostel and support services for the homeless;

alcohol and drug support facilities;

pawn brokers and payday loan businesses;

other gambling premises;

If there is an existing cluster of gambling premises

mental health facilities;

Page 282



community buildings;

residential care establishments;

transport and parking facilities eg. bus stops, taxi ranks, train stations;
presences of rough sleepers;

unemployment rates for area;

types and rates of crime in the area that could impact on the premises
areas with significant areas of children, eg parks and playgrounds.

This list is not exhaustive and other factors not in this list that are identified must
be taken into consideration.

Significant changes to the premises

From time to time operators will undertake a refresh of the premises' layout and
décor, which is unlikely to prompt a review of the risk assessment for that
premises. However, where there is a significant change at the premises that
may affect the mitigation of local risks, then an operator must review its risk
assessment and if necessary update it, taking into account the change and how
it may affect one or more of the licensing objectives.

It is expected that gambling operators will undertake this risk assessment
process as a matter of course for any premises refit, changes to layout or
internal control measures. If any changes do require a review of the risk
assessments for that premises gambling operators should ensure that they
have a system in place to record and action any measures identified in that
review.

The gambling operator will be responsible for identifying when a significant
change to the premises has occurred. In order to assist gambling operators the
Council has provided the following list of examples of what could be classified
as a significant change to the premises (some of which may also require a
variation to the existing premises licence).

e Any building work or premises refit where gambling facilities are
relocated within the premises.

e The premises licence is transferred to a new operator who will operate
the premises with its own procedures and policies which are different to
those of the previous licensee.

¢ Any change to the operator’s internal policies which as a result requires
additional or changes to existing control measures; and/or staff will
require retraining on those policy changes.

e The entrance or entrances to the premises are changed, for example,
the door materials are changed from metal with glazing to a full glass
door or doors are reallocated from egress to ingress or vice versa.

e New gambling facilities are made available on the premises which were
not provided previously, for example, bet in play, handheld gaming
devices for customers, Self Service Betting Terminals, or a different
category of gaming machine is provided.

Page 283



e The premises operator makes an application for a licence at that
premises to provide an activity under a different regulatory regime, for
example, to permit the sale of alcohol.

As with the examples of significant changes in local circumstances, the list
above is not an exhaustive list of significant changes to premises.

The Council will not, as general practice, request a copy of the reviewed risk
assessment if a significant change to the licensed premises has occurred,
unless the change is one that will necessitate a variation application.

Variation of the premises licence

Variations to premises licences are only those required to be made under
section 187 of the Act and will not include changes of circumstances such as a
change of premises' name or a change of licensee's address, etc.

The Commissions LCCP social responsibility code provision 10.1.1 requires
that gambling operators must undertake a review of the local risk assessment
and update it if necessary when preparing an application to vary the premises
licence. Operators submitting a variation application to the Council may
consider submitting a copy of the reviewed local risk assessment when
submitting the application. This will then negate the need for the Council
requesting to see a copy of this risk assessment and could potentially reduce
the likelihood of a representation being made to the application.

If an operator wishes to vary a converted casino premises licence from one
premises to another then the gambling operator should consider producing a
new risk assessment for that premises. It is advisable that a copy of that
assessment is submitted to the Council with the application form.

Regular review of risk assessment

As a matter of best practice the Council recommends that operators establish
a regular review regime in respect of their local risk assessments. This review
programme can be carried out alongside other reviews on Health and Safety
risk assessments for the premises. This review programme would ensure that,
regardless of whether or not any of the trigger events set out above have
occurred, these risk assessments are considered at regular intervals and
updated if necessary.

It will be up to the gambling operator as to the frequency of these reviews but it
is recommended that no more than three years should pass before these
assessments are reviewed. Operators may wish to synchronise their reviews
of the local risk assessments with the publication of the Council’s Statement of
Licensing Principles for Gambling. This would enable gambling operators to
consider the Local Area Profile, which has been published in the Council’s
Statement of Licensing Principles for Gambling.

Local risks and control measures

Page 84



There are two specific parts to the risk assessment process:
e the assessment of the local risks

¢ the determination of appropriate mitigation to reduce those risks

The risks that operators must identify relate to the potential impact a gambling
premises and its operation may have on the licensing objectives. Gambling
operator should identify and list all of the local risks within the assessment that
they have identified. The level of such risks can range from being low to very
high depending on the potential impact that the gambling operator has
assessed it to have on the licensing objectives. The level of any given risk will
have a direct impact on the type and extent of the control measures that the
gambling operators deems as being necessary to mitigate such risk.

Operators will already be assessing locations when looking for new sites or
when reviewing the performance of their premises. The design of premises is
also assessed to ensure that they will meet the needs of the gambling
operation, will provide protection for staff and customers; and will have facilities
for recording crime. Operators will also have implemented policies and
procedures for the operation of premises in line with statutory and other
regulatory requirements placed upon them by the Commission and other
agencies.

Operators will already be familiar with identifying risks in relation to health and
safety and food hygiene legislation. Risk assessments are also used for
security and crime purposes, for example for money laundering and as part of
trade association best practice, such as the Safe Bet Alliance.

This local risk assessment process, although similar requires a much broader
range of considerations when identifying local risk. The requirement of the
Commissions LCCP social responsibility code provision 10.1.1 is that gambling
operators consider the local area in which the premises are situated and the
impact that the premises operation may have on the licensing objectives.

Local arearisks

There are a number of factors relating to the local area that operators may
consider which is independent of who the operator believes is their target
market. It will be for the gambling operator to identify these risks. However,
there may be occasions that the Commission or the Council will provide
information on what they perceive as being a local risk. This may be specified
in the Statement of Licensing Policy or in a separate guidance document, both
of which will be found on the Council’s website.

The local area will be different depending on the premises and the size of its
operation. For example a large Bingo hall may have a wider catchment area
than a neighbourhood betting shop as the Bingo hall attracts customers from
further afield.

Risk Assessment

Page 285



Although gambling is a legal entertainment activity it can, in some locations,
have a negative impact on individuals and the wider community. The
consideration of the proximity of gambling premises to locations where groups
vulnerable to problematic gambling may congregate, e.g. schools, alcohol
services, supported housing, will be a priority for the applicant and licensing
authority. Monmouthshire Public Service Board has produced a Wellbeing
Assessment as part of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act. The
Assessment considers Economic, Social, Environmental and Cultural
Wellbeing in the county as a whole whilst also focusing on 5 areas based
around : Abergavenny, Monmouth, Chepstow, Caldicot and Central
Monmouthshire.

Full details can be found on http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/our-
monmouthshire
Crime data for local area can be obtained from www.gwent.police.uk

Bangor University has conducted an interactive map which explores area-
based vulnerability to gambling related harm across Wales.
https://www.bangor.ac.uk/psychology/research/gambling/gambling-and-
health-in-wales

Gambling operational risks

The gambling operation relates to how the premises will be or is run. This will
include the operator’s policies and procedures which have been put in place to
meet the requirements of the business, the Act and/or specific code provisions
within the LCCP.

Gambling operators should identify operational risks in the local area to the
licensing objectives and then consider whether there are control measures in
excess of those already in place that would mitigate the risk. For example if
there is a known illegal drug use in the local area the gambling operator may
consider using control measures such as maglocks on the toilet doors or
change the design to the toilet to deter people from using it for illegal drug use.
It is likely that the identification of risks associated with this element of the
assessment will be very similar for all premises with slight variations depending
on any specific factors that relate to the premises or the local area.

The control measures that operators will put in place to mitigate any risk
associated with the gambling operation will be dependent on the type of
gambling activities provided, how the company operates and the size of the
organisation.

Premises design risks

The design of the premises is an extremely important factor when considering
local risks. For example, an Adult Gaming Centre which is located within an

Page 486


http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/our-monmouthshire
http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/our-monmouthshire
http://www.gwent.police.uk/
https://www.bangor.ac.uk/psychology/research/gambling/gambling-and-health-in-wales
https://www.bangor.ac.uk/psychology/research/gambling/gambling-and-health-in-wales

area which has a high number of children and young people present throughout
the day may identify that the doors on either side of the premises are being
used by local children as a short cut to access the adjacent street. The
appropriate mitigation in this case may be that the gambling operator closes off
one of the doors to prevent it being used as a short cut.

As part of the design process, the layout of the premises is a major
consideration as poorly conceived design may create significant risks to one or
more of the licensing objectives. Gambling operators are experienced in
premises design and often these considerations are made during the planning
phase. It is advisable that gambling operators ensure that there is a process in
place to record these key decisions at an early stage of the planning process
for the premises design so that this can be included in their risk assessment.

Interior design risks

The internal design and layout will reflect the premises operation and the type
of gambling facilities that it offers. For some premises the design will be subject
to certain limitations due to mandatory conditions on the gambling premises
licence, such as the distance between gaming tables and other gambling
facilities in casinos, and restrictions on the location of ATMs.

Operators should assess the risk presented by the internal layout of the
premises and the location of gambling facilities within them. For example, if a
gaming machine is placed within the direct line of sight of the cashier counter
then staff will be able to monitor player behaviour and undertake interventions
if there is a concern over the customers’ spending habits. Staff can also monitor
the use of the machines and can challenge any customers who are believed to
be under the age of 18, or who damage the machines, or who appear to be
attempting to launder money. By a simple assessment of the optimum location
for these machines, operators can significantly reduce the risk to the licensing
objectives.

Exterior design risks

The exterior of premises will be a major advertisement for the gambling
operator. However, the design should be assessed based on the associated
risk. Operators may identify a risk associated with the design and introduce
control measures based on that perceived risk. For example, if the premises
have a large amount of glass frontage in an area prone to criminal damage,
operators may consider the risk of damage to the standard toughened glass to
be high and introduce a control measure such as roller shutters and/or external
CCTV cameras.

Control measures
Depending on the nature of the risk factors, the control measures identified to

mitigate the perceived risk may be a combination of systems, design and
physical measure. Control measures that relate to systems may be measures

Page 287



that have been put in place though policies and procedures. These can either
be systems that apply to all of the operator's premises or systems that have
been developed specifically for particular premises to deal with a specific local
risk factor. System control measures may include staff training, security policies
and procedures. They may also relate to having security personnel on
entrances, implementing membership criteria and/or providing support to local
vulnerable groups through financial or other means.

Design control measures are measures that are built into the design of the
premises. These can include the location of gambling facilities and the design
and location of cashier counters within the premises, and the exterior design of
premises. For example, a control measure for the interior of the premises could
involve moving a cashier counter from the rear of the premises to the front of
the shop next to the main entrance. An external design control measure may
involve the exterior design being tailored to address local risks, for example,
more open window displays to enable staff can see out of the premises or a
design to avoid attracting children to the premises.

The final control measures relate to specific physical measure that will address
an identified risk factor. These physical control measures may, for example,
include alarms, CCTV cameras, doors, magnetic locks, time locks on safes, spit
kits, window shutters, fogging systems, UV lights in toilets.

The control measures identified to mitigate a perceived risk may involve a
combination of systems, design and physical measures. For example to
address the risk factors relating to children gaining access to an over 18
restricted gambling premises, the operator may identify the following control
measures:

Systems: PASS card or age verification policies, challenge 21 scheme, staff
training and door staff.

Design: Exterior design which will not attract children into the premises, the
entrance layout will enable staff and security to watch those entering the
premises and challenge them on the grounds of age.

Physical: Magnetic door locks and ID scans.

Step 1: Undertaking a local risk assessment

The risk assessment should be carried out through a step-by-step approach.
Gambling operators may first assess the local area and identify the relevant risk
factors, then assess the gambling operation, and finally assess the premises
design, both internal and external. Once the risk factors have been identified,
the control measures to mitigate the risks should be considered. These control
measures will either already be in place or will need to be implemented.
e Assessors should start by identify the local risk factors surrounding the
premises. The risk factors will differ from location to location so an
understanding of the specific characteristics of the local area and the

Page 4288



people who live, work or visit that area is important. Use Community
wellbeing profile and local knowledge will assist.

Step 2: Gambling operation and physical design

In assessing the risk factors associated with a gambling operation the assessor
should take into account the local risks which are commonly accepted by
broader stakeholders and how that gambling operation may affect that risk.
The physical design of the premises is a key consideration as this could have
a significant impact on the risk to the licensing objectives. In assessing the risk
factors associated with the premises design and layout reference is needed to
the local area risks factors already identified to ensure the design doesn’t add
to that risk. The design, both internal and external should be considered and
specific risk factors identified and noted.

Step 3: Control measures

Once the risk factors have been identified, the assessor should seek to identify
control measures that would mitigate the identified risks. Such control
measures will relate to one of the three categories of control measures
mentioned above (systems, design and physical). Some risk factors may
require a combination of control measures to adequately mitigate the risk.

Step 4: Action Plan

Once the assessment has been carried out an action plan should be completed
so that any identified actions are documented and a deadline for completing the
required piece of work is set and agreed.

Completed assessment

The control measures must be implemented on the premises and, if
applicable,staff on the premises should be trained in their use or trained on the
new policy or procedure. The assessment must be retained and should be
reviewed whenever a trigger occurs or as part of a regular review regime

Further Information

Further information about the Gambling Act 2005, this Statement of Licensing
Policy or the application process can be obtained from:

Licensing Section

Monmouthshire County Council
Abergavenny Community Education Centre
Old Hereford Road

Abergavenny

NP7 6EL

Telephone: 01873 735420

Fax: 01633 644878

Page 289



Email: licensing@monmouthshire.gov.uk
Website: www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/licensing

Information is also available from:

The Gambling Commission

Victoria Square House

Birmingham

B2 4BP

Telephone: 0121 230 6666

Fax: 0121 230 6720

Email: info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
Website: www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

The Department for Digital Culture, Media & Sport
100 Parliament Street

London

SW1A 2BQ

Telephone: 020 7211 2210

Website: www.culture.gov.uk

Page 4290


mailto:licensing@monmouthshire.gov.uk
mailto:info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
http://www.culture.gov.uk/

Appendix A Access to Premises
Casinos

e The principal access entrance to the premises must be from a street;

e No entrance to a casino must be from premises that are used wholly or
mainly by children and/or young persons;

e No customer must be able to enter a casino directly from any other
premises, which holds a gambling premises licence.

Adult Gaming Centre

e No customer must be able to access the premises directly from any other
licensed gambling premises.

Betting Shops

e Access must be from a street or from another premises with a betting
premises licence;

e No direct access from a betting shop to another premises used for the
retail sale of merchandise or services. In effect there cannot be an
entrance to a betting shop from a shop of any kind and you could not
have a betting shop at the back of a café — the whole area would have
to be licensed.

Tracks

No customer should be able to access the premises directly from:
e acasino;
e an adult gaming centre.

Bingo Premises

No customer must be able to access the premises directly from:
e acasino;
e an adult gaming centre;
e a betting premises, other than a track.

Family Entertainment Centre

No customer must be able to access the premises directly from:
e acasino;
¢ an adult gaming centre;
e a betting premises, other than a track.

Part 7 of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities

contains further guidance on this issue, which this authority will also take into
account in its decision-making.

Page 291



Appendix B Schedule of Delegation of Licensing
Functions and Decisions

Full
Matters to be Council | Sub-Committee Officers
dealt with
Three year X
Gambling Policy
Policy not to X
permit casinos
Fee Setting — X
when appropriate
(Fee Setting for
Premises Licence
be delegated to
the Licensing and
Regulatory
Committee)
Application for Where Where no
Premises Licence representations representations
have been received/representations
received and not | have been
withdrawn withdrawn/authorised to
dispense with a hearing
if all parties are in
agreeance/authorised to
assess if a
representation is valid.
Application for a Where Where no
variation to a representations representations
licence have been received/representations
received and not | have been
withdrawn withdrawn/authorised to
dispense with a hearing
if all parties are in
agreeance/authorised to
assess if a
representation is valid.
Application for a Where Where no representation
transfer of a representations has been received from
licence have been the Commission
received from the
Commission
Application for a Where Where no
provisional representations representations
statement have been received/representations
received and not | have been
withdrawn withdrawn/authorised to

Page 292




Full

Matters to be Council | Sub-Committee Officers
dealt with
dispense with a hearing
if all parties are in
agreeance/authorised to
assess if a
representation is valid.
Review of a

Premises Licence

Revocation of a
premises licence
for failure to pay
annual licence
fee

Application for
club gaming/club
machine permits

Where objections
have been made
(and not
withdrawn)

Where no
representations
received/representations
have been
withdrawn/authorised to
dispense with a hearing
if all parties are in
agreeance/authorised to
assess if a
representation is valid.

Cancellation of
club gaming/club
machine permits

X

Applications for
other permits

Where objections
have been made
and not withdrawn

Where no
representations
received/representations
have been
withdrawn/authorised to
dispense with a hearing
if all parties are in
agreeance/authorised to
assess if a
representation is valid.

Cancellation of
licensed premises
gaming machine
permits

Authorised to cancel a
permit, with the holder

having the right to a
hearing at the Sub-
Committee.

Consideration of
temporary use
notice

Consideration/authorised
to dispense with a
hearing if all parties are
in agreeance/authorised

Page 293




Matters to be
dealt with

Full
Council

Sub-Committee

Officers

to assess if objection is
valid.

Decision to give a
counter notice to

a temporary use X
notice
Small Society Registration, Refusal
Lotteries and revocation of a
lottery registration with
X the applicant/holder

having the right to a
hearing at the Sub-
Committee.

Page 494




Appendix C  Definitions

NOTE: In this Policy, the following definitions are included to provide an
explanation to certain terms included in the Act and, therefore, in the Statement
of Licensing Policy. In some cases they are an abbreviation of what is stated
in the Gambling Act 2005 or an interpretation of those terms. For a full definition
of the terms used, the reader must refer to the Gambling Act 2005.

‘The Council’ means Monmouthshire County Council, acting as the Licensing
Authority as defined by the Gambling Act 2005.

‘The Act’ means the Gambling Act 2005.

‘The County’ means the County of Monmouthshire.

‘The Licensing Authority’ the authority in whose area the premises is
wholly/partly situated. The Licensing Authority (as in the issuing authority) is

also a responsible authority.

‘The Gambling Commission’ a body set up by the Government as the unified
regulator for gambling, replacing the Gaming Board.

‘Responsible Authority’ means a public body that must be notified of certain
applications for premises licences and permits, and are entitled to make
representations on any of the licensing objectives.

‘Children’ means individuals who are less than 16 years old.

‘Young person’ means individuals who are aged less than 18 years old and 16
years and over.

‘Vulnerable person’ will not be defined but the assumption is that this group
includes people who gamble more than they want to, people who gamble
beyond their means, and people who may not be able to make informed or
balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental impairment, alcohol or
drugs.

‘Mandatory Conditions’ means a specified condition provided by regulations to
be attached to premises licences.

‘Default Conditions’ means a specified condition provided for by regulations to
be attached to a licence unless excluded by the Council.

‘Premises’ means any place, including a vessel or moveable structure.

‘Tracks’ means a horse-race course, dog track or other premises on any part
of which a race or other sporting event takes place or is intended to take place.

Page 295



Appendix D Summary of Machine Provisions by

Premises

Machine category

Premises type ‘A | B1 | B2

B3 B4‘C|D

Large casino
(machine/table ratio of
5-1 up to maximum)

Maximum of 150 machines
Any combination of machines in categories B to D (except B3A
machines), within the total limit of 150 (subject to machine/table
ratio)

Small casino
(machine/table ratio of
2-1 up to maximum)

Maximum of 80 machines
Any combination of machines in categories B to D (except B3A
machines), within the total limit of 80 (subject to machine/table
ratio)

Pre-2005 Act casino
(no machine/table ratio)

Maximum of 20 machines categories B to D (except B3A
machines), or any number of C or D machines instead

Betting premises and tracks

Maximum of 4 machines categories B2 to D (except B3A

occupied by pool betting machines)
Bingo premises? Maximum of 20% of the total number of No limit on category
gaming machines which are available for use C or D machines

on the premises categories B3 or B4

Adult gaming centre?

Maximum of No limit on category

20% of the total number of gaming machines C or D machines
which are available for use on the premises

categories B3 or B4

Licensed family entertainment
centre®

No limit on category
C or D machines

Family entertainment
centre (with permit)

No limit on
category D
machines

Clubs or miners’ welfare
institute (with permits) 4

Maximum of 3 machines in
categories B3A or B4 to D

Qualifying alcohol-licensed
premises

1 or 2 machines of
category C or D
automatic upon

notification
Qualifying alcohol-licensed Number of category C-D machines as specified
premises (with licensed premises on permit
gaming machine permit)
Travelling fair No limit on
category D
machines

Pages296




1 Bingo premises licence are entitled to make available for use a number of category
B gaming machines not exceeding 20% of the total number of gaming machines on
the premises. Where a premises licence was granted before 13 July 2011, they are
entitled to make available eight (The Gambling Act 2005 (Gaming Machines in Bingo
Premises) Order 2009) category B gaming machines, or 20% of the total number of
gaming machines, whichever is the greater. Category B machines at bingo premises
are restricted to sub-category B3 and B4 machines, but not B3A machines.

2 Adult gaming centres are entitled to make available for use a number of category B
gaming machines not exceeding 20% of the total number of gaming machines which
are available for use on the premises and any number of category C or D machines.
Where a premises licence was granted before 13 July 2011, they are entitled to make
available four category B gaming machines, or 20% of the total number of gaming
machines, whichever is the greater. Category B machines at adult gaming centres are
restricted to sub-category B3 and B4 machines, but not B3A machines.

2 Only premises that are wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available
may hold an unlicensed FEC gaming machine permit or an FEC premises licence.
Category C machines may only be sited within licensed FECs and where an FEC
permit is in force. They must be in a separate area to ensure the segregation and
supervision of machines that may only be played by adults. There is no power for the
licensing authority to set a limit on the number of machines under the FEC permit.

4Members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes with a club gaming permit or with a club
machine permit, are entitled to site a total of three machines in categories B3A to D
but only one B3A machine can be sited as part of this entitlement.

> Commercial clubs with club machine or gaming permits are entitled to a total of three
machines in categories B4 to D.

Page 297



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

-
a8 :
¥  monmouthshire
&\ sir fynwy
Name of the Officer: Linda O’Gorman / David H Jones Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal
To consider the Council’'s Gambling Policy and the existing resolution to
Phone no: 01633 644214 not permit casinos within the County of Monmouthshire
E-mail: lindaogorman@monmouthshire.gov.uk
Name of Service area Date
Licensing 215 October 2021
U - . - - .
(g. Are your proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact, the
@ evidence you have used and any action you are taking below.
N
28 Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What has been/will be done to
Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Age Protects children by not ‘normalising’
gambling
Disability Neutral
Gender Neutral
reassignment



mailto:lindaogorman@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Describe any positive impacts your

Describe any negative impacts

What has been/will be done to

Protected proposal has on the protected your proposal has on the mitigate any negative impacts or
Characteristics characteristic protected characteristic better contribute to positive
impacts?
Marriage or civil Neutral
partnership
Pregnancy or Neutral
maternity
Race .Neutral
Religion or Belief Neutral
Sex Neutral
@® exual Orientation Neutral
«@

00€




2. The Socio-economic Duty and Social Justice
The Socio-economic Duty requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to reduce inequalities of outcome which result from socio-
economic disadvantage when taking key decisions This duty aligns with our commitment as an authority to Social Justice.

Describe any positive impacts your
proposal has in respect of people
suffering socio economic
disadvantage

Describe any negative impacts
your proposal has in respect of
people suffering socio economic
disadvantage.

What has been/will be done to
mitigate any negative impacts or
better contribute to positive
impacts?

Socio-economic
Duty and Social
Justice

o ﬁRV\ 1

The impacts of gambling addiction can
include the inability to function at work, and
financial problems which can lead to
homelessness.

ToEBbed




3. Policy making and the Welsh language.

How does your proposal impact
on the following aspects of the
Council’s Welsh Language
Standards:

Describe the positive impacts of
this proposal

Describe the negative impacts
of this proposal

What has been/will be done
to mitigate any negative
Impacts or better contribute
to positive impacts

Policy Making

Effects on the use of the Welsh
language,

Promoting Welsh language

UTreating the Welsh language no
gless favourably

Neutral

JPperational
D

o ¥aVa "\RV\ 1

MRecruitment & Training of
workforce

N/A

Service delivery

Use of Welsh language in service
delivery

Promoting use of the language

N/A

4. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together
with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal. There’s no need to put something in every box if it is not

relevant!




Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal?
Describe the positive and negative impacts.

What actions have been/will be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A prosperous Wales

Efficient use of resources, skilled,
educated people, generates wealth,
provides jobs

Generally considered that gambling has a negative
impact on the personal wealth of participants.

Would not want to encourage wider scale gambling,
as could lead to addiction and financial hardship.

A resilient Wales

Maintain and enhance biodiversity and
ecosystems that support resilience and
can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

N/A

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health
impacts are understood

Could promote excessive gambling, which may
impact on those who are vulnerable/addicted to
gambling if Casinos are permitted

As above.

Wales of cohesive communities
»Communities are attractive, viable,
Psafe and well connected

ARV
C

Larger scale gambling can be problematic and have
a negative impact on local communities.

’“’DA globally responsible Wales
WIlaking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

oN

The proposal has a positive impact by clearly
stating casinos will not be permitted in
Monmouthshire.

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

N/A

A more equal Wales

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or
circumstances

The impacts of gambling addiction can lead to
financial problems and poverty, which can lead to
homelessness.




5. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable Development
Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain
why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

a0

Long Term

Balancing
short term
need with
long term and
planning for
the future

A resolution not to permit casinos protects vulnerable people from
being harmed or exploited by gambling.

ne aABp g
| W)

gollabomﬁon
f—

Working
together with
other
partners to
deliver
objectives

N/A

y

Involvement

Involving
those with
an interest
and seeking
their views

Gambling addiction is well documented

Prevention

Putting
resources
into
preventing
problems
occurring or
getting
worse

By preventing a casino coming to Monmouthshire protects
some of our more vulnerable members of society.




Sustainable Development
Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain
why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Considering
impact on all
wellbeing
goals
together and
on other

Integration bodies

As above

Gog abed




6. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on the following important responsibilities: Corporate
Parenting and Safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect any of these responsibilities?

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What will you do/ have you done
proposal has your proposal has to mitigate any negative impacts
or better contribute to positive
impacts?
Safeguarding The resolution to not permit a casino

contributes positively to protecting children

Corporate Parenting

7. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

The Chief Medical Officer for Wales Annual Report 2016-17 — Gambling with our health’ http://gov.wales/topics/health/professionals/cmo/reports/?lang=en

§Some of the key points that this report has raised is as follows;
D
WJIhe most important benefit of the gambling industry is the tax revenues, which are considerable in the UK: in 2017 this amounted to £2.7 billion. This
ncome is used by the UK government to help fund its programme for government. However, the economic benefits of gambling need to be balanced
against the social and health harms to people who gamble, their family, friends and wider society. While most people who participate in gambling activities
do so without any significant problems, for others gambling is problematic; causing damage to their health and to wider society.

faVaVal "\RV\ 1
JU d

The availability of gambling products and platforms to diverse groups, and the developments in the infrastructure of game design, make gambling an
immediate and rapidly evolving public health issue. The public health approach aims to improve quality of life for all and to achieve health equity. This
focus on equity is necessary as people living in areas of deprivation are more likely to experience gambling-related harm.

The harms caused by gambling for the individual include anxiety, stress, depression, and alcohol and substance misuse. These factors are likely to have a
wider impact on family and friends. Further family problems can include ‘money troubles’ and family breakdown, as well as neglect and violence towards
any partner or children. There are higher rates of separation and divorce among problem gamblers compared to the general population. Further impacts of
gambling include the inability to function at work, and financial problems which can lead to homelessness. The harms from gambling to wider society
include fraud, theft, loss of productivity in the workforce, and the cost of treating this addiction. Gambling harm not only affects the individual, but the family
and wider society.

Since this report Joint work published by a team led by Prof Robert Rogers, Bangor University, with colleagues from Public Health Wales, Heather Wardle
Research Ltd and Swansea University highlights the widespread harms that gambling can cause, not only for those who gamble, but also for families,
friends and communities. Gambling is increasingly being recognised as a public health priority.



http://gov.wales/topics/health/professionals/cmo/reports/?lang=en
http://www.publichealthwales.wales.nhs.uk/

The work consists of two reports published in January 2019:

1. Gambling as a public health issue in Wales and 2. Framing a public health approach to gambling harms in Wales: Challenges and
opportunities

8. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

Continuing the existing resolution not to permit casinos in the County has a positive impact by protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being
harmed or exploited by gambling.

9. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below, if

applicable.
_nWhat are you going to do When are you going to do it? | Who is responsible
él.glncorporate resolution into the Authority’s Gambling Policy 2022. By 31/1/2022
§

w

@.VERSION CONTROL: The Equality and Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stage, such as informally
within your service, and then further developed throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep a record of this
process to demonstrate how you have considered and built in equality and future generations considerations wherever

possible.
Version | Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following
No. consideration
Full Council 04/11/2021
Publication of Gambling Policy 03/01/2022
Commencement of Gambling Policy 31/01/2022



https://www.bangor.ac.uk/psychology/research/gambling/docs/Gambling-as-Public-Health-Issue-Wales.pdf
https://www.bangor.ac.uk/psychology/research/gambling/docs/Public-Health-Approach-to-Gambling-in-Wales-ENG.pdf
https://www.bangor.ac.uk/psychology/research/gambling/docs/Public-Health-Approach-to-Gambling-in-Wales-ENG.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Public Document Pack Agenda ltem 8a

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of County Council held
at County Hall, Usk - Remote Attendance on Thursday, 23rd September, 2021 at 2.00 pm

PRESENT: County Councillor M.Feakins (Chairman)
County Councillor A. Webb (Vice Chairman)

County Councillors: P. Clarke, D. Batrouni, J.Becker, L.Brown,
L.Dymock, A.Easson, C.Edwards, R.Edwards, P.A. Fox,
R.J.W. Greenland, M.Groucutt, L. Guppy, R.Harris, G. Howard,
S. Howarth, R.John, L.Jones, P.Jones, S.Jones, P. Jordan,
M.Lane, P. Murphy, P.Pavia, M. Powell, J.Pratt, R.Roden, V. Smith,
B. Strong, T.Thomas, J.Treharne, J.Watkins, A. Watts, K. Williams
and S. Woodhouse

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Matt Phillips Chief Officer People and Governance and Monitoring
Officer

Paul Matthews Chief Executive

Peter Davies Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Officer, Resources

Will McLean Chief Officer for Children and Young People

Nicola Perry Senior Democracy Officer

Frances O'Brien Chief Officer, Enterprise

Julie Boothroyd Chief Officer Social Care, Safeguarding and Health

Matthew Gatehouse Head of Policy and Governance

APOLOGIES:

County Councillors D. Blakebrough, A.Davies, D. Evans, J. Higginson, D. Jones,
S.B. Jones and F. Taylor

1. Declarations of interest

None.

2. Public Questions

None.

3. Chairman's announcement and receipt of petitions

No petitions received.

4. Reports for Council:

5. SOCIAL  CARE, SAFEGUARDING AND HEALTH ANNUAL  DIRECTORS
PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020/2021

The Chief Officer for Social Care, Safeguarding and Health presented the Annual Statutory
Report on Performance 2020/21.

Members welcomed the presentation and were invited to comment.

Page 309



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of County Council held
at County Hall, Usk - Remote Attendance on Thursday, 23rd September, 2021 at 2.00 pm

During discussion Members were keen to congratulate Julie Boothroyd, Chief Officer Social
Care, Safeguarding and Health on her achievements, and wish her well in her retirement.

The Cabinet Member for Social Care, Safeguarding and Health commended the excellent and
inspirational report adding that it highlighted all that the Officer and her teams have
accomplished, to the benefit of so many people.

Questions were raised regarding future-proofing Monmouthshire, considering the
demographics. The Chief Officer responded that she is confident that we have an approach
which is about futureproofing and ensuring communities are as resilient and strong as they can
be. A suite of early intervention and prevention work is very strong and very driven.

With regards to Chepstow Community Hospital, the Chief Officer confirmed that we want to see
as much maximised into the space as possible.

There are approximately 200 people in receipt of direct payments across the County. People
often want to be in a position where they are in control of their own support. This is run by a
small but passionate team and Council were assured that there is a good hold on this service.

There were concerns around the issue of bed-blocking and it was stated that we should find a
way of providing more sustainable care at home.

Council resolved to accept the statutory report.

County Councillor Simon Howarth left the meeting at 14:56pm

6. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT

The Chair of Governance and Audit Committee was in attendance to present the Audit
Committee Annual Report for 2020/2021.

In doing so we heard that the committee had met 5 times over the year and had fulfilled its role
as determined in the terms of reference.

It was suggested that consideration be given to the extending membership of the committee to
15 or 16 members, to maintain political balance as well as the four co-opted members.

Council resolved to accept the report.

7. CORPORATE PLAN ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

The Leader presented the report to seek Council approval of the Corporate Plan Annual Report
2020/21. The report sought to ensure that members have a clear understanding of progress
made against the aspirations within the Corporate Plan and the subsequent ‘plan on a page’
documents which have provided clear direction and accountability during the different stages of
the pandemic.

The Leader of the Opposition expressed disappointment at the reality of the report, particularly
noting the lack of qualitative measures in place.

Page 310



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of County Council held

at County Hall, Usk - Remote Attendance on Thursday, 23rd September, 2021 at 2.00 pm
It was stated that there is a set of indicators at the end of each section demonstrating progress.
County Councillor Tudor Thomas highlighted concerns around the distribution of the levelling-up
funding, stating that Abergavenny had received nothing from the funding. The Leader referred
to the new school development in Abergavenny. The Cabinet Member for Social Justice was
disappointed in the comment and highlighted the investments in Abergavenny Leisure Centre
and Borough Theatre.
Members were keen to hear plans for Chepstow area.

Upon being put to the vote Council resolved to accept the recommendation:

That the Corporate Plan Annual Report 2020/21 be approved.

8. BOROUGH THEATRE, ABERGAVENNY- REFURBISHMENT PROGRAMME

The Cabinet Member for Social Justice and Community presented the report to seek approval
for the proposed investment at the Borough Theatre, Abergavenny to ensure that the theatre
remains fit for purpose for future generations and attractive to existing user groups and theatre
goers.

There was wide support for the proposal and agreement that this was beneficial to the entire
County, not just Abergavenny.

County Councillor Sheila Woodhouse declared a personal interest as part of an amateur theatre
group that utilises the Borough Theatre. She provided detail of the history of the theatre and
was keen to add her support.

County Councillor Martyn Groucutt, as Chair of Policy and Resources Committee, Abergavenny
Town Council, expressed the Town Council had also contributed £50,000 to the theatre and
entered into a long-term commitment to support the Melville Arts Centre.

The Leader of the Opposition expressed concern around the financial management and
rationale of the proposal as opposed to other cultural opportunities across the County.

It was noted that there were increased costs due to the pandemic.

Upon being put the vote Council resolved to recommend the recommendation:

To support the proposed investment at the Borough Theatre, Abergavenny.

The Authority conclude discussions with Abergavenny Town Council regarding any
further contribution to meeting the funding gap and the Council to underwrite any
remaining shortfall.

In the event of the Council underwriting any remaining shortfall, that the Section 151
officer decides upon the most appropriate capital funding in the form of capital receipts

or borrowing, and; in the event that borrowing is undertaken whether the service revenue
budget or corporate financing budget will bear the associated financing costs.

Page 311



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of County Council held
at County Hall, Usk - Remote Attendance on Thursday, 23rd September, 2021 at 2.00 pm

9. Notices of motion:

10. Submitted by County Councillor Kevin Williams

This council commends the contribution to community life by our young care leavers
during their time in care. It acknowledges the positive impact we, as a council, can
make to enhancing their lives upon leaving the care system and furthermore will
continue to offer support and guidance to them after they Public Document Pack leave
the care system, including the financial support they will need.

County Councillor Tudor Thomas seconded the motion and expressed how care leavers
really need the support of Council. He explained the vulnerability of care leavers when
they are catapulted into the wide world and added that suitable housing is a major issue
and a vital part of the support Council could offer.

County Councillor Phil Murphy left the meeting at 16:02pm
County Councillor Jez Becker left the meeting at 16:04pm

The Cabinet Member for Social Care, Safeguarding and Health explained that a main
priority of the Corporate Parenting Strategy is to support all care leavers in education,
training and employment to the age of 25. Care leavers have three personal advisors
who provide advice and support in every aspect required.

The Leader of the opposition proposed an amendment:

This council commends the contribution to community life by our young care leavers
during their time in care. It acknowledges the positive impact we, as a council, can
make to enhancing their lives upon leaving the care system and furthermore will
continue to offer support and guidance to them after they leave the care system,
including the financial support they will need. Therefore, the Council welcomes the
Welsh Government’s announcement to pilot Universal Basic Income that will
focus on care leavers and believes the Conservative administration should
reverse its decision to prevent Monmouthshire care leavers to be part of any
pilot.

The Cabinet Member felt unhappy to support the motion without adequate information.

Upon being put to vote the amended motion was defeated and debate returned to the
original motion.

Upon being put to the vote the original motion was carried.

11. Submitted by County Councillor Jane Pratt, Cabinet Member for Infrastructure and
Neighbourhood Services

This Council calls upon Welsh Government to accelerate the provision of a railway station at
Magor, to link up the M48 with a new junction to service Severn Tunnel Junction and make
public transport links and hubs for buses, trains, cyclists and cars at our railway stations a
priority. Time has passed and our response to the climate emergency needs to see a greater
sense of urgency and more progress from Welsh Government if we are to get people out of their

cars and onto public transport.
Page 312



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of County Council held
at County Hall, Usk - Remote Attendance on Thursday, 23rd September, 2021 at 2.00 pm

County Councillor Richard John seconded and endorsed the motion.
County Councillor Dimitri Batrouni proposed and amendment:

This Council calls upon Welsh Government to continue to work with all interested
parties to accelerate the provision of a railway station at Magor, to link up the M48 with
a new junction to service Severn Tunnel Junction and make public transport links and
hubs for buses, trains, cyclists and cars at our railway stations a priority. Time has
passed and our response to the climate emergency needs to see a greater sense of
urgency and more progress from Welsh Government if we are to get people out of their
cars and onto public transport; and in recognising such urgency and demonstrating
this Council’s commitment to tackling climate change, the Council calls upon the
Conservative administration to support Welsh Government’s policy of no more
road building in Monmouthshire and Wales.

The Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Services and Infrastructure did not support the
amendment as one of the things to be done in order to provide a fast bus road from
M48 to Severn Tunnel Junction would involve building a road.

Upon being put to the vote the amended motion was defeated and debate returned to
the original motion.

The Cabinet Member for Social Justice and Community welcomed the motion and
highlighted it as a quick fix for WG. It would also see a decrease in traffic on the B4245.

Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.

12. Submitted by County Councillor Dimitri Batrouni

For Monmouthshire County Council to work with other local Gwent authorities to help
secure funding for sign language courses for Gwent families with hearing impaired
children.

Seconded by County Councillor Martyn Groucutt.

The Cabinet Member for Education commended the timeliness of the motion with it
being International Day of Sign Languages and was supportive of the motion.

He advised that WG is rolling out a BSL GSCE in the new curriculum from 2022, and
while this will raise awareness of deaf community and deaf culture it is very different to
achieving skilled language proficiency. However, it is hopeful that it would encourage
those skills being achieved over the long term.

Upon being put to the vote the motion was carried.

13. Members Questions:

Page 313



MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of County Council held
at County Hall, Usk - Remote Attendance on Thursday, 23rd September, 2021 at 2.00 pm

14. From County Councillor Tony Easson to County Councillor Paul Pavia, Cabinet
Member for Education

There are 30 primary and the 4 secondary schools in Monmouthshire, which suggests that there
are about 400 School Governors. What is the actual number of Governors, and how many of
those Governors had DBS checks in place at the start of the new school year?

The Cabinet Member responded that MCC is the only authority in Gwent that requires all its
school governors to have a DBS check. This is done as it is part of our volunteering policy.
There are currently 450 governors in post, 53 vacancies and as at this week there are 370,
being 82% who have a current DBS check. A further 50, 11%, have a DBS application in
process. This leaves 16, 4%, without a current DBS and we are working with those schools to
understand this figure and to understand why the DBS checks are outstanding.

As a supplementary Councillor Easson asked who is responsible for monitoring the system and
if the system is still fit for purpose.

In response the Cabinet Member agreed to clarify in a written response.

14.1. From County Councillor Tony Easson to County Councillor Jane Pratt,
Cabinet Member for Infrastructure and Neighbourhood Services
With the Queens Jubilee approaching in 2022, | have been asked by constituents who wish to
organise street parties next summer. | ask Clir Pratt therefore, if logistic arrangements can be
developed by Highways early rather than late, so that interested residents can plan ahead.
These need to be developed by New Year at least.

The Cabinet Member responded that the matter of Platinum Jubilee celebrations had been
discussed at the Event Safety Advisory Group on 2™ September 2021 and the extended bank
holiday commences on 2" June 2022. The most likely date for street parties is thought to be
Sunday 5" June 2022. She agreed that earlier preparations would be encouraged, and
previous advisory material prepared for the Diamond Jubilee celebrations in 2012 will be
updated. Anyone interested in arranging a party next year will be signposted to this guidance,
which will provide information on applying for a road closure, temporary event notices, food
safety. MCC Event Safety Advisory Group are discussing this approach with other groups within
the Gwent region to ensure a consistent and fair approach to all, and where possible events will
be encouraged in light of their positive impact on bringing local communities together.

The revised guidance will be published prior to Christmas.

As a supplementary Councillor Easson presented a potential problem with access and
guestioned if it would be more advisable to hold celebrations on both Saturday and Sunday?

In response, the Cabinet Member agreed that the logistics would have to be discussed and
local communities will need to liaise with each other.

15. To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 22nd July 2021

The meeting ended at 5.20 pm

Page 314



Public Document Pack Agenda Item 8b

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Minutes of the meeting of County Council held
at County Hall, Usk - Remote Attendance on Friday, 1st October, 2021 at 10.00 am

PRESENT: County Councillor P. Clarke (As Chairman)

County Councillors: P. Clarke, L.Brown, A.Easson, C.Edwards,
R. Edwards, R.J.W. Greenland, L. Guppy, R. Harris, J. Higginson,
G. Howard, S. Howarth, R.John, L.Jones, P.Jones, S. Jones,
P.Jordan, M.Lane, P. Murphy, M. Powell, J.Pratt, R.Roden,
V. Smith, B. Strong, T.Thomas , JWatkins, B. Jones and S.
Woodhouse

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Matt Phillips Chief Officer People and Governance and Monitoring
Officer

Paul Matthews Chief Executive

John Pearson Local Democracy Manager

Nicola Perry Senior Democracy Officer

Richard Williams Democratic Services Officer

APOLOGIES:

County Councillors L.Dymock, D. Evans, M.Feakins, P.A. Fox, M.Groucutt, D. Jones,
P.Pavia, F. Taylor, J.Treharne, A. Webb and K. Williams

1. Declarations of interest

County Councillor Peter Clarke was elected as Chair.
There were no declarations of interest from Members.
2. To exclude the press and public from the meeting during consideration of the

following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information

Council resolved to exclude press and public from the meeting.

3. Appointment of Chief Officer Social Care, Safeguarding & Health

Council unanimously resolved to appoint Jane Rodgers as Chief Officer, Social Care,
Safeguarding and Health.

The meeting ended at 11.30 am

Page 315



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 316



	Agenda
	4 Chairman's announcement and receipt of petitions
	5a SAFEGUARDING EVALUATION REPORT April 2020 - March 2022
	5a 2021OctIntegrated Impact Assessment Safeguarding

	5b CLIMATE AND DE-CARBONISATION STRATEGY
	5b Climate and Decarbonisation_Action Plan 2021_v2.0
	5b Council Integrated Impact Assessment_Nov 21_climate action plan update

	5c DIVERSITY AND DEMOCRACY DECLARATION
	5c Diverse Council Declaration
	5c Integrated Impact Assessment document June 2021

	5d COUNCIL DIARY
	5d Council Diary 2022-23

	5e AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS & ISA260 MCC ACCOUNTS
	5e. 20211104 - County Council - Final 2020-21 ISA 260 Audit of Accounts Report
	20211104 - Council - Appendix 1 - Audited Statement of account 2021.22 (Final)

	5f STATEMENT OF GAMBLING POLICY AND PROPOSALS FOR CASINOS
	211104 - Appendix A Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 2022 - Full Council
	5f 211104 - Appendix B EQIA Evaluation Form - Full Council

	8a 23rd September 2021
	Minutes

	8b 1st October 2021
	Minutes


